KINGSBURY

| ENERAL IMPRAVENERT BiSIRICT

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING NOTICE
AGENDA
WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 18, 2026

A meeting of the Kingsbury General Improvement District Board of Trustees shall be
held Wednesday February 18, 2028, at the district office (160 Pine Ridge Drive,
Stateline, NV, 89449), commencing at 5:00 p.m. The agenda and supporting material
are available on the district website (www.kgid.org), News & Notices. Copies of this
agenda were posted 3 business days prior to the meeting at: The District Office,
Stateline Post Office, Zephyr Cove Post Office, and Douglas County Lake Tahoe
Administration Building.

Electronic copies of the agenda and supporting materials are also available at the
following website: » State of Nevada Public Notices website: hitps:/notice.nv.gov/

Remote aftendance is welcomed. To offer public comment prior to the meeting,
individuals may submit comments using the drop box located at the district office entrance,
or email fo the District Secretary.

« To provide public comment or attend the meeting by phone, (669) 900-9128 - ID
code 775-588-3548 passcode 5883548. Although the phone line accommodates
multiple callers, should you receive a busy signal, please call back.

o Public comment is limited to three minutes and occurs at the beginning and end
of the meeting and invited during the Board's consideration of each action item,
as well as before action is taken.

Join the meeting using the link below via Zoom:

https://usOZweb.zoom.us/jl7755883548?pwd=UnF2Yszb05YaOijjRCNUNEM
UFVZz0980mn=89828590597
Meeting ID: 776 588 3548 Passcode: 5883548

MISSION STATEMENT
As a team, our employees and the Board of Trustees provide water and sewer service,
maintain roads and drainage systems for the benefit of our customers using modern
business systems in an efficient courteous, and accountable manner which surpass
standards set for public health, safety, and the environment.



Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and
require special assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify
the district by calling 775-588-3548 at least one day in advance of the meeting.

ALL MATTERS ON THE BOARD AGENDA ARE SCHEDULED WITH POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION

AGENDA

5:00 P.M.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Public Comment

This is the public’s opportunity to speak on any topic pertinent to the district and

not listed on this agenda. Public comments will also be invited during the

Board’s consideration of each action item, and before action is taken. Please

limit your comments to three minutes. Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS

241.034) prohibits action on items not listed on the agenda.

5. Approval of Agenda: For Possible Action: Items on the agenda may be taken
out of order; two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration; and
items may be removed from the agenda or discussion relating thereto delayed at
any time.

6. Approval of Minutes: For Possible Action: Approval of the minutes for the
Board of Trustees meeting, January 20, 2026.

hON=

NEW BUSINESS

7. Discussion and Possible Action: Market Street Lift Station Alternatives
Selection

8. Discussion and Possible Action: Adoption of Procedure to Create and
Maintain List of Qualified Appraisers Pursuant To NRS 318.5121

9. Discussion and Possible Action: Selection of Appraiser For Pending Property
Sale

10.Discussion and Possible Action: Determination of Fair Market Value of District
Property Proposed for Conveyance (APN: 1318-24-710-001)

11.Discussion and Possible Action: Ratification and Authorization of Conveyance
of District Owned Property (APN: 1318-24-710-001)

12.Discussion and Possible Action: Approve list of Claims, January 2026

13.For Discussion and Possible Action: Review and Receive Financial
Statements, Quarterly-October/November/December 2025

14.Discussion and Possible Action: Proposed Updates to the District By-Laws
(First Reading)

15.Discussion and Possible Action: Rescheduling of April 21, 2026 Board
Meeting

16.Discussion and Possible Action: Proposed Change to Standing Board of
Trustees Meeting Schedule

17. Discussion and Possible Action: Remote Public Participation Options for
Board Meetings



ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN ON ANY REPORTS OR CORRESPONDENCE:
Board Member Reports

Engineering Report

Management Report

Attorney Report

Correspondence

Announcements and Final Public Comment

For Possible Action; Adjournment

NogRLON -






KINGSBURY

GEMERAL IMPROVERERT BISTRICY

Kingsbury General Improvement District
Board of Trustees

Ed Johns, Chair
Sara Nelson, Vice Chair
Cindy Trigg, Secretary/Treasurer
Jessica Grime, Trustee
John Shearer, Trustee

MEETING MINUTES
ADJOURNED MEETING OF THE KGID BOARD OF TRUSTEES

HELD AT 160 PINE RIDGE DR. STATELINE, NV ON JANUARY 20, 2026
https:/ikgid.org

The Meeting of the Kingsbury General Improvement District
Board of Trustees was called to order at 5:00 p.m.

1. Callto Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance
Chair Johns led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. RollCall

4. Chair Ed Johns, Trustee Sara Nelson, Trustee Jessica Grime, Secretary/Treasurer
Cindy Trigg and Trustee John Shearer, General Counsel Chuck Zumpft, General
Manager Derek Dornbrook, Utility Ops Superintendent Byran Moss and Admin. and
H.R. Supervisor Judy Brewer were all presentin person. Charlena Manchester and
Zachary Johns attended in person. Present on Zoom were Michael G., 530-721-2006,
67gje, 530-400-2391 and Patti Page.

5. Public Comment
Initial Public Comments can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings
Media Timestamp (02:00-2:17)

No Public Comment

6. Approval of Agenda: For Possible Action: Approval of the Agenda



The full discussion related to item 6 can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings
Media Timestamp (02:18 — 02:50)

M-01-20-26-1: To approve the agenda as submitted/posted for Kingsbury GID Board
of Trustees Meeting January 20, 2026.

Moved by Trigg Seconded by Shearer
YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Grime, Nelson and Shearer 5
NAYS: None 0

Motion Passed

7. Approval of Minutes: For Possible Action: Approval of the Minutes for the Board

of Trustees meeting. December 16, 2025 and the Special Board Meetings,
December 22, 2025 and January 7, 2026.

The full discussion related to item 7 can be heard at:
https://kqid.org/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (02:53 - 08:44)

M-01-20-26-2: To approve the minutes for December 16, 2025, and the Special
Board Meetings, December 22, 2025, and January 7, 2026, with the corrections that
were discussed.

Moved by Grime Seconded by Nelson
YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Grime, Nelson and Shearer 5
NAYS: None 0
Motion
Passed

NEW BUSINESS FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

8. For Discussion and Possible Action: Organization of the Board of Trustees and
the Election of Officers
The full discussion related to item 8 can be heard at:
https://kaid.ora/board-meeting-recordinas
Media Timestamp (08:53 - 14:40)




10.

M-01-20-26-3: Motion to appoint Ed Johns as the Chair, Sara Nelson as the Vice
Chair, Cindy Trigg as the Secretary/Treasurer.

Moved by Grime Seconded by Shearer
YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Grime, Nelson and Shearer 5
NAYS: None 0

Motion Passed

For Discussion and Possible Action: Approval of the List of Claims, December
2025.

The full discussion related to item 9 can be heard at:
https://kgid.ora/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (15:00 - 24:55)

M-01-20-26-4: Motion to approve the list of claims for December 11, 2025, to January
16, 2026, from check number 65968 to 66075 for a total of $971,018.69.

Moved by Nelson Seconded by Trigg
YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Grime, Nelson and Shearer 5
NAYS: None 0

Motion Passed

For Discussion and Possible Action: Approval of Snow Removal Contract with
Manchester Ent. Inc.

The full discussion related to item 10 can be heard at:
https://kaid.org/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (25:00 - 1:32:50)

The board reviewed a proposed contract with Manchester Enterprises, which
includes a minimum payment guarantee of $450,000 per season and a seasonal
cap of $600,000. Dornbrook noted that Manchester has provided services on atime
and material basis since December 27" and emphasized their good faith in not
charging maximum rates. Concerns were raised regarding the contractor’s licensing
status in Nevada.

Kingsbury GID addressed the snow removal contract with Manchester Enterprises
while navigating concerns about their adversarial relationship due to an ongoing
lawsuit. The board members expressed differing views on whether their legal



11.

situation would have impact on their negotiations and decisions. Counsel indicated
that ongoing litigation would not have an overall negative impact.

Public Comment: Patti Page, Juniper Drive made a comment that she doesn’t
understand why Trigg thinks we must visit this repeatedly and asked Trigg who she
suggests will do our snow plowing if you’re concerned that we are already in a
lawsuit with them? It’s all about insurance companies fighting with one another.

M-01-20-26-5: Motion to approve the snow removal contract with Manchester
Enterprises after all the remarks and changes to the current contract are made.

Moved by Grime Seconded by Nelson
YEAS: Johns, Grime, Nelson and Shearer 4
NAYS: Trigg 1

Motion Passed

. (Brought Back to the Table) Ceremonial Item: Presentation of U.S. Flag for

Retirement (Boy Scouts)

The full discussion related to item 4 can be heard at:
https://kagid.org/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (1:32:52 - 1:34:18)

For Discussion and Possible Action: Recognition of Service — Trustee Greg

Felton
The full discussion related to item 11 can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (1:34:20 — 1:35:55)

M-01-20-26-6: Approve the Resolution 2026-01, honoring Greg Felton and recognizing
his distinguished service to the Kingsbury General Improvement District upon his
retirement as a member of the Board of Trustees.

Moved by Grime Seconded by Nelson
YEAS: Johns, Grime, Trigg, Nelson and Shearer 5
NAYS: 0

Motion Passed



BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE — (not for possible action) Updates are intended to
inform the Board and/or the public. The Board of Trustees will not deliberate or take

action with respect to any of the reported items.
The full discussion related to Items 1-7 The Board of Trustees Updates review can be

https://kaid.org/board-meeting-recordings
Media Timestamp (1:35:55 - 1:54:29)

1. Board Member Reports (None presented)

2. Engineering Report (In board packet)

3. Management Reports
Dornbrook discussed 2026-27 Budget Development & Rate Study Updates,
Annual Financial Disclosure, Communications & Public Outreach, Public
Records Requests, Water Pumps, Lead and Copper Rule Compliance, Risk
and Resilience Assessment (RRA) and Emergency Response Plan (ERP), 510
Laurel Lane Property Sale, IT Service Transition, Pool Pact Training and goals
for 2026.
Moss discussed daily operations as it pertains to himself, Water Crew and
Road Crew.
Brewer (No comments on written report-Board had no questions)

4. Attorney Report (Nothing presented)

5. Correspondence (Nothing presented)

6. Long Range Calendar (Nothing presented)

12. Final Public Comment:
The full discussion related to public comment can be heard at:
https://kgid.ora/board-meeting-recordings
Media Timestamp (1:54:30 - 1:55:10)
None

7. ADJOURNMENT (for possible action)
The meeting of the Kingsbury GID Board of Trustees adjourned at 6:57 PM.

Respectfully submitted, Attest:

Ed Johns, Chair Cindy Trigg, Secretary






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #7
TITLE: MARKET STREET LIFT STATION ALTERNATIVES SELECTION
MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Provide direction to staff to:
1. Select a preferred alternative for the Market Street Lift Station (MSLS) project; and
2. Authorize DOWL to proceed with advancement of the selected alternative to the next phase of
design and funding development; and
3. Direct staff to pursue funding strategy consistent with the selected alternative.

BACKGROUND:

The Market Street Lift Station (MSLS) is KGID’s most critical sewer facility and serves as the terminal
pumping station conveying all District wastewater flows to the Douglas County Lake Tahoe Sewer
Authority (DCLTSA) Wastewater Reclamation Facility (WWRF).

As identified in prior Board presentations, the MSLS presents significant operational, environmental,
and financial risks, including:

o Limited wet well storage capacity

o Continuous pump operation and accelerated equipment wear

o Force main velocity deficiencies

e Absence of permanent standby power

« Site constraints and environmental sensitivity
The Board previously authorized preparation of a Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) under Task
Order #71. The PER advances a 10% level design and evaluates five long-term alternatives:

Alternative 1 — No Action

Alternative 2 — Rehabilitation at Existing Location
Alternative 3 — New Lift Station at New Location
Alternative 4 — Gravity Main to DCLTSA WWRF
Alternative 5 — Bypass Sewer to DCLTSA Beach Lift Station

INCLUDED:
A. Executive Summary of Market Street Lift Station PER
B. Alternatives Evaluation Matrix

Fund impacted by the above action:
() All Funds (O Not a Budget Item



(O Water Fund (X)Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



y Market St. Lift Station PER

DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process
TO: Derek Dornbrook
FROM: Alex Stodtmeister, P.E.
REVIEWED: Travis Marshall, P.E.
DATE: 2/13/2026

PROJECT: Market St. Lift Station PER

SUBJECT: Project Alternatives Analysis Process
\\dowl.com\j\Projects\63\000014w71\4OStudies_Report5\40_5 DraftReport\OZ_AItsAnaIysis+Presentation\DZ_Write—Up\MarketStreetLS_AItsAnaIysis_TM.docx

The purpose of this technical memorandum (TM) is to provide Kingsbury General Improvement District
(KGID) with an overview of the alternatives analysis process for the Market St. Lift Station Preliminary
Engineering Report (PER). The alternatives analysis will include a non-economic evaluation of
alternatives and an economic evaluation of alternatives.

PROJECT ALTERNATIVES

Currently the Market St. Lift Station conveys sewer from KGID to the Douglas County Lake Tahoe Sewer
Authority (DCLTSA) Wastewater Reclamation Facility (WWRF) but has several critical deficiencies. Five
different alternatives will be discussed and analyzed in the PER to address the deficiencies of the Market
St. Lift Station. The five alternatives are as follows:

Alternative 1: No Action

Alternative 2: Rehabilitation at Existing Location
Alternative 3: New Lift Station at New Location
Alternative 4: Gravity Main to DCLTSA WWRF
Alternative 5: Bypass Sewer to DCLTSA Beach Lift Station

ALTERNATIVE 1: NO ACTION

Alternative 1 consists of not pursuing any improvements to the Market Street Lift Station. This No Action
alternative would not replace any components of the existing lift station, construct any gravity flow
rerouting, or construct any replacement lift station. This alternative would not have any capital financial
impact. This alternative would put the lift station at risk of failure.

ALTERNATIVE 2: REHABILITATION AT EXISTING LOCATION

Alternative 2 consists of rehabilitating the existing lift station via the removal of the existing equipment
and construction of a new wet well, connection vault, meter vault, SCADA, odor control, and
implementation of alternative energy. The main challenge with this with rehabilitation of the lift station
at the current location is that it is landlocked within the larger TRPA parcel. Access is only possible
through an access easement driveway, and the proposed upgrades are expected to exceed the parcel
boundary and will require obtaining additional easement areas from TRPA.

ALTERNATIVE 3: NEW LIFT STATION AT NEW LOCATION

Alternative 3 consists of constructing a new lift station at a new location. The future lift station will
include a new wet well, connection vault, meter vault, SCADA, odor control, and alternative energy.
Alternative 3 is located on APN 1318-26-101-095 along Kingsbury Grade (State Route 207). This property
is owned by NDOT and falls within the Class 3 land capability district. This location was chosen as an
alternative because it would provide more space for operation and maintenance activities. However, its

Page 1



y Market St. Lift Station PER
. DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

proximity to State Route 207, classified as a scenic corridor, brings about additional permitting
requirements. Although there are signs of previous disturbance on this parcel, no structures or site

improvements are present.

ALTERNATIVE 4: GRAVITY MAIN TO DCLTSA WWRF

Alternative 4 proposes to install a gravity sewer main that reroutes sewer flows from the northeast
portion of the system directly to the DCLTSA WWRF. This alternative would reduce the need for
additional storage at Market Lift Station. However, implementing this alternative presents several
challenges. These include the difficulties of construction due to elevation constraints, the need for
additional easements from residential property owners and the United States Forrest Service (USFS),
and the need for additional permitting to cross Burke Creek.

ALTERNATIVE 5: BYPASS SEWER TO DCLTSA BEACH LIFT STATION

Alternative 5 proposes to divert all sewer flows to the Beach lift station owned by the DCLTSA that
discharges to the DCLTSA WWREF. This alternative would reduce the need for additional storage at
Market Lift Station. However, the District shared concerns regarding the possible environmental risks
linked to sending additional flows to DCLTSA, especially following the spill that occurred at the Beach Lift
Station in March 2023. Additionally, the annual operating costs paid to the DCLTSA fluctuate based on
the District’s proportion of flows compared to other municipalities utilizing the same facilities.

NON-ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ALTERNATIVES

The alternatives analysis in the PER will utilize a Weighted Scoring Model (WSM), which is a form of
Multi-Criteria Decision Analysis (MCDA). This methodology evaluates each alternative against a series of
criteria, subcriteria that make up each criterion, and metrics that make up each subcriterion. The
criteria, subcriteria, and metrics make up the components of an alternatives analysis matrix.
Components of the alternatives analysis matrix are weighted based on their importance to the project,
and each alternative is then evaluated against the matrix components. This will compromise the non-
economic analysis portion of the PER. The results of this analysis will be paired with the results of the
economic analysis to determine the preferred project alternative.

COMPONENT SCORING WEIGHTS

Each component of the matrix is weighted based on the importance to the project. A scoring weight of
ten (10) is applied to criteria, subcriteria, and metrics that are deemed to be critically important, while a
scoring weight of zero (0) is applied for the components that are the least important. The full scale used
in the weight scoring is shown in Table 1. :

Table 1: Weight Scoring Scale

Verbal Scale Numeric Scale
Critically Important 10
Very Important 7.5
Important 5
Less Important 25
Least Important 0

Page 2



V' N
- DOWL

Market St. Lift Station PER

Project Alternatives Analysis Process

The criteria and subcriteria used for the non-economic analysis were developed by carefully considering
the goals of the project and the needs of KGID. The criteria, subcriteria, and metrics of the alternatives

analysis are presented below in Table 2.

Table 2: Matrix Criteria, Subcriteria, and Metrics

Criterion

Subcriterion

Metric

Operations and Maintenance

Accessibility

Ease of Access for Operators

Winter Access/Snow Removal

Level of Operator Attention

Mechanical Systems

Pipeline Length

Failure Response

Impacts from Repair and
Maintenance

Traffic Control

Interruption of Service

Revegetation/BMPs

Engineering

Design Complexity

Engineering Disciplines involved

BMP Design

Utility Locates

Survey Effort

Tree Removal

Constructability

Proximity to Existing Utilities

Site improvements

Vehicle Access

Rock Removal

Traffic Control

Effect on Existing System

Bypass Pumping

Construction Duration

Public/Regional Impacts

Agency Coordination

DCLTSA Infrastructure Impacts

Updates to DCLTSA Agreement

Number of Permits

Complexity of Permits

ROW/Easements

Public Impacts

Aesthetics — Construction

Aesthetics — Permanent

Potential for Opposition

Proximity to Residences

impacts to Private Property

Environmental

Waters

Stream Crossings

Proximity to Waters

Ground Disturbance

Work within Roadways

Work Outside of Roadways

The weight scoring scale presented in Table 1 was applied to the four criteria of the matrix and are
presented below in Table 3. The “Priority” column in Table 3 represents a normalization of the

Page 3



A' ; Market St. Lift Station PER
- DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

weighting. This reflects the relative contribution that a particular criterion has on the overall ranking of
the alternatives. The priorities for each criterion reflect the total criteria scoring, equaling 100 percent.

Table 3: Criteria Weights and Priorities

Criteria Weight Priority
Operations and Maintenance 10 28.6%
Engineering 7.5 21.4%
Public/Regional Impacts 7.5 21.4%
Environmental 10 28.6%

Total 35 100%

The four criteria were broken down into eleven subcriteria, which are specific characteristics used to
compare how well each alternative meets each of the main criteria. The subcriteria were also weighted
in the same manner as the criteria, and as a result a priority for each calculated. Once the criteria and
subcriteria were weighted, and a priority calculated, a matrix weight was calculated for the subcriteria.
The matrix weight is equal to the priority of the subcriteria multiplied by the priority of its parent criteria
and then multiplied by 100. This gives the subcriteria a point value showing the highest possible score
that each subcriterion could be worth. The sum of the matrix weights will always equal 100,
representing the highest possibl'e total score an alternative could receive. The subcriteria weights,
priorities, and matrix weights are shown below in Table 4.

Table 4: Subcriteria Weights, Priorities, and Matrix Weights

Subcriterion Weight Priority Matrix Weight
Operations and Maintenance 10 28.6%
Accessibility 10 40% 114
Level of Operator Attention 10 40% 114
Impacts fﬁrom Repair and 5 20% 5.7
Maintenance
Subtotal 25 100% 28.6
Engineering 10 21.4%
Design Complexity 7.5 30% 6.4
Constructability 7.5 30% 6.4
Effect on Existing System 10 40% 8.6
Subtotal 25 100% 21.4
Public/Regional Impacts 7.5 21.4%
Agency Coordination 10 A44% 95
Public Impacts 7.5 33% 7.1
Potential for Opposition 5 22% 4.8
Subtotal 22.5 100% 21.4
Environmental 10 28.6%
Waters 10 57% 16.3
Ground Disturbance 7.5 43% 12.2
Subtotal 17.5 100% 28.6

Page 4



VN Market St. Lift Station PER
- DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

Using the established criteria and subcriteria and their respective weights, each alternative was ranked
within each subcriterion using the metrics shown in Table 2 and a resulting score was calculated. For
example, there are five alternatives, so each alternative was ranked relative to each other from one (1)
to five (5) for each subcriterion, with five representing the highest, and most desirable rank. The score
was then calculated by dividing the rank by the number of alternatives (5) and then multiplying it by the
subcriterion matrix weight. If two alternatives are tied for a given subcriteria, each alternative will be
ranked as the same higher rank. For example, if two alternatives are tied as the highest rank for a
subcriterion, both alternatives would be given a rank of 5. The scores for all subcriteria were then
summed for each alternative, and the highest overall scoring alternative is considered the most
desirable. The highest possible score for any alternative is 100. The final scoring matrix with the weights
and priorities applied can be found in Attachment 1.

COMPONENT DESCRIPTIONS

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

The operation and maintenance of the lift station location is a significant consideration in the overall
project evaluation and preliminary design. The sub-criteria under this criterion attempt to evaluate the
accessibility for maintenance, level of operator attention, and impact from repair and maintenance.

Accessibility

Access to the facility should be available year-round for routine maintenance and emergencies. The
metrics used to rank the alternatives are based on the ease of access for operators and the level of snow
removal required for winter access.

Ease of Access for Operators

Alternatives with proposed infrastructure (e.g., sewer lines, wet well) within areas where access was
restricted (i.e., dead-end roads with no alternative routing) were given a lower score than alternatives
with infrastructure on thru roads that had more than one way to access them. Additionally, alternatives
where existing access does not currently exist, or is limited, were given lower scores than alternatives
with existing access.

Winter Access/Snow Removal

Lift stations require access for maintenance year-round. The District operators have emphasized the
need for access during the winter months. Therefore, the location that has adequate space for snow
removal were given a higher score. Gravity sewer lines may also require winter maintenance in the case
of an emergency. Alternatives that would require specialized vehicle access during winter months or
require large amounts of snow removal were scored lower.

Level of Operator Attention

Infrastructure constructed as a part of an alternative would require regular inspection and maintenance.
This subcriterion compares alternatives based on metrics that reflect the amount of time that would be
required to operate and maintain the infrastructure. The metrics used to rank the alternatives are based
on whether an alternative utilizes mechanical or passive systems, the total length of pipe proposed for
the alternative, and the response time required should failure occur to the alternative.

Page 5



y Market St. Lift Station PER
- DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

Mechanical Systems

Mechanical systems (i.e. pumps) in comparison to passive systems (i.e. gravity sewer mains) require
increased levels of operator competency and time to maintain and repair. Alternatives not involving the
rehabilitation or installation of mechanical systems were scored higher.

Pipeline Length

It is assumed that a longer pipeline length installed correlates with more operator attention required for
maintenance. Therefore, alternatives that add more pipes to the system were given a lower score.

Failure Response

Alternatives were scored based on the urgency of a system failure. If a failure were to necessitate an
immediate emergency response, they were scored lower than those that have a larger repair timeframe.

Impacts from Repair and Maintenance

It is critical that repairs or maintenance minimize disruptions to the public and KGID customers. The
impacts due to traffic control, interruption of customer service, or required revegetation as the result of
repair and maintenance were used as metrics to rank alternatives under this subcriterion.

Traffic Control

Repair and maintenance can often require large equipment that will require traffic control. Alternatives
that are located near roads with heavy traffic were ranked lower.

Interruption of Service

Repair and maintenance on any alternative may necessitate the infrastructure associated with that
alternative to be taken offline, which would prevent KGID from providing service to its customers.
Alternatives with lower times associated with anticipated maintenance and repair activities were ranked

higher.

Revegetation/BMPs

Repair and maintenance activities could possibly include ground disturbance that would require utilizing
best management practices (BMP) and/or revegetation due to ground disturbance. Alternatives that
require significant underground utilities that would require ground disturbance for maintenance or
repair were ranked lower.

ENGINEERING

Design and construction challenges have the potential to cause a significant increase in project costs
and/or delay in schedule that could impact the feasibility of completing a project alternative. The
engineering criterion considers the potential ease of design and construction and is evaluated by
subcriteria related to design complexity, constructability, and the effect on existing services.

Design Complexity

Design complexity accounts for challenges that may arise in the design of the alternative. The metrics
used to rank the alternatives include the number of engineering disciplines involved in the design, the
design of BMPS, locating existing utilities, the ground survey effort required, and the number of trees
that require removal that must be planned.

Page 6



"-_ Market St. Lift Station PER
. DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

Engineering Disciplines Involved

The design of a lift station would require electrical and mechanical engineering expertise, in addition to
civil engineering, the collaboration between these groups would add complexity to the design that
would not be required for the design of a gravity sewer main. Alternatives requiring fewer engineering
disciplines to complete their design scored higher.

BMP Design

BMPS are required to manage stormwater, erosion, and other environmental degradation that may
oceur during construction. The design of BMPs adds complexity and length to the design of an
alternative. Alternatives requiring fewer BMPs were scored higher.

Utility Locates

Utility Locates are required to establish the type and location of existing utilities. Utility locates are
typically completed by the utility that owns the infrastructure. These efforts must be completed for the
project area so that the alternative can be designed as to not interfere with existing utilities.
Alternatives requiring a smaller effort in locating utilities were scored higher than those requiring a

larger effort.

Survey Effort

Surveying is required prior to design to establish property boundaries, landscape characteristics, and the
location of existing infrastructure. Alternatives with a smaller survey effort were scored higher than

those requiring a larger effort.

Tree Removal

Given the environmental sensitivity of the Tahoe Basin, tree removal will need to be considered in the

design of each alternative. Determining which trees are necessary to remove for the construction of an
alternative adds complexity to the design, as it requires tree classification. Trees which must remain in

place also add additional constraints to the design. The alternative which impacts the fewest existing

trees was scored highest.

Constructability

Challenges associated with the constructability of a project may delay the project schedule and/or
increase costs. Despite the engineering challenges that each alternative may face, there are mitigation
factors that can be enforced to offset any foreseen setbacks. The metrics used to rank the alternatives
cover the proximity of existing utilities to the alternative project site, the number of site improvements
required to complete the project alternative, and construction vehicle access to the project alternative

site.

Proximity to Existing Utilities

Alternatives which include the construction of a lift station require an extension of the influent gravity
sewer main and/or the sewer force main at varying degrees. Additional length of pipe required for
construction may prolong the start of operations for the lift station. Alternatives that are located closer
to the existing gravity pipe and force main were given higher scores.

Page 7



A Market St. Lift Station PER
- DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

Site Improvements

Site Improvements may be needed for the construction of the alternative. Site improvements include
earth work, paving, structures (i.e. fences or retaining walls), demolition of any redundant facilities, and
landscaping that could be included in the construction of the alternative. Alternatives requiring fewer
site improvements were scored higher.

Construction Vehicle Access

Difficult access to the alternative construction location may cause project delays and require additional
accommodation such as requiring land from neighboring properties for access and staging areas. The
alternative with sufficient access and space for staging areas were ranked higher.

Rock Removal

Removal of rock for the installation of sewer mains requires additional resources, equipment, and time.
Alternatives which are anticipated to require less rock removal were scored higher.

Traffic Control

Traffic control efforts will be required for any construction activities that take place on or near public
streets. Alternatives requiring more traffic control during construction activities were ranked lower.

Effect on Existing System

The Market Lift Station is the terminal point for the District service area and pumps the wastewater to
the WWRF. There can be a substantial risk to the environment and the community if construction of the
project alternative has the potential to interrupt sewer service due to reliance on temporary means of
providing service. Bypass pumping requirements and the total duration of construction were used as
metrics to rank project alternatives.

Bypass Pumping

Bypass pumping adds complexity and risk to a project. If a bypass is designed incorrectly there could be
significant impacts to the community and the environment along with unanticipated costs. The
alternative that does not require bypass pumping and allows normal operation to continue during
construction were scored higher.

Construction Duration

The total duration of construction can impact the total amount of risk faced by the existing system and
community. The longer a construction project is expected to take, the more likely the project can be
impacted by weather or additional unseen factors. As a result, alternatives that have a shorter expected
construction duration scored higher.

PUBLIC/REGIONAL IMPACTS

Constructing a project near Lake Tahoe attracts the attention of regulatory agencies. Any public or
regulatory opposition to a project can cause delays or termination. Public and regional impacts utilized
subcriteria covering agency coordination, impacts to the public, and the potential for opposition to score
the alternatives.

Page 8



VN Market St. Lift Station PER
DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

Agency Coordination

Coordination with other agencies will be needed for the construction of each alternative. Additionally,
coordination with other agencies will be required for the operation of each alternative as KGID is reliant
on DCLTSA for wastewater treatment. This subcriterion is scored based on metrics determining possible
impacts to DCLTSA infrastructure, changes to the existing agreement between DCLTSA and KGID, the
number of permits required for an alternative, the complexity of the required permits, and the
requirement to procure additional easements or rights-of-way (ROW) for an alternative.

DCLTSA Infrastructure Impacts

Any necessary upgrades or modifications to DCLTSA infrastructure to convey or treat wastewater
discharged from KGID will need to be coordinated with and approved by DCLTSA. The alternative with
less impact to DCLTSA infrastructure was scored higher.

Updates to DCLTSA Agreement

Discharge to Beach Lift Station would require an update to the current operating agreement between
KGID and DCLTSA. The implementation of Alternative 5 would be dependent on ratification of this
agreement. Any issues with coming to an agreement between the two agencies could cause delays with
the execution of the alternative. The alternatives requiring no updates to the agreement were scored

higher.-

Number of Permits

All alternatives require coordination with stakeholders for a permit or easement. The alternative that
requires the least permits were scored higher.

Complexity of Permits

Construction activity that may require coordination with federal agencies or agencies not typically dealt
with by KGID can add delays, cost, and complexity to a project alternative. The alternatives that do not
require coordination with federal agencies or any agencies outside those typically dealt with by KGID
were scored higher.

ROW/Easements

All alternatives require acquisition of easements or right-of-way (ROW) access from other agencies. The
alternative that requires the least land use permission were scored higher.

Public Impacts

Alternatives could negatively impact public perception of the project through damaging aesthetics
(auditory and visual). Metrics used to rank the alternatives include temporary aesthetic impacts due to
construction and permanent aesthetics due to the constructed alternative.

Aesthetics — Construction

Temporary damage to aesthetics during construction include equipment and materials occupying
previously unoccupied space, areas cleared of vegetation, and loud noise. The alternative with the least
anticipated damage to aesthetics during construction was scored the highest.

Page 9



VS Market St. Lift Station PER
- DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

Aesthetics — Permanent

Permanent damage to aesthetics could include the removal of mature trees and the construction of new
facilities. The alternative with the least anticipated damage to permanent aesthetics was scored the
highest.

Potential for Opposition

Any construction activity has the potential to negatively impact residences and community stakeholders
and as a result could be publicly opposed. The subcriterion ranks alternatives based on their potential
for public opposition using metrics that cover alternatives proximity to residences and potential impacts
to private property.

Proximity to Residences

Final project construction and construction activity could be opposed by residents who live closertoa
project. Alternatives that are closer to existing residences were scored lower.

Potential Impacts to Private Property

Construction activities and the final project can have potential impacts on private and commercial
properties and could be opposed by local landowners. Alternatives that are within private property were
scored lower.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Lake Tahoe watershed is considered a natural resource of significance with ecological and
recreational benefits. As a result, the construction of wastewater infrastructure within the watershed
necessitates an evaluation of potential impacts on the environment. An evaluation of the environmental
impacts of each alternative was evaluated using the following sub-criteria:

Waters

Stream Crossings

Construction of certain project alternatives would require crossing streams with new infrastructure.
Alternatives that require a stream crossing will be scored lower. If a project alternative requires a stream
crossing but can utilize an existing crossing location, it will not be scored as low as an alternative that
would require a new stream crossing.

»

Proximity to Waters

The failure critical infrastructure in this area carries the consequences of spilling wastewater into a body
of water that feeds into Lake Tahoe. The alternative that is located farther from a water body will be
scored higher.

Ground Disturbance

Ground disturbance due to a project alternative can have an impact on biological resources (habitats,
tree removal, etc.) that could affect the viability of the project and increase project costs to mitigate
negative impacts. Project alternatives were ranked according to the amount of ground disturbance
expected to take place within a roadway and outside of a roadway.

Page 10



y Market St. Lift Station PER
DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

Work within Roadways

Ground disturbance within roadways is expected to have less environmental damage and mitigation
required. Alternatives with more of the expected work to take place within a roadway were scored

higher.

Work Outside of Roadways

Ground disturbance outside existing roadways is expected to have a greater impact on the environment
through tree removal and possible habitat alteration that would require mitigation. Alternatives with
more of the expected work to take place outside of a roadway were scored lower.

ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ALTERNATIVES

The economic evaluation of the project alternatives ranks the project alternatives based on two
different cost metrics. The first is the upfront capital cost of the project. The second is the net present

value (NPV) of the project.

Project cost estimates were prepared for each alternative in assumed 2026-dollar amounts. The
estimates prepared are considered Level 5 cost estimates as defined by the Association for the
Advancement of Cost Engineering (AACE) and have an accuracy range of -50% to +100%. The actual
dollar value of the estimates is not to be considered as a final project cost estimate, but as a fair
comparison for one alternative to another and provide relative costs. Project alternatives that have a
lower estimated capital cost were scored higher.

As the funding strategy for this project is not fully finalized, a Net Present Value {(NPV) calculation for
each project alternative was prepared in accordance with the Nevada Division of Environmental (NDEP)
Guidance on Preliminary Engineering Reports should KGID decide to pursue funding through the NDEP
Office of Financial Assistance (OFA). Per the NDEP document, NPV is the sum of capital cost (C) plus the
present worth of the uniform series of annual operations and maintenance (USPW (O&M)) costs minus
the single payment present worth of the salvage value (SPPW (S)), as seen below in Equation 1.
Alternatives that have a higher NPV were ranked higher.

Equation 1: Net Present Value
NPV = C + USPW (0&M) — SPPW (S)

Page 11



Market St. Lift Station PER
DOWL Project Alternatives Analysis Process

Attachment 1: Alternatives Analysis Scoring
Matrix




2025 juey

$1
yseaq vs112d

0} ssedAg- 5 )y

31035 jued

ssedAg
Rnels - vy

24055 juey

3}g MaN
38 UONINISU0T
MON - £ Y

94025 quey

2)s Bunsix3
geyed - z iy

W05

u

Huey

IV ON - L)Y

JUBlam
Xi3e
(CINE]

KB

SITENT

AlBUY SSAIJELLBYY UOREIS 3T 1S 39%4BA

Atond

uodIANS

0'0 [X 00 00 00 S8 % B
00 00 00 00 00 %L | %o0L | g2 [1gojans
00 00 00 00 00 0L | %S| Ol shempeoy Jo SPISINO YOM| %EY | §'L 83ueqINIs|q punoId
00 00 00 00 00 26 | %ev | 5L SAEMPEOY UILIIM 3I0M| o
00 00 00 (] o0 Tol | %00 | 0z |ieosans %9ET| 0L | |musumORAd
00 00 00 00 00 z8 | %w0S | oL siziep o) Awixod| %26 | OF SI191EM
0°0 00 00 00 00 z8 | w0s | o sBuissosd weang|
0’0 00 00 00 00 ¥iz %00} 15722
00 [ 00 00 00 By |%o0i| 0z [Imioans
00 [} oo 00 00 ve %0S | O Apedoid sreaud o) spedw)| %ZZ [ uopysoddg J0} jepueiod
0'0 (0] 00 00 o)1) j &4 %08 0l §60USPISAY O} Auxoid
00 0’0 (1] (] 00 Ve | %00k | 921 [ioians
00 00 00 00 00 Ly | %5 | Ot JueUSILIR - SONBUISBY| %EE | G2 sjoedun d||qnd
00 00 00 00 00 Ve | %ep | G2 UORONIISUOD - SIRBISAY wriz| 52 syoeduw)
00 00 00 0’0 a0 g6 | %001 | 9z¥ [imolang JeuoiBayanand
00 00 0o 00 00 ze | %z | OF SUBWESEI/MOY|
00 00 00 00 00 TT | %z | O sHuuad jo Mxeidwod
00 00 00 00 00 Vo %ek | S suwad Jo saquiny| #¥7 | OF uopeulpscag Aauaby
()] 00 00 00 gz | wvz | oF wewessby ¥$110a 0} saiepdn
00 0°0 00 0 00 £y | w8 | SL spedwy simongselu] y§179d
00 00 00 [ 00 iz 13 ians
00 00 00 [ 00 98 | %001 | $°TL [reyoyans !
00 00 0o 0o 00 ve | %oy | S uoyeing uogonuisuod| %0v | 01 saajaiag Bupsix3 uo 0ey3
00 00 00 0’0 00 b6 | %09 | &L Buidwng ssedAg|
0’0 00 00 00 00 res | %00l | g€ [=mians.
00 00 ] 00 00 Uy | %z | ok 10107 JUJelL|
00 00 00 00 00 Iy | %z | ok feroway 3ooM| .
00 00 00 00 00 60 | %EL | 8 sseaoy aoan| *0F | 54 NEERINESS
00 00 (0] 00 o0 60 %El ] sjuawasosdw o)g| %PLg| SL Buyesuibug
00 00 00 00 00 €1 | %oz | §2 sani|iin Bupsix3 o) ANwixoid
00 00 00 () 0'0 ¥o | %001 | §°L2 [Imymans
00 0o 00 00 00 £€Z | %8 | o [eAOWBY 8014,
00 00 00 00 00 90 %6 | ST uoy3 fonng .
00 00 00 00 00 o0 | %6 | s2 sereoo | 0% | §¢ faxeichiion Lbtea
00 00 00 00 00 ZL | %8| S ubseq dwg
00 i) X 00 00 gL | %ie | &L panjoAu) sauidiosig Buussuibus|

0'0 ‘0 (1] (1] (X %00l |9z mogng
() [ 0 00 00 L9 [%oor | s'zz [imeigns
o0 00 00 00 00 €L | %ee | § sdg/uoeisbersy
00 00 00 00 00 sz | %vr | o eomag Jo uopdnuayy| %02 [ & | @duEUBuIE pue Jjeday wiod josdu
00 00 00 00 00 6L | %ee | g2 [o41u0Q dYjB) L]
00 0’0 00 00 0’0 ¥l | %o0b | 522 souzl o o
0’0 0’0 00 0’0 00 1's | %y | 0 ssuodssy aIn|ied %9’
00 00 00 0’0 00 P %ZZ I wibust suredid %0r | Ol uopuany J0jesadgQ jo jana]
00 00 00 00 00 8¢ | %ee | 62 swesAs [BOIUEYIDN
00 0’0 [T} [X] 00 ¥il [%00i | s1 [eoians
00 00 00 00 00 oL | %9 | oL [eAOLUBY MOUS/SSBIDY JBjUM| %0F | OL Aynqissasoy

i S siolesad() Joj 5530V JO 9S8

LoD







KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #8

TITLE: ADOPTION OF PROCEDURE TO CREATE AND MAINTAIN LIST OF
QUALIFIED APPRAISERS PURSUANT TO NRS 318.5121

MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt the proposed procedure establishing a list of qualified real property appraisers for purposes of
compliance with NRS 318.5121.

BACKGROUND:
Nevada Revised Statutes § 318.5121 requires the District to adopt a procedure for the selection of
appraisers to value District-owned real property prior to sale or conveyance. The statute contemplates
the creation and maintenance of a list of qualified appraisers and the use of a fair, random, and rotating
method for selecting appraisers from that list, subject to Board approval.
To comply with these statutory requirements, Staff proposes that the Board adopt the following
procedure:
1. Creation and Maintenance of List. The District shall maintain a list of qualified real property
appraisers who:
o Hold a current Nevada Certified General Appraiser license;
o Are in good standing with applicable licensing authorities; and
o Possess experience appraising real property, including public or special district property.
2. Initial List of Qualified Appraisers. Staff recommends approval of the following appraisers for
inclusion on the District’s qualified appraiser list:
o Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd. — Benjamin Q. Johnson, MAI
o AAA Tahoe/Douglas Appraisals — Kent C. Tiemey
o Johnson Perkins Griffin Real Estate Appraisers & Consultants — Scott Q. Griffin, MAI
3. Selection Method. Appraisers shall be selected from the approved list using a fair, randomized, (
and rotating method, unless the Board determines that a specific appraiser is necessary due to the
nature, complexity, or unique characteristics of a particular property.
4. Ongoing Review. Staff shall review the list of qualified appraisers no less than once every two
(2) years to confirm that listed appraisers remain properly licensed and qualified, and shall
recommend additions or removals to the Board as appropriate. Adoption of this procedure
satisfies the requirements of NRS 318.5121 and establishes the framework for future appraiser
selections. Selection of an appraiser for any specific transaction will be addressed by separate
Board action.

INCLUDED:
A. Proposed Procedure for Selection of Qualified Appraisers



B. List of Qualified Appraisers

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (O Not a Budget Item
(X) Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Proposed Procedure for Selection of Qualified Appraisers
(Pursuantto NRS 318.5121)

1. Purpose

The purpose of this procedure is to establish a fair, transparent, and legally compliant
process for the selection of qualified real property appraisers to value District-owned real
property prior to sale or conveyance, as required by Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”)
318.5121.

2. Establishment of Qualified Appraiser List

The District shall maintain a list of qualified real property appraisers (“Qualified Appraiser
List”) eligible to perform appraisals of District-owned real property.

To be eligible for inclusion on the Qualified Appraiser List, an appraiser shall:
« Hold a current Nevada Certified General Appraiser license;

« Beingood standing with all applicable state licensing and regulatory authorities;
and

« Possess demonstrated experience appraising real property, including public agency
or special district property, where applicable.

3. Initial List of Qualified Appraisers

The initial Qualified Appraiser List shall be recommended by Staff and approved by the
Board of Trustees. The list shall include at least three (3) qualified appraisers or
appraisal firms, which may include multiple qualified appraisers from the same firm.

4. Selection of Appraiser for Specific Transactions

For each proposed sale or conveyance of District-owned real property, Staff shall
recommend an appraiser selected from the Qualified Appraiser List using a fair,
randomized, and rotating method, unless the Board determines that selection of a
specific appraiser is necessary due to the nature, complexity, or unique characteristics of
the property.



Final selection of an appraiser for any specific transaction shall be subject to separate
Board approval.

5. Conflict of Interest Disclosure

Prior to use of any appraisal prepared under this procedure, the selected appraiser shall
provide the disclosure required by NRS 318.5121(2) regarding any direct or indirect interest
that may constitute a conflict of interest.

An appraisal shall not be used by the District unless the required disclosure is received.

6. Maintenance and Periodic Review of List

Staff shall review the Qualified Appraiser List no less than once every two (2) years to
confirm that listed appraisers remain properly licensed and qualified. Staff shall
recommend additions to or removals from the list to the Board of Trustees as appropriate.

7. Board Authority

Nothing in this procedure limits the authority of the Board of Trustees to approve or reject
any recommended appraiser, or to take such actions as necessary to ensure compliance
with applicable law.



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
List of Qualified Appraisers
(Approved pursuant to NRS 318.5121)

The following real property appraisers are approved by the Board of Trustees for inclusion
on the Kingsbury General Improvement District’s list of qualified appraisers. All listed
appraisers hold a current Nevada Certified General Appraiser license and are qualified to
perform appraisals of District-owned real property.

o Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd. — Benjamin Q. Johnson, MAI
o AAA Tahoe/Douglas Appraisals — Kent C. Tiemey
o Johnson Perkins Griffin Real Estate Appraisers & Consultants — Scott Q. Griffin, MAI

This list shall be maintained and reviewed in accordance with the District’s Procedure for
Selection of Qualified Appraisers, as adopted by the Board pursuant to NRS 318.5121.






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #9
TITLE: SELECTION OF APPRAISER FOR PENDING PROPERTY SALE
MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Select Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd., and Benjamin Q. Johnson, MAL, as appraiser for the pending
District property sale, subject to receipt of the disclosure required by NRS 318.5121(2). If the required
disclosure is not provided, the appraisal shall not be used.

BACKGROUND:

Pursuant to the appraiser selection procedure adopted under Agenda Item A, Staff reviewed the list of
qualified appraisers and recommends Benjamin Q. Johnson, MALI, of Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd., for
the appraisal associated with the pending District property sale.

NRS 318.5121(2) requires the selected appraiser to disclose any direct or indirect interest that may
constitute a conflict of interest. Staff will present the required disclosure at the meeting or confirm that
such disclosure is included within the appraisal report. If the disclosure is not provided, the appraisal
may not be used.

INCLUDED
None

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (O Not a Budget Item
(X) Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #10

TITLE: DETERMINATION OF FAIR MARKET VALUE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY
PROPOSED FOR CONVEYANCE (APN: 1318-24-710-001)

MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Conduct a public hearing and, if appropriate, adopt a determination of fair market value for the
District-owned property proposed for conveyance (APN 1318-24-710-001), based on the evidence
presented, including the appraisal prepared by Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd., 510 Laurel Lane.

BACKGROUND:

The Board is required to determine the fair market value of District-owned real property prior to
conveyance pursuant to NRS 318.512. At the public hearing, Staff will present information regarding the
size, location, and limited use of the subject property, along with the appraisal prepared by Johnson
Valuation Group, Ltd., as evidence of fair market value.

Following the hearing, the Board may adopt a determination of fair market value, which shall not exceed
the proposed sale price. Adoption of such a finding will allow the District to rely on a single appraisal in
compliance with NRS 318.512(1)(a). The appraisal is presented as evidence of fair market value, and
the Board retains discretion to determine fair market value at or below the proposed sale price, but not
in excess thereof.

INCLUDED

A. Appraisal Report: Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd., Appraisal No. 25-048 (December
12, 2025). Disclosure included in Appraiser’s Certification (pages 26-27).

B. Parcel Description 1318-24-710-001

C. Excerpt of December 16, 2025 Board Minutes (Item 10)

D. Correspondence from Prospective Buyer-Price Proposal and Title Company Request
December 27, 2025

E. Kemper Masonry Pump House Estimate

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds () Not a Budget Item
(X) Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






1@ Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd. R

AN APPRAISAL
OF_

1,380+ SQUARE FOOT PARCEL

IMPROVED WITH A FORMER
BOOSTER PUMP STATION SITE

LOCATED AT

510 LAUREL LANE, STATELINE
DOUGLAS COUNTY, NEVADA

OWNED BY

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

APPRAISED FOR

MARIKA WESELOH

California = Nevada ———

25-048



p& Jofnson Valuation Group Ltd

An Appraisal
of

A 1,380 Square Foot Parcel
Improved with a
Former Booster Pump Station Site

Located At

510 Laurel Lane, Stateline
Douglas County, Nevada

Owned By

Kingsbury General Improvement District

Appraised For

Marika Weseloh

For The Purpose of
Estimating Market Value
As Of
December 3, 2025

California » Nevada -

25-048



~——

m ]oﬁmonVa[uam Group, Ltof Catfornia / Nevadi
y:

=
N
-

Post Office Box 11430 ® 124 McFaul Way, Ste. 201 ® Lake Tahoe, Nevada 89448 ® (775) 588-4787

December 12, 2025

Marika Weseloh

RE: An Appraisal Report of a 1,380 Square Foot Parcel improved with a Former
Booster Pump Station Site located at 510 Laurel Lane, Stateline Douglas County,
Nevada

Dear Ms. Weseloh:

This letter is in response to your request for an Appraisal Report of a Former Booster
Pump Station Site situated on a 1,380 square foot parcel. The subject parcel is located at 510

Laurel Lane, Stateline, Douglas County, Nevada.

The Subject Property is improved with a small utility building that was previously
utilized as booster bump station for the municipal water system of Kingsbury General
Tmprovements District. The booster pump station has been abandoned as no longer needed
for operation of the municipal water system. The undersigned was unable to arrange for an
inspection of the interior of this small structure and its assumed the interior of the structure is

consistent with the representation as a small utility building that housed a booster pump.

The Subject Property has an atypically small parcel size and it would be very difficult,
if not practically impossible to develop the property with the legally permissible uses allowed

under the zoning without combining it with an adjacent parcel. Due to the unique size of the

— —  www.joAnsonvaluationgroup.com - —

25-048



% Johnson Vatuation Group, Ltd. — e ——

) Page 2
property and the limited sale of similar properties, a much greater than typical range of sales

dates was utilized to develop a credible set of comparable sales from within the Tahoe Basin.

This is an appraisal report which is intended to comply with the reporting
requirements set forth under Standards Rule 2-2(a) of the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice for an appraisal report. As such, it presents only summary discussions of
the data, reasoning and analyses that are used in the appraisal process to develop the
appraiser’s opinion of value. Supporting documentation concerning the data, reasoning and
analyses is retained in this appraiser’s file. The depth of the discussion contained in the report
is specific to the needs of the client and for the intended use as stated herein. This appraisal
firm is not responsible for unauthorized use of the report. This limited scope narrative report

includes an outline with sub-headings and summary details.

California = Nevada -

25-048



;% Jofmson Valuation Group, Ltd — )

—

Property Address
Assessor’s Parcel Number
Owners of Record

Legal Description

Client

Intended Users

Intended Use

Interest Valued

Purpose of Appraisal

25-048

510 Laurel Lane, Nevada
1318-24-710-001
Kingsbury General Improvement District

Portion of Lot 17, Kingsbury Highlands Unit No.
2 (full legal description in addenda)

Marika Weseloh

Marika Weseloh and Kingsbury General
Improvement District

To assist the Intended Users in understanding the
Market Value of the Subject Property as of a
current date of valuation to inform decision
making related to a potential sale by Kingsbury
General Improvement District to

Marika Weseloh

100% fee simple

This appraisal was prepared for the purpose of
estimating the Market Value of the 100% fee
simple interest in the subject property under its
highest and best use.

Cafifornia = Nevada -



Market Value Defined

Extraordinary Assumptions

Hypothetical Conditions

m Jofnson Vatuation Group, Ltd..

Page 4

Market Value means the most probable price
which a property should bring in a competitive
and open market under all conditions requisite to
a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting
prudently and knowledgeably, and assuming the
price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit
in this definition is the consummation of a sale
as of a specified date and the passing of title
from seller to buyer under conditions whereby:

D Buyer and seller are typically motivated;

2) Both parties are well informed or well
advised, and acting in what they consider their
own best interests;

3) A reasonable time is allowed for
exposure in the open market;

4) Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S.
dollars or in terms of financial arrangements
comparable thereto; and

5) The price represents the normal
consideration for the property sold unaffected by
special or creative financing or sales concessions
granted by anyone associated with the sale.!

None noted

None noted

1 Rules and Regulations, Federal Register. Vol. 55, No. 165, Page 34696, 12CFR Part 34.42(f)

25-048

California » Nevada



ﬁm Jofmson Vatuation Group, Ltd. — B L

17_?5_—___

Page 5

Scope of Work
Preparation of this appraisal included:
1. A physical inspection of the exterior of the subject property;
2. Identification and analysis of the subject neighborhood;
3. Review of TRPA File Information System information on the subject’s assessor’s
parcel number;
4. TInterview with Derek Dornbrook, KGID General Manager;
5. Completion of a Highest and Best Use Analysis of the subject property;
6. Research and analysis of similar unbuildable parcel sales of similar size to the Subject
Property in the Lake Tahoe area,;
7. Completion of the Sales Comparison Approach;
8. Completing of the Final Reconciliation; and
9. Completion of a Narrative Appraisal Report

Indicated Exposure Time 12-24 months
Effective Date of Value December 3, 2025
Date of Inspection December 3, 2025
Date of the Report December 12, 2025
Market Value Conclusion $10,000
Respectfully Submitted,

Z&#%’W @ %Mm
Benjamin Q. Johnson, MAI

Nevada Certified General Appraiser
License Number A.0205542 CG

S - - California ® Nevada

25-048



;@ Jofmson Vatuation Group, Ltdr—

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Cover

Title Page

Letter of Transmittal
Table of Contents

Neighborhood DeSCriPtion........cececereeerrerineerentiisseeresmsriresississesssssnsssssnssssesesses
ACTIAL MAP ..ttt ba b s
Subject Photographis.......o.eevececeienericniiiniiiiiiiiissstseseeseseesesssssnsssessernssnsseens
Subject PhotOgraphs........ccccovieveeiniiininiiiiiniccsssssssisssss e sssse s sse s s
Subject Property Identification And Description.........ccuivmrerinicrninneneniesenennnenns
Highest And Best Use ANalysis......cveimiiiiinicininiiniccesecessssesvesneseseseens
Introduction To Valuation ANalysSiS........ceeeeveeeeeccenrernininnniiinniniinisnseeneesssssnans
Standard Assumptions And Limiting Conditions............cocvvvvereennennnieninierensennnn.
Qualifications Of APPIraiSer........coviriiiiiriiiiosiiiinniniiiiieii e sesasaens

Addenda — Subject Property Legal Description
Plan Area Statement 083, Kingsbury Heights

Califormia » Nevada ——

25-048

...................



m Jotmson Vatuation Group, Lid. I

- :—:ﬁ;f_._—

NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION

The subject neighborhood is located within the Douglas County portion of the Lake Tahoe Basin.
The neighborhood is bounded on the north by Glenbrook Bay and on the south by the Nevada-California
state line at Stateline. The neighborhood is bounded on the west by the shores of Lake Tahoe and on the
east by the crest of the Sierra-Nevada Mountains. The neighborhood is predominantly residential in
nature involving several residential subdivisions ranging from older, fair quality, non-lakefront

subdivisions to newer, very good quality, lakefront subdivisions.

U.S. Highway 50 is the principal access artery into the neighborhood from San Francisco,
Sacramento and other population centers in Northern California. U.S. Highway 50 is also the main artery
serving the subject neighborhood. U.S. Highway 50 extends through the subject neighborhood to
Spooner Summit and to U.S. 395 in Carson City, Nevada. The other principal thoroughfare serving the
subject neighborhood is Kingsbury Grade (S.R. 207) which extends easterly from its intersection with
U.S. Highway 50 to Daggett Pass, the crest of the Carson Range. Both U.S. Highway 50 and Kingsbury
Grade are maintained throughout the year with snow removal provided by the Nevada Department of

Transportation. Access to and within the subject neighborhood is reasonably good on a year-round basis.

The main employers for residents in the subject neighborhood are the Stateline casinos and

Douglas County government. Many year-round residents are self-employed or tele-commute.

There are an increasing number of workers who reside in the Carson Valley portion of Douglas
County and commute into the Lake Tahoe Basin for employment. The increase in commuters is a result
of the high cost of purchasing housing in the Douglas County portion of the Lake Tahoe Basin. The
effect of increasing second home ownership and decreasing full time residents is particularly evidenced
by the diminishing enrollment of the local school district. The local middle school closed at the end of

the 2007/2008 school year due to declining enrollment.

The main concentration of commercial facilities in the subject neighborhood is located in the
Round Hill area. There is a Safeway supermarket and several retail stores in the Round Hill Square
Shopping Center. In this area there are also several office buildings. In addition, there is a gas station

and a few restaurants. There are also limited commercial and retail facilities at Marla Bay.

- — California ™ Nevada —

25-048 1



M Jofmson Vatuation Group, Ltd.. §

There is another concentration of commercial facilities at the intersection of Kingsbury Grade and
U.S. Highway 50. There is a service station, two banks, several retail stores, the former Lakeside
Hotel/Casino that is proposed to be developed with a new hospital, several restaurants and the local
administration offices for Douglas County. Also, in this area are several office buildings and medical

offices.

Recreational amenities in the neighborhood include facilities at Round Hill Pines, Nevada Beach,
Zephyr Cove and Cave Rock as well as the opportunities provided by the lake and by the forested
hillsides and meadows. Round Hill Pines has a seasonal beach, a dock, and beach facilities. Nevada
Beach is a state park in Nevada with a campground and beach access. Zephyr Cove is developed with
tourist and recreational uses including a beach and marina, lodge and restaurant, cabins and campgrounds
as well as horse stables. There is also a large conference center located at Zephyr Point. There is a public
park and boat ramp located in Cave Rock. This is a popular spot for boating and fishing. The Nevada
side of Heavenly Ski Resort has two lodge areas with lifts connecting to the California side of the
mountain at the top of Kingsbury Grade.

All utilities are immediately available to the subject neighborhood. Electricity is supplied by NV
Energy. Natural gas is supplied to most of the developed areas in the neighborhood by Southwest Gas.
Properties north of Cave Rock are serviced by propane as there is no natural gas service in this area.
Telephone and cable services are supplied by several carriers. Sewer and water are supplied by various

General Improvement Districts.

Police protection is provided by the Douglas County Sheriff's Department. Fire protection is
provided by the Tahoe-Douglas Fire District and the U.S. Forest Service. There is a fire station in the
southern portion of the neighborhood located adjacent to Elks Point, one at Zephyr Cove and a fire station
in the northern portion of the neighborhood near Glenbrook. Also, there is a fire station at the top of
Kingsbury Grade. There are publicly supported education facilities ranging from first grade through high

school.

The residential development in the neighborhood includes numerous small subdivisions located
both sides of U.S. Highway 50, including Elks Point, Round Hill, Zephyr Heights, Zephyr Cove, Marla
Bay, Hidden Woods, Cave Rock, Logan Creek, Uppaway and Glenbrook. Along Kingsbury Grade there
is a small mobile home park, Kingsbury Meadows, Kingsbury Knolls/Heights, Granite Springs, Palisades,

Cafifornia = Nevada -

25-048 2



% Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd.. S B

N —
Kingsbury Highlands, and the upper Kingsbury area on both sides of Kingsbury Grade. With limited
exceptions, residential development is of good to very good quality reflecting a good to very good pride
of ownership. Some of the lakefront subdivisions, such as Elk, Point, Marla Bay, Zephyr Cove, Pittman
Terrace and Cave Rock Cove, involve old summer cabins dating back to the 1930’s. There is substandard
to average quality development in Cave Rock Village, which is an older subdivision. The better quality
development is concentrated along the shores of Lake Tahoe and in areas with particularly good lake
views. The community of Glenbrook, at the northern end of the subject neighborhood, is an exclusive,

gated community with very good to excellent quality homes and many homeowner amenities.

In summary, the subject’s surrounding neighborhood is primarily residential in nature with
limited commercial facilities. The majority of the residences are of average to good quality. The subject

property is located in the upper Kingsbury area of the neighborhood.

= ——— California » Nevada -

25-048 3



% Johnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

SUBJECT’S ASSESSOR’S PARCEL MAP
Douglas County APN 1318-24-710-001

Map Legend

Paros! Boundary

swsesssssemmsnstomts Subihvisitin Bowadary

= imow Town Boundary

YownstipRangelSection

5w swew Agproximas River Certer Line
Easements - Sae Racordad Doasmants.

e T

- Parcel Number

win «  Parcet Biock Number

™ Paroat Addsses

Parcol SuliSeq Numbsr

IT13N R 18E]

Parcel Acreage

8

Parced Lot Mustiber

[SEC. 24] [N12 SE1/4] [1318-24-7)
[y T T s

£ S =

= 1 scae 1m0

REVSD. 1/31/2024

of the data delineated hareon.

NOTE: This map is prepsred for the use of the Douglas Gounty Assasscor, for essassmant and illustralive purposes ondy.
It does not represent survey of the premisas. No kabillty ks assumed as 1o the sufficiancy or accuracy

3

r/
e
i o e A
. -/'.0
. \V/ >
\\\ e
@

TN
A \\\

A

25-048

California » Nevada




ﬂ@ Jofmson Vatuation Group, Lid.

SUBJECT’S ASSESSOR’S PARCEL MAP
Douglas County APN 1318-24-710-001
Magnified View

Subject Property Highlighted in Yellow

California ® Nevada

25-048



Q Johnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

AERIAL MAP

Subject Property Outlined in Orange
Boundaries are approximate and for illustrative purposes only

California » Nevada

25-048 6



& Jotmson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS

LOOKING NORTHEASTERLY FROM LAUREL LANE AT SUBJECT PROPERTY

Cafifornia ® Nevada

25-048



A Jofinson Valuation Group, Ltd.

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS

California » Nevada

25-048



% Jofmson Vatuation Group, Ltd..

SUBJECT PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION AND DESCRIPTION

Assessor’s Parcel Number
Address
Owners of Record

Legal Description

Parecel Size
View Amenity
Zoning
TRPA & Douglas County
Plan Area Statement
Land Use
Land Capability3

Existing Land Coverage

Topography

Vegetation

Access

1318-24-710-001
510 Laurel Lane, Nevada
Kingsbury General Improvement District

Portion of Lot 17, Kingsbury Highlands Unit No. 2
(full legal description in addenda)

1,380+ square feet?

Mountain

083 — Kingsbury Heights
Residential

1a (1% base allowable coverage)
Unknown, no formal determination

The subject site has a moderately steep upslope
from the street to the rear property line.

The subject site has a moderate amount of native
trees and scrub brush.

Access is via Laurel Lane

Easements, Encumbrances & Restrictions A Preliminary Title Report was not available to the

Subject’s Sales History

undersigned. It is assumed there are no easements
or CC&Rs would impact value.

There has not been an arms-length transaction on
the subject property in over 20 years.

2 Based on Legal Description contained in Quitclaim Deed recorded on December 17, 1974 as Document 1974-076978 and

assumed to be correct.

3 Based on TRPA Map Maker Data. A formal site assessment and Determination of Allowable Land Coverage would need to be
completed in order for TRPA verification. Formal TRPA verification could differ materially from preliminary TRPA Map

Maker Date.

25-048

California ® Nevada - ——



% Jotinson Vatuation Group, Ltd e

Subject’s Listing History

Encroachments

Tax Data
Assessor’s Parcel Number
2024-25 Assessed Values
Land
Improvements
Total Assessed Values:

Total 2024-25 Real Estate Taxes:

Special Assessments

Permits and Approvals

25-048

The subject property is not currently listed and has
not been listed within the past year to the best of the
knowledge of the undersigned.

None noted

1318-24-710-001

None

None noted

A check with the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
and Douglas County did not return any current
permits or approvals for the parcel.

California = Nevada -

10



A@ Jofinson Vatuation Group, Lid.. . .

—~—p
o

HIGHEST AND BEST USE ANALYSIS

Highest and best use is defined as the most reasonable and probable use that supports the
highest present value of the vacant land and/or improved property, as defined, as of the effective
date of valuation. Implicit in this definition is that the highest and best use must be physically
possible, legally permissible, economically feasible and maximally productive. The highest and

best use as vacant will be addressed first, followed by the highest and best use as improved.

As Vacant

There are no known physical characteristics of the subject site which would preclude

development of the subject property to its highest and best use.

With respect to legally permissible uses, the subject property is under two jurisdictions
with respect to land use. One is the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) and the other is
Douglas County. Douglas County has adopted TRPA’s land classification system.

Land use is controlled by Plan Area Statements with TRPA. The subject property is in
Plan Area 083, Kingsbury Heights. The full Plan Area Statement for Kingsbury Heights is
included in the addenda to this appraisal. The land use classification is Residential with a
maximum density of one single family dwelling per parcel. The subject property consists of one
parcel. Therefore, the subject property would allow one single family residence on the parcel.
However, as the subject parcel contains only 1,380+ square feet of land area, it is highly
improbable that site constraints would allow for single-family residential development while
meeting applicable setback requirements. It is considered highly likely that the Subject Property

does not contain enough land area to allow for single-family residential development.

In addition to legal land use under zoning, the development potential of vacant land
within the Lake Tahoe Basin is affected by the degree of environmental sensitivity exhibited by
the parcel. At the date of value of this appraisal the subject property did not have an IPES score

and an undetermined amount of allowable land coverage. The subject is located in Class 1a soils

— - California = Nevada

25-048 1 1



% Jobrmson Vatuation Group, Ltd..

which allows for 1% base allowable land coverage. There are very few, if any, potential legally
permission and economic uses for the Subject Property on a stand-alone basis. The highest and
best use of the subject property, as vacant, would be to combine with an adjacent parcel to form a

larger site for development.

As Improved

The Subject Property is improved with a former booster station for the municipal water
system operated by Kingsbury General Improvement District. The on-site structure is small and
was built to house the booster pump which is no longer in operation and no longer needed. The
existing structure could be utilized for storage, however the structure is located upgradient from
the street without convenient access additional storage is not a permiséible primary use of the
property under the current zoning. KGID indicated the building should be demolished and the
undersigned concurs with this opinion. Therefore, the highest and best use as improved is the
same as the highest and best use as vacant, to combine with an adjacent parcel to form a larger
site for development. The existing improvements, due to their small size, zoning issues and

older age, do not contribute to the value of the subject site.

California » Nevada

25-048 1 2



;& Jofmson Vatuation Group, Ltd. ) .

INTRODUCTION TO VALUATION ANALYSIS

There are three approaches to value which an appraiser must consider in estimating the
value of the property. The three approaches to value include the Cost Approach, the Income

Approach and the Sales Comparison Approach.

The Cost Approach has not been utilized in this appraisal assignment as the current
structure was designed for a booster pump for a municipal water system that is no longer needed,
there is economic obsolescence with this design. The Income Approach has been considered, but
not been utilized as splinter parcels with former utility outbuildings are not typically purchased

for their income producing capabilities.

The Sales Comparison Approach has been utilized. Under this analysis, comparable
parcels Lake Tahoe area were researched. There are very few sales of similar properties and an
extended time period was required to find sales that are similar to the subject in terms of size,
constraints on development and highest and best use. Based on the undersigned’s knowledge
and understanding, similar properties with very limited potential uses, have not appreciate in
value consistent with the broader market and therefore a wider period for comparable sales is
acceptable. The sales presented herein provide the undersigned’s understanding of the most

recent similar sales which the market would look to for establishing the value of the Subject

Property.

- — California = Nevada

25-048 1 3



M Johnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

e

UNBUILDABLE COMPARABLE SALES CHART

CLS-1 |3989 Manzarita Aveme 7280011 |  60l1=Sq Ft | None $25.000

South Lake Tahoe, CA 500+ Sq. Ft. 100% SEZ
029-081-05 8.3%

CLS-2 3709 Osgood Avenue F22/2016 10,000+ Sq. Ft. None $10,000
South Lake Tahoe, CA None 100%% SEZ
027-072-10 NA

CLS-3 76 Moana Circle 10/3£2016 152144 8q. Ft. None $55,000
Homewood CA 609+ Sq. Ft. Low Capabiity
098-191-007 4.0%

CLS+4 543 Sungise Avenue 74742017 15200+ Sq. Ft. None $32,500
Meeks Bay, CA 152+ 8q. Ft. Low Capability
016-513-001 1.0%

CLS-5 0 Park Lane 12/4/2023 4.750& Sq. Ft. RDR $31,500
Kings Beach, CA 428% 8q. Ft. Low Capability
090-233-028 9.0%

California = Nevada

25-048 14



@ Johmson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

COMPARABLE SALES MAP

California ® Nevada

25-048 1 5



% Jofnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

T—

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-1

Property 3989 Manzanita Avenue City: South Lake Tahoe
Address:
Property Stateline County: El Dorado
Location:
A.P.N.: 029-081-05 State: California
Topography: Level Legal Description: 50-D2 Lakeside Lodge
Subdivision
Total Land Area: | 6,011+ square feet % of Land Unknown
Coverage to Total
Land Area:
Existing Land 1% Base Allowable Land Sale Price: $25,000
Coverage: Coverage (existing coverage
exceeds base allowable and is
estimated at 500+ square feet)
TAUs None Sale Price/SF of $4.16
Land Area
Commercial None CFA to Land Area | NA
Floor Area: Ratio
Sale Date: 7/28/2011 Document Number: | 35254
Grantor: Raymond D. Epstein Trust Terms Of Sale: Cash to Seller
Grantee: Mirabelli Trust Verification: Nick Pavich, buyer’s
representative
Comments: This is the sale of a buildable commercial lot in South Lake Tahoe. The comparable is located in
Class 1B soils. A portion of the subject site is improved with asphalt paving that is used as a parking lot for an
adjacent apartment complex. The buyer was the owner of the adjacent apartment complex and purchased the
property because they were encroaching onto the sale property. The comparable had an undetermined amount
of existing land coverage.

25-048

California = Nevada

16



@ Jotinson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-2

Property Address: | 3709 Osgood Avenue City: South Lake Tahoe

Property Location: | N/S of Osgood Avenue at Sonora | County: El Dorado

A.P.N.: 027-072-10 State: California

Topography: Level Legal Description: Lots 149 and 150 of Bijou
Park

Total Land Area: 10,000+ square feet (0.23+ acres) | Zoning: Tourist Core Area Plan
TSC-MU

Available Land None % of Land 0%

Coverage: Coverage to Total

Land Area:

TRPA None CFA to Land Area | NA

Development Ratio

Resources:

Sale Price Per SF $1.00 Sale Price: $10,000

of Land Area

Sale Date: 7/22/2016 Document Number: | 33309

Grantor: South Tahoe Redevelopment Terms Of Sale: Cash to Seller

Successor Agency
Grantee: Darcorp Asset Management, Verification: Nancy Kerry, City Manager
LLC of The City of South Lake

Tahoe and Deb Howard,
Listing Agent

Comments: The comparable is located in Class 1B soils (stream environment zone). The seller stripped all of

the appurtenant development resources from the site concurrent with the sale. The property is located along the

north side of Osgood Avenue, a secondary commercial and residential roadway in South Lake Tahoe. This site

was previously improved with a veterinary clinic and the prior improvements were demolished and removed

from the site in 2007.

25-048

California ™ Nevada

17



% Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-3

Nar D, IR

/

‘//" M .

Property Address: 76 Moana Circle City: Homewood

Property Location: Moana Circle County: Placer

AP.N.: 098-191-007 State: California

Topography: Moderate Legal Description: L 7 Moana Beach

Total Land Area: 15,214 square feet Zoning: Residential

Available Land 609 square feet % of Land Coverage | 4%

Coverage: to Total Land Area:

TRPA Development None CFA to Land Area None

Resources: Ratio

Sale Price Per SF of $3.62 Sale Price: $55,000

Land Area

Sale Date: 10/3/2016 Document Number: 84808

Grantor: Nancy Grimes Terms Of Sale: Cash

Grantee: John W Isberner Trust Verification: MLS and County Records
Comments: This is an unbuildable parcel (due to IPES score being below the TPES line for a buildable parcel in
Placer County). This property was part of the Moana Beach HOA. There is the speculative future potential that this
parcel becomes buildable if the IPES line drops in Placer County as it has done in the other counties in the Tahoe
Basin.

25-048

California = Nevada

18




5_& Johinson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-4

Property Address: 543 Sunrise Avenue City: Meeks Bay

Property Location: Sunrise Avenue County: El Dorado

A.P.N.: 016-513-001-000 State: California

Topography: Steep Legal Description: L 38

Total Land Area: 15,200 square feet Zoning: Residential

Available Land 152 square feet % of Land Coverage | 1%

Coverage: to Total Land Area:

TRPA Development None CFA to Land Area NA

Resources: Ratio

Sale Price Per SF of $2.14 Sale Price: $32,500

Land Area

Sale Date: 7/7/2017 Document Number: 27910

Grantor: Karin Low Terms Of Sale: Cash to seller

Grantee: Alan L Ashbaugh Verification: MLS and County Records
Comments: The property was sold for future development at a time when adequate land coverage was available.
At the time of sale, the California Tahoe Conservancy did not have any land coverage that would be suitable for
transfer to the subject site to make it buildable. The comparable featured good filtered views of Lake Tahoe.

25-048

Cafifornia = Nevada

19




@ Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-5

Property Address: Park Lane City: Kings Beach

Property Location: W/S of Park Lane County: Placer

A.P.N.: 090-233-028 State: California

Topography: Mild to Moderate Legal Description: Lot 92 — Brockway Park #1

Total Land Area: 4,750« square feet Zoning: Placer County Tahoe Basin
Area Plan

Available Land 428+ square feet % of Land Coverage | 9%

Coverage: to Total Land Area:

TRPA Development None CFA to Land Area NA

Resources: Ratio

Sale Price Per SF of $6.63 Sale Price: $31,500

Land Area

Sale Date: 12/04/2023 Document Number: 1335-613

Grantor: US Liberty Corp Terms Of Sale: Cash

Grantee: Adrian G Sanchez Verification: MLS and County Records

Placer County vacant parcel with inadequate TPES for building. Current IPES of 616 and 9% allowable coverage.

This lot requires a residential development right that can be transferred to a different parcel.

25-048

California = Nevada

20




Q@ Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd —

COMPARABLE LAND SALES DISCUSSION AND COMPARISON
Overall Sale Price Basis

Five comparables of limited to no development potential parcels have been presented. The total
sale prices range from $10,000 to $55,000. Two of the comparables are located in Class 1B (stream
environment zone) soils, which is similar the subject. These two comparables are located in South Lake
Tahoe. Two of the comparables are located in Homewood and Meeks Bay. These two west shore
comparables were not buildable at the time of sale, but had the speculative future potential to be
developed. One of the comaprables is located in Kings Beach and located in low capability soils. The

sales are qualitatively adjusted to the subject as follows:

Sale CLS-1, which sold for $25,000, is the sale of a vacant parcel located in Class 1B soils. The
property is located in a mixed-use area in close proximity to the downtown tourist core of South Lake
Tahoe. The comparable is located on a secondary street. The property included 1B land coverage that
was existing on the site. The existing 1B land coverage is roughly estimated at 500+ square feet, but has
not been formally verified. The property did not contain any other TRPA development resources. This
comparable was purchased by an adjacent property owner who encroached onto the site with a small
portion of an existing parking area. The property sold for $25,000 in July of 2011. The property was

openly marketed on the Multiple Listing Service prior to its sale.

In comparison to the Subject Property, an upward adjustment is necessary for the comparable’s
inferior location. On the other hand, downward adjustments are necessary for the comparable’s higher
percentage of land coverage to land area, larger size of the comparable versus the Subject Property and

the comparable’s superior topography.

Overall, CLS-1°s sale price of $25,000 is considered to be a high indication of value for the
Subject Property.

Sale CLS-2 which sold for $10,000, is the sale of a vacant parcel located in Class 1b soils. The
property is located in a mixed-use area in close proximity to the downtown tourist core of South Lake
Tahoe. The comparable is located on a secondary street. All of the existing land coverage had been

stripped from the site by the seller concurrent with the close of escrow and was not included in the

—_— — California * Nevada -

25-048 21



M Jotinson Vatuation Group, Ld..

transaction. The property did not contain any other TRPA development resources. This comparable was
purchased by an adjacent property owner who wanted to create a larger site to allow for greater density on

his existing parcel. The property was openly marketed by the Multiple Listing Service prior to its sale.

In comparison to The Subject Property, upward adjustments are necessary for the comparable’s
inferior location and lack of any base allowable land coverage rights. On the other hand, downward

adjustments are necessary for the comparable’s superior topography and larger parcel size.
Overall, CLS-2’s sale price of $10,000 is a good indication of value for The Subject Property.

Sale CLS-3 is the sale of 76 Moana Circle in a homeowner’s association that has a private beach.
The comparable had 4% allowable land coverage, however, its IPES score did not allow for it to be
buildable at the present time. The comparable has moderate topography. The comparable is composed of
a 15,214 square foot site. It sold for $55,000 on October 3, 2016.

In comparison to The Subject Property, a very large downward adjustment is made for the
speculative future buildable potential of the comparable parcel. An additional very large downward
adjustment is necessary for the comparable’s superior HOA with a common area beach for its owners.
Finally, a downward adjustment is necessary for the comparable’s 4% allowable land coverage, which is

superior to the subject’s 1% allowable land coverage.

Overall, CLS-3’s sale price of $55,000 is considered to be a very high indication of value for The
Subject Property.

Sale CLS-4 is the sale of 543 Sunrise Avenue. The comparable features good, filtered views of
Lake Tahoe and the ability to be developed if the correct low capability land coverage was available for
sale and transfer to the subject site. The comparable features steep topography. The comparable is

composed of a 15,200 square foot site. It sold for $32,500 on July 7, 2017.

In comparison to The Subject Property, a very large downward adjustment is made for the
speculative future buildable potential of the comparable parcel. Downward adjustments are necessary for

the comparable’s lake views and larger parcel size

California = Nevada —

25-048 22



,@ Jofmson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

Overall, CLS-4’s sale price of $32,500 is considered to be a high indication of value for The
Subject Property.

Sale CLS-5 is the sale of the unbuildable lot in on the west side of Park Lane in Kings Beach.
The comparable has mild to moderate downsloping topography. The comparable has 428+ square feet of
base allowable land coverage and a residential development right. The comparable is composed of a

4,750 square foot site. It sold for $31,500 on December 4, 2023.

In comparison to the Subject Property, an upward adjustment is made for the subject’s superior
location. On the other hand, large downward adjustments are necessary for the comparabes residential

development right, greater amount of allowable land coverage and larger land area.

Overall, CLS-5’s sale price of $31,500 is considered to be a very high indication of value for The
Subject Property.

——— ———————————— Cafifornia ® Nevada - S —

25-048 23



A& Jobnson Vatuation Group, Lid. — a

Summary and Final Reconciliation
Overall, based on the comparable sales, and with consideration given to the subject being
precluded from future development per, the location in Class 1a soils, and lack of other TRPA

development resources, the market evidence supports a value of $10,000 for the Subject Property.
With consideration given to the positive and negative aspects of The Subject Property, the
comparable sales identified, it is my opinion that the Market Value of the 100% fee simple interest in

T\the Subject Property, as of December 3, 2025, is $10,000.

FINAL MARKET VALUE CONCLUSION $10,000

California = Nevada —

25-048

24



A_&: Jobmson Vatuation Group, Ltd. = _ -

=

EXPOSURE TIME

Exposure time is defined in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice as
“The length of time the property interest being appraised would have been offered on the market
prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at market value on the effective date of
appraisal; a retrospective estimate based upon an analysis of past events assuming a competitive

and open market.”

In general, properties listed for sale at a price above market value will require an
extended exposure time. Conversely, properties listed for sale at a price below market value will
usually require a relatively short exposure time. An estimate of exposure time may be an
estimate expressed as a range, and may be based on statistical information about days on the

market; information gathered through sales verification; and interviews with market participants.

Exposure time analysis assumes the property is available to a competitive and open
market. Based on the very limited market of buyers that would be interested in the Subject
Property, it is our opinion that the estimated exposure time for this property would be

approximately 12 to 24 months.

ESTIMATED EXPOSURE TIME 12 MONTH

—— California = Nevada ——

25-048 25



li@ Jotnson Vatuation Group, Ltd— )

report:

25-048

APPRAISERS’ CERTIFICATION

Each of the undersigned do hereby certify that, unless otherwise noted in this appraisal

I have made a personal inspection of the exterior of the property that is the subject of
this report.

I have no present or contemplated future interest in the real estate that is the
subject of this appraisal report.

I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the
parties involved with this assignment.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements of fact contained in
this appraisal report, upon which the analysis, opinions, and conclusions
herein are based, are true and correct.

This report sets forth all the limiting conditions (imposed by the terms of our
assignment or by the undersigned) affecting the analysis, opinions, and
conclusions contained in this report.

The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this
report has been prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of
Professional Ethics & Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the
Appraisal Institute, which include the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice.

My compensation is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value or
direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value estimate,
the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event.

The appraisal was not based upon a requested minimum valuation, a specific
valuation, or the approval of a loan.

My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting
predetermined results.

California = Nevada

26



lm Jotmson Vatuation Group, Lid — -

e
N———

e This appraiser has not performed services involving the subject property
within the prior three years from the date of acceptance of this assignment.

e No one other than the undersigned prepared the analyses, conclusions and
opinions concerning real estate that are set forth in this appraisal report.

e The Appraisal Institute conducts a mandatory program of continuing
education for its designated members. As of the date of this report, Benjamin
Q. Johnson has completed the requirements under the continuing education
program of the Appraisal Institute.

e The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute
relating to review by its duly authorized representatives.

After careful consideration of all data available, and upon thorough personal investigation
of the subject property and the comparable properties analyzed, the estimated Market Value of
the 100% fee simple interest in the subject property, as of December 3, 2025, is as follows:

FINAL PROPERTY VALUE CONCLUSION $10.000

Respectfully Submitted,

5@72&%}» @ %Mm
Benjamin Q. Johnson, MAI

Nevada Certified General Appraiser
License Number A.0205542 CG

— - . - California = Nevada e —

25-048 27



& Johmson Vatuation Group, Ltd..

STANDARD ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

The acceptance of this appraisal assignment and the completion of the appraisal report submitted

herewith are contingent upon the following assumptions and limiting conditions.

LIMITS OF LIABILITY

This report was prepared by Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd. All opinions, recommendations, and
conclusions expressed during the course of this assignment are rendered by the staff of Johnson Valuation
Group, Ltd., as employees, not as individuals. The liability of Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd. and its
employees and associates is limited to the client only and to the fee actually received by the appraisal firm.
There is no accountability, obligation, or liability to any third party. If the appraisal report is disseminated
to anyone other than the client, the client shall make such party or parties aware of all limiting conditions
and assumptions affecting the appraisal assignment. Neither the appraisers nor the appraisal firm is in any
way to be responsible for any costs incurred to discover or correct any physical, financial and/or legal
deficiencies of any type present in the subject property. In the case of limited partnerships or syndication
offerings or stock offerings in real estate, the client agrees that in the event of a lawsuit brought by a lender,
a partner or part owner in any form of ownership, a tenant or any other party, the client will hold the
appraiser(s) and the appraisal firm completely harmless in such action with respect to any and all awards or
settlements of any type in such lawsuits.

COPIES, PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION AND USE OF REPORT

Possession of this report or any copy thereof does not carry with it the right of publication,
nor may it be used for any purpose or any function other than its intended use, as stated in the
body of the report. The appraisal fee represents compensation only for the analytical services
provided by the appraiser(s). The appraisal report remains the property of the appraisal firm,
though it may be used by the client in accord with these assumptions and limiting conditions.

This appraisal is to be used only in its entirety, and no part is to be used without the whole
report. All conclusions and opinions concerning the analysis as set forth in the report were
prepated by the appraiser(s) whose signature(s) appears on the appraisal report, unless it is
indicated that one or more of the appraisers was acting as "Review Appraiser." No change of any
item in the report shall be made by anyone other than the appraiser(s). The appraiser(s) and the
appraisal firm shall bear no responsibility for any such unauthorized changes.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Except as provided for subsequently, neither the appraiser(s) nor the appraisal firm may
divulge the analyses, opinions or conclusions developed in the appraisal report, nor may they give
a copy of the report to anyone other than the client or his designee as specified in writing.
However, this condition does not apply to any requests made by the Appraisal Institute for
purposes of confidential ethics enforcement. Also, this condition does not apply to any order or
request issued by a court of law or any other body with the power of subpoena.

INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY OTHERS

Information (including projections of income and expenses) provided by informed local
sources, such as government agencies, financial institutions, Realtors, buyers, sellers, property
owners, bookkeepers, accountants, attorneys, and others is assumed to be true, correct and reliable.
No responsibility for the accuracy of such information is assumed by the appraiser(s). Neither the
appraiser(s) nor the appraisal firm is liable for any information or the work product provided by
subcontractors. The client and others utilizing the appraisal report are advised that some of the
individuals associated with Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd. are independent contractors and may
sign the appraisal report in that capacity. The comparable data relied upon in this report has been
confirmed with one or more parties familiar with the transaction or from affidavit or other sources
thought reasonable. To the best of our judgment and knowledge, all such information is

California = Nevada -

28



am Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd. R e

considered appropriate for inclusion. In some instances, an impractical and uneconomic
expenditure of time would be required in attempting to furnish absolutely unimpeachable
verification. The value conclusions set forth in the appraisal report are subject to the accuracy of
said data. It is suggested that the client consider independent verification as a prerequisite to any
transaction involving a sale, a lease or any other commitment of funds with respect to the subject

property.

TESTIMONY, CONSULTATION, COMPLETION OF CONTRACT FOR APPRAISAL SERVICE

The contract for each appraisal, consultation or analytical service is fulfilled and the total fee
is payable upon completion of the report. The appraisers(s) or those assisting in the preparation of
the report will not be asked or required to give testimony in court or in any other hearing as a
result of having prepared the appraisal, either in full or in part, except under separate and special
arrangements at an additional fee. If testimony or a deposition is required, the client shall be
responsible for any additional time, fees and charges, regardless of the issuing party. Neither the
appraiser(s) nor those assisting in the preparation of the report is required to engage in post-
appraisal consultation with the client or other third parties, except under a separate and special
arrangement and at an additional fee.

EXHIBITS AND PHYSICAL DESCRIPTIONS

Tt is assumed that the improvements and the utilization of the land are within the boundaries of the
property lines of the property described in the report and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless
noted otherwise within the report. No survey of the property has been made by the appraiser(s) and no
responsibility is assumed in connection with such matters. Any maps, plats, or drawings reproduced and
included in the report are there to assist the reader in visualizing the property and are not necessarily drawn
to scale. They should not be considered as surveys or relied upon for any other purpose, nor should they be
removed from, reproduced or used apart from the report.

TITLE, LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS, AND OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

No responsibility is assumed by the appraiser(s) or the appraisal firm for matters legal in
character or nature. No opinion is rendered as to the status of title to any property. The title is
presumed to be good and merchantable. The property is appraised as if free and clear, unless
otherwise stated in the appraisal report. The legal description, as furnished by the client, his
designee or as derived by the appraiser(s), is assumed to be correct as reported. The appraisal is
not to be construed as giving advice concerning liens, title status, or legal marketability of the
subject property.

ENGINEERING, STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, ARCHITECTURAL CONDITIONS

25-048

This appraisal should not be construed as a report on the physical items that are a part of any
property described in the appraisal report. Although the appraisal may contain information about
these physical items (including their adequacy and/or condition), it should be clearly understood
that this information is only to be used as a general guide for property valuation and not as a
complete or detailed report on these physical items. The appraiser(s) is not a construction,
engineering, or architectural expert, and any opinion given on these matters in this report should
be considered tentative in nature and is subject to modification upon receipt of additional
information from appropriate experts. The client is advised to seek appropriate expert opinion
before committing any funds to the property described in the appraisal report.

Any statement in the appraisal regarding the observed condition of the foundation, roof,
exterior walls, interior walls, floors, heating system, plumbing, insulation, electrical service, all
mechanicals, and all matters relating to construction is based on a casual inspection only. Unless
otherwise noted in the appraisal report, no detailed inspection was made. For instance, the
appraiser is not an expert on heating systems, and no attempt was made to inspect the interior of
the furnace. The structures were not investigated for building code violations, and it is assumed

California = Nevada - =

29



M Jornson Vatuation Group, Ltd.. S

that all buildings meet the applicable building code requirements unless stated otherwise in the
report.

Such items as conditions behind walls, above ceilings, behind locked doors, under the floor, or under
the ground are not exposed to casual view and, therefore, were not inspected, unless specifically so stated
in the appraisal. The existence of insulation, if any is mentioned, was discovered through conversations
with others and/or circumstantial evidence. Since it is not exposed to view, the accuracy of any statements
regarding insulation cannot be guaranteed.

Because no detailed inspection was made, and because such knowledge goes beyond the scope of this
appraisal, any comments on observed conditions given in this appraisal report should not be taken as a
guarantee that a problem does not exist. Specifically, no guarantee is given as to the adequacy or condition
of the foundation, roof, exterior walls, interior walls, floors, heating systems, air conditioning systems,
plumbing, electrical service, insulation, or any other detailed construction matters. If any interested party is
concerned about the existence, condition, or adequacy of any particular item, we would strongly suggest
that a mechanical and/or structural inspection be made by a qualified and licensed contractor, a civil or
structural engineer, an architect or other experts. This appraisal report is based on the assumption that there
are no hidden, unapparent or apparent conditions on the property or improvements which would materially
alter the value as reported. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions or for any expertise or
engineering to discover them. All mechanical components are assumed to be in operable condition and
standard for the properties of the subject type. Conditions of heating, cooling, ventilating, electrical and
plumbing equipment are considered to be commensurate with the condition of the balance of the
improvements unless otherwise stated. No judgment is made in the appraisal as to the adequacy of
insulation, the type of insulation, or the energy efficiency of the improvements or equipment which is
assumed to be standard for the subject's age, type and condition.

TOXIC MATERIALS AND HAZARDS

Unless otherwise stated in the appraisal report, no attempt has been made to identify or report
the presence of any potentially toxic materials and/or condition such as asbestos, urea
formaldehyde foam insulation, PCBs, any form of toxic waste, polychlorinated biphenyl,
pesticides, lead-based paints or soils or ground water contamination on any land or improvements
described in the appraisal report. Before committing funds to any property, it is strongly advised
that appropriate experts be employed to inspect both land and improvements for the existence of
such potentially toxic materials and/or conditions. If any potentially toxic materials and/or
conditions are present on the property, the value of the property may be adversely affected and a
re-appraisal at an additional cost may be necessary to estimate the effects of such circumstances.

SOILS, SUB-SOILS, AND POTENTIAL HAZARDS

25-048

It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the soils or sub-soil which
would render the subject property more or less valuable than reported in the appraisal. No
engineering or percolation tests were made and no liability is assumed for soil conditions. Unless
otherwise noted, the land and the soil in the area being appraised appeared to be firm, but no
investigation has been made to determine whether or not any detrimental sub-soil conditions exist.
Neither the appraiser(s) nor the appraisal firm is liable for any problems arising from soil
conditions. These appraisers strongly advise that, before any funds are committed to a property,
the advice of appropriate experts be sought.

If the appraiser(s) has not been supplied with a termite inspection report, survey or occupancy
permit, no responsibility is assumed and no representation is made for any costs associated with
obtaining same or for any deficiencies discovered before or after they are obtained.

Neither the appraiser(s) nor the appraisal firm assumes responsibility for any costs or for any
consequences arising from the need or lack of need for flood hazard insurance. An Agent for the

California = Nevada

30



lm Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd. — o

-_,iﬁ':‘ —

Federal Flood Insurance Program should be contacted to determine the actual need for flood
hazard insurance.

ARCHEOLOGICAL SIGNIFICANCE
No investigation has been made by the appraiser and no information has been provided to the appraiser
regarding potential archeological significance of the subject property or any portion thereof. This report
assumes no portion of the subject property has archeological significance.

LEGALITY OF USE
This appraisal report assumes that there is full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local

environmental regulations and laws, unless non-compliance is stated, defined and considered in the
appraisal report. It is assumed that all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions have been
complied with, unless a non-conformity has been stated, defined and considered in the appraisal report. It
is assumed that all required licenses, consents, or other legislative or administrative authority from any
local, state or national government, private entity or organization have been or can be obtained or renewed
for any use on which the value estimate contained in this report is based.

COMPONENT VALUES
Any distribution of the total value between the land and improvements, between partial ownership
interests or any other partition of total value applies only under the stated use. Moreover, separate
allocations between components are not valid if this report is used in conjunction with any other analysis.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
The Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") became effective January 26, 1992. It is assumed that
the property is in direct compliance with the various detailed requirements of the ADA.

AUXILIARY AND RELATED STUDIES
No environmental or impact studies, special market studies or analyses, special highest and
best use studies or feasibility studies have been requested or made by the appraiser(s) unless
otherwise specified in an agreement for services and so stated in the appraisal report.

DOLLAR VALUES AND PURCHASING POWER
The estimated market value set forth in the appraisal report and any cost figures utilized are
applicable only as of the date of valuation of the appraisal report. All dollar amounts are based on
the purchasing power and price of the dollar as of the date of value estimates.

ROUNDING
Some figures presented in this report were generated using computer models that make calculations
based on numbers carried out to three or more decimal places. In the interest of simplicity, most numbers
have been rounded. Thus, these figures may be subject to small rounding errors.

QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS
Although this analysis employs various mathematical calculations to provide value indications, the
final estimate is subjective and may be influenced by our experience and other factors not specifically set
forth in this report.

VALUE CHANGE, DYNAMIC MARKET, ALTERATION OF ESTIMATE BY APPRAISER

All values shown in the appraisal report are projections based on our analysis as of the date of
valuation of the appraisal. These values may not be valid in other time periods or as conditions change.
Projected mathematical models set forth in the appraisal are based on estimates and assumptions which are
inherently subject to uncertainty and variations related to exposure, time, promotional effort, terms,
motivation, and other conditions. The appraiser(s) does not represent these models as indicative of results
that will actually be achieved. The value estimates consider the productivity and relative attractiveness of a
property only as of the date of valuation set forth in the report.

- ; — California » Nevada —

25-048 31



M Jofnson Vatuation Group, Lid..

In cases of appraisals involving the capitalization of income benefits, the estimate of market value,
investment value or value in use is a reflection of such benefits and of the appraiser's interpretation of
income, yields and other factors derived from general and specific client and market information. Such
estimates are as of the date of valuation of the report, and are subject to change as market conditions
change.

This appraisal is an estimate of value based on analysis of information known to us at the time the
appraisal was made. The appraiser(s) does not assume any responsibility for incorrect analysis because of
incorrect or incomplete information. If new information of significance comes to light, the value given in
this report is subject to change without notice. The appraisal report itself and the value estimates set forth
therein are subject to change if either the physical or legal entity or the terms of financing are different from
what is set forth in the report.

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL TRENDS
The appraiser assumes no responsibility for economic, physical or demographic factors which may
affect or alter the opinions in this report if said economic, physical or demographic factors were not present
as of the date of value of this appraisal. The appraiser is not obligated to predict future political, economic
or social trends.

EXCLUSIONS
Furnishings, equipment, other personal property and value associated with a specific business
operation are excluded from the value estimate set forth in the report unless otherwise indicated.
Only the real estate is included in the value estimates set forth in the report unless otherwise
stated.

SUBSURFACE RIGHTS
No opinion is expressed as to the value of subsurface oil, gas or mineral rights or whether the property
is subject to surface entry for the exploration or removal of such materials, except as is expressly stated.

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS, CONDITIONED VALUE
It is assumed in the appraisal report that all proposed improvements and/or repairs, either on-

site or off-site, are completed in an excellent workmanlike manner in accord with plans,
specifications or other information supplied to these appraisers and set forth in the appraisal
report, unless otherwise explicitly stated in the appraisal. In the case of proposed construction, the
appraisal is subject to change upon inspection of the property after construction is completed. The
estimate of market value is as of the date specified in the report. Unless otherwise stated, the
assumption is made that all improvements and/or repairs have been completed according to the
plans and that the property is operating at levels projected in the report.

MANAGEMENT OF PROPERTY
It is assumed that the property which is the subject of the appraisal report will be under
typically prudent and competent management which is neither inefficient nor superefficient.

FEE
The fee for any appraisal report, consultation, feasibility or other study is for services rendered and,
unless otherwise stated in the service agreement, is not solely based upon the time spent on any assignment.
LEGAL EXPENSES

Any legal expenses incurred in defending or representing ourselves concerning this assignment will be
the responsibility of the client.

CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS

California » Nevada

25-048 32



a_;j“ Johnson Vatuation Group, Ltd — T—— =

The appraiser(s) reserves the right, at the cost of the client, to alter statements, analyses,
conclusions, or any value estimates in the appraisal if any new facts pertinent to the appraisal
process are discovered which were unknown on the date of valuation of this report.

DISSEMINATION OF MATERJAL
Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report shall be disseminated to the general public
through advertising or sales media, public relations media, new media or other public means of
communication without the prior written consent and approval of the appraiser(s).

The acceptance and/or use of the Appraisal Report by the client or any third party
constitutes acceptance of the Assumptions and Limiting Conditions set forth in the preceding
paragraphs. The appraiser’s liability extends only to the specified client, not to subsequent parties
or users. The appraiser’s liability is limited to the amount of the fee received for the services
rendered.

— Cafifornia ® Nevada —— -

25-048 33



% Johnson Vatuation Group, Lid. . -

QUALIFICATIONS OF APPRAISER
BENJAMIN Q. JOHNSON

Professional Designations
MAI — Designated Member of the Appraisal Institute

State Licensing and Certification
Certified General Appraiser — State of California
License Number AG043925
(Certified through April 29, 2026)

Certified General Appraiser — State of Nevada
License Number A.0205542-CG
(Certified through November 30, 2026)

Professional Experience
Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd. 2015 to Present
Partner

Johnson-Perkins & Associates, Inc.

Principal Appraiser 2009 to 2015
Senior Appraiser 2008 to 2009
Intern Appraiser 2006 to 2008
Research Assistant 2005 to 2006
General Electric 2002-2004
Finance Intern (Summers Only)

Formal Education
Santa Clara University — Santa Clara, CA 2005
Bachelor of Science in Commerce; Major in Economics

California = Nevada S =

25-048

34



% Jobmson Vatuation Group, Ltd. - N B

:-og"‘&;n_:_-:-

QUALIFICATIONS OF
BENJAMIN Q. JOHNSON, (CONTINUED)

Qualified as an Expert Witness
Second Judicial District Court — State of Nevada
Third Judicial District Court — State of Nevada
Ninth Judicial District Court — State of Nevada
Superior Court of California, County of El Dorado
Superior Court of California, County of Placer
U.S. Bankruptcy Court, District of Nevada
U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of California

Offices Held and Appointments
Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District

Trustee 2023to Present
Nevada State Board of Equalization
Board Member 2012 to 2022
Chairman 2019 to 2022
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
Land Use Commodities Market Steering Committee 2014
Appraisal Institute
Reno-Carson-Tahoe Chapter
Director 2011
Secretary 2012
Vice-President 2013
President 2014
Treasurer 2015
Chair of Candidate Guidance Committee 2013 to 2015
Nevada Chapter
Northern Nevada Branch Chapter Vice Chair 2017
Region 1
Nominating Committee 2015 to Present
Eagle Scout Board of Review, Board Member 2016 to Present
Association Memberships and Affiliations
Leadership Development and Advisory Council (LDAC) 2010
Executives Association of Reno (EAR) 2009 to 2012
Tahoe Regional Young Professionals (TRYP) 2015 to 2016

— — Caflifornia = Nevada —— m— s

35

25-048



gj‘thMW%VMMMMGmeﬂd____ | _ -

ADDENDA

Legal Description

A portion of Lot 17, Kingsbury Highlands Unit No. 2,
in the Northwest guarter of the Sgutheaqt quarter of
Section 24, T. 13 N., R. 18 E., M D.B. & M., Douglas
County, Nevada, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the Northwest corner of Lot 17,
Kingsbury nghlands, Unit No. 2. as shown on that
map recorded in File Wo. 19280, Records of Douglas
County, Nevada; thence S. 89°44'26" E., 42.0 feet;
thence S. 0°15'34" W., 51.8 feet to a point on the
Northeasterly line of Laurel Lane; thence, along
Laurel Lane N. 49°24'28" W., 33.5 feet; thence,
along a 41.48 foot radius curve to the right, through
an angle of 49°20'04" a distance of 35.81 feet to the
point of  beginning.

Cafifornia = Nevada

25-048 36



083
KINGSBURY HEIGHTS

PLAN DESIGNATION:

Land Use Classification RESIDENTIAL

Management Strategy MITIGATION

Special Designation NONE
DESCRIPTION:

Location: This area is midway up Kingsbury Grade in the area of the Kingsbury Heights
Subdivision and is located on TRPA map |-16.

Existing Uses: This is a low density residential area that includes a trailer subdivision, a TRPA-
approved planned unit development and other residential uses. The area is 80 percent built out.

Existing Environment: The area is classified as high hazard. The land coverage is 25 percent
plus an additional 25 percent disturbed.

PLANNING STATEMENT: This area should continue to be residential at the density of one residence per
approved lot of record.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
1. There is a mobile home subdivision in this area.
2. Scenic Roadway Unit 44 is within this Plan Area.
SPECIAL POLICIES:

1. The portion of Kingsbury Heights Subdivision which is now used for trailers should be
converted to permanent structures.

2. Land coverage reduction is a high priority in this area.

PERMISSIBLE USES: Pursuant to Chapter 18 PERMISSIBLE USES and if applicable, Chapter 51
PERMISSIBLE USES AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURES IN THE SHOREZONE AND LAKEZONE, the
following primary uses may be permitted within all or a portion of the Plan Area. The list indicates if the
use is allowed (A) or must be considered under the provisions for a special use (8). Existing uses not
listed shall be considered nonconforming uses within this Plan Area. The establishment of new uses not
listed shall be prohibited within this Plan Area.

General List; The following list of permissible uses is applicable throughout the Plan Area:

Residential Single family dwelling (A) and mobile home dwellings

(S).

TRPA Plan Area Statements
083 - KINGSBURY HEIGHTS Page 1



Public Service Local public health and safety facilities (S), transit
stations and terminals (S), pipelines and power
transmission (S), transmission and receiving facilities
(S), transportation routes (S), public utility centers (S),
and local post offices (S).

Recreation Participant sports facilities (S), day use areas (A), and
riding and hiking trails (A).

Resource Management Reforestation (A), sanitation salvage cut (A), special cut
(A), thinning (A), early successional stage vegetation
management (A), structural and nonstructural fish/wildlife
habitat management (A), fire detection and suppression
(A), fuels treatment/management (A), insect and disease
suppression (A), sensitive and uncommon plant
management (A}, erosion control (A), SEZ restoration
(A), and runoff control (A).

MAXIMUM DENSITIES: Pursuant to Chapter 21 DENSITY, the following list establishes the maximum
allowable densities that may be permitted for any parcel located within the Plan Area. The actual
development permitted may be further limited by transfer of development rights limitations, residential
density incentive program, special use determinations, allocation limitations and general site development
standards.

USE MAXIMUM DENSITY
Residential

Single Family Dwelling 1 unit per parcel
Mobile Home Dwellings 8 units per acre

MAXIMUM COMMUNITY NOISE EQUIVALENT LEVEL:. The maximum community noise equivalent
level for this Plan Area is 55 CNEL. The maximum community noise equivalent level for the
Highway 207 corridor is 55 CNEL.

ADDITIONAL DEVELOPED OUTDOOR RECREATION: The following are the targets and limits for
additional developed outdoor recreation facilities specified in Chapter 13 to be located within this Plan
Area. Specific projects and their timing are addressed in the TRPA Five-Year Recreation Program
pursuant to Chapter 33 Allocation of Development. The following additional capacities allowed are
measured in persons at one time.

SUMMER DAY USES 0 PAOT WINTER DAY USES 0 PAOT OVERNIGHT USES 0 PAOT

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS: The capital improvement and other improvement
programs required by the Regional Goals and Policies Plan and Environmental Improvement Plan (EIP)

for this area shall be implemented. §

5 Amended 5/22/02

TRPA Plan Area Statements
083 - KINGSBURY HEIGHTS Page 2



2/6/26, 12:41 PM

510 LAUREL LN - 1318-24-710-001 - Douglas County Assessor

I

Great People. Great Places.

GOVERNMENT RESIDENTS
DOING BUSINESS VISITORS
— LOUNTY I WANT TO RFP/ BIDS

QGREAT

FEOPLE MGREAT PLACES

Parcel 1318-24-710-001

Owners

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMP DISTRICT

PO BOX 2220

STATELINE, NV 894489

Parcel Summary

Tax Dlstnct

Acreage

Keyline Description
Changed from Parcel # 0000-07-344-140

| 41~6?_KINGSBURY GID
0.000

510 LAUREL LN

710 Communication, Transportation, and
Utility Property of a Local Nature

KINGSEJRY HIGHLANDS #2

361.060A: COUNTY, CITIES, TOWNS AND
OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS (100%)

1318-24-7 pdf (1,758kb)

Split from:
0000-07-344-140

Value History

2024 2023 2022
1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Value $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Prop $0 $0 | $0 | $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0
‘ $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

https://douglasnv-search.gsacorp.io/parcel/131824710001

$0
$0
$0
$100
$100

%) Login

$0

$0

$0
$100 .
$100

13



2/6/26, 12:41 PM 510 LAUREL LN - 1318-24-710-001 - Douglas County Assessor

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35 $35
$0 o  $| s s S0 $0
50 so #@Jr'ww?o T s T w0 $0
$0 so] sl 0 0|7 so $0

Document/Transfer/Sales History
v

QUITCLAIM Grantor: PICKING, DUG & CONNIE JO
QCD 76978 1974-12-06 Vacant $0 Grantee: KINGSBURY GENERAL IMP
BEED DISTRICT

Buildings

None

Land Lines

None

Personal Property

None

Disclaimer

Al parcel data on this page is for use by the Douglas County Assessor for assessment purposes only. The summary data on this page may
not be a complete representation of the parcel or of the improvements thereon. Building information, including unit counts and number of
permitted units, should be verified with the appropriate building and planning agencies. Zoning information should be verified with the
appropriate planning agency. All parcels are reappraised each year. This is a true and accurate copy of the records of the Douglas County
Assessor's Office as of February 06, 2026.

Contact Us

Douglas County
1594 Esmeralda Av.
Minden, NV 89423

Mailing Address: P.O. Box
218
Minden, NV.

hitps://douglasnv-search.gsacorp.io/parcel/131824710001 2/3



© ® T e M B> e M =

| L
H O

S T U S WA S
© ® 9 &6 o . oo

A o]
H O

32

HOWARD D. McKISBEN
ATTORNEY AT LAW
DCUGLAS COUNTY

COURTHOUSE
POST OFFICE BOX 307
MINDEN, NEVADA BR423

1974, between-Eé%gyPICKING and CONWNIE JO PICKING, husband and

wife, hereinafter called GRANTORS and KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT

DISTRICT, hereinafter called GRANTEE,

TEN DOLLARS ($10.00), lawful money of the United States of

America and other valuable consideration, the receipt whereof

QUITCLAIM DEE!?—/:/' _
STA
THISQIN@&WRE made the é -~ day of Jery ;744@,

WITWNESSETH:

That Grantors, for and in consideration of the sum of

is hereby acknowledged, do by these presents hereby release
and forever quitclaim unto the Grantee, and to its successors
and assigns forever, all of that certain lot, piece or parcel
of land situate in the County of Douglas, State of Nevada, and
more particularly described as follows:

A portion of Lot 17, Kingsbury Highlands Unit No. 2,

in the Northwest quarter of the Southeast guarter of

Section 24, T. 13 N., R. 18 E., M.D.B. & M., Douglas
County, Nevada, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the Northwest corner of Lot 17,
Kingsbury Highlands, Unit No. 2. as shown on that
map recorded in File No. 19280, Records of Douglas

" . County, Nevada; thence S. 89°44'26" E., 42.0 feet;
theénce S. 0°15'34" W., 51.8 feet to a point on the
Northeasterly line of Laurel Lane; thence. along
Laurel Lane N. 49°24'28" W., 33.5 feet; thence,
along a 41.48 foot radius curve to the right, through
an angle of 49°20'04" a distance of 35.81 feet to the

point of beginning.
Containing 1,380 square feet, more or less.

TOGETHER with the tenements, hereditaments and
appurfenances thereunto belonging or appertaining, and the
reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, rents, issues
and profits thereof.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said premises, together with
the appurtenances; unto the said Grantee and to its successors

and assigns forever.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said GRANTORS have executed

76078
00k12'74 PAGE 4DF




s |

R N

0 O =2

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23|

24
25
26

‘1;27‘
28

29
30
31
32

HowaRrD D, McKispaN
ATTORNEY AT LAW
DOUGLAS COUNTY

COURTHOUSK
FOST OFFICE BOX 307
MINDEN, NEVADA 80433

this conveyance the day and year first above written.

[ o

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
County of Douglas )

Oon this the fe%'ay of M 1974

ed Notary Publlc, in

personally appeared before me the ﬁie
and for the said County and State, PICKING and CONNIE JO
PICKING, known to me to be the persons described in and Wl’;()
executed the foregoing instrument, who acknowledged to me that
they executed the same freely and volunt;ariiy and for the uses.
and purposes therein meni':'i‘cgnevd‘.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hEivg hereunto set my and and

affixed my official seal .the day.and year first above set forth.

KENMETH KJER
Motary Public — State of Movada
] Douglas County
My Cnmmlnmn Explm Scp! 6 1975

(LTI

T TPPPI

7 / z/
Qe P ) P
Recordcd at Request of X C e V “ .

On DEC ] 7 1974 At <~ Min. Past__ S IM
Official Records of Douglas County, Nevada. Fce,,.E'w__’f_'___’

AN ‘\
Parricia J. Sranley. R~ m«drmﬁ”:,ﬂ \__ag\) .
76078

(?“,’("
'/ B0k 1274 FASE 4S8




Meeting Minutes KGID Board of Trustees December 16, 2025: Agenda Item #10

10. For Discussion and Possible Action: 510 Laurel Lane Easement Request and
Related Alternatives
The full discussion related to item 10 can be heard at:
https://kaid.ora/board-meeting-recordings
Media Timestamp (54:47 - 1:34:41)

The board discussed granting an access easement or selling a small parcel of land
to Kemper and Marika for building their driveway. Chair Johns explained the
potential future use of the subsurface area for a pump station, while Trustee Felton
raised concerns about liability and the need for the district to retain ownership. The
Trustees agreed to sell the property for $40,000, with Kemper and Marika building a
vault for the district’s pipes, as it would be more beneficial than maintaining
ownership for the parcel.

M-12-16-25-6: It has been determined the sale was in the district’s best interest and
that the parcel was too small for economically viable use by anyone other than the
proposed purchasers.

Moved by Nelson Seconded by Felton
YEAS: Johns, Felton, Grime and Nelson 4
NAYS: None 0

Motion Passed

M-12-16-25-7: Authorized the general manager and council to work with the
applicants to craft an agreement acceptable to both parties conveying the property.

Moved by Felton Seconded by Nelson
YEAS: Johns, Felton, Grime and Nelson 4
NAYS: None 0

Motion Passed



510 Laurel Lane Purchase - Price Proposal and Title Company Request 12/27/25
Dear Kingsbury Grade Improvement District,

Thank you for the board's approval of the sale of the land at 510 Laurel Lane. We are excited
to move forward with this purchase.

Regarding the purchase price, we would like to propose $30,000 for the land parcel. Our
proposal is based on the following considerations:

- The land itself is valued at approximately $10,000

- We understand the district has concerns about the cost of replacing the pump house at a
new location

- Kemper Masonry’s estimator has drawn up a proposal cost for a replacement pump
house at $20,000 (see attached)

We believe that a purchase price of $30,000 represents a fair compromise that
compensates the district for both the tand value and the pump house replacement.

As we proceed to closing, we would also like to request that we use Signature Title
Company in Round Hill to handle the transaction. We have worked with them previously
and are confident in their ability to facilitate a smooth and efficient closing process.

Please let us know if both the pricing and title company arrangements work for the district.
We are prepared to move forward promptly and look forward to finalizing this transaction.

Thank you for your consideration and cooperation.

Best regards,

Kemper Hendrick and Marika Weseloh



Pump House Estimate

voww kempesmatonry.com

KEMPER
MASONRY Pump House Estimate

NV Lic. #0080356 CA Lic. #799889

Prepared By 12/23/2025
Kemper & Sons Masonry, Inc.

PO Box 417
Zephyr Cove, NV 89448

775-790-6730
spencer@kempermasonry.com

| 17'Wx12'Lx9'4"H CMU Pumphouse/Storage Shed SUBTOTAL $20,330.80 ]
2x2 Windows (2) $355.60
8x8x16 CMU Nat. Split Face (620 SF) $12,999.00
Bucks for Masonry Openings $110.25
Carpentry Over CMU $2,352.00
Composite Roof $508.20
Concrete Footings and Slab $1,386.00
Dirt Work $1,522.50
Furnish and Install HM Door Frame (1) $1,097.25

Proposal Total $20,330.80

Page 1 of 1






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #11

TITLE: RATIFICATION AND AUTHORIZATION OF CONVEYANCE OF DISTRICT-
OWNED PROPERTY (APN 1318-24-710-001 — 510 LAUREL LANE)

MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Ratify the Board’s prior determination that sale of the District-owned property located at 510 Laurel
Lane is in the District’s best interest, approve the purchase price as determined by the Board, and
authorize the conveyance of the property following completion of the public hearing and formal
determination of fair market value, including authorization for the General Manager to execute all
documents necessary to complete the transaction.

BACKGROUND:

On October 21, 2025, the Board authorized staff and legal counsel to engage with the requesting parties
regarding alternatives related to the District-owned property located at 510 Laurel Lane, and to return
to the Board with proposed terms for approval.

On December 16, 2025, the Board discussed the appraisal of the property, evaluated alternatives
including granting an easement or selling the parcel, and determined that sale of the property was in the
District’s best interest. At that meeting, the Board expressed its intent to sell the property for $40,000,
finding that the parcel was too small for economically viable use by anyone other than the proposed
purchasers.

Subsequent to that meeting, the prospective purchasers submitted a written proposal to purchase the
property for $30,000, citing the appraised value of the land and the estimated cost of constructing a
replacement pump house.

Pursuant to NRS 318.512, the District has since completed the remaining statutory requirements,
including selection of an appraiser and conducting a public hearing to formally determine the fair market

value of the property.

This agenda item is intended to implement and ratify the Board’s prior direction and to authorize
conveyance of the property and execution of the necessary documents to complete the transaction under
terms approved by the Board.



INCLUDED
A. Quitclaim Deed
B. Purchase Agreement

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (0 Not a Budget Item
(X) Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



APN: 1318-24-710-001

Recording Requested By
And When Recorded Mail To:

Kemper Hix Hendrick, Trustee
of the Kemphix Trust
Mail Tax Statements to:

Kemper Hix Hendrick, Trustee
of the Kemphix Trust

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'’S USE

Pursuant to NRS 239B.030, 1, the undersigned, affirm that this document submitted for recording does not contain
the social security number of any person or persons.

QUITCLAIM DEED

Kingsbury General Improvement District, a general improvement district and political
subdivision of the State of Nevada created pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 318,
hereby quitclaims to Kemper Hix Hendrick, Trustee of the Kemphix Trust all of its right, title and
interest in that certain real property situated in the County of Douglas, State of Nevada, more
particularly described as follows:

A portion of Lot 17, Kingsbury Highlands Unit No. 2, in the Northwest quarter of the
Southeast quarter of Section 24, T. 13 N., R. 18 E., M.D.B. & M., Douglas County, Nevada, more
particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the Northwest corner of Lot 17, Kingsbury Highlands, Unit No. 2. as shown
on that map recorded in File No. 19280, Records of Douglas County, Nevada; thence S. 89°44°26”
E., 42.0 feet; thence S. 0°15°34” W, 51.8 feet to a point on the Northeasterly line of Laurel Lane;
thence, along Laurel Lane N. 49°24°28” W., 33.5 feet; thence, along a 41 .48 foot radius curve to
the right, through an angle of 49°20°04” a distance of 35.81 feet to the point of the beginning.

Containing 1,380 square feet, more or less.
APN: 1318-24-710-001

TOGETHER with the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto belonging or
appertaining, and the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, rents, issues and profits
thereof.



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said premises, together with the appurtenances,
unto the said Grantee and to its successors and assigns forever.

Pursuant to NRS §111.312, this legal description was previously recorded on December
17, 1974, in the Official Records of Douglas County as Document No. 76978, Book 1274 page
497
DATED this dayof 2026.

Kingsbury General Improvement District

Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss:
COUNTY OF DOUGLAS )

On the day of 2026, before me, a Notary Public personally
appeared Derek Dombrook, General Manager proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that
he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument the
person or entities upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Notary Public



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made this____ day of February, 2026, by and between the Kingsbury
General Improvement District, a general improvement district and political subdivision of the
State of Nevada created pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 318, herein referred to as
“Seller,” and Kemper Hix Hendrick, Trustee of the Kemphix Trust referred to herein as “Buyer,”
and is based upon the following facts and circumstances:

WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of that real property located in Douglas County Nevada,
assessor’s parcel no. 1318-24-710-001, herein referred to as the “Property,” popularly known as
510 Laurel Lane, Stateline, Nevada; and

WHEREAS, Seller’s functions include serving as the water purveyor within its service
area, within which the Property is located; and

WHEREAS, Seller previously utilized the Property during its operations as water
purveyor; and

WHEREAS, Seller’s water service infrastructure has been modified such that Seller no
longer has any need for the Property, which is now abandoned; and

WHEREAS, maintaining the Property has become an unnecessary burden to Seller; and

WHEREAS, Buyer owns one or more parcels adjacent to the Property to which it has no
ready access, specifically, assessor parcel no.s 1318-24-601-001 and 131 8-24-601-002; and

WHEREAS, the Property is situated such that it could provide Buyer with adequate
access to its parcels; and

WHEREAS, Seller wishes to sell to Buyer, and Buyer wish to purchase from Seller, the
Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do agree as follows:

WITNESSETH
1. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated at this point as though set forth in
full.
2. Seller has made no representations of any type or kind regarding the condition of

the Property, the suitability of the Property for Buyer’ intended or other uses, or the zoning or
condition of title to the Property.

3. Buyer has fully inspected both the physical conditions and the title of the

Property. Buyer is satisfied with the Property’s condition as well as the condition of the
Property’s title. Buyer is further satisfied, based on its own inspections and due diligence, that

1|Page



the Property and its zoning is adequate for Buyer’s intended use. Buyer requires no further
inspections of the Property of any type or kind.

4. The Property has a total area of 1,380 square feet, more or less.

5. Seller’s board of trustees has previously determined by resolution that the
Property is too small to establish an economically viable use by anyone other than the owner of
the adjacent property, to wit: Buyer, and has further determined that the sale of the Property is in
the best interests of the Kingsbury General Improvement District.

6. In light of the determinations indicated in the previous paragraph, Seller has
determined that sale by auction is unnecessary.

7. Seller has complied with the provisions of NRS 318.512 through NRS 318.5126,
inclusive. Seller has determined that Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd is qualified to act as the sole
general appraiser related to this transaction.

8. Johnson Valuation Group has conducted and delivered its appraisal of the
Property. The report indicates an opinion of value of the Property, as of December 3, 2025, to
be Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00). Seller has previously determined the fair market value of
the Property to be $10,000.00.

9. Buyer hereby offers Seller the sum of Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) as
and for the purchase of the Property. Seller hereby accepts Buyer’s offer.

10. Reserved.

11. Buyer shall open escrow with Signature Title Company in Round Hill, Nevada,
within five days of full execution of this agreement. Buyer shall pay all (100%) costs and
expenses associated with escrow and otherwise related to this transaction, including but not
limited to escrow service fees. The parties agree that Seller shall bear no costs or expenses of
any type or kind related to this transaction.

12. Seller’s counsel has prepared this agreement. Buyer shall, through escrow and
prior to or at time of close, reimburse Seller for all of Seller’s costs, expenses and attorney’s fees
in any way related to this transaction and or related to the preparation of this Purchase and Sale
Agreement. Seller’s demand shall be limited to actual expenses incurred, without markup.
Close of escrow shall not occur unless and until all sums due Seller are held in escrow.

13.  Seller shall transfer its interests to Buyer without warranty of any kind, via quit
claim deed in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

14.  Buyer may, at its expense, purchase title insurance of a type and in an amount it
may wish.

2|Page



15.  As a governmental entity, Seller has no obligations related to property or other
taxes. Buyer shall therefore be solely responsible for any and all taxes, including but not limited
to real property transfer taxes, related to this transaction.

16.  Buyer shall deposit into escrow, upon opening, all funds necessary to close this
transaction at Buyer’s expense.

17.  Escrow shall close on or before March 20, 2026, unless otherwise agreed by the
parties.

18.  Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada, without giving effect to any choice
of law or conflict of law provisions. The parties hereby irrevocably consent and submit to the
exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the state courts located in Douglas County, Nevada for any
dispute, controversy, or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, its interpretation,
construction, performance, or breach.

19.  Attorney Fees and Costs. In the event of any dispute, controversy, or legal action
regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover
reasonable attorney's fees, court costs, and related expenses from the non-prevailing party, in
addition to any other relief to which such prevailing party may be entitled.

20.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including all attached and cross-referenced
appendices, exhibits, and documents incorporated by reference herein, if any, constitutes the
entire agreement between the parties with respect to the specific subject matter hereof and
supersedes all negotiations, prior discussions, and agreements, whether written or oral, with
respect to the subject matter hereof.

21.  Amendment and Modification. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the
terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless the same shall be in writing and
duly executed by authorized representatives of both parties. Each party confirms that it is not
relying upon any representations or warranties of the other party except as specifically set forth
herein.

22. Waiver. No waiver of any term, provision, or condition of this Agreement by
either party in one or more instances shall be deemed to be or construed as a further or
continuing waiver thereof. Any such waiver must be evidenced by an instrument in writing
executed by an officer or other authorized representative of the waiving party.

23.  Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. Electronic signatures, facsimile signatures, or signatures
delivered by electronic mail in PDF format shall be deemed original signatures for all purposes
under this Agreement.

3|Page



24.  Drafting. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted jointly by the
parties, and no provision herein shall be interpreted or construed for or against any party because
such party allegedly drafted or requested such provision or this Agreement as a whole. The
headings used in this Agreement are for reference and convenience only and shall not enter into
the interpretation of this Agreement.

25. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable in any respect under applicable law, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability
shall not affect any other provision hereof. This Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein, unless such construction
would constitute a substantial deviation from the general intent of the parties as reflected in this
Agreement.

SELLER:

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

By

Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

BUYER:
Kemphix Trust

By

Kemper Hix Hendrick, Trustee of the
Kemphix Trust

4|Page



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #12

TITLE: APPROVAL OF LIST OF CLAIMS

MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026

PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees review and approve the list of claims for January
17, 2026, to, February 11, 2026, from check number 66076 to 66160 for a total of $277,606.36.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Each month the district is billed from vendors for a variety of goods and services which are

necessary and appropriate for the district operations and administration. In exercising fiduciary
duties, these are reviewed and approved monthly by the Board of Trustees.

INCLUDED:
A. List of Claims for January 17 to February 11, 2026

Fund impacted by above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






KINGSRURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 1/17/2026 Through 2/11/202%6

Payee

Transaction
Description

Check Number Check Date
66076 1/20/2026
66077 1/20/2026
66078 1/20/2026
66079 1/20/2026
66080 1/20/2026
66081 1/20/2026
66082 1/20/2026
66083 1/20/2026
66084 1/20/2026
66085 1/20/2026
66085 1/20/2026
66085 1/20/202¢6
66085 1/20/2026
66085 1/20/2026
66086 1/20/2026
66087 1/20/2026
66088 1/20/2026
66088 1/20/2026
66089 1/20/2026
6090 4o LLOIY Miss
66095 1/20/2026
66096 1/20/2026
66097 1/20/2026

Date: 2/11/26 02:48:3%9 PM

JESSICA GRIME

EDWARD J. JOHNS

JOHN L. SHEARER

SARA NELSON

CYNTHIA M. TRIGG

ACCOLADES TROPHIES, ENGRAVING
AFLAC

AIRGAS UsA, LLC

DOUGLAS COUNTY CLERK-TREASURER
DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

EMPLOYERS ASSURANCE CO.

EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DIVISION

FLYERS -ENERGY LLC

FLYERS ENERGY LLC
GARRETT'S HANDYMAN SERVICE
Lrint ck#'s Yo.oled

HOMESERVE USA

JENSEN INFRASTRUCTURE

KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FINANCE

Employee: GRIME; Pay
Date: 1/20/2026

Employee: JOHNSE; Pay
Date: 1/20/2026

Employee: SHEARE; Pay
Date: 1/20/2026

Employee: SNELSO; Pay
Date: 1/20/2026

Employee: TRIGG; Pay
Date: 1/20/2026

NAME PLATES GIME,
SHEARER, & MOSS

ACCT FA935 LIFE
INSURANCE DORNBROOK,
JOHNS, MOSS, SIMAS,
W00

ACCT. 3255567 RENT
LIQUID IND LG 190-300
LT NITRO

25/26 VOTER
MAINTENANCE FEE 1,974
ACTIVE VOTERS

ENGINEERING SERVICES
FY2024 WATERLINE
IMPROVEMENT 12/2025

ENGINEERING SERVICES
FY25 ROAD REHAB &
REPLACEMENT 12/2025

ENGINEERING SERVICES
FY26 WATER RIGHT
SUPPORT PERMITS 23017

ENGINEERING SERVICES
MARKET LIFT STATION
PER 12/2025

GENERAL SERVICES &
TAHOE BEACH CLUB A/R
12/2025

WORKERS COMPENSATION
INSTALLMENT 08 02/2026

ACCT 009020400
VOUCHER 4035994
PIERSON UNEMPLOYMENT
12/27/25

FUEL REGULAR 120 GAL
DIESEL 60 GAL

FUEL REGULAR 95 GAL
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
OUTSIDE LIGHTS

LOSS & LINE INSURANCE
12/2025

TRUCK #1323 CAST IRON
FRAME NC-9100 AND
CAST IRON COVER

ACCT. 3691777720
KONICA LEASE 1/2026

Check Amount

739.12
73%.12
739.12
739.12
739.12

60.00

487.30

1,534.74

296.10

2,522.25

3,609.50

2,255.50

6,646.50

1,801.25

1,123.00

439.61

720.16

383.59
75.00

1,534.40

996.00

431.57

Page:

1



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 1/17/2026 Through 2/11/2026

LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC.

SOUTH LAKE TAHOE ACE HARDWARE

SOUTH LAKE TAHOE ACE HARDWARE

ROUND HILL GENERAL IMPR DIST

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATICN

Check Number Check Date Payee

66098 1/20/2026

66099 1/20/2026 MANCHESTER ENTERPRISES
66100 1/20/2026

66100 1/20/2026

66101 1/20/2026 MINDEN LAWYERS, LLC
66102 1/20/2026 ALIECIA ROSE MOSS
66103 1/20/2026 PAMELA JOANNE NANCE
66104 1/20/2026

66105 1/20/2026

66105 1/20/2026

66105 1/20/2026

66106 1/20/2026 SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE
66106 1/20/2026 SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE
66106 1/20/2026 SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE
66106 1/20/2026 SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE
66107 1/20/2026

66107 1/20/2026

66107 1/20/2026

66107 1/20/2026

66107 1/20/2026

66107 1/20/2026

66107 1/20/2026

Date: 2/11/26 02:48:39 FM

Transaction
Description

Check Amount

ACCT. 71572887
INDUSTRIAL ACETYLENE
IND HIGH PRESSURE

SNOW REMOVAL SERVICE
1/1 TO 1/10/2026

FUEL TANK GEN AT OPS
YARD PRCPANE

TRUCK #0808 HILLMAN
FASTENERS

LEGAL FEES KIMBERLY
FLOOD & KEMPER A/R
12/2025

36 GALLON FUEL TANK
W/12 VOLT TRANSFER
PUMP, HOSE WITH NOZZL

298 KINGSBURY
JANITORIAL 4
CLEANINGS 12/2025

COMMERCIAL
CONSUMPTION DORLA CT
12/1 TO 12/31/25

COLIFORMS-P/A &
COLIFORMS-QT

COLIFORMS~QT

HAAS5, HALOACETIC
ACIDS (5) & TTHM,
TOTAL TRIHALOMETHANES

ACCT. 10-17862 3 165
TERRACE VIEW DR
SERVICE 12/18/25

ACCT. 10-17862 3 165
TERRACE VIEW DR
SERVICE 9/23/25

ACCT. 10-32535 6 801
KINGSBURY GRADE
SERVICE 12/18/25

ACCT. 10-41521 5 160
PINE RIDGE/298
KINGSBURY SERVICE
12725

910000322763 3
BUCHANAN RD PUMP

910000561117 698
KINGSBURY GRADE

910000561180 5
KIMBERLY BROOKE LN
PUMP

910000561274 4 ANDRIA
DR (384) PUMP

910000561387 2
TERRACE VIEW DR PUMP

910000799713 160
PINERIDGE DR 1

910000799716 298
KINGSBURY CIR

230.01

76,950.00

25.99

6.76

4,670.00

500.00

800.00

106.60

378.00

81.00

1,030.00

81.58

80.36

80.36

362.12

63.24

114.83

98.64

89.38

1985.55

333.09

112.77

Page:

2



Check Number

66107

66107

66108

66108

66108

66109
66110

66110

66111

66112

66112

66113

66114

66115

66116

66117

66118

66119

66120

66121

66122

66123

66124

66125

Check Date

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register — LIST OF CLAIMS
From 1/17/2026 Through 2/11/2026

Payee

Transacticn
Description

Check Amount

1/20/2026

1/20/2026

1/20/2026

1/20/2026

1/20/2026

1/20/2026
1/20/2026

1/20/2026

1/20/2026

1/20/2026

1/20/2026

1/20/2026

1/23/2026

1/23/2026

1/23/2026

1/23/2026

1/23/2026

1/23/2026

1/23/2026

1/23/2026

1/23/2026

1/23/2026

1/21/2026

1/21/2026

Date: 2/11/26 02:48:39 PM

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

STRATIS PRINT COMMUNICATIONS

TAHOE BASIN CONTAINER

TAHOE BASIN CONTAINER

TAHOE POCL SERVICE

TECH TASTIC LLC

TECH TASTIC LLC

TROJAN TECHNOLOGIES CORP

JUDITH BREWER

DERREK DORNBROOCK

BRANDY JOHNS

MICHELLE M. MCCOY

SHANE T. MORTENSEN

BYRAN D. MOSS

TIMOTHY E. ROBERTS

JEFF M. SIMAS

LEIGH C. STANTON

JEFF T. WOOD

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

910000799717 298
KINGSBURY CIR UP

910000799718 298
KINGSBURY CIR DOWN

ACCT. 360 MEDICAL
INSURANCE BREWER,
DORNBROOK, MOSS

ACCT. 360 MEDICAL
INSURANCE ROBERTS

ACCT. 841 MEDICAL
INSURANCE ESENARRO,
MCKAY, RUNTZEL, VOSBUR

#9 ENVELOPES QTY 5,000
ACCT. 50-6791 3 801
KINGSBURY GRADE BEAR
PROOF RENT 12/2025

ACCT. 50-9256 4 160
PINERIDGE DR/298
KINGSBURY GRADE 12/25

STATIONS 3 & 5 CASE
OF CHLORINE QTY 4

MANAGED SERVICE SUITE
01/2026

MANAGED SERVICES
SUITE 12/2025

SHIPPING FOR UVT
ANLAYZER REPAIR

Employee: BREWER; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

Employee: DORNBR; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

Employee: JOHNS; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

Employee: MCCOY; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

Employee: MORTEN; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

Employee: MOSS; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

Employee: ROBERT; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

Employee: SIMAS; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

Employee: STANTO; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

Employee: WOOD; Pay
Date: 1/23/2026

EMPLOYEE AND
EMPLOYERS PERS
CONTRIBUTION 1/26

ACCT. 360 MEDICAL
INSURANCE BREWER,
DORNBROOK, MOSS

32.

207.

690.
30.

33.

258.

1,678.

1,150.

81.

2,323.

3,852

2,066.

1,610.

3,694.

1,501.

1,727

1,614,
1,456.
1,874.

26,165.

4,188.

41

11

.00

.00

.00

66
00

50

00

55

00

00

83

.20

45

39

68

55

.97

77

65

34

43

69

Page:

3



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 1/17/2026 Through 2/11/2026

Transaction

Check Number Check Date Payee Description

66125 1/21/2026 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG ACCT. 841 MEDICAL
INSURANCE ESENARRO,
MCKAY, RUNTZEL, VOSBUR

66126 2/6/2026 JUDITH BREWER Employee: BREWER; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66127 2/6/2026 DERREK DORNBROOK Employee: DORNBR; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66128 2/6/2026 BRANDY JOHNS Employee: JOHNS; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66129 2/6/2026 MICHELLE M. MCCOY Employee: MCCOY; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66130 2/6/2026 SHANE T. MORTENSEN Employee: MORTEN; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66131 2/6/2026 BYRAN D. MOSS Employee: MOSS; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66132 2/6/2026 TIMOTHY E. ROBERTS Employee: ROBERT; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66133 2/6/2026 JEFF M. SIMAS Employee: SIMAS; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66134 2/6/2026 LEIGH C. STANTON Employee: STANTO; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66135 2/6/2026 JEFF T. WOOD Employee: WOOD; Pay
Date: 2/6/2026

66136 2/6/2026 AT & T MOBILITY ACCT. 287301170124
CELL PHONE AND TABLETS

66137 2/6/2026 BATTERIES PLUS BULBS #350 OFFICE 12V B8AH LEAD

66138 2/6/2026 JUSTYN ANDREW BREWER TRUCK #9007 REPAIRS
REAR WHEEL SEAL &
CYLINDER, BRAKES KIT

66139 2/6/2026 JAMES CAUDLE & SHERYL SNOW REFUND ACCT. 1845 305
OLYMPIC CT #A
OVERPAID CLOSED ESCROW

66140 2/6/2026 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS ACCT 8411100140191184
160 PINE RIDGE DR

66140 2/6/2026 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS ACCT.
8411100140031448 169
TERRACE VIEW DR

66140 2/6/2026 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS ACCT.
8411100140098488 97
BEACH CLUB DR

66141 2/6/2026 GLENN COLBATH REFUND ACCT. 1612 723
GARY LN #A OVERPAID
CLOSED ESCROW 1/26

66142 2/6/2026 BEATRIZ HERNANDEZ 160 PINERIDGE 5
CLEANINGS JANUARY 2026

66143 2/6/2026 HYDRO SPECIALTIES COMPANY REPLACEMENT REGISTERS
& END POINTS QTY 100

66144 2/6/2026 IMMENSE IMPACT, LLC RESTORING DELETED
DOCUMENTS ON WEB SITE

66145 2/6/2026 STATIONARY ENGINEERS LOCAL 39 LOCAL 3% EMPLOYEE
HEALTH/LIFE PREMIUMS
3/1/26

66146 2/6/2026 TUOE STATIONARY ENGINEERS LO39 EMPLOYEE UNION DUES

Date: 2/11/26 02:48:39 PM

02/2026

1,888.

2,323.

3,852.

1,931.

1,601.

3,333

2,264,

1,727.

1,614.

1,456.

1,862,

640.

22.

1,421.

361.

154.

150.

160.

20.

2,500.

22,352.

75.

18,760.

564.

Check Amount

19

83

20

27

24

.23

14

97

77

65

48

99

45

40

86

99

00

00

05

00

00

00

00

77

Page:

4



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 1/17/2026 Through 2/11/2026

Payee

Transaction
Description

Check Amount

Check Number Check Date
66147 2/6/2026
66147 2/6/2026
66148 2/6/2026
66149 2/6/2026
66150 2/6/2026
66151 2/6/2026
66152 VOIDEN
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026
66153 2/6/2026

Date: 2/11/26 02:48:39 PM

KINGSBURY AUTOMOTIVE & SUPPLY

KINGSBURY AUTOMOTIVE & SUPPLY

MEEKS BUILDING CENTER

SHANE MORTENSEN

PAMELA JOANNE NANCE

NEXTIVA, INC.

AJV (;/%C(f>y

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

SHOP BATTERY TERMINAL
SPRAY

TRUCK #0808 BONDED
WIRE & FUSEHOLD

CONCRETE REPAIR
BROKEN MANHOLE COLLER

MEAL PER DIEM CLA
VALVE CLASS NEWPORT
BEACH 2/9 TO 2/13/26

298 KIGNSBURY GRADE 4
CLEANINGS

ACCT. 3680856
DISTRICT OFFICE PHONE
LINES 2/2026

1000044046907329692
399 EUGENE DR

1000044086803270814
801 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT LIGHTS .

1000044086803274204
GALAXY LN PUMP

1000044086803294236
160 PINERIDGE DR UNIT
LIGHTS

1000044086803297452
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT ADOWN

1000044086803297460
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT B-UP

1000044086803297478
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT CDOWN

1000044086803297486
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT DDOWN

1000044086803297718
403 KIMBERLY BROOKE LN

1000044086803301502
504 LAUREL LN UNIT
PMPSTA

1000044086803301840
EASY ST UNIT N/T134

1000044086803304290
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
Fl

1000044086803305073
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
PMPPLS

1000044086803320205
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
PMPHS2

1000044086803320221
314 ANDRIA WAY UNIT
BRADBU

14.

27

73.

348.

800.

259.

604.

34,

109.

11.

79.

291.

81,

85.

243.

36.

39.

19.

50.

5,479.

1,179.

59

.78

62

00

00

38

57

13

67

35

96

61

31

46

32

64

36

66

51

81

53

Page:

5



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 1/17/2026 Through 2/11/2026

Transaction

Check Number Check Date Payee Description Check Amount

66153 2/6/2026 NV ENERGY 1000044086803320239 1,837.52
698 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNTI NTFRS

66153 2/6/2026 NV ENERGY 1000044086803320247 1,990.22
176 BUCHANAN RD UNIT
PMPHS 3

66153 2/6/2026 NV ENERGY 1000044086804621577 55.97
801 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT B

66153 2/6/2026 NV ENERGY 1000044086805221187 588.86
180 LAKE PKWY UNIT
PUMP

66153 2/6/2026 NV ENERGY 1000044086807006297 5,825.43
97 BEACH CLUB

66153 2/6/2026 NV ENERGY 1000044086808604306 201.49
160 PINERIDGE DR

66153 2/6/2026 NV ENERGY 1000044087003270836 36.64
801 KINGSBURY GRADE

66153 2/6/2026 NV ENERGY 1000044771003320176 1,216.06
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
DISPMP

66154 2/6/2026 TIMOTHY ROBERTS REIMBURSE NDEP 150.00
RECEIPT D1 CERTIFICATE

66154 2/6/2026 TIMOTHY ROBERTS REIMBURSE NDEP 150.00
RECEIPT T1 CERTIFICATE

66155 2/6/2026 SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES BROMATE 175.00

66155 2/6/2026 SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES COLIFORMS-PB/A & 216.00
COLIFORMS-QT

66155 2/6/2026 SGS SILVER STATE LABRORATORIES COLIFORMS-QT 243.00

66155 2/6/2026 SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES LEAD COPPER DW 900.00

66156 2/6/2026 SPRINGBROOK SOFTWARE COMPANY COMPUTER EXP/ACH & CC 1,783.00
CHARGES 1/2026

66157 2/6/2026 SUMMIT PLUMBING LLC CHECKED PUMP STATION 197.60
AND CLEARED SNOW

66157 2/6/2026 SUMMIT PLUMBING LLC SEWER PUMP STATION 7,694.77

Lo 15T Void € US Banlk Visa Rewourd S MAINTENANCE 2/2026

66159 2/6/2026  US BANK VISA REWARDS BJ AATRIX 2025 W-2 & 50.00
W-3 ELECTRONIC FILING

66159 2/6/2026 US BANK VISA REWARDS BJ AATRIX FORMS 34.45
1099-NEC FILING

66159 2/6/2026 US BANK VISA REWARDS BM AZUL STATION #5 46.75

PUMP CONTROL VALVE
REPAIR METAL CONDUIT,

66159 2/6/2026 US BANK VISA REWARDS BM CAPITAL CITY AUTO 8.67
VACTOR & SWEEPERS
DRIVER INSPECT REPORT

66159 2/6/2026 US BANK VISA REWARDS BM HARBOR FREIGHT 39.99
HARD CASE TO SHIP UV
TRANS ANALYZER CELL

66159 2/6/2026 US BANK VISA REWARDS JB PORT OF SUBS BOARD 70.00
MEETING SANDWICHES
66159 2/6/2026 US BANK VISA REWARDS JB PORT OF SUBS 70.00

EMERGENCY BOARD
MEETING SANDWICHES

Date: 2/11/26 02:48:39 FM Page: 6



Check Number Check Date

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66159

66158

66159

66160

Report Total

Date: 2/11/26 02:48:39 PM

2/6/2026
2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

2/6/2026

Payee

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 1/17/2026 Through 2/11/2026

Transaction
Description

Us

uUs

Us

us

us

Us

us

us

Us

uUs

us

us

Us

us

Us

us

us

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VIsSA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VIsSA

VISA

VISA

JEFF WOOD

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

JB QDOBA CATERING
CHRISTMAS LUNCH

JB SAFEWAY BIRTHDAY
GIFT CARDS

JB SAFEWAY CHRISTMAS
LUNCH SELTZER &
COOKIES

JB ZOOM SCHEDULER
1/13 TO 1/21/26

JW LOWES STATIONS 3&5
KEMTEK LIQUID
CHLORINE QTY 8

1.S AMAZON 305X TONER
FOR HP400 PRINTER

LS FLAGS USA AMERICAN
FLAG 4' X 6"

LS SAFEWAY GARBAGE
BAGS

LS STAPLES BILLING
PAPER QTY 2 CARTONS

LS STAPLES MAKERS,
COPY PAPER, SALES
ORDERS, STICKY NOTES,
S

LS VISTA PRINT
BUSINESS CARDS SHANE
& BYRAN

ME PERSONNAL CHARGES
PRIME VIDEO $18.98% &
AMAZON $61.36

SM CHEVERON TRUCK
#2533 FUEL REGULAR
10.407 GAL

SM HACH STATION 1
SPEC COLOR STD, DPD
CHLORINE-LR

SM HARBOR FREIGHT
TARPS, DIAMOND BRAID,
NITRILE GLOVES

SM LOWE RETURNED
STATIONS 3&5 KEMTEK
LIQUID CHLORINE QTY 9

SM LOWES STATIONS 3&5
KEMTEK LIQUID
CHLORINE QTY 10

REIMBURSE CARSON
VALLEY HEALTH RECEIPT
DOT EXAM

Check Amount

344.00
119.80

10.99

89.44

203.27
77.92
17.13

117.27

226.60
56.73
81.35
32.25

306.05
78.95

(100.62)

111.80

100.00

277,606.36

Page: 7






MISSING OR VOIDED CHECKS

DATE CHECKS PAYEE MISSING/VOIDED
01/20/26 66090 MISS PRINTED CHECK NUMBERS VOIDED
01/20/26 66091 MISS PRINTED CHECK NUMBERS VOIDED
01/20/26 66092 MISS PRINTED CHECK NUMBERS VOIDED
01/20/26 66093 MISS PRINTED CHECK NUMBERS VOIDED
01/20/26 66094 MISS PRINTED CHECK NUMBERS VOIDED
02/06/26 66152 NV ENERGY VOIDED
02/06/26 66158 US BANK VISA REWARDS VOIDED






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #13

TITLE: REVIEW AND RECEIVE QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2025

MEETING DATE: February 18,2026
PREPARED BY: Derck Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review and file financial statements October-December 2025
(not an action item)

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: District financial statements are prepared for each month of
the year. Although monthly statements will lag a month or two due to the pending processing time,
these provide the Trustees with insights into the financial well-being of the agency.

INCLUDED:
A. Financial Statements October-December 2025

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






ANN4d A9 ANV A3aNIGWO0O
S3HNLIANIdX3 ANV
JNN3IAIY 40 INIWILVIS

‘NOILISOd HSVO
G20C 4390100






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

- GENERAL 46%
CASH POSITION WATER 29%
OCTOBER 2025 'SEWER 20%
- SNOW 5%
BEGINNING | _ ENDING
FUND - BALANCE _ TRANSFERS ADJUST. RECEIPTS CHECKS BALANCE
GENERAL FUND ) | $ 8025,880.83 $  (12,866.33)| $ 17911 [$ 14747594 | § (39,971.29)| $ 8,120,698.26
[RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | §  443,013.27 | $  12,905.06 $ - 1% - 1S - |'$ 455918.33 |
GENERAL INVESTMENT S 724,909.32 | $ (38.73)] $ - $ 536125 | § - |38 730,231.84
GF TOTAL B $ 9,306,848.43 |
WATER FUND $ 3,887,210.74 [ $ (203,010.92)| $ (37.61)| $ 461,279.57 | § (203,915.33)| § 3,941,526.45
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  714,004.34 | § 16,629.40 | $ - $ - $ - $ 730,723.74
WATER INVESTMENT $ 636,509.75 | $ (20.20)| $ . $ 337165 | § - $ 639,861.20
KGID/TRPA RESTRICTED (starion4emPs) | §  45430.00 | $ - |9 - |$ - |8 - |$ 4543000
DIST DEBT RESERVE $§  220,567.45|$ 74,023.68 | $ - $ - $ - $ 294,501.13
TREAT DEBT RESERVE $ 33485150 |$ 112,378.04 $ S $ - $ - $ 447,220.54
CAP IMPROV. RESERVE $ - |8 - |8 - |8 - |8 i >
I WF TOTAL B $ 6,099,362.06
I |
SEWER FUND $ 411833279 [ $ (638.85)| $ (77.09)| $ 171,186.75 | § (376,320.08)| $ 3,912,483.52
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $ 18,489.53 | § 672.81|$ - $ - $ - $ 19,162.34
SEWER INVESTMENT $ 36854598 | $ (33.96) $ 2,294.62 | § - |8 370,806.64
SF TOTAL $ 4,302,452.50
[SNOW REV. FUND $ 72834462 % (6,713.05)| $ (64.41)|$ 72,278.18 [ $ (139,320.14)| $  654,525.20 |
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | §  225,830.16 | $ 6,732.41 | % - |8 - 13 - |$  232,562.57 |
|SNOW INVESTMENT $ 25,191.02 | § (19.36)| § - $ 379.44 | $ - $ 25,561.10
SNOW TOTAL o $ 912,638.87 |
298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL $ 29459902 | $ - $ - $ 8,044.97 | $ (1,659.80)| $  300,984.19 |
80 RENTAL TOTAL - |$ 300,984.19 |
[GRAND TOTALS $ 20,811,80032 | $ (0.00)| $ - $ 87167237 |9 (761,186.64)| $ 20,922,286.05
[CHECKING -
i US BANK $ 752,566.20 | $  (499,886.59) $ 794,925.34 | $ (761,186.64)| S  286/418.31
US BANK MMA S 11225 | $ (113.41) $ 116 | § - $ 0.00
MORTON CAPITAL MMA $ 5043.82 [$  500,000.00 $ 11,40896 [§ - |$ 516450.78 |
L 4.25% FIRST FNDTN BANK S 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
~ 4.70% FLAGSTAR BANK $  250,000.00 | $ - B $  250,000.00
5.10% MORGAN STANLEY BANK $ 250,000.00 [ $ - $  250,000.00
5.20% BANK HAPOALIM NEW YORK $ 250,000.00 | $ - S 250,000.00
4.00% NORTHEAST BANK CD $  250,000.00 | $ = $  250,000.00
_ 4.60% JP MORGAN CHASE §  250,000.00 | $ (250,000.00) B _ $ B
4.40% WASHINGTON FED BANK $ 250,000.00 | $  (250,000.00) $ - $ - S -]
LOCAL GOVT POOLED 4.2710344% $ 18,304,078.05 | $  500,000.00 $ 6533891|% = $ 18,869,416.96 |
|GRAND TOTALS $ 20,811,800.32 | $ = $ - $ 87167237 | $ (761,186.64)| $ 20,922,286.05

Page 1






1 #8eg

Wd LT90:1 9T02/6/2 180

%SY'E9 61'690'998'9 00°L18°81808 (61°25¢'v8) 00'002'G£0°F 1922086 ¥5'96E'Sh 00'EE1SL6 16'625°066 SINNIAIY [e10L
%1099 STOEB OIS 00788 1ELL (FATER ) 007552092 §Iv0'829°C 86°510°8t 00°ErZ 59 W61 L9 §334 ¥3sn (el
%9999 025981 0086L2 020 00°€E6 087¢¢6 020 00°eEC Uzeee JONVHNSNI NI 3NNAYIS
%2€ 99 2 00801 00'0£5'G4 9L'1S 00'8LL'S 9,672 1861 00'762'} 18'60€"} JONVHNSNI SSOT INMAY3S
%1799 [TTA 00'256'} 652 00'8v9 65559 86k 0029 86°E9L 3NNIATY NINGY INITAY3S
%66°}. 61'L20'6 000092} (61129) 00°002'% 18925 (61968} 00'050°L 18°€51 INNIATY 334 YIISNVHL
%7 59 (00886'L1) 002184 00'688'%} 00ZLY'SH 00°00€°0E 000 000 000 5334 NOILOANNOD
%0005 00°0vC 00°08F 0008 00091 00'0¥2 00'0% 00°0F 00°08 §334 M03HO NUNLY
%9197 1E'IEV'Y 00009 69'896'1 00'002' 698016 (boose) 00'008 00085 $30UYHO A0MAY3S
%61'€L B2'898'SY 00'066'L9 (BL0Y0'Y) 00'299'02 z1z9'el 9928} 00'991'S 99°6GE'S $334 ¥3SN NO S3ILTYNID
%40'99 STTISYE 00'02-'p} (szovze) 00'7581S SLL09'8Y (0e268'¢) 00Z16'6 0L%20' NOILJIWNSNOD T¥iDHINNOD
%.9'99 8845229 00'LEL46 zvl 00'82€'16 2VBLE'LE (zz0) 00'6v8'L LI NOILO3LOYd Fdid IIDUINWOD
%.9'99 80°€26°4E 00'Z8L b2y {801 00709285} 2685285} (z0) 00'G95'6E £L95°6E TIOUINNOT - $334 1SN
%95'99 08'555'69 00'76¥' 01 02’801 00°0E8'e 0Z'866'7E 8592 008028 SeHEL'S NOILO310Md JdI4 WILNICISIY
%08'25 1E°61L0'88 0000022 (eees'el 00025'L7 £9°096'€E {r)'9282) 00°009'¢ 98 CLL NOILAWNSNOD € ¥3LL TVILN3AISTY
%8E' LS LL9EB'YE 00'000'89 (£2950°) 00'024'0F £2'690'6C (Le'80v'2) 00'09L'Y £9°066Z NOILJWNSNOD Z ¥3IL TYILN3ISTY
%9229 L' 00°00'55€ {Lrepi'sy) 00'892'6t} (A TAR 18 (15'880'9) 00'02€'22 67 182'12 NOILJNNSNOD | ¥3IL TYILNIAISTY
9%64°99 02°¢LL'502'y 00'284'962'9 loz'246'2) 00'}£6'860°C 08101602 (8101072 0026L'725 812428 TYILLNIQISTY - $334 ¥3SN
$334 ¥3sn
%LLPe 84°L26'vb9 00'£10°966 wvEeT 00'4516¥E TYSSFISE o0zt o0'glg’os SEECTY8 SNO3NVTIIOSIN [E10L
[wzer TR WEIE o W00 T STT% 544 THTE IONIATY HIHLO
%129 99'029'29 00°292°001 (99'26t) 00'985'€€ vE'0rL'ee (85084) 00268 Trove's JNOONI TYLNTY
%0007 00008 00052} (0005t 00°006 00052 000 00°0 000 334 MIIAZY NV
%019 05'742'6€S 00'9¥6'4¥8 058512 00'€69°082 0G'1E2'20E 926097 00'€94°04 9,200 SLINIFNLSIANI NO LSIHILN
%00°00} 000002 00°000'6Z (00°000'52) 0000052 000 000 000 000 INVHO Vo3 304N0S LNIOd NON 61E
SNO3NVTTIOSIN
%G5'ES 96°S09°61LL'L 00'228°060° (9g°022'28) 00'G64£20°L Yo81Z'HL6 65°120°08 00'220'652 65860682 SAXVL 0L
%2999 8979955 00767 €08 &Y 00°0E8°Z9C EIEEIRN o 0085699 £875699 NOILNBRILSIO XVL 3LVLS
%80°GY £L758'59Z 00'€8268S (e2£p0'2) 00'226'LvE 12'826'E2E 8¥'5e8'el 00'29¢'88 8Y°208'204 dN-IHVIN WTIOTYAQY
9%68 66 99'659°9 00'299'9 (98'29) 00'6L L (o002 00'0Z 000 XV1 ALH3d0O¥d TYNOSHd
%80'GH 60'9Z¢'L1E 00'8£8'069 (60°09}'82) 00'819'L0v 16'157'628 82°902'94 00'Z£9'€0} 8T8E8'6LL SIAXYL WIHOTVAQY
$3XVL
SANNIATY
Buujeway
1oBpng douenep jefipng ?JueueA 10Bpng QLA lenjoy aaueuep Jebpng 1efipng jemoy
530 Jueaseg jefipng |e30) GZAd [B10] 1e6png QLA Jeg) Juauny polad juaun)  polad judun)  polied jusuny

14vid

SZ0T/LE/0L Ysnoiyl 5202/1L/01L woid

SIUNLIANIdX3 pue SINNIAIYH J0 INIWILVIS
12141S1a INIWIAOHdWI TYHINIO AUNESONDI




7 o8eq

Wd LT:%0°1 9207/6/T =1ed

%1566 1860562 00'0£9'62 |8'€20'62 00°002'62 61924 18'€26'L 00050C 61°9Z4 SNOIS B ST00L 'S3NddNnS G13id
%2589 662710} 00Z08'7) 66'€E9 00'€62'S 10'659'y (80°'69) 00'6¥9 80¥iL TYINIY INFWDIND3I
%0L'2L £9ZVL'TLL 00062967 €9'260'21 0000218 1817919 98'LLL 0} 005828} vieLo's SulvdIH/ LNIVW/S3INddNS 'dIND3
%LY'79 LS '6YE°0L 00°€S0'0k 15'260'8 00'kL'el 6Y°80L'S 00'69 0099 000 SNOILJINISENS 8 SANA
%20°9¢ 0b'SL'%E 00°248'10} (06°529'21) 00'95¢' 2y 06'1E1'S9 (Gree9'sy) 00'999'}} SY'862°4C ISNIdX3 ¥3LNdWOD
%9256 15'982'29 0070412 16722802 00'669'€2 eV I98'C 82°050'G 00426'S [4AY2] "LNIVN ONY SHIvd3d ONIaTing
%0299 £6'210'69 00052704 (20160 00'9vL'E L07262'SE (89'182) 00°/89'8 89'89Y'6 SIDUVHI XNV
%00°00} 00°90¢€'22 0090€'22 000 000 000 000 000 000 1830 avd
%1205 00°€29'ErT 00'9Z's8Y 00'000'} 00'629'2¥e 00'€29°1¥C 05°005 00ZIE"ZH 05'L18'02) SIN3WSS3ISSY vS110a
%0008 05'6LL'vTr 006588 050 00°081'v2h 0562} 'vZy §2'0 00'060'24e SI680'2HE 0B W YLVH0dd ¥S1100
/NI 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIO! AA/ILNY TYAOW3Y MONS
%¥e 76 00°089°0L 00°000'62 00089 00°000'S 00°02€'y 00089 00:000'S 00°02€'t ONIONYS - TYAONIY MONS
%9E'¥6 00°02€" 162 001000622 (00°089'¢) 00'000°0% 00°089°CY {00'089'€) 00°000'0% 00'089'EY ONIMOTd - TYAOWTE MONS
%2628 5059566 000006y 5069022 00°005'2¢ S6VEY'S 00'000'2 000002 000 S31ddNS ¥ JONYNILNIVIN VO
%19'96 00'12EB} 00°000°0¢ 00°1Z€'9L 00°000°2} 00’649 00°00S 00'00S 000 JOVNIVHA ANV NOISOY3
%€ 98 GL'88.L'7L 00°002'58 GLIZe'9k 00°'€EL'82 STLLYTL SL08L') 00'850°2 TAIVIAS DNIAIAENS 2 ONIHIINIONI
%0000} 00°00¥'Z4 0000724 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILVILODAN YOBY1 VoI
%S4'95 69'988°9¢ 00000'59 (T 7 ) 00'999'12 SLeLL'ee {0s5'422'2) 00°24t'S 05'169'2 oI
%9.'6% ehs'Ie 00°00v'e9 801291 00'995'8Y 81°658'1E (81e88'LL) 00'2.6'61 81'658'1E ONILNNOODY
SISNIAXI ONILVYALO
%9492 19°88Y'ov6’l 00'9.9'G6SZ 19626952 00°291'ev8 6€°28)°685 29'888°6Y 00°E2y'8IZ 8£'VE5'891 S3ISNIdX3 AILVIIN TI0UAVd (EI0L
% Ve 7S 057287 00°00€S) 05059 100631 055ere) 00197 00Ty 000 3SNIdX JONVMOTIV ¥vD
% 6L GL'02E'S 000029 SIv8E'} 00'79.C G866} £8°Ivl 00°16¢ 216vL SASNIdXI TIOUAVd ¥IHIO
%E9'L9 RGLESI 0000522 98'Le 00°967'2 vLvez'L (G1°280') 00€/8'} G1'686'C ISNIdX3 IAYIT AINHIJY
%99'€8 LSy 19 0026508 7E'€69EL 00'098'9¢ 89'99} 'L £6'eLY'e 005149 29'162'€ ISN3dX3 8340
%LL'9L 2L020'6 0009244 Lon'e 00'088'G 80 6ELT 000 000 000 SWYHO4INN
%0000} 00°/86'6} 002866} 00/959'9 00959'9 000 00'599't 00599} 000 SLI43IN3E INFNAOTHNENN
%9988 12608k 00'0ZEE} LU 00'0£6'Z 62°045'} 18185 00664 ehile SlIS - S1I43N38 33A01dIN3
%LpC8 0LZLL0LE 00°'60¢'926 0£°762'65 00'6e'szH 0£'96)'99 08°001'2 00'8S€°LE 0z 4527 S¥3d - S1I143N33 33A0TdNW3
%9 LL BL'ELL'20Y 00'02£'925 6176695 00'95¢'54) 18'959'81} 2V0z'Le 00'9¥5'2S 98'LVELE SNI "Q3NW - SLI43NIE I3A0TdWI
%L¥eL 8508294 00'69¥'2Z 85'G62'} 00°08%'2 Zr8L'e 08'00¢ 00°028'} 02'695') OIQ3IN/VOIL - S1I43NT8 3FA0THINT
%929 Y 110"z} 00112564 BY106'L 00'120'59 15691'C9 (1e8ELt) 00'29Z'0} 1890012 301440 - TIONAVd
%YL 12°208'16¥ 00952189 11662 LE 008¥2'222 £7'8v6'681 (21°85E) 00°€18'9S LVLAVLS JONVNILNIVIN - TIOHAVd
%2264 29'829'29r 00900785 29'882°cL 00'999'¥6} 84812k 95'160'22 00'299'8% #¥'545°9¢ HIDVYNYIN - TIOHAYd
SISNIAX3 AILY1T TI0YAVd
SNLIANIIE
Buureway
1oBpng SouBMEA jebpng 93UBlEA 198png QLA |enjoy aouepep 3sbpng 1obpng jenjoy
€10 Jus0sag 306png jejoL GZAd [EJ0L 3ebipng gLA deaj Jusuny pouaqjuauny  poldduaun)  poliad juelnd

14vdd

G202/1LE/0L 43N0yl GZ0Z/L/01 wold

SIYNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY JO INTWILVILS
LOI4.1S1a LNJWIAOUINI TVHINID AHNGSONDI




¢ afed

N LT 0T 920Z/6/T 1A

%E9°EL (ze'per'102'S) (00152211 76'2L2'089 (00pes‘125'2) (80915'168'L) 8E'TL6 VY (00°566'1.08) 9¢"118'6S) STANLIANIAXI YIA0 3NNIATFY S530X3
KAL) TTFOSerier 00895166 2% TPOELTTL G0TeI555 S EITO0 S VESIS oy (TN 14 SFeeE0E8 STUNLIONIdXT [e30L
%1059 PR IN A 000807095 I 714%4 0095€ IS E ET16865EE 35162868 00°7v188E (85709°01) SIASNIIXT YIHLO [EI0L
V6 70 801882809 00SIEISE 6 8095602 00050°C6v € CEEBYEOC E £8BI086E 000ZE 8% (€8°869'6¢) AVILNO VLIV
%8829 60°L05' 194 00'G16'262 50'868' 00'90€'6L 16'20v'9L S1Z6L 00£28'64 GZ'¥60'61 3SNIXT LSIHALNI
%0000} {oo-o0z'e) {pooz'e) 00'0 000 000 000 00'0 000 T¥S0dSIA NO SSOVNIVD
SASNIAX3 ¥3HIO
%4919 £2°128°196° 00°218¥58°s seroLz'she 00°192'8€1'2 19786'268°} (9c90°2) 00855049 9£°229'2L9 SASNAJXT ONILYYIO (B0l
%5959 ZL950SI0E 00S0LGF5 8¢ 089°S1 DOBIESIS STBI0IES €z 955 ) 00cre ezl TCBEEEET JSNIdXI NOLLYIOFYdIa
%.9°99 9L'9EY'S 005548 oLl 0002LZ ¥Z28LLT w0 00089 95629 SANOE 40 NOILVZILHOWY
%62 €S 86'GHE Py 00'957'28 (z0'9s9'0l) 00'%8Y'22 Z00p1'8E (81'6€9'6) 00'428'9 810152} dX3 W3LSAS INFWLYIHL HILYM
%1596 98'686'7. 00°00L°LL 98'681'€Z 00°006'6Z V01T 69BYL'S 00'524'9 [f474] JSNIAXT WILSAS LSIC d3LVM
%810} 00°€88' 00'005'81 00°€88'L 000058} 00'£19'9) 000 000 000 INTFWOYNYIN QIHS HIMISAHILYM
%¥6 Ly 00628 00'€85'21 {00'162°€) 00'€98'S 00546 (©01L2e) 00997t 00'9L'y ONITIWYS/ONIHOLINOW ¥3LVM
%.8'€6 £7'219'28 00°06E'e6 £066'62 00'80)'LE ISLLLS 1£'896'G 008442 69'608' WY dX3 HIA
%80'/8 16'688Z¢) 00°865'Z6} 16°051'1€ 00'598'05 e0'rLL'6h LLO0E'0L 00'9LLTL 686072 ddNSOM3ANd dx3 19H3IA
%9}°0L 1668112 00'662'S0¢ 1622E'9) 00'ZEY' 204 6060416 90'SKL'E 00'908'84 6°099'GL Q1013 8 SYO - SALAILN
%.9'99 00'000°0€ 00'000'% 000 00'000'GH 00°000'G4 000 00°052°€ 00°05L°¢ $3343318NYL
%05'26 SroLS'6l 00°004'4Z SySEY'S 00'620°L 55'€85') ShviL 00852 §5°E85'} TAAVEL
%518 SEIGLIE 00°029's€ 562072 0’1281 5980ty 00'€89 00896 006822 SYYNINIS ANV ONINIVHL
%08'29 08191 0098421 047064 00'802' 0E°LLS'S LEeh 00°22%'} £TE0et INOHIIEL
%9686 £€'226'9 0070002 ££092'2 DOEEET 197 00'€8S 00685 00'0 $100L TIVWS/S3TddNS dOHS
9%55°8L 769TvE9 00'620'8 eyl 00'79Le 8rTEL'l 000 00°0 000 SIDUYHI NOILYOINENd
%8509 89'6/8'2 00'000'€ {ze'zLe) 002527 'S (ze9g0'e} 000 76'950Z 39V1S0d
%9869 78'116'9 00'6.8°0L 78'85L'} 00°060°S B1'1E6'C £4808 00°059' 218 $334 GNV SLIWY3d
%.16'V8 7922002 00'145'2 2966y 00'616'L 8E'EYS'E 0499} 00060 0€'€92 $3NddNS 301440
%ER 0L 00°006'82 00°008°0% 00002’} 00°009'€} 00°006'L4 00009 00°00'E 00°008' VIMOLINYT 301440
%5768 9Tl 'se 00°€5E'6E 9€'768'8 00'1ZLEL Y9'82L'y S¥'1LLT 00'082'¢ 54208 STUNLIANAAXT SNOINYTIOSIA
%0916 00'85F 00°00§ 00862 00'0%E 002y 00°06 0006 000 S3FINAN
%00°00} 00°000'0¢ 00°000'0¢ 00'000'G}H 00'000'6} 000 000 000 000 INIVA 8 dIvd3d Y313
%ELSY 180512 00005} 18064 000058 £16vE'8 {09'691'8) 000 09'691°8 S1HYd AHOLNIANI
%0000} 00004} 00004} 00052 00054 00°0 00521 00'szL 000 ININGIND3 ALIHVS
%E0'0) vE'ZL9'YL 00'€ET'9F} YE'ESH'T 007LOVEL 99095161 (loon) 00°228°} WEPS'L SANOF ANV SONVINSNI
%£0'79 G1'896'C} 0070842 1268 00'1€L°8 SB'EEs', 08Z6¢ 00°291'€ 027242 3SNIdXT ALIMND3S
Butueway
Jobpng asueuep 1efpng JdUBLIBA 108png QLA jen3oy aoueuep jaBpng jebpng |enjoy
€301 JU%IRg jofipng [ejol GZAd (B0t j08png QLA deaj yusuny polad JuaLNy  poliad uaun)  pousd Juauny

14vid

S20T/LE/0) YSNOIYL STOT/L/0L woid

SIUNLIANIX3 Pue SINNIAIY O INIWILVIS
12141S1a INFWIAOHdWI TVUINIO AUNGSONDI







[ @%ed Wd 60:60° 1 920T/6/C =1=A

%9616 0188 Ly 0000215 070'CL  00EET'LH 968517 186LT'E 00'80€'y £1'880°} ONIAIAUNS B ONRITINIONT
%0000} 00219’} 00ZH9'l 000 0’0 000 000 00°0 000 SNOILYILODIN ¥OgY1 Wo31
%60'76 182667 00°052'€ 18°0¢8 00'780't 61252 1082 00’122 88°0¢ RVRER
%9 6% 2 LS 00'021'E ¥2'9¢8 00'62¢C 00265} (92¢69) 00'666 9,765} ONIINMOJOY
SASNAAX3 ONILYN3HO
%zovL ol'gbi'agz  O0'SLI'GSE [ 81'ZZ9°0¢  O0'BKO'SZE  28'9Z0'S6 S9'6L4L 00'Z94'cE $£°286'62 S3ASNIdXT Q3LYI3Y TI0¥AVd [BIoL
%3G V5 T1OEY 000087 8% 100292 €€ (0099) 0099 000 ISNIdXT IDNYMOTIV ¥YO
%0'86 82°096' 00'000' BL¥Z9 00'799 zee 89'851 00'99L L $3SN3dX3 TIOUAVd H3HLO
%6t 70l 1g59' 00'005°€ I’ 00vel'l (12251 (28009} 00162 18168 3SNIAdX3 AV IOV
%90'L6 8r'250°01 00'0K0' ) 87697  00089'€ 75286 ZVELD 00026 R T4 ISNAdXT 8340
%v6'99 20084} 00692’ 10'86C 00288 £6'28% 00°0 000 000 SWHO4INN
%00°001 00'866'Z 00'866' 00'866 00'866 00°0 00'052 00°05¢ 000 S1143N38 ININAQTININN
%918 092557 00'SKL'e 09'66 00269 0v'268 1966 00681 6€'68 SIS - SLI43NTE 3IA0TANI
%6v 08 18°G61 0% 00'6E6'6Y 19°006'9  00°¥VO'0L EVERLE 18748 0019y €188’ S¥3d - SLI43N38 33A0TdW3
%YE VL 86'228'%S 00'6v8°9L 8E68S'E  00919'ST 29°920'2C 16 L8Y) 00°209'L £0'694°9 SNI 03N - S1143N38 F3A0 TN
%L6'LS 00'k94Z 00'82L°¢ (00" 22€) 00'0¥2'} 00°296'} 0568 00o0le 05022 0IQIN/YOI4 - SLI43N3E 3TA0TINT
spouad Aed £[9:49'/9 1670861 00°082'62 15482 0009L6 £ySLY'e (G601 00'0t¥'Z S6'051L°E 301440 - TIOWAYd
‘spousd Aed £|%z€'69 90°508'6L 00Zel'ShE | Q0BY0'E  00'9LE8E ¥6'92€'SE 90'299') 00'765'6 ¥B'1LE6'L JONVNLNIVI - TIO¥AYd
‘spoied Aed € ‘Pl 10U g, 76 £e'GEE'69  007709'L8 CCE66'0L 0000262 2990281 99°ELE'E 00'00€'2 £'986'€ YIOYNYIN - TIOUAYd
m:oEmou JoLjo pue Emn:&:.:mnzm m:o.:m._mqo opN
S3SNIdX3 G3LV1Y TI0¥AVd
SIUNLIANTAX
%hLES OUIEL067)  O0THECOVT |(91'PO0°SH)  00°699°L21L  ¥B'HO9TUL) 51'815'L€ 00'bZH'SBT  Gh'6E9TLE SANNIAIN fE101
RSLVS STEHE 00°02SEHE Zaicie  O0FIFRO0L 0T8T LFE 95°967'L (X7 7F]4 95°0¥5 €€ SNO3ANVITAISIN IB101
G000+ 00000F 000007 00PEE D07EE 0070 0078 0 000 INNIATY ¥IHLO
worwsod ysed od abuey LOJEaofe w\mm mw\mﬂ% %1978 08'€EL0LL  O0O0ZG'HE | 0Z9vSZE  000VE'E0L  OZ'9RE‘LYL 95085, 00'096'52 95'0v5'CE SLINIWLSIANI NO 1STHILNI
SNOANVIIZOSIN
%G5 ES oC'E09'slLs  00'7Z8'060'7 [(95°0/2'25)  OO'GBY'EZ0Y  P'BIZELE 66°120°0¢ 00'20'657  6G'860'68Z SaxvL el
%1999 89790GEs  Q0veveos |t 000ERZ%  CEFegi%C o 0085699 €8775699 NOILNEIILSIA XYL ALYLS
%B0'Sy £Lp58'697 00682688 |(CL€v0vZ)  00T6'LE  LTBRB'ECE 8r'5e8'el 00°26¥'68 8y'Z08'201 dN-IIVIN KIHOTVAGY
%68'66 98'659'9 00°299' (98'£9) 00'62 L (0002} 0002 00'0 X¥L ALH3dO¥d TWNOSYH3d
%80'Gy 609ZYILE  00'8/8'069  |(60°09L'GZ)  QO'BLYL0F  LETLGP'BLE 82'902'91 0079'C0L  BTEES'GH) SINVL WIHOWAAY
SAXVL
SANNIATY|
Burureway aoueLen aosueLiep 1efpng |enjoy
saioN mopng coke e | WEne wsmnaaik g L, (b poied  poued - pousd (01) aNN4 TvE3INTO
{101 Juadsdd QLA juaLINg juaung) juaungy
E<~— o §202/LE/0L YSnoayl §Z0e/L/01 wolj

aNN4 A9 S3UNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY JO INFWILVLS
19141S1d INTFWIAOHWI TYHINIO AHNISONDI



Z =8eg

Nd 60°60° T 9Z0T/6/T ed

%h'e (186  (ooovzzzo'n) |irssiee  (00viv'eso’t) (62'9sz'L66) 51'189'6¥) 0000406} SLI51¥82 S3UNLIANIDAE ¥IA0 INNIATY $$30X3
TP BOIIGicT 00cessert |ZOCICTe U0ca0were EReageOre 096arerr 0075005F  OFTEEE SIUNLIANAAXI 10l
AT T5lizocs  0000C808¢ |[652PLGE) QOORCEVET 65986 a6 L 8666826 0000000F  20°00FZ SASNIdX3 ¥IHLO [ejo)
%6E 6¢ IvileSes  00902808¢ |GSBP.6E] OOOVCEVEl 65986486 % 8666826 00000000  20°00FZ AV1LNO TYLIdYD
SISNIdXA ¥IHLO
%25'L8 8Z'Z6ET0Z  D0'00T'IEZ | BTOME'E6  00WEL'TZL  TLLKS'SZ 16680} 00'688'0} £0'66L'% SISNIAXT ONILYHIO le10L
%57 98 §0526¢C) 00800GF £0696¢  00¢00S 76780¢C 20020 001521 86087 W2 dX3 HIA
%1269 52°095°04 00'092'G} 5.'8¢ 00°280'S ST'669'% 60°€20't 00zt 16852 ddNSMIOMAN4 dX3 I10HIA
%6l LS £8'62€ 00'528 (24 vy 00202 LV9re 00°SE v0'ZL DIYLOF13 B SV - SALNILN
%.9'99 00'008't 00'052' 00'0 00082 00'052 0081 05284 $334 3318N4L
%00'004 00'052C 000522 00'6%2 0062 000 00'881 00'881 000 T3AVAL
%5976 STeLY'Y 00'92L' sgzee’l  00'SLSY §L75T 00'¥6€ 00't6¢ 000 SHYNINES ONY ONINIVHL
%96'L9 0LOLL 00291 010 0028 06'1S o 00l 862} 3NOHJ313L
%81°'96 18961 000844 18100 00052 IR 000 000 000 SISUYHO NOILYOENd
%6¢'19 69204 00291 69201 00494 EH9 00'004 0000} 000 $334 ONV SLIWYAd
%89'v6 69'66¢' 00'785'} 69°EHy 00’828 18 88l 00'ZEL el $3NddNS 301440
%L9LL 00'520' 00°005'} 002 00°008 00'52Y 00'5e 00'SZ) 00°00} WIHOLINYF 301440
%5186 Q'HOF0L 00°009'04 Q00KE'E  00'9eS’e 6°564 52088 00788 A STUNLIANIAXT SNOINYTIFOSIA
%00'00} 00'00§ 00°005 00005 00°008 000 000 00'0 000 INTFNINDI ALIIVS
%06'l £5'88 00'8¥9'y £5°08 00'8¥9'% 1688y 000 00°0 00°0 SANOE ANY IONVANSNI
%SE'5L 02081 00'002 oLt 0019 0c6y 06 00°94 8604 ISNAAXT ALRKINDIS
%9666 18E05'6) 00'0E9'61 18'EL0'6L 000026} 61921 1826 00050 6192} SN9IS B ST00L 'S3NddNS Q13
%L1'89 8082 00Zhr 89 00'8E} 9L'1EL 1 00'e 6178 TYANTY INININD3
%92 ¥8 BY L6277 00°00L°S B¥'268 00°002' 15708 0052y 00'5Zy 00'0 SHIvdIdr LINIVIWVSITdNS “dInD3
%ES 7O 80'LLY 00'0EL B0'LBE 00°0%9 76'852 00'0F 00°0% 000 SNOILJINOSENS 2 $3NT
'S4 14 "dd 'V4IL8d o gpg 80°061'€ 00'986'Y (egsel) 00099 26564} (i ve9) 006 PrEro'L ISNIdX3 HILNAWOD
‘Od ¥/ uoduosqng [enuuy yociqbuuds
9%86'86 9e9r8'rl 00°000'G1 9€'9¥8'y  00°000'G YOESL 1670611 00052} £0'6% “LNIVI ONY SHIVJ3Y ONIaTINg
%Z6'L8 50'595'6€ 00°000'y S0°690'/  00°008'2€ SBVEY'S 000002 000002 00'0 $31ddNS 2 IONYNILNIVIN QVOY
%19°98 00'12€'64 00°000°02 00'LZ€'9L  00°000°L 00'649 00'008 00°00% 000 JOVNIVAA GNY NOISOH3
Buureway ajuelep asuenen 1oBpng |enjoy
S31ON 1abpng smw.q__w_h_M,o 1 mN«Mw_u_”amo " jofipng  jefipng LA Eﬂ_«_wﬂ:o j96png poyad  pouad pouad (o) annd TvYINTO
|e30] Juaniad aLa juaung Ny juaung

14vad

S202Z/LE/01 Y8noiyl sZ02/L/0L woid
ANNd A9 STHNLIANIdX3 pue SINNIATYH 30 INIWILVLS
12141514 LNIWIAOUdIWI TVHINIO AHNASONDI




¢ mBeg Wd 60:60:1 9Z0T/6/T 18
%198 0ZOl5'06L  OD'ES8ZZZ | 0Z2I9'8E  00'6¥6'SL 08'9ee’2€ ag'.6L'v 00'886'81 zL06L'L S¥Id - SLI43N3Q IIA0TINI
%Ly 6L BUEKS'EFZ  O0'EOV'S0E | 60VEZ'6E  00FSIZ0L IBBLETY S0ZLBEL 00'866'62 96'580'0) SNI'G3N - S1143NT8 33A01dW3
%9¥'SL PrSLL'6 Q0'¥56'Z4 trgl't  009EY 96'8LL'E Se'0vl 00'620' 5186 DIQ3NYDI4 - SLIAANIG 3TA0TNI
spoued Aed ¢|%y9'29 8161875 00°280'8L 81'€9L 00'1£0'92 7819262 {9g'568'}) 00°205°9 952018 301440 - TIOHAVd
Jod Aed ¢ snid ees) jenuue o payses eeojdui3|%ey €L 0S/Sv'8/6  009BE'SIS | 0G'SY8YE  00PBL'LLL  0G'8YE'OEL {95129} 00'6Y6'ZF 9G'eL5'EY JONVNILNIVW - TIOHAVd
: 'SpoLed A&d g ‘Dall 10Ul e 6ULLTZ 00959807 | 6V99'GE 0078568 LBYBB'ES €828L11 0UBBEZZ L0890 HIOVNVI - TIOHAYd
suogysod Jayjo pue juapusjuuedng suogeledp oN
S3SN2dX3 G31V13Y TI0HAVd
SAYNLIANIdXT
9%,9£°90 s3ce0'00'c  oLz'ozy's |(B9'€99°08)  00'bE'O06’t  TrEsosze’l (31°6£6'12) 00'v88'Iy  TSEVEELY SINN3AIY lejeL
CATRT WITIOCE 006 0eos |Lyvievel O00WEISI  ES9SETELt |rsess 00S00'LBY <8GOV O6E $33d4 ¥asn kol
%9999 0z'seg't 008647 0z 0 00te6 087¢6 (A1) 00°EC 0zeee JONVINSNI NI 3NITAYIS
%Z€'99 ¥2°00€'01 00°085'SH ols 00'B}'S 9L'622'S 1861 00'v62') 18608} JONVHNSNI SSOTANIAYIS
%1¥'99 17962} 00'256' 65'2 00'8%9 65'649 86% 0029k 86'€9) JNNIATY NINGY INTAYIS
%¥8'69 90'10b'S 00'80€"2 (o0zee)  00'9EY'T V66022 (1e0zd) 00'609 69°681 INNIATY 334 HIHSNVAL
%782 (00'88L'Y) 002yl 00'988's  00ZW0'El 00°006'8} 000 000 000 $334 NOLLOINNOD
%0005 00'0¥2 00087 0008 00081 00°0ve 00°0% 00°0F 00'08 $334 OTHO NuNL3Y
%91 9% VELEr'Y 00°009'6 69'896'F  00100C'E 69'89}'S (00052} 00008 00055 S39UVHD 30IAY3S
%06'LL 80"1£€'08 00°02Zv'TY (8019070 coovl'yl 26'880'Z1 98'6€2 00'6ES'E 98'pLLE $334 ¥3SN NO SAILTYNAd
% ¥9 L'288°0L o0'go0'ork  |(LvEe) 00°009'6¢ 6G°LLL'6E {r8'€91'2} 00'009°9 9L9Er'Y NOILdWNSNOD TYIOHIWNOD
%L9°99 88'£6429 00'LEL'Y6 rAN? 00'82€'1€ TVBLELE {gz'0) 00'5¥8'2 8L 1v8'L NOILOTLO¥d JHI3 WIOHINNOD
%L9'99 89'S0LZPT  00'950%0e  [(88'L) 0026E'kZh  ZVOSE'leh 340) 00'8€€'0¢ £6°268°0€ TVIDYINNOD - $334 ¥3SN
%9599 08'655'69 00vey'v0L | 0280} 00°0E8'vE 0Z'8E6'YE S50 00'80L'8 S5EL'8 NOILO3LOud 314 VILN3AISTY
%0825 1861088 0000022 (Le'6ES'EL)  00°025'LY £9°086'CE (r1'928') 00°009' 99'€LL NOILJWNSNOD € W3IL WILN3QIST
%88'LS LU 00°000'89 (12°950'2)  00°0Z1OF £2°690'€E (e 60v'2) 00°09L'% £9'08€7 NOILJWNSNOD Z ¥31L TVILNIAISIY
%9519 ZvovsZ0z ooooo'sze  |(ZL'9zsLl)  ooosL'BEL  BE'ESY'IZE (15'2e0's) 00'02€'9C 6v'182'12 NOILJNNSNOO | ¥3IL VILNICISTY
%98'99 ¥6'19'065'7  00Ze6'eeLe  |(WBEBEL)  00WRO'YOZ  90'¥SZ45TL Loy 00'lSL'OLE  STEEIE TVILNIQIS3Y - $334 W3SN
$334 ¥3sn
%804 WhiS'e6z  00'B6z'96t  |(1peaz’or)  o0'9l0'ebl  6S5'92LZ0L (oe'vve'd) 00'6280¢ 0L'ES'ET SNOaNVTTIOSIN [BI0L
%86 ¥6Z0101 0005E5C Q6L 00BHY'S 90°THe'SH £2°186 00Zh'e £2€60'C 3INNIAIY ¥3HIO
%EEEE 00°05¢ 00°052 000 00°005 00005 00°0 000 000 334 MIINTE NYd
et yeeo o S igadege N\wm i meTe 00BN |(LEs0sr) 0080l ESEeE9R () WLR LW SINIWLSIANI NO 1STH3LNI
%0000} 00'000'sZ 00°000'52 {ooo00'se)  00000'SE 000 00°0 000 00'0 LNVHS ¥d3 3DHNOS LNIOd NON 61€
SNOINVTIIISIW
S3ANNIATY
Buuiewasy aoueLep asueuep jabpng |enjoy
S3LON 1e8png ,mww”MJN,o " mwmw_u_”mo , | BPna  3eBpnaala aoﬁ___ww__o leBpng poliad  pousd pouad (02) ANN4 H3LVM
[l GTRUELICY] ata juaun) pUETI] Ty} FUETT] )

14vid

520¢/1L£/01 UsnolyL sZog/L/0L wold
ANN4 A9 STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY JO INTWILVIS
10141S1a AINFWINOHdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




p o8ed

W4 60°60: 1 920Z/6/Z #ied

%bt'L9 EULZ0L  QDOBL'SL  |€Vzlh  00000S  8TK6' 159 0069z 6266 3INOHdTTAL
%9686 62269 00000 0T 0EEET 19U 00'€85 00685 000 $7001 TIVAS/S3IdNS dOHS
%2182 99z 0DOBLE 998y 0008l VEYEY 000 000 000 SIDMVHO NOILYOIENd
%219 WISKY 00099 v6°1L 000897 908092 000 £0640'L IOV180d
%S5%9 w9 00689 gecy  000S8E  WLOME £2'901 00036 e $334 ONV SLINY3d
%9158 9880C'LL  ODBLZEL  |8BESKZ  00WZYY  2hOL6'L 20876 009K 86USt $30ddNS 301440
%L9'1L 000067+ 0DOOOSL 00005 00000 00'0OL'S 00'00¢ 000§ 00002 WRHOLINYT F01440
%8188 YEBYBS 000000 [vEVBLT  009EE  99lSkY 00'%6L 00°E€8 00'6E STUNLIGNIIX SNOINVTIZOSIA
%0916 0085y 00003 00862 000¥E 002 0006 0006 000 $334 N3N
%00'004 000000 00000 [00000'SL  00000GH 000 000 000 000 ANIVA B HIVdT WL
%HE T 80599 00000GE  [(€V6YE) 000008 EVGKE'S 000 096948 SL¥Yd AHOLNIANI
%0000+ 00003 00008 0000z 00002 000 00004 0000k 000 INFWAIND3 AL3VS
%81l 008l O0EZSOL | MOUSY'  QDWHOES  66'9BE'L6 00225t LOEKS SONOS ONY JONVHNSNI
%L2'89 9650000 00BKSTL  [8€%L1  00S%C9  ZoTSY 00'5v8 000057 00959’} ISNIX3 ALINNOIS
%EL89 YS9 005K Y5oE  009ZE  9v068T 0029v o 16v VLN LNTWIND3
%6288 Y8yl 000SK'9L | SYBLMO 00008  SSIeERL \99LE 000V 6669 SHIVAT INVWSINAANS 'diN03
%229 16EE09 009996 YOLY 0068 60ZE9E 000 000 000 SNOLLAIHOSENS ® $3na
'S4 148N Yd 'V W oy s BLTSER  001GZ0L  [UZ269l) 001eZTE  IT806'ER 000005 878Gk 3ISN3X3 ¥ALNANOD
'0d “dfv uonduosqng [enuuy %001g6uuds
%6116 ZSEL 00588l |28 00ISEY  BVEOET 8508 008EZL  29L6 “LNIVIN GNY SHIVd3 ONITIING
%8299 6OBIESE  0006ZES |62 00T 1606 UKy £0628Y SIDUVHO INYE
%00'004 ovezees  oowze’tL [ 000 000 000 000 000 000 $1830 ave
%585 8694 O00SL7Z | 956807  00WBSL  QOWH'S 009681 BEWWKT ONIAIAYNS B ONISIINIONI
%00'004 000rL 000K 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOLLYILOD3N HO8Y1 Y931
SWIBP PO0L4 (%5 LL 19570 000006 |l9GEZY  00000'EE  EEVOLS 00057 8Y0E8'S WO
%LV 689691 Q0OKO'SE  [689Z00L  00OWL'SZ  LLEMBL 00E86'LL  LLELG) ONILNNODOY
S3SNIdX3 ONILVYIAO

%Skl §SE0ZVY'  ODIZE'9ORM'L | SSOL0USL OOWEL9BY  ZveTL'ees HZ810E 00684220 68'900L6 SISNIAXA G3LYI3N TIOHAVd (€101
TSI %7 000 3ISNIdX3 JONYMOTIV ¥v0
%6219 STUEL 0000 szue 00009 sLTER 000 2861 $3SNIdXT TIOUAVd HIHLO
%l5SE 049k 00000°EL (05007 00'GEEY  OE'EE 99°66¥ 00e80L  ¥E68S 3SN3dX3 IAVIT GINNOOY
%07'9L Y6608 00090y | Sres8' 00956l 2596 29696 0BT SEBIT 3SN3dX3 8340
%9008 /0L 00K weegz 0T 8VERLl 000 000 000 SWHOAINN
%0000} 00662 00966 WrYT  00v99Z 000 00'999 00'999 000 $1143N38 INFWAOTAENN
%LLE 0BLYL 0096 0BEFZL  00ZVLL  0Z86Y oLl 0062 845 SIIS - SL14IN38 FIAOTANE

Buiuipway asueueA aouRLIeA 19Bpng [enjay
S3LON popng  SOSHEA - 0S| jebpng sebnaain ¥ hefngpoued powsq  poued (0Z) ANN4 ¥ILYM
Je101 uasad QLA JussNy Jualng JuaLn)

14vid

S20Z/LE/0L YSNoIUL SZ0Z/1/01 Wold
aNNd A9 SFHNLIANIdX3 Pue SANNIAIY 30 LNJWALVIS
LO141S10 INFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNISONDI




¢ wBeq

T 60°60:1 920T/6/T e

%26ES (ergssbl'y) (0010zTve'y) | coeessor (oozee‘soz’) (L1'ZL9'v6l) £5'626'282 (00'zL2'201)  £6°€SZ'WL) STUNLIANIAXI YIAQ INNIATY $S30XE
TELVL IZTHTT  TOBeeocor | TIT6C00F O0GO960lE BLGBL0CIC TSP T 07959600  6606F S0F SUNLIANIAAE feoL
el L TOTRIT 00Wviary | Z5ee9Iee 0090Evest E9EL9CLE b 3052162 0Zee9 BLETYIY SISNIdXI ¥IHLO LeloL
%00000 0000CE) {00002 €l 000 000 000 000 000 0070 1388V 40 WSOdSIA NO NIvO/SS01
‘powinya) [BLBJBW PBSNUN BPRABN UIBJSOM WoY
upau)) uedsy wouy uoljedyddy Aed euli/Memiuel] |%E) 8L STOIG0COY  00'922'9Z6'S | 8T¥8L'81Z  Q0000'GIS'E  26LE'96T') £0'815°062 00000082 (£0'815°0Y) AVILNO WLIYD
BUIIAIEM $ZA O} PONIBIBI JOU BABY O
948829 60°/0519L  00GI6'26C | 60'868T  00°90€'6L 167L0V'9L SLTEL 00'228'6l ST60'6H ISNIAX3 LSTHLNI
$3SN3dX3 ¥IHLO
%999 oL'L09'T8'L  00°0SS'0ZL'T | 94°002°04 00'GYO'SI0°L  BZ'RYE'L06 (88°296°94) 000¥9'ZV  88'209'622 SISNIXT ONILYYICO [E10L
%¢9 59 To7o6v6 00099t |CEBLIGH  Q09SSe8y  SEGEL L6V BE LT 006E90Z)  BE900Geh 3SNIdXT NOILYIOTEIA
%.9'99 0L'%EY'S 00'S51°8 ot 000222 vZBLLT ad] 00089 95'629 SANOE 40 NOILYZILHONY
%52 'S 86°S1E'YY 0095728 (z0'099'0L)  00¥8Y'LT 20°0p1'8¢ (81°6£9'} 00'148'9 210152} dX3 WILSAS LNIWLYIHL H3LYM
%15'96 98'606'vL 00°002'2L 99'68L'€Z  00'006'SZ 7L0LLT 69'8¥L'S 00'SLY'9 1e°92L ISNIdXT WALSAS 1SI0 ¥3LYM
%810} 00°€88' 00°005'8} 00'€88's 0000581 00'L19'9) 000 000 000 INIWOYNYIN QIHS HIMISAIILYM
%6 Ly 00'627'8 008852} (00'62'e)  00698'S 001515 (00122°8) 00'59Y'} 00'9EL'Y ONITANYS/ONIHOLINOW I LYM
%EY V6 797619 00'790'59 Z9'961°8L  00'889'LZ 9L'16Y'e VA2 002Z0's eLLOY) WBY dX3 HAA
%£8'88 6OEKP'80L  00'82072h | 69602  00¥E9OV JE7ESEL 562828 00'€LL0} G9'588'} ddNSMI0M3nd dx3 I10IHIA
%6202 Z0CKBT6L  00Z06'PLC | 20BISHL  00°2[0'96 B6'895'18 #0'e90' 0007’91 9W6'0PEL ORML0TTI B SV - SALMLN
%.9'99 000008} 00°000'22 000 00°000'6 00°000'6 000 000827 000522 $334 3A1SNAL
%16'€6 6€'985°Z} 00HOP'E} 66099 00'89Y'Y 19°208 6€'60E 00°LLL'Y 19'208 T3AVEL
%L£°98 5826861 00'896'2¢ G8'6Zs'y  00'959'2 SL0EL'E 01906 00716t 06°20¢'} SHYNINIS ONY ONINIAL
Buujeway dduBlLIRA B0UBLIEA 19bpng len3oy
S3.LON 16png smwum_.__wo " mMmu__% " 1ebpng  3eBpng QLA aum_._w_wﬂ__u ypbpngpouad  pousd pouad (0Z) ANN4 H3LVM
|ej0] Jusdidd aiA waun) juaun) ann)

14vdd

ST0Z/LE/01 USNoiylL 520T/L/0L woid
AaNNd A9 STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY JO INTWILVIS
10141S1a INTFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




g =8eg

W 60°60:1 970T/6/T ed

%b9'€6 £2°092°1 00°005'6} vL092'S  00°008°9 9z'667'} rrSiLY'L 00629’ 95°602 Wo31
%916 SrE9r's 00°020°6} SyL0'S  00'B9SY) 65°955°6 00'166'S 55'954°6 ONILNNOJOY
SISNIdX3 ONILVHIHO
%6881 6GEET'POE  00°029'G8E | 6G°LKO'LF  00'VEY'BZL  Lb'OSE'l8 vael'ol 00°69L'¥E o'ISLeT SASNIAXI ALV TI0¥AVd [e30L
691 100008 ¥6°8%¢ {00891 w6619 (Ii42 [0i§47) 000 ISNAdX3 JONYMOTIV ¥YD
%LE¥8 £g'ley 00°00% £5°68 00494 18l 6’9z 00'Ly 1974 SISNIdX TIOYAV ¥3HLO
%85 LLL g0y 000007 78€60C  00°TEE) {28102 (62'66¢) 00°€ee 62°ZEL 3SNIdX3 3AVAT A3NYOOV
%1206 76'8L2'G1 00°06%'2) 9Ly 00'8T8'S 89'LLL 80°620°} 00°2G%'} 76Ty 3SN3dXx3 8340
%02'09 05'88 00°2¢1 05'L 00'¢L 05'85 000 000 000 SWHOAINN
%00°004 00'966'G 00'966°S 00'966's  00°966' 000 00°66 00'667 000 S1I4ANIE LNWAOTIWANN
%0Z'18 108 00°286 Lroe 00'942 £5°581 15°€S 00'65 6v'S SIS - $1143N3F IIA0TINI
%L1'18 15°180'8Y 00'9.2'65 16°195'8  00'95L'64 AN 90'820' 00'686'7 76°016'¢ S¥3d - S1143NIF ITA0 TN
%986, VTP Y9 00°969'08 12°059'04  00'668'9% 6L8kz'ol L1189 00'¥62'8 £8T0L'Y SNI Q3N - S1143NT8 FTA0TANI
%9E'GL wT8Y'C 00462 9r'v8e 00'960'L 18 s 00'vL2 8,728 OICAN/YOH - SLI43N3E FTA0TINS
spoitad Aed £|%9'29 0VELY'6E 00'796'95 01'695 0002561 06°086'84 (es1zv't) 00088 Z6'10E'9 301440 - TI0YAVd
‘spouad Aed & ‘pajjy 10U %0582 ELV08'LZL  000Z4'SSL | €295€'8L  00T2LLS 1T'S9E'eE 8€'856'y 00'1€6'24 297462 HADYNYI - TIOHAVd
suopsod Jayjo pue Juspuajuuadng suoyesado oN
SISNIIXT GILYIIY TI0UAVd
STUNLIANILX3
%EY'99 Yo6LL'09E'E  00'066°260'7 | ST 00962069 91018069 (e8'v182) O0LES'0LL  8L9LLL9) SANNIAIY IE0L
%6€ 99 SIvS08FCE  00'18L6I9T | SE6ZY 00262469  S8'92L1E9 (bz'922'c) 00°952'66L  9L°6LKTSH $334 ¥3sN [EI04
%96 7. 0IT8LT 0025°¢ 0.70€) 0Lt 0EEI6 (A3 007908 (A7) INNAATY 334 ¥3ISNYHL
%9912 {oo-008'2) 00009 00000 00°00¥Z 0000t L1 000 000 00'0 $334 NOILOANNOD
%L6'LL S0°805°} 0009271 (50899'1)  00'026'% S6'ISE'E {90°88) 00062} vE L $334 ¥3SN NO SALIWNII
%SE'LL ¥8'629'€2 00°0Zb'eE (¥8°€927)  00'¥SCT 91'06%'6 (Gres9t) 00IE'e ¥5'869'} NOILWNSNOD WIDHIWNOD
%999 02'620'82 00'8£0'2 080 00ZL0'Ph 09210t 0ze 00°€05' 02'€05'¢ TVIOYINWNOD - $334 ¥3SN
%602 59'87.'81 00°00%'9Z (599Lv'e)  00'880'}4 SE'LL9L (00°950'}) 00'950' 000 NOILAWNSNOD | ¥3IL TYILNIQISTY
%6999 VU60T' LAY 00TMBL'9SLL (L)) 00'66€'685  67186'+8S (2821 CO'BYE'QYL  82'022'97L TVILNIAISTY - $334 H3ISN
$334 ¥3sN
%199 etszL'sl,  00'608'2Lb  |(BELLY) 00°L0S'6S 19°€80'65 Iy 0062} YOSk SNOANVTIIOSIN [eI0L
%P1 ES 895y 007005 (8962 00791 €8 EEr 00Ty 457 INNIAIY ¥3HLO
%0005 00°052 00°00S (00054} 00°00F 00'052 00°0 000 000 334 MIIATY NV
%LL°99 1065091 0060894 (L2728l 00'££6'95 62'6v4'85 0L8LY 00'VEL'PL 01'Z8LG) SLNTWLSIANINO LSTHILNI
SNO3NVTIIOSIN
SANNIATY
Bujureway aoueMeA oUBMBA 1ebpng [enjoy
S3LON wopng R mhww__ﬁ“. L | wBeme wpnaan TRV fefpngpouey  pousd  pousd (0€) ANN4 ¥3AM3S
|ejoL Juadad aia waun) juaun) pULTF]1 3o

14vid

SZ0Z/LE/0L Y8noayl SZoz/L/01 woid
ANNd A9 STUNLIANIIX3 Pue SINNIATY $0 INTWALVYLS
10141514 LNIWIAOHAIWI TVHINIO AHNISONDI




L w8ed

Nd 60:60: 1 920T/6/T *1ed

%6129 (51699'509)  (oogpa'zsy) | sieprtr (00zzv'sse)  (58°86'942) 20°€58'92 (00's8Lp92)  (£6°pee’Lee) STUNLIANTAXT Y3IA0 INNIATY $$30X3
VALEE] WWVIET 006 oge | GOSEFIIT WTewT TSRS STT89°6¢ 06l Ry  THIG0S0v SFYNLIANAJXS [eiod
b2 66 ISIvIE0S  0000,Z05 | I8186%c 00000°8C $HeI0T TovLE 00°000'SH IrKESe SISNIIXT ¥IHLO [E30L
%1066 IIpl€0S 009927208 I9186%€c  000008C [:T7 Eceovti 00000GE ITEGE AYILNO VLIdYD
SASNIX3 ¥3HLO
%EG'SS CTIOV'Y0'L  0DZSBOLG'L | €T'OOV0Y  00'GL'Z68  LLVBETSE aeLL 00PS5's8C  88'L9L'LIE SIASNAX3 ONILYHIAO EI0L
%3199 1071 59 00°ZE7'e6 [€6005]  00ZI8EE T6CICEE 78881 00°€02'8 78168 3SNIdX3 NOILYIOIMA3A
%08 LL 06'+80'8} 00'6Z7'EC 068582 006648 oL0vE's 00942 00907} 00084} OIYL0T 1A B S¥O - SALLN
%£9'99 00°000'6 00°005°€ 000 00'005'% 0000y 000 00621} 00'5Z)'} $334 33LSNYL
%S 8 656267 0029r'e BIELY 00'284' 1¥9ES (17052) 00'89¢ LY'BES TAAVEL
%268 08°0v2'S 00128 08226’  00996't 0Z'€E9 {09'6L1) 00'687 09'809 SHYNINIS ONY ONINIVHL
%9 HL 1219V} 002E9') ®HeL 00'7¥S £90LF ¥0'89 00'9€1 96'LL ) INOH4IEL
%0656 26012 000027 PL60L'E 00002} 92’06 000 00°0 000 S3A9YVHD NOILYOINENd
%99°09 0£'189C 0002ty {0/992) 00ZLY' 0L'8EL} {5€'669) 000 GE'669 39V1S0d
%bL Y 8161 00'60% 816l 00'50% 78's8¢ 000 000 000 $334 ANY SLINY3d
%98'€8 0v'518's 00'SE6'9 Or'i6l'L  00LIET 09'6kE'L 00'667 00'84S 0062 $31ddNS 301440
%L9'}L 000579 000006 00057 00000 000852 00°054 00052 00°009 TYIMOLINYF 301440
%5868 9¥'825s 00'€5L'9 orvzy't  006K0T 5429 05'e6¥ 0VElS 0561 S3UNLIANIX3 SNOINYTIIOSIN
%00°00} 00005 00005 007008 007005 000 000 000 000 SLHVd AHOINIAN!
%56'L 0y vvS 00'898'22 0F'#¥S 00'888'22 09°eve' LT 000 000 000 SANOS ONY JONVINSNI
Jojeas)3 abpusuld 094 %80°€S 119%¢ 00'%08'9 (e9'228) 00026 £9°261' (e 29%) 00'0£9 ¥2260') ISNAdXA ALNO3S

%0169 YSTH9T 00128’ YS'6YC 00'LEY') 9v'18L'L {60€9) 00'08 60'EY) TYINDY LNININD3I
%61 '4L 69°080'CS)  000KO'GLZ | 69°92L6  00°089'LL LE'€56'19 ST 06 00'026'2} 5L6v5'8 SUIVAIH/ LNIVWSITdANS dIND3
%6189 b LETE 00'1E6'% Wz 0069k 95855} 000 000 000 SNOLLJRIOSENS 8 $ING

'S4l ‘80 "Hd 'vAHWRd|g, og 8LYEE'Y 00981z (28188l 00099t Z8IKS'SH (€8'106'27) 00°000°9 £8'10e'8 ISN3AX3 ¥ILNANOD

‘Od ‘¥/v uonduasgng (enuuy yoougbuuds
%89'86 GE'S00°LE 00'6L7'1E Se'950°0L  00°2LYOL S9Ely 15922 008197 6Y'6EL "INIVA ONV Sdivd3d ONITINS
%Z1'99 BE'62ECT 00'09€'SE (lg961) 008L'LL 19°086'} 1 {seeL2) 00'9t6'2 SEBIZE $30UVHO YNVE
%0000} 007826 004826 000 000 000 00°0 000 000 S1630 ave
%4g 05 00€Z0'eyz  00OvZ'Sey 000000 00'€29TE  00ET9LIT 05°00S 00ZIE'EE 091802} SLINIWSSISSY ¥SL104
%00°0S 0S'61'%2y  COBSE'BY8 | 060 0008192y 09'BLL'¥EY sz0 00060742 SL680°2HT 0% W V1Vd-0dd vS1100
%1128 169268 00°052°0} I£V602  009LY'E £9'12¢'} 69'6LY 00'758 LLhLE ONIAZAHNS B ONIYIFANIONI
%00'004 00'801'2 00'80L'Z 000 000 000 000 00'0 000 SNILVILO93IN HO8YT O3
Bututeway sgueLep aouBLIEA yabpng [enjay
S3LON 1eBpng aww__“mh_”v " mwﬂw_v_”ﬂ o | ¥#Gpna  3beng aLA aoﬂ_u_“wﬂ__u webpng poyad  polied pouad (0€) aNNd YIM3s
T RUELIEN] aia juaun) juaun) juaLng

14v3id

SZ0Z/1€/01 YSnoJyL s20T/L/0L woly
AaNN4 AS STHUNLIANIdXT pue SINNIAIY JO INIWILVLS
12141S1Aa INFWIAOHdIWI TVHINTO AHNESONDI




g =deg Nd 60:60:1 920T/6/T P18A
00°00S 00°005 z9°%er') 00°0 £9ELEL ONIAIAYNS B ONI¥IINION
9%00°004 oozt 000tz 00'0 00'0 000 000 00°0 000 SNOILYILOD3N HOgV1 o1
00°052°¢ 00°280' 16°758'2) 00'bL2 86069} WO
%9L 6 e LG} 00021 ¥2'9E8 00'62¥'C 947651 00666 9.7765°) ONILNNODOY
S3ISNIdX3 ONILVYIHO
%bLbL ozz06'e0z  00'6S6'0.2 | 9Z'66Z'TC  OU'0SEZ6 205002 e 00°206'€Z BO'€6L'LT $3ASNIAXT Q3LVITY TI0YAVd 1oL
iO/AIGH 08502 0070 0850¢ 000 000 000 000 ISNIXT ONYMOTTY YYD
%90'96 65°096 00°000' 64°962 00°9€€ Vr'6E Y9'9L 008 9’2 S3SNIdX3 TIOHAYd ¥IHLO
%0TH AN A 000007 £1'v06 00799 0099} 59’ b2 3SN3dX3 AV A3NUOOV
%2066 070904 006"} P0/900'C  00'96L'€ 9668 16162 00616 67264 JSNIdX3 §3d0
%76 L9 £e6L 00°€0L'} £E'26) 00188 19'€5¢ 000 000 000 SWHOHINN
%0000} 00'866' 00'866' 00866 00'866 00°0 00052 00052 00'0 SLI4IN38 INTNAOTIWANN
%65'18 ¥8°260°) 00222' ¥8'sY 00°08¢ 9L HEe 65'L4 0092 L9 SIS - SLI43NIE 3TA0INI
%L8'6L ZVBLELE 00'L¥2'6E ZL86L's  QD'080'EL 98'126'2 66'107 000£2'E 10'998' S43d - S1143N39 33A01dINI
%00¢. 1500671 00'29€'29 16626'C  00/8L0Z 6 LOY'LL €622} 00°2bb'9 L0126'y SNI Q3N - SLI43N38 3FA0TIN
%087. 89198') 00'68%'Z 99°002 00828 129 A 00°202 10181 2I0IWVIIS - SLI43NIA 3IA0 TN
spoued Aed ¢ [%¥9'29 ¥9'708'61 00'082'62 v9'v8T 00°092' 9ESLY's 00042 #6°061'¢ 301440 - TI0¥AVd
Jod Aed §|%15'59 12'695°CE 00'8EZ'1S 00'80'ZL 6079'14 0002y 19'699' JONVNILNIYI - TIONAVd
‘Spouid A2 € “Paj} 10U o, g 1675995 00'828°CL [£1T8 06T L9026 69'1907 00°8¥0'9 16986 YIOVNYI - TIOYAVd
suoysod Jayjo pue Juspusiuusdng suoyessdo oN
S3SNIdX3 Q31V13Y TI0¥AVd
SUNLIGNIdXA
%92'59 SEI68'IYS  00'LOV'0E8 | SO'LLL'ML 0086192  50'605'88Z fr4+ 1k 00°002'69 Le8s'kL SANNIAIY [E30L
FA7E ] EoIEVeS 0028l 18 £9°595 00926¢€¢  IE09E €Ll 95 pL)] 0028789 ¥Z0E89 $334 ¥3sn el
%96 7L EFricT 000297 EVyEl) 000vS I550% 89571 00°5er 18901 ANNIATY 335 HIISNVAL
%8E'€L G9'675°¢ 000187 (6o'12e) 00'208' €082t 98'se 00°10% 9B'%EY $334 ¥3SN NO SAILTYNId
%999 00'Z6L'Sy 00'889'89 000 00'968'22 00'968'22 000 00'%2L' 00'2L'S VIDHIWNOD - S334 HASN
%89'99 5oueg's6r  00'veQ'op.  [(GS60L) 00'888'9%C  SY'8LL'8KC {r2v9) 0022229 9215129 IVILNIQIS3Y - §334 ¥3SN
$334 ¥3sn
%9L'6L" (89°625'9) 00°619' 99°0/ZT7L  00Z8T 29°8Y1'5) £8°256'7 00'81L £8'649'C SNOINVTIIISIN 18101
%0V 18 08791 007002 0892 0079 i€ 0K 00791 (41 ANNIAIY ¥IHLO
wonisod yseo Jed sBUBYD LOJEO0(E ”Mw %M%mw %662~ (8v'269'0) 00'6y'8 BY'E0E'ZL  00'808T 8y’ LEb'S) £9'9€6' 00202 €9'869'¢ SLNAWLSIANI NO LSTHALNI
SNOANYTIEOSIN
SANNIAY
saloN P souwen - wia T e | b e potied (08 anNaA3y
1810), Juasiag 1bpng (0L 5ZAd 1F10L aLa AB9AUBLIND Ea.::w LNy waung VIO3dS TVAOIWIH MONS

14vdd

S20Z/1£/01 Ysnoiyl sZ0zZ/L/0L woid
aNN4 Ag SIUNLIANIAX3 Pue SINNIATY JO INIWILYLS
1D141S1a INFWIAOHIWI TYHINIO AHNGSONDI




6 98ed

Wd 60°60° 1 920Z/6/T =10

%99'7Z} (sosev'159)  (00°109'226) | s0°28T'ly  00°L09°28 S0'b68'82) £E°108T (o0'sze'on)  {L9°€z8's) STUNLIGNIIX3 YIA0 INNIATY $S30X3
¢ 88 OOIEETolT OUZootecy | 00956 OOTeresr  OUSIGGEL 308 [[F1LYA ¥8908°6L SIUNLIANIAXE [E10L
%61 68 ZGS0Fee,  00Z09%zy | 296569 000289 [ BEBELE 00025 wiet SASNIAXA ¥IHLO [E0L
%b6. 66 7G50vEel  00Z99%ct | 2G89s9 00089 §719c BGBEE 000z sk AVILNO TVLIdYO
$3SNId)X3 ¥3HL0
%29'08 6l0'ce8 00Z8ETS6 | TTBML 00'120°06 81°Z08'68 (68'6£2°) 00'966°25 SB'IER'LS S3SNIdXT ONILVNIO [e101
%586 8Ive0er 0085 Tl 8rveey  008HY ZCEBE Z0ve6 00S0rE 86081 W dX3 HIA
%5606 £6'6/8°€) 00092'SH £S'e0L's  00'¥80'S 1088") 19'566 00'122') £6'6L2 ddNS110N3n4 dx3 310H3A
%6028 €02Ly 00'62S £0'66 00202 1670 6y 00'SE 2008 D1ML0373 2 SYO - SILLN
%.9'99 00°005'} 000522 000 00°052 00062 050 00'88} 05284 $334 331SNUL
%E0'88 vy 00'86° 17y 00099 £5'262 (esz 00'594 £57287 T3AVAL
%56°LL 665" 002502 Sv'LEe 00'789 8528y (og'26) 002} 05892 SHYNINIAS ANY ONINIVNL
%96'29 0oLt 0079} Lo 0028 0615 100 00l 862} 3NOHdITAL
%Ly 0% AL 00°GIS'} (52898l 00'vES SL206 000 00'0 000 $39UVHD NOILYINaNd
%82 LS v zvo' 00°028' {95224} 00009 95244 (¥5g0€) 000 9808 J9V1S0d
%106 69'€09 00'899 69°€09 00'899 e 00009 00009 000 $334 GNY SLIWYId
%0162 S9'€00') 00°€LE'} S9'08 00°95% GE'69€ ¥8'00} 00vL el $311ddNS 301340
%L9'LL 00620} 00008} 00's2 00°00S 00'szy 00'sZ 00'5¢) 00°004 TVIHOLINYF 301440
%05°96 Q0'P0F's 00009 90749t 00898} ¥6'56L SLE9Y 00'29% szE SIANLIANTAXA SNOINYTIZOSIN
%00'00) 0000} 00°004 00°05 00°0S 000 0052 0062 000 INTNGINDI ALTHVS
%06’ £5'88 00'849'y £9'88 00'849'% L6568y 000 000 000 SANOS aNY JONVANSNI
%82 08 04002 00052 oLee 008 oesy 200b 00'ke 96°04 ISNIdXT ALMNO3S
%00°00} 00°000°04 00°000°0t 00°000°0L 0000004 000 000 00'0 000 SNOIS 2 $1001 'SANddNS a1314
%6¥ 79 L0012 QU'L0L'} L0°6E 00'920 £6°06¢ Sy'0z 00'1S 56°0€ VLN INFWLIND3
9%00°00} 00°00% 00°00L 0005 00'08 000 00'0 000 000 SHIVdIY LNIVW/STEdNS 'dind3
%E 9 80°297 0092 80'9EE 00'66% 26'65¢ 00'sZ 114 000 SNOILJIOSANS B 53N
_ 'S4 148N td 'V Wdl o 070 50898 ootssy  |@60107) 008 S6'S88E {Lep28')) 00052 P Ak 36N3dX3 ¥3LNANOD
0d “dfv uondudsgng [enuuy joaiqbundg
%5186 YozrLY 00°068'% vo0zs’t  00'809') %48 16048 00207 £0'1E “INIVIN ANV S¥IVda¥ ONIGINg
%2199 SrviEo} 00°009'G4 (55'8) 00°002'S §5'982'S (oeozh) 0000¢"} 0e0zy't $IOUYHO MNVE
%0000} 00°960'% 009607 00°0 000 00'0 000 000 000 slgaaave
i/AICH 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIDI 3AALNY TYAONTH MONS
%YT 6 00°089°02 00°000'62 00°089 00°000' 0002y 00089 00'000'G 00'0ZE'Y ONIONYS - TYAOWTH MONS
"J0B1jUCD SNOiALI 4j0 PSEq UOHEIOIY |%9E ¥6 o00ze'le.  ooooo'sz.  |(00089'E)  ooooO'or 00089y (00°089°¢) 00°000°0% 00°089'cY ONIMOTd - TYAONTH MONS
Bujujeway aouepEA 19Bpng asueueA — agugLeA yobpng |enjoy (09) 3INN3A3Y
S310N WOPNG e eio) czad oy | OPME WEPREALA po) saung JoBpng poliad  pouad pouad
Ejog Jusoseg o Pral atk wauny Weung  juSLN) TvI103dS TYAOWIH MONS

14vid

ST0T/LE/01 Y3noayL 520T/L/01 wold
AaNN4 A9 STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY J0 LNIWILVLS
19141514 INIFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




01 =8eq

Wd 66601 9Z0T/6/T *ed

%82 002 28°08€'2E 00°026'SS (z8zve) 00'286'81 81°6£9'8) 001 00°025' 0L've9's STUNLIANIAXI Y3IA0 INNIAIY §S30X3

bALYL] FUSEZ 08 0I6IT 73718 [LEICE7Y [ §%478 1474 0287 arIee STAUNLIANIAX3 1oL

%E9 29 A 00°Z6L%h ¥eR0F 00790971 SEI0SPH (3514 00282 19T SISNIdXT ONILYHIO [e3oL

%vS 2L €V 0EEEl 00T6FZF (58011 00EsIe 18098 00098 81207 JMLOTTZ B SYD - SALNILN

%0000} 0000 00°00% 00°002 00002 000 00°00} 0000} 000 $3I1ddNS 301440

%2589 00°00t'L 00°008°0} 00002 00°009° 00°00v'€ 00°001 00006 00008 TYIMOLINYT 301440

%950, vr6E6'Y 000002 v 002€e€2 95090 S'ShL 00'€85 §5° 267 $3UNLIANIX3 SNOINYTIROSIN

%86’} 8. 00982°¢ yi:47) 00'98L'¢ eV 000 00'0 000 SANOE ANY JONVHNSNI

%S 0L 00°5S4 00022 002 0L 0069 748 008t sz9l TVINIY LINFNINOI

%00°001 00°00% 00°00F 00002 00002 000 000 000 000 SHIVATH/ LNIVIWSIINddNS "dIND3

%€6'1L 0v'965'€ 00°000' 0v'092 00'799' 09°€0F'} 56'69 009y s0'ote "LNIVIN ONY SHIvdId ONIg NG

$3ISNIdXI ONILLYHIJO

sdnLIaNadXa|

%129 99'979'9 oo'zeL'00b (997t 00'885'CE vEOPL'EE (85°051) 00°268'8 oS SANNIAIY [E30L

AR 999290 002000 (99w 00'885'C€ vEovl'ee (ss0s1) 00°26E'8 Wwo's SNO3NVTIZOSIN [e30L

%E 19 9992979 0079200F  |(99/bb) 00'885 €€ vE'opL'ee (85°054) 00°26€'8 Trove's JWOONI VLN

SNO3NVTIFISIN
SANNAAIY
Buluiewoy jobpng  eoueueA jebpng | eouepen sousuepjebpng  jebpng [emoy (08) TVIN3Y
S3l0N {eoLweasey  eBpngelol  GZA4 (B30l (196png aLA ¥OPNE QLA [EMOV (EBA MBI b o e powiag Juang poyad JuaLg IAYHO AHNISONDI 862

14vid

SZOZ/LE/0L YSnoiyl S20T/L/0L woig
ANNd A9 STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY 30 LNIWILVLS
10141S1d INFWIAOHdIWI TYHINIO AUNGSONIDA



ANNd A9 ANV d3NIgINOO
S3UNLIANIdX3 ANV
JNAN3IAIY 40 LNIWILVIS

‘NOILISOd HSVYO
G20C H39W3AON






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

|GENERAL

A47%
L - CASH POSITION _ water 28%
NOVEMBER 2025 SEWER 20%
- |SNOW 5%
B BEGINNING | ) ENDING
FUND BALANCE __ TRANSFERS ADJUST. RECEIPTS CHECKS BALANCE
GENERAL FUND $ 8,120,698.26 | $ 347,575.29 | $ (59.73)| $ 333,682.62 | § (112,342.84)| $ 8,689,553.60
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  455,918.33 | § 12,905.06 | $ - $ e $ - $  468,823.39
GENERAL INVESTMENT $  730,231.84 | $ (360,480.35)| § - |$ 365318|% - |$ 37340467
- GF TOTAL ~|'$ 9,531,781.66
WATER FUND — $ 3,94152645|%  26,268.08 | § 107.15[$ 443,680.85 | § (627,600.94)| $ 3,783,981.59 |
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  730,723.74 | $ 16,629.40 | $ - $ = $ - |$ 747,353.14 |
WATER INVESTMENT $ 639,861.20 | § (230,006.22)| $ - $ 227262 |$ = $  412,127.60
KGID/TRPA RESTRICTED (sTationN48MPS) | § 45,430.00 | § - |$ - |$ - |8 - |$  45430.00
DIST DEBT RESERVE $ 204591.13 | $ 74,439.96 | $ - $ - $ = $ 369,031.09
TREAT DEBT RESERVE $ 44722954 |$ 112,668.78 | § - 1% - $ - $ 559,898.32
CAP IMPROV. RESERVE $ - |$ - |8 - |8 - |8 - |3 -
WF TOTAL $ 5,917,821.74 |
SEWER FUND |1$ 391248352 (% 160,217.62 | $ (4.36)| $ 179,453.14 | § (94,436.52)| $ 4,157,713.40
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | § 19,162.34 | § 672.81 | % - |8 - |8 - |8 19,835.15
SEWER INVESTMENT $  370,806.64 | $ (160,890.43) $ 1,513.85 | § - |$ 211,430.06
SF TOTAL $ 4,388,978.61
SNOW REV. FUND $ 65452520 | § 8,870.04 | § (43.06)| $  72,067.01 [ $ {80,275.46)| §  655,143.73
IRESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  232,562.57 | $ 6,732.41 | $ - |3 - 13 - |$ 23929498
[SNOW INVESTMENT 1% 25551.10 | $  (15,602.45)| $ - $ 333.02 | $ - $ 10,281.67
- SNOW TOTAL $ 904,720.38
298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL $ 30098419 | % - $ = $ 5484.94 | $ (1,916.54)| $  304,552.59 |
I 80 RENTAL TOTAL $  304,552.59
GRAND TOTALS $ 20,922,286.05 | $ - $ 0.00 | $ 1,042,141.23 | $ (916,572.30)| $ 21,047,854.98
CHECKING )
US BANK $ 286,418.31 | $ 166,979.45 $ 968,106.55 [ $ (916,572.30)| $  504,932.01 |
L US BANK MMA $ - s - $ - |$ - s -
| MORTON CAPITAL MMA $ 516,450.78 | $ (516,979.45) 1§ 777267 | § - $ 7,244.00
4.25% FIRST FNDTN BANK $  250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00 |
4.70% FLAGSTAR BANK $ 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00 |
5.10% MORGAN STANLEY BANK $ 250,000.00 | $ (250,000.00) B ) $ i
5.20% BANK HAPOALIM NEW YORK $ 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
4.00% NORTHEAST BANK CD $ 250,000.00 | § - _|$  250,000.00
- $ - |8 - L $ =
LOCAL GOVT POOLED 4.1025445% $ 18,869,416.96 | $§  600,000.00 $ 66,262.01|% - $ 19,535,678.97
GRAND TOTALS | $ 20,922,286.05 | $ - $ - $1,042,141.23 | $ (916,572.30)| $ 21,047,854.98

Page 1






I =8eq

T $0:05°T 9202/6/2 31-A

%18'SS £8'020'4b0'9 00°218'818°01 (£9°915'59) 00°CLE DY LV9BLYLLY 96'666'8) 00°€11'508 9¢°80'v28 SANNIAIY [el0L
%08'1S [¥z45A 00286 1ELL 05°SHS 1€ 00187 ¥6e € 0582 29TE 5796 00ZZL1E9 SI169TE9 $334 ¥3sN le0L
%1585 WLKETT 008612 (%43 009917 80911 Z0s 00°¢ee 862C¢C JONVHENSNI 3N 3NNAY3S
%16'LG 81668 00°08S'S 1 78'%9 00229 29°965'9 90°El 00'¥82'% 90°20€" JONVHNSNI $SOT INMNAYIS
%€0'8S LLTELY 00'256'} 628 oL 62618 020 00'€91 02e9l NNIATY NIAGY INNAYIS
%099 61128 00°009°Z} {61126 00°092°S 188227 {00-00€) 00050° 00°052 3NNIATY 334 HIISNWVAIL
%59'722- (00'get 1) 00ZIE'8L 00'8E0'vY 00'ZL¥'SE 0005%'65 00'051'62 000 00'051'62 $334 NOILOANNOD
%L9 'Ly 00002 0008 0008 00°002 00082 000 000y 00°0% $334 MOIHO NdNL3Y
%E0'eY IEIELY 00°009'6 69'89%'1 00°000'Y 69°89%'S (00009) 00°008 00°00€ SIOYYHD F0IAYIS
9%69°€9 1£'6LY'6¢ 00'066'L9 (e'21e'e 00'628'sZ 6901522 ezl 00°99L'G LV'688'G $334 ¥IASN NO SIILTYNId
%8569 £8'000'L6 00°0ZL'EVL (£8'066'81) 00°0k'42 1161128 (85vpL'5L) 00'952'61 I8 NOLLJWNSNOD TWIDHIWNOD
%EE'85 OLELE'YS 00°2€4'%6 06' 00'722'6€ 06'622'6€ 820 00tHe'L 8L ¥8'L NOILOALO¥d 34 WIDHIWA0D
%EE'8S 9£'896'9.2 00'28L Ly (ge't) 00°628'261 99°6Z8'264 (zz0) 00'695'6€ £L'795'6E IVIDYINNOD - $334 938N
%12°8G 16'€28'09 00'¥6¥'v0} 60'ZEL 00'8E5'ey 6009y 68'€Z 00'802°8 68'1EL'8 NOILO3LO¥d Txid TYILNIAISIY
%2LTS 99'856'2€ 0000022 {99'861'7}) 00'0ve'8y PEIO'E (62'659) 00°022 109 NOILAWNSNOS € ¥3IL TYILN3AISTY
%Py 05 98°008'vE 0000089 {og'08L'2) 00081y 1'669'CE (60v22) 00'09€"L 16569 NOILJWNSNOD Z ¥3IL TYILN3AIS3H
%1185 1G'EES'902 00°00¥'sS€ (1526412} 00'¥90'04) 6v'998'874 (r2'%50'9) 00'962'02 9zl NOILANNSNOQ | ¥3iL TYILNIQISTY
%1588 9€°000'789'€ 00'282'9629 (9c'928'01) 00'€99'629°C ¥9'98L'2192 {91'666'7) Q0°26LYeS v8'2L2'125 TYILNIAIST - $334 ¥3SN
$334 ¥3asn
%50°9G 20°0/2'858 00°€10'966 86'bLLL 00'596'62F 96'98L° 26V 96280’ 00'715°08 95°152'98 SNOANVTIIDSIN lel0L
ST EF ZVBEIE 0005022 95°971 21 007924 950LY'ET 00'€62' 00'¥52Z 00°2¥0'8 3NNIATY YIHLO
%6885 5 LPE'6S 00°292'00} (vg655) 00'686'LY oY'STy LY (88'144) 00268 Zi'sez'e JINOONE WINTY
%0007 {00°008) 00052’} 00058 00'006 000821 00°000't 000 00°000' 334 MIINTY NV
%26'5S 90'662'0Ly 00°0v6'L¥8 ¥6'7€€'02 00'948°05E ¥6'051'12€ logerz')) 00'€91°0L 7'6L6'89 SINFWLISIANI NO LSTHILNI
%0001 00°000'6Z 00°000's2 {00000'52) 0000062 000 000 000 000 LNYH9 ¥d3 30UN0S LNIOd NON 61€
SNO3NVTIOSIN
%TI8Y 15'86'910°) 00'228°060' (Leerl'1y) 00°290'941'} 69°€2E'PL0°L S0°€ES0L 002526 S0°S0L'€0} $aAXVL 1101
%EE 65 S8V0L T8IV 00767 €08 St 0088 7EE G168LTEE 110 00°856'99 £875699 NOILNGRLSIA XYL 3LVLS
A I A 74 00°€8.'685 (G8'Z64'64) 00'892'65€ SL'S/5'0E 880587 00'962'L4 88'9v9'0} dN-IHYN WFHOTVAQY
%68'66 98'659' 00°299'9 {98'29) 00°S. L 00°0 000 000 X¥1 ALd3d0¥d TYNOSH3d
%SCTh 61'676'L6C 00'828'069 {se8¥'22) 00'9EY' 12y $2'756'86¢€ ¥£'789' 00'8L8EL ¥£°006'64 SAXYL WIHOTVAQY
S3xXvL
SANNIATY
Buujeway
«mm.v_._m aosuelep 186png aoueLep 108png LA [enjoy aoueuep 3e6png jeBpng 1enjoy
{101 Jus213d jebpng [e301 STAd [eloL jobpng g1A JegpJuaung | pousad juaun)  pousdjusun)  polidd juduLngy

14vid

ST0Z/0E/1L1 Ysnoayl szoe/L/ L1 wold

SIHUNLIANIdX3 pue SINNIAIY 0 INFWILVIS
12141S1A INFWIAOHIWI TVHIANIO AUNESOND




7 w8ed

d S0-05°T 9T0T/6/T e

%L.5'66 LB'E0S'6C 00'0£9'6¢ 19°€T1'62 0005262 61921 0005 0005 000 SN9IS ¥ S1001 ‘SANddNS a1314
%¥2'€9 TrSEr's 00Z08'7) Zr0LS 00°2€6'G 85'99€'S 0019 157202 WWLNIY LNINLIND3
%l L9 Z£'696'85E 00064962 76897 00'68%'00} 89°908'24 69'5¢9'S 005828} LE'65HE} SHIVaFY/ LNIVW/STINddNS "dINDA
%LP¥9 15'6v€'04 00°€50'0L 152£0'8 00'LrL'EL 6€0L'S 000 000 000 SNOILIMOSENS ? S3Na
%pLCe £2°85E'EE 00248404 00'00€'eS 11'676'89 £LTsH'e 00'r¥8'S 18168 ISNIdX3 HALNANOD
%\ 76 00'LEL'L9 0004 1L 002¥9'5T 0002962 00626 £Y6LE'S 00'526'G 16609 "INIVW ONV SHIVd3d ONIQINg
%.5'LS 64610'09 00052 04 0'veEr'er KA A 00'889'8 716668 S3OYVHO MNVE
%00°001 00°90€'2Z 00'90€'22 00000'€Z 00°000'€Z 000 00'000°€Z 00°000'€C 000 s183aavd
%12°08 00°€Z9'evT 00'9vz sy 00°000°} 00'€29'242 00'€29'4¥T 000 000 000 SINIWSSISSY ¥S110a
%0008 056242y 00'65€'88 050 00°08}'vZ¥ 05644 'vey 000 000 000 02 W YLVH-0dd vS110d
i0/NIG# 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIOI AA/ILNY TVAOWIL MONS
%9428 0002859 0000062 00°02¢e 000052} 000816 00'0¥9'2 00°005"2 00'098'% ONIANYS - IYAOWIY MONS
%2088 00°08)'789 00000622 00'08}'L 00000001 00'028'26 0009801 00'000'09 000F1 6t ONIMOTd - TYAOW3H MONS
%C6'L8 50'695'6€ 00°000'Gy 50'590'4¢ 00'005°z¢ S6'VEY'S 000 000 000 S3NddNS ® FIONYNILNIVIN OvOd
%1996 a0'12¢') 00'000°02 00°12€'9 00°000'2) 00649 000 000 000 A9VYNIVEA ANV NOISOY3
%5218 6Z'159'69 00002's8 T4 AV 00'162'5E GL8¥S'S) 05°026'€ 00'850°2 057261 ONIATAMNS 2 ONIYIINIONT
%00°00} 0070072} 000072} 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILYILODIN ¥08v11voa1
%25'LS §8'/8Y'cE 00'000'59 (51 6z0'h) 00'€80'£2 SLTIS'IE 008102 00°2LY'S 00'66E'C oI
%9E' Y 15697 00'00¢'€9 leyvve'2) 00'Z6£'85 £'969'09 009286 §7'18.'82 ONILNNOJDY
S3SNIdX3 ONILYYIdO
%18°LL 96°IPE28') 00'929'665°C 96°916°0VE 007151650°) POPETTLL GE'266'E8 00786902 SO'9V0°'eT) SASNIdX3 A31V13 TI0¥AVd [BjoL
A 05t 000 ISNIXI JONVMOTIV HYD
%¥69L 12'661'S 000029 WZHS' ) 00°9SD°E 6L 7S 90'221 00262 ¥6¥9L S3ASNIIX3 TTO8AVd Y3HIO
%2269 G6'785°GH 0000522 §6'554'C 00°'1LE% S0'516'9 [N A 00'628'} ASNIdX3 3AYIT A3NYOJV
%8564 S9'EEL'Y 00'265°08 S99LL'LL 00'525°EE §£'85%°9) EEETV'E 005429 19'162°C JSNIdX3 8340
%EY L 16758 001092 Hb 162187 00088'S £0°200' 000 SL'49T SWHOLINN
%0000} 00°286'6} 002866} 00°ZZe'8 00Zze'8 00 00999’} 00'999'} 000 S1i43NIF LNIWAOTAWANN
%8698 22588 1 000ze'el Wt 00298'c 8LvEL') 19204 00'¢ed (2744 SIS - S1143N38 33A0TdNT
%08"2L GE'652'76C 00'60€'92€ GE'8ET'EL 00'98.'95} SO'6rS'ER S9'S00'v} 00'6SE"LE SE'ESE'LL SY3d - S1143NT8 FFA0TINT
%LB8'CL 1€'152'E8E 00'02£'925 1£208'eL 00'921'942 6981921 218002} 00°0:6°0% B8'196'EC SNI "G3N - SLIJINITE FFAOTdWI
%8229 £0viL'S) 0059v'2C £0'000' 00'15¢'6 1605€°2 Sy'v0L 00'148°) S5'991°) 103NVl - SLI43N3G 3IA0TdWE
%009 01'506'24} 00112561 012807 00'8ee'L8 06'50€"22 90T 00'292'9) 6E9EL'Y) 301440 - TIOHAYd
%2559 10'99'9kp 00952189 10'186'8Y 0019082 66'640'562 vZ189'kk 00'€18'9S 9L LEV'Sy JONVNILNIVIN - TIOHAYd
%81'9L 99'LI6'vPY 00'900't8S 99°86Z'70L 00°ECE'erT vE'v60'661 0°056'0¢€ 00°289'8Y 96°9LL'L) HIDVYNYIN - TI0HAYd
S3ISNAAXT 3LV TI0HAVd
SUNLANINE
Bujureway
wohipng aouelep 1o6png asueuep 19Bpng QLA lemoy aoueyep 196png 1efipng lemay
€301 Jua3Jad yobpng |ejoL GZAd [€30) 196png QLA Jea) Jusung pouad Juaung  pouddusund  poldd jueund

14vid

G20Z/0E/ 1L Usnoay) sZoz/1/1L 1L woid

SIUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY JO INIFWILVYLS
10141510 INFWIAOHdWI TYHINIO AUNGSONDI




¢ w8eq

A $0°05°T 9T0T/6/T 918

%8Z 8L {6t°569'719%) (oo'b52'2L'D) 6b°88L°LL6 (00ph2'siv'd) (156509551} 15°016'98C 00°05€°9Y ls09z'eee SUNLIANIAXT ¥AAO INNIATY $S30X3
PALEZ] TN L TS0L 286 WHEETITL LEE AT eI 0TIl STTBI 06V STUNLIANIAXT lel0L
%22 79 FAIEIN] 00°080'109 (PR 443 00°C6F 2GLC VLTELSErE TV es5 60k [T TS FB0LLSL S3SNAdXE ¥IHIO [el0L
|%PE¥ Gy 9209 D0'S9EI9ED GV 66E BIE 00090'859° GG099BEET Tc€ce'80l 00°000'S91 £9941°%5 AVILNO TWLIdYO
%98'65 el 00'G16'2€2 y8°629' 00'ZEL'66 91'208's6 SLULEL 00'028'6} STY60'6L ISNIAXT LSTHALNI
%00°004 (0o00z'e) {o000z'e) 000 000 000 000 000 000 1¥S0dSia NO SSOUNIVD
S3SNIdX3 ¥3HLO
%2979 1026£'699'¢ 00°Z18'748'S L0°65L°BLE 00'Ph2'508°T £6¥SS81'T 17N 41473 00°€56'99¢ 9T'0L'Z62 S3SNALX3 ONILYEIAO [E10L
%5895 87726918 00°S0F S5 ¢ {eceeze) 0001778 AR (7474 00Zva8ek Y6 V809t ISNIAX3 NOILYIOFUAIA
%E€"94 0z'25L' 00'65}°8 0z 00°00%'¢ 08'266'€ 0 00089 95629 SANOE 40 NOILYZILIONY
%6215 76'e62°27 00°957'28 {87'208'S) 00'5SE'¥E 8y'Z9L'0p yaev8'y 00'1L8°9 9'7e0'T dX3 WALSAS INTWLYIHL ¥3LYM
%11'96 ST YILYL 00100L'2L GZ'66E'62 00'52€'2€ G166 6£'602°9 00'5¥'9 19'692 JSNIdXT WILSAS LSIO HILYM
%810k 00°€68'} 00°005'8L 00°¢88't 00'005'8% 00°219'04 000 000 000 LNTWOYNVI OTHS YIMIS/HTLYM
%.8'CY 00'yhLL 00'€85"2} (001452 00'82€"L 00'698'6 00°082 00'59%'} 00612 ONITAWYS/ONIHOLINOW HALYM
%68'L6 12°092'58 00'0E€'€6 gV 00'988'6€ £2'695'2 £°926'G 00822, 99'158') WY dX3 HIA
%468 15°762'0€1 00'865'25} 1SBLL VY 00'285'¢9 6v'€08'1Z ¥5°229'0) 0ULLLT) 9v'6807 ddNSI0MANd dx3 310IHIA
%S v9 L£'6GL°06} 00°662'S08 LE'908'ET 00°9v0'ZE} £9'6€5'804 97'€8l'2 0071942 ¥90EY'2Y OR10313 B SYD - SALNILA
%EE'8S 00'042'92 00°000'Gy 000 00'052'8} 0005284 00°0 00'052°¢ 00'084'€ $334 33LSNAL
%0526 St915'6h 00°001'12 SrY0eL 00'982'8 55685} 00652 00'652'} 000 TIAVEL
%SY 18 SE'IGLLE 00'029'6€ SE'0L8°01 00'6€8'74 S9'89Y'Y 00'896' 00'8962 000 SHYNIWIS ANY ONINIVHL
%10°09 S0E8Z0) 00'9EL'2) S0'€82 00'9€L'2 56'258'9 566 0082t} 69'GEE’} INOH4TTAL
%26'88 AN AA) 00°000° AN N4 00'916' 88'SLL (1eozt) 00'€8S 12802 $1001 TIYNS/STNAdNS dOHS
%6L'99 75666 006208 el 00'PLP'E 8v'189C {00'669) 00°04¢ 00’66 S39UYHO NOILYONENd
%8509 89°G/8', 00°000°E} 89789't 00'608'9 R7ARY 00°280C 00280 000 JOV1SOd
%E 83 §5'9pE'9 00'6.8'04 55'25¢') 00'06£'S SYZES'Y €86 00°002 12109 $334 ANV SLINY3d
%80°€8 GR'EBS6H 00'L28'cC 58'198' 00'6v8'6 1286 £2'987') 00°066' AN $3NddNS 391440
%5279 00°00¥'5C 00'008'0% 00°009't 00°000°} 00°00¥'S) {0000L) 00°00¥°€ 00°005€ TWINOLINYF 301440
%EY 18 86'50¥'vE 00°€56'6€ 8625’1 00°00%'9k 2016y 790952 00'6Le'e 8e'8LL SFUNLIANIdXT SNOINYTIIOSIN
%02 €8 00'9Ly 00°005 009y 00°00S 00'%8 00'8LL 0009} 00z $334 NAIN
%00°00% 00°000'0¢ 00°000°0¢ 00°000'G} 00°000'G1 000 000 000 000 INIVI 2 dIvd3y ¥313N
%9T Ly 18'6E°9 00°005'sH {£1509) 000058 1601’6 (00'952} 000 00'952 SLMYd AJOLNTANI
%0000} 00004} 00°00'k 00°052 Q0082 000 000 000 000 INTWAINDA ALAVS
%868 06°26L'E) 00'EEZ'9P) 0E'SkY'Z 00'+¥S'SEL 0L'S60'SE} {r0'8) Q0228 ¥0'ES") SANOS ANY FONVANSNI
%009 So'orLEL 00'208'12 G9'850'} 00712 GE'659'8 0519} 00'€86 05428 3SNIdXT ALIMNO3S
Bulureway
JoBpng aaueleA jebpng aouelIep 1eBpng QLA |enjoy soueuep Jabpng 1eBpng [emoy
(E101 Ju8218g 396png je30) SZAd leoL j9bpng LA Jeapjualngd | pousdjuaun)  poliddjuaun)  poliad jualngy

14vid

S20T/0E/1 L USnoay)L s2ozT/L/1 1L woid

S3HNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY 30 INIJWILVYLS
10141S1a INFWIAOHdIWI TVHINTO AYNESONDA







1 #%8d

A #0°€5°T 9T0T/6/T P¥RA

%9416 1TV Ly 00'00L1S 1T08zLL 00TVEle TN A A A 00'60E'F SLT01 ONIAZAYNS B ONIZIINIONT
%00°004 00219’} 0049 000 00'0 00'0 000 000 000 SNOILYILODIN ¥0av] o1
%8688 821682 00052 82'966 00'65¢"} 72858 16'691 00'L22 £0'104 WO
%98y 81°8El 00°0LL'e (28’111} 000262 78'1e0'e {9036} 00' 161 90'6EY'l ONILNNOJOY
$3SN3dXA ONILYH3dO
%p00L ocgaploy  009LK'OsE  |esuzsvp  00ORZOSL  PRTLLSH 86°S06€) 00'165°1€ 79'689'2) SISNIAX3 A3V TI0¥AVd [B10L
|%esvs [0 00008 [ TO0VEE) {e8€%e) 0079 0078 000 3SNIdXT FJONYMOTIY HvD
%0'86 18096 00000 18'462 00'1€8 616E £0°291 00'29) {e00) S3ISNIdX3 TIOUAVd HIHIO
%v0'€6 Y'9See 00°005° Tt Q09st't 95°EhZ (22°801) 00262 10°00% 3SNIdX3 AV Q3INHIIY
%28'88 09'508'6 00°0%0'} 09°G98°E 000097 Ao AR 00026 88'9%2 3SNIAdX3 8340
%b6'99 L0084} 00°€9L") L0662 00288 £6'285 000 000 000 SIWHO4INN
%00°00} 00'866'2 00'866'2 00'8¥2'} 00852’ 000 00052 00'062 000 S1143IN38 INFWAOTININN
%92 6L 186V 00'GHL'e 18652 a0'zLe 1769 2209} 00022 €68 SIS - SLI4ANTE FIA0TINI
%90°9L $9'¥86'2€ 00'6£6'6Y §9°058'8 00°508°0Z GE¥E6'} 866" 00194 whHee S¥3d - S1143N38 34013
%8E'59 LLPZ'0s 00'6v8'9L LpL0'S 00'649'1€ 68'709'0¢ gLzl 00'600°9 1298y SNI "GN - SLI4AN3E FTAOTHNA
%015 Ve 00'82L'¢ (85°€91) 00'155') 8 PILL Tregl ouLie BS Lyl 2IGIN/YOI - SL143N3E 33A0 TN
%009 LLp89'2L 00°082'62 P09 000022} 68'G65'}H YSBIE 00'0¥'C 9’ 0ghT 301440 - TI0HAVd
%PL P9 88'L¥S'L 00ZEL'SLL | 886LEL 00°026'LY ZL065°0F 78068y 007656 81'092' JONYNILNIVIN - TIOHAVd
%81°92 LLIEL' 00'209'/8 LU6E9'GL  00005°9€ €T798'0C vrZve'y 00700, 95°£697 YIDYNYIN - TIOUAVd
S3ISNIdX3 Q3LV13Y TIOUAVd
S3¥NLANAA
%60'8% £OGIB'S6H'L  00°THE'SOPT | 222811 00P8Z'ONT' L L£99V' LT} £5'952°9) 00'GL9'8L} £5°198'vEl SINNIATY V101
| %09 % FCLC6EL 000G eve | 89GC6er  00ZIZOcl  89EYLELL WIS 00°EP0°9E BYOSLIE SNO3INVTIIOSIN V101
%00°00F 000007 00000°F 0021 A% 000 00°€E 00c8 007 INNIATY YIHLI0
il O STE WU USEEL  O00ZSLE | S9TEEr  000086TL  BYTRLELL 8r96Ls 00'096'S2 81'95L'1E SINTWLSIANI NO 1STHAINI
yses Jod sBusyd uoyeoole %/ © jebpng
SNOANVTIZISIN
%29'8y CB6P'OL0'L  00Zz8'060 |(LEERLLE)  00'290°0LM)  69'EZEPLOL 50°¢ES’0l 002576 S0'S0L'E0) $3XVLIVI0L
AT S@y0leoy  Ooveveos | SIT 00GBLTEE  GHBBLPEE 710 00785699 £8Z5699 NOILNERILSIA XYL 3LV1S
%SC Y cg/0z'ez  00'68'68s  |(G8ZBL'BL)  0U'B9L'BSE GHSLGOVE 98'098'y 00'96L'L} 88'9V9'9L NIV WTRIOTVAQY
%B8'66 98'659'9 00°299' (0g°29) 0052 L 00°0 00°0 000 XVL AL3d0Yd TYNOSH3d
%GT TV G/'Sz6'l67 00828069  |(GL€8v?Z)  o0'9erlEy  SZTTS6'86E ¥£'289'G 00'818'EL ¥E'005B1 SIXVL NIHOTVAQY
saxvl
SaNNaATY
mz_:a_msmm LTI yofipng asuelep 6 |enjay soueuepjebpng  Jefipng |enjoy
SLEN oL oo VEPT@IEIOL  SZAd 0L |12Bpng QLA WOPMEAIA  yeopjuaung | pouodIuaUND Poed WAL PONa JUALIND (0£) aNn4 Tvd3N3O

14vid

GZ02/0€/1 1 Ysnolyl s2oT/L/1L 1L woid

aNN4d A9 STYNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY 40 INFWILVIS
19141S1a INFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDA




Z o8eg

W #0-£$°T 9202/6/T 1BQ

%91l (orgis'vel)  (o0'0bz'220'y) |obzi9'ast  (00°p6e'o0’) (06'12L°288) 6£°915°68 00°0Z0°0Z 6£°95°60 STUNLIANIAX3 ¥IA0 INNIATY $530)3
TITTE EITerO6eT OocesGerc |ETesrIst O0GIdcece ITealGere SEe9C €L [ 2K 1014 SFUNLIANIAX3 Iejol
SR T77or0z  0000C908¢ |Iz98vOFr  O00OFCg66t ELISLIS6T 9396205 00700058 vreasy SASNIdX3 ¥IHLO IE10L
%3e 6C ITY5v0c8  00902'808C | ZZEevor 000728660 EL1SLZ861 98°9E¢ 05 00°000'SS Preely AVILNO TVLIdYO
SASNIAX3 YIHLO

%82'98 06'S.b'68L  00°00Z°1€Z | 06'CZpZOL  00'SBLMEL  OLPILLE Wwe 0040021 8€'9287 $3SNIdX3 ONILYYIJO leloL
%22 58 986821 00°800°GH V0T 00€529 yreiee £8G90'F oA IIsel W8Y dX3 HIA
%¥8'29 18'L5€'01 00°092Sh 1B0SY') 00'65E'9 61806 90°€90' 00242' 6'802 ddnSriornand dx3 J10MHIAA
%0y 89'Lre 00'62§ {ze's) 00812 ze228 {s1-ge) 00°9% 5118 DIYL0373 8 SV - SALITILN
%EE 85 05TIE"} 000822 050 00'8¢6 05'2€6 050 00'88) 05281 $334 331SNAL
%0000} 00082z 000822 00°2€6 00°266 000 00'881 00'88L 000 T3IAVHL
%5976 STEL'Y 0092y SZOLLL 00'696't SLese 00'¥6€ 00'76E 000 SUYNINIS ANY ONINIVYL
%¥6'65 (AW 0094 Lo 00'69 6879 Lo 00l 6624 INOH4313L

- %8196 18964} 00°08)'1 18157 007005 el'sy 00052 00052 000 $IDUYHO NOILYOINENd
%619 69'201 00'29) 69201 00294 LE'¥9 000 000 000 $334 NV SLINY3d
9%9E'€6 SUBl'L 00'785°1 SL¥55 00099 SZ'S01 0'LLl 00°2el 6°02 $31ddNS 391440
%EEEY 00°066 00006t 0062 00°629 00058 000 00°5ZL 0052} VIO LINYP 301440
%50'86 Z0'E6E°0L 00°009'04 0UTY 00'6LY'Y 96902 96°18 00'€88 vO'LL S3ANLIANAdXT SNOINYTIIOSIN
%00°00% 007008 00008 00°00S 00°008 000 000 000 000 ININAIND3 ALFHYS
%06'} €588 0089’y €588 00819y 17855y 000 000 000 SANOA aNY 3ONVINSNI
%98'69 L6t 00°002 L0 00'18 8209 209 00°LL 86°01 3SNIdXT ALMNDIS
%9€'66 186056} 00'0£9'64 LB'E2L'6L 000526l 61921 0005 0005 00°0 SNOIS 8 S1001 ‘$3IddNS @134
%18'65 Zrove 007ZLy A4 00221 85591 (v o) 007 rve TYLNIY INIWIND3
%2128 9z'88L'Y 00004 9zelet 006242 YL L1UGiE 00°Szy €260} SHIVATY/ LNIVI/STddNS "dIND3
%E5 79 0Ly 00°0eL 80'18¢ 00'0v9 76'852 000 000 000 SNOILJIMOSENS % $3NA
%ST 65 0656 00986y (1437 006202 021602 6Ll 00°S LY 8.'G6z ISNIdXT YALNDWOD
%1686 96°SE8'7) 00°000'51 96'580°9 00°052'9 YO¥9) 09'6E2'} 00052t 0r'oL “LNIVIA ONY SHIVd3Y ONIATING
%Z6'L8 S0°695'6€ 00°000°6? 60'480'2z  00°005'2€ S6'VEY'S 000 00°0 000 S3NddNS 2 JONYNILNIVA Qv0d
%19'96 00'1Z¢'61 00°000°02 00'lze'9L 0000021 00629 000 000 000 JOVYNIVEQ ONY NOISOY3

m:w:a_muom aoueuUBA 1ebpng aouelep 6obn lemoy aoueuep j3abpng  jefipng |enjay (01)
S3L0N _SM.F u“wmhwm uwmu__m |ejol GZAd IBIoL ﬁmvzm alA 1sbpna LA lea) juaun) polidd Jualind poliad Juslnd poliad jusin)d Qh Qz:l Q§WZNQ

14vid

SZ0Z/0E/1L1 Ysnoiy) sZoz/L/LL woig
AaNNd A9 STUNLIANIdX3T Pue SINNIATY J0 INJWILVLS
L10141S1d LNIJWIAOUdIWI TVHINIO AHNGSONI




£ @8ed

A #0'€5°T 9T0T/6/T 18

%206. WIS008L  O0ESB'UZZ  |ZpSELlr 00666 85°108'LY Zeees's 00'886'84 8LYO¥0L S43d - SLIHAN3E IFA0TN3
%SG 5L VIOVS'IEZ  O0'EOY'90E | ¥L€ST'S  00'002'92h  98EE6'vL 50'6Y0'2) 00'250'%2 562007} SNI "GN - SLI43N3E TA0TWT
%9 69 ¥2'980'6 00'756°H yLLY'Y 00°'G6€'S 9T LI6'E 0€'0¥E 00'620° 0L'8EL DIQINVOIA - SLi43NIE FIAOTINT
%01 09 Z9HoM Ly 00'£80'8L 79°619') 00'8€5'2E 8£726'08 vress 00'£08'9 95959’ 321440 - TIOHAYd
%299 yeezETre  00'98E'SIS | vESY'ly  00EWLWIT 99'/S0'€Ll ¥8'6£8'9 00'6¥6°TY 91°601'9€ JONYNIALNIVIL - TIOYAYd
%0€"LL WYBY'0Z  00'9S9'89Z | 1r'996'0S  00'0¥B'LLE  65146'09 TTLOE'SH 00'88€'22 82°080°2 HIDYNYI - TIOUAVS
S3SNIdX3 GILVTIY TI0¥AVd
S3UNLIONIAX3
%588 sLsoL's  opzizeny's [VOLZVSE) ODLAS'ONET  GEER6'092Z (e2¢aL't) 00'vZ0‘0vY 1T09z'sty SIMNNIATY [e10L
891§ I9T01'006C 0D GLPOE0S (79'091°9¢) 000y e9L'c EESIEOELE 0Z'98L L 00°sbL 60v 08'85¢°L0% §334 ¥3sn [B10L
%15'85 7zT2e9'l 00862 (749 0099 g0kt ) 00°tee (1§24 JONVENSNI AN INFAYIS
%L6'LS 91'066' 00'0ES'G) 7819 0029 78'965'9 el 00621 90°20€'} JONVHNSNI SSOT 3NMAYIS
%E0'BS LLTEL) 00'286'F 628 00'L18 62618 020 00°€94 04€9) INNTATH NINQY INNAYIS
%01 €9 11O 00'808"L (1e'8ye) 00'SH0' £9'969' (Gz'9u4) 00'609 526V INNIATY 334 ¥3LSNVHL
%z 08 Dogss'sz) 00Ty 00'88Z'8C  00ZM0'El 00'00€" LY 00°00¥'22 000 0000722 $334 NOILOANNOD
%9 Ly 00002 0008y 0008 00°002 00°082 00°0 00°0% 000k $334 %03HO NUNLIY
%EQ'EY LEVELY 000096 9'897'} 00000y 69'897'S {00°008) 00'008 00'00€ SIOYVYHO IDINETS
%6219 £8'866'SZ 00°02y'zr (egege't) 00'629'ZL JANTA ! STI6L 00'GES'E STZEEY $334 ¥3SN NO SAILTYNI
%l£Z9 TT9v5'89 0000004 |lZ297L'Sl)  00002'LS BLESY LY (1ge9z'sh) 000092t B1'9EET NOILJWNSNOD TVIDH3WNOD
%EEBS OLELE'YS 00°2E1'Y6 06’ 00'222'6¢ 06'€22'6¢ 8.0 00'8'L BLYY8'L NOILOFL10%d 344 TVIDHINN0D
%EE'BS ge'gezie 009s0%9e  |(SeE) 00'069'1SL  59'/89'151 (va) 00'9E€'0E £9'26€'0E TVIOHINNGD - $334 ¥3sN
%1285 16'€28'09 00BYH0L | 60ZEL 00'8ES e 60'029'cr BeeL 00'802°8 68°16L'8 NOILOTL0¥d Fulld TVILN3QISTY
%2L TS 99'856°LE 0000022 (09'861'7L)  0O'0OVE'SP ¥E10'YE (62'659) 00°022 1209 NOILAWNSNOD € H3IL TYILNIQISTY
%¥b 05 98°00€'¥E 0000089 (9g'082'2) 00°08%' LY 1'669'CE (B0'vzL) 00°09€' 16'G€9 NOILJWNSNOD Z ¥3IL TVIINIAISTA
%80°LS ogY0g /8L 00°000'62€  |(989Z29L)  000Z6LGE  PL'S6MIYL {v2'866') 00°0vL Bl 92 1bL'p) NOILJWNSNOD | HaIL WILNAAISTY
%09'85 S1izszee oozes'esr'e |(Syvrl'0l)  00'G0B'08STE  §8°099'0S°L (a2 h4] 00'L91'91E BLO0YELE TYILNIQIST - §334 ¥3sN
§334 ¥a3sn
%¥0°L9 ve'699'coz  00'gsz'oee  |(PE'00Z'6Y)  00'SEe'6LI  90°8Z9'OEL (€5°2262) 00'628'0¢ W06 SNOINVTIZOSIA (€301
%198 BT 00°05€ ¢ ve09zr 000950k WL BrEIS Wehe §vSee L 3NNIATY JIHIO
%0006 (o0gze) 0006 00'5Z9 00°008 00’524} 00'SZ9 000 00529 334 MAIATY NYId
e edeie swmm«uuww\www@ﬁmwm %0269 Qr7ogsEs  0BGISYE  |IBY6SY)  oSeEerl  ZSSEESOh (1L09Lr'e) 0029282 66105E'6) SINJWLSIANI NO 1STH3LNI
2 Ad PajeidLL0d JHI 8S08PUOK |%00°00} 00°000'62 00°000'sZ (00000'52)  00°000'6Z 000 00 000 000 LNVH9 Vd3 30MNOS LNIO NON 6LE
SNO3NVIT130SIN
SINNIATY
mc_:m_azsum agueuep yebpng asueueA 6 |enyoy aoueuep jebpng  1e6png lemoy (02)
S3loN _SM_.. «”om._a d 9bpng 0101  SZAd [E0L [19Bpng QLA TaaE QiR Jedj Juaung | poudd JU3LN) poldd Juaund polad juauny 02} GNN4 H3LVM

14vid

STO0T/0E/LL YsnoiyL SgoT/L/LL wold
ANN4 A€ STUNLIANIXT Pue SINNIAIY J0 LINTJWILVLS
10141S1a INFWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




¥ 8ed WA PO E5°T 970T/6/T PRA

%8965 69'850'6 00'08}'GH 69°€0Z 00'62€'9 1E'1ZH9 95°08 00'59Z°} ey 3NOHdITAL
%2688 AR /AL 00'000'2 zron'e 009167 88'62L 00°E8S 12E0L $100L TIVWS/SAITddNS dOHS
siojessdQ JojeM |%eE 8y 99'085°} 00'08L'E (ve'c9p) 00°084'} YEEP9') 000 00’66 $30uYHO NOILYOITENd
%2y 19 16161y 00092'9 6'160') 00°002°¢ 90'8097 00'020't 00°020°4 000 IDV1S0d
%2€'85 66'029' 00'6£9'6 66165 00085y 1080y £2'86 00°002 L2109 $334 ONV SLIWNAd
%81€8 18%90'4} 00'6£2'€h 18662 00°0£5's £V HETT 66°1¥8 00'90L'} L0'p9e $37ddNS 301440
%EEE9 00°00%' 14 00'000'8} 00'006 00'005'2 00'009°9 000 00°008'} 00°005'} TVIIOLINVT 01440
%9448 €6'G1L°8 00°000°04 £6'788'2 00'69}% 20182°1 65002 00'€E8 LrZEl STINLIANIAAX3 SNO3NYTIFOSIN
%0Z'€8 00'9L¥ 00'005 00'9LY 00°005 00'%8 0081k 00094 00y $334 N3N
%0000} 00°000°08 00°000°0¢ 000006 00°000'Gk 000 000 000 000 INIVIA 3 ¥IVdId 9313N
%E b 18'059'9 00°000'6} (&1 6E) 00°000'8 EL6YE'S 000 000 000 S1dvd AHOLNIAN
%00°00} 00'00G 00008 00002 00'002 000 000 000 000 ININAINDT AL3AVS
%ZL b 160VETH 00'€9z's0L | £6'8%9') 00'L25'%6 £0'726'26 {v08) 002281 ¥0'SES') SANOE ONY JONVANSNI
%18'99 0¥6LL'8 00'8Y5'Y) 07'158') 00°089'9 09'928'Y 0624 00SLY 86'58¢ 3SNIdXT ALRIND3S
%0t €9 S0'198G 0042’6 50'70E 00'889'€ SE'ERE'E (61 0079 667 TVINZH INIWCIND3
‘suone)s
16 eoauBuRuIEyy JoysmBugxg a1 3| BLETL 9£'889'H 0005191 9E'BYO0'Y 000158 19197y (60°0¢1'2) 00°0¥Y 60045 SHIVIIH/ LNIVW/SIddNS dIND3
Jojens)3 Juaiweaiby soimaS aoususuRH
%Z¥'29 16°€E0'9 009996 16'40L'Y 00'£65'8 60°2E9E 000 00°0 000 SNOILAIMOSANS 2 S3NA
%697E [FAIR7A 0019202 (62529'6) 00'L92'9€ 6°988'GY Zv'120T 00'000'% 85'826't ISNIdX3 HILNAINOD
%v8'68 0L'9vE'EL 00658t 010897 00'6849 06'805° §2°860') 00'862'} 21664 “INIYW NV SdIVd3d ONIQTING
%.9'25 BSZEL'0E 00'062'€S (17 vse) 0060222 W' 18522 00' Loty 05°'985'Y S3IOUVHD INVE
%00'00} 00'926°c} 00°9Z6'¢ ) 00'0000L 000000} 000 00'000°0} 00°000'0% 000 sid3aava
%5169 86°£98'G} 0008222 86'965' 00'6L'6 20'788'9 00°205 00'G68' 00'88€"} ONIAFAANS B ONIYIINIONT
%00'00} 00°0¥b'2 00°0bY'L 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILYILOD3N HOEY1 WO T
suwiel) poojd|%9e L. Sv'8e8'4Z 00°000'6¢ Sv'9L0's 00'05Z'9} SSLLLLL B8LZv8 00'052'€ T LorT BLREL
%9y L1'859') 00'00'8E (B8avet) 00'9€0'SE 68'186'9¢ 00'968' 8189221 ONILNNOODY
S3SNIdX3 ONILYY3dO

%bTZL 15°S0Z'p20°)  00°26'08Y'L | G'EEE'G0Z  00'SSO'B19  EYIZLTMY 56'228'sY 00'LZE 12l 0’86622 SASNAdX3 CALY1TY TI0HAVd 101
%E5 99 01997 000007 (3] 00s9TH E6BEET [(00%€e) {00°¥EE] 000 ISNIX3 AONYMOTIV HYD
9%£9'95 T8} 00'00Z°¢ wue 00'009'} ELL8E') (8691} 000 96791 SASNIdX3 TIOUAV HIHLO
%ZL LG 105999 00°000°€} (£6°526) 00'6L¥'S £6'758'9 AR 00'€80°t 3SNIdX3 IAVIT A3NYOOY
%92 0L 0LELS'BT 00'029°0% 0L'8¥B'Y 00'546'9) 06'980'Z) 29696 00'68E°¢ 8E6LY'T ISN3dX3 §3d0
%00'LL 10'68L9 00'2hL'8 107962 00'28'Y £6'H02 (2:292) 000 5192 SWAOAINN
%00°00} 00'666'2 00°'G66' 00'0SE'S 00°068'€ 000 00'999 00999 000 SLI43N38 ININACTNANN
%2226 97'00€'2 00'946°L 97089’ 00'962'2 Y5519 99°%eY 0058 veLLL SIS - S1143IN38 3FA0TdWT

Bueway aoueMeA 1eBpng aJuBHEA {enjoy aouepep jebpng  396png lemyoy
S310N _Bbu”ua”-w_m__wn wwa_u:m. [ejol GZAd IejolL aawt___m. aLa awm_u:m an Jeaj juauny vo_._.an_ juauny pollad jusung poldd pUET (he] AONV QZ:& N_m._.<>>
-—-u—é ﬁ— GZ0Z/0E/L 1L USnoayl GZoZ/L/L L wold

aNNd A9 STHNLIANIdXT pue SINNIAIY 40 INTJIWILVIS
10141S1d INJWIA0HdIWI TYHINIO AHNESONI




¢ 28ed

N PO:€5°T 9TOT/6/T 1A

%ET'98 (trzesiioz'y) (00'L0z'eve'y) | avessevs  (00Z9L'vzz't) (e5'809'08s) Po'cTeVEL (00°0z8'02) ¥9'c00'Yhb STUNLIANIXT YIA0 INNIAZY §S30XT
TEOTL §000CIyL  G0OIGe9c 0 | B0T960Cs  O0GEGO0LSe  CBISSINGC IEIoSeer [Ra3H0E £90sCTeE SFUNLIGNTJXS 18101
%881 POLKC0LY QOWPIOI0 |708cCc8Z  O0CERFILl  9GEOBUEFE 19GP5'19 0092861 ££08288 S3SNAdX3 YIHLO [eoL
%00°00% 00002t 00002 € 000 000 000 000 000 000 13SSY 40 1¥SOdSIA NO NIVD/SSOT

uedsy woy Lojeolady Aeg euLiemiEiL, ) 0TS OU9Z/9Z6'S | 0Z96SBC  00000'SIS'L  0BTLOVGEE'L 2651809 0000000L  SD'98M6E AVILAO TYLIGYO

BUIIBIBM ¥ZAS U} PENBIB JOU AABY IR
9%98'65 YeZIWTIL  00GLE'EC | ¥B'629'E 00'ZE1'66 91'705'56 SLEL 00'928'6} GZ'9B0'6l ISNAX3 LSIILNI
SISNAAX3 HIHIO
%9'65 WeLo'zee’t  000SS02LT | LyeMyopl  Q0'9VE'SETt  EG'9Z6'L60°) (W 19X:4 00°269'612 eraLe'esl SISNIX3 ONILYHICO le10L
bAyEe TOeIE (0899 Ly |0£50577)  O0GBFE0s  DL0DI'SZ9 Seozed 006E9021 €96 221 3SN3dX3 NOILVIDIYd3d
%EE8S 0T L6L'y 00'651'8 0zz 00°007'e 08'L68€ vro 00089 95°649 SANOSE 40 NOILVZILIONY
%6215 TyeeTey 00'957'28 (8y'£08'G) 00'65€'vE 8y'Z91'07 ¥5'8v8'y 00'L28%9 w0 dX3 WILSAS INTWLYIML HALYM
%196 STHeLYL 00'00£'LL GZe6E'SC  00'GLE'TE SLGL6T 6£'602'9 00'627'9 19'692 ISNIdXA WIALSAS LSIQ HILYM
%81 0k 00'€88'L 0000584 00'€88'} 00°00581 0024991 000 000 000 INIWOYNYIN OIHS HIMISAIILYM
%8Sy 00vLLL 00'€85'2) (00'1¥52) 00'826"L 00'698'6 00082 00°Ga¥' 00'GH, ONIMAWYS/ONIMOLINOW H3LYM
%9E°26 0€°160'08 00'790'69 1 /AR 1 A 74 0026y 89°0v6'C 00Z2Y's 218y - W9 dX3 HIA
%9t L8 T 00820224 LLI9G'sE 00729808 68°G0'G1 771058 00'€LL'0} 85129} ddNSAI0M3N4 dx3 310H3IA
%889 SCEe0'9LL  00T0S'PZ | SEVEY'lT  OUZEQ8LL  G9T0V'98 eE9LLL 00'096°12 19E¥8'%L DI¥LOTTA B SVO - SALMILN
%EE'8S 00'082'S) 00°000'22 000 0005244 00°052'} 1 000 00'05¢Z 000527 $334 3318NAL
%L6'€B 6€'965°C) 00'70Y'El BELLLY 00°685°S 19208 00LLL 00°ZHbE 000 13AVAL
%L£'98 §8'2£8'61 00'896'22 S8'6EY'9 000456 SLOEL'E 00716’ 00716 000 SHYNINIS ANV ONINIVHL
m—__:_nEom adueleA «omvsm SOUBLIBA |en}oy duelep uomv__m umm_.Em lenay
S3LoN _sﬁmw“”ma d sau__m. [e10L SZAL [BI0L .&E_m._ alA wBpng aLA leaj yaund uoz.am JueuN) PouRd JUALINY POlad JuaLn) (02) ANN4 HALVM

14vid

GZ0Z/0€/1LL Yysnoay] SZoT/L/LL woid

ANNd A9 STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY 40 INTWILVIS
19181S1Aa LNIJWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




9 ¥eq

Wd PFEST 9T0T/6/T e

%0106 720821 00°005'64 7z's6L'e 00°62L'8 8L'626' BY'¥E6 00629’ 25069 oIl
%9EY 01628 00°0z0'6} (06'729) 00°915'2} 06°061'8} (5e'989°G) 00816 GE'PES'S ONIINNODOY
SISNIdX3 ONILYHIAO
%8EhL 10168987 00°0Z9'SBE | L0'P90'19  00'€SB'6SL  €6'88L'86 sroi0'vh 00'8LY'LE ET0H'LL SASNIdX3 GILVI3YN TIOHAV [EI0L
%6E € ¥69F {00008) Y6908 ooy wEors) [§47) oo 000 ISNIdXT FONYMOTIV ¥YD
%LE T8 95°12y 00°00S 95721 00'902 8L AIrAZ 00Ty S3ISNIdX3 TIOUAVd ¥IHIO
9%82'96 01'168' 000007 0L'9IS') 00'599'} 06'8v1 @r119) 00°68e 71058 3SNAdX3 AV Q3INYO0Y
%1118 0v0SE'SH 00°06%'24 ov'Spl's 00'582"2 09'6ELZ 80°620' 00'28%'L 6Ly 3ISN3dX3 8340
%02 09 0568 00°291 057k 00'¢L 05'85 000 000 000 SWHOAINN
%0000} 00°966' 00'966' 00°96¥'Z 00'96¥'2 000 00008 00005 000 SLi43NT8 INIWAOTIWINN
%9208 L'26L 00°266 1156 00'582 68'681 7979 0069 €Y SIIS - S1I43INTE IFA0THNI
%8Y 9L 0v'9EE'Sy 0092'65 0v'esZ0L 0096942 09'686'¢ L 687612 00016y LShLE SY3d - S4143N3E 3FA0TINI
%2E'GL 7L'e82°09 00969'08 ZVIZ0EL  00pe6'eE 8'Z16'6} 160LET 00'5€0'9 60'799'€ SNI "Q3N - S1143IN3E 3IA0 TN
%89'0L L'8ze'e 00¥62'C LLpop 00°0£'t 69'596 59641 00'%22 SE'Y5L DIA3WVII4 - SLI4ANTE 3TA0 TN
%0v'09 81°2LE'SE 00'795'85 a1'802' 00°00%'7Z 78'L61'€Z 80'6€9 000887 60Ky 301440 - TI0¥AYd
%L0°GL S9'68Y'9LL  0000LL'SSL | GoTL6'ST  OD'ES9V GE'0B9'SE 26'619'2 00'LE6ZL B0°GLE'S HIOVNYI - TIOUAVd
SASNIXI Q3LVTIY TI0UAYd
SFUNLANIAXT
%86°LS 99°220°€61'L  00°066'260°7 | ¥E'BERY 00p29'658  ¥E'ZOG'98 89°G/8' 00'9.8'891 88'ISL'SLL SNNIATY [ejoL
%6 1S ISIZre0L 00 LBL6I8T | EvOSCS 00°7Z6c98L  THESO06L 869287 00001751 99°976'851 $334 ¥3sn leloL
%0104 (47584 00229% (0 2Ev) 000ES T 0BZ607 0090€ 058Z1 INNIAIY 334 Y3JSNYHL
%L1 0% (000ss' vl 00°009'€ 00082'GL  00'00¥'Z 00°054'84 00'052'9 000 000529 $334 NOILOINNOD
%9¥'0L Zz'66E'04 000947} (zz68L')) 000519 8200y 0002’ £8'80L"} $334 ¥3SN NO S3ILTYNId
%089 VOY5Y'Te 00°0Z}'€E (19'vve'e) 00°016E} 6€'599'01 00959' YATIN NOILJWNSNOD TYIDUIWNOD
%EE'8S 002252 008802y 00’} 00'GIS"2L 00'915'24 0z'0 00'€06°€ 0Z'605°€ TYIOHINNOD - $334 43sn
%604 S9'87L'81 0000192 (sozLy'y) 00kl gt SE'129'L 00950' 000 NOILJANSNOD | ¥311 TVILNICISTY
9%9¢'85 68'966'720°L  Q0'i6L'agLL  |(687Gse) 00'8vL'LEL  LLZBLIEL 00'6YE'971 78°012'9v1 TVILNIAISTY - $334 ¥3SN
$334 ¥3sn
%EH'95 60°006°c0L  00'608'2L8  |(60°99¢E) 00°LIT'vL 16'806'SL og'sy 009271 0e'sz8'YE SNOANVTIIISIN [E10L
|98 [ 00005 [CIE3)] 00902 ¥9901 wTy 00y 3] 3NNIATY HIHLO
00°00S 00522 00°00% 00529 00'52€ 00°0 00'6.€ 334 MIINTY NYId
%59'85 £LE60'€0L  00'608'94h  |(€'658) 00°129'eL ZsheL 00'VEL'Y) 86'G9€'Y1 SINFWLSTANI NO LSTHALNI
SNOINVTIZOSIN
S3INNIATY
Bujeuiay QauelEA Jobpng ERITH T jenjoy aoueuep jeBpng  396png |enjoy
SaLON _shwwn”ma d jobpng [ejoL  GZAJ [EJOL u&v:m. aL 16png aLA Jea juaund votwa juauny poliad JuaLny poliad Jueuny (0€) NN H3M3s

14vid

SZ0Z/0€/L L YSnoiyl SZ0Z/L/ 1L woid
aNNd A9 STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATYH JO INJWILVIS
LOIH1S1A INJWIAOUdIWI TYHINIO AHNESONDI




L w8eq

W $O-€$:T 920T/6/T 9ted

%8t718 (zzzoz'ele)  lovse'zs) | zzeee'shs  (oosas'vee)  (srsse'ecl) 0'156'ee 00°TH9'eL 10°€65° 201 STUNLIAGNIAXT ¥3IA0 INNIAIY SS30X3
k&AL WRCET  G0GLCmIEe | TODICOR  Q0eevevlT  ZVBPGEOOF §TSI062 0HEe56 TEBET I8 STUNLANIJXA le10L
%6026 §Te00C6r  0099L05 |GE€ecec  00000BS SOOLITE (25850 00700001 75°85I01 $3aSNIdX3 ¥3H10 [0l
|%60°26 Geosocor 00992208 SEELCEC 0000088 EED (25 00°0000F 759501 AVLNO TYLIdYD
) SASNIdX3 ¥IHLO

%SSES oreor'oz0’s  00°ZSB9L6'L | 9PETTOS  00'909'9r6  pGZSE’oss s Lg'sl 00°618'¢S LU166'28 SISNAJXI ONILYEIO [#10L
%1625 8vv00'Z5 00ZEr 86 ] 00501 EEriy res [A] 65618 3SNIdX3 NOLLYIDTHAAA
%EZ' 1L 90'989'01 00'52Y'ee 90'7Ee’e Q0'EL0°0} ¥6'8EL'D 9bSLy 00728’} #8'86€'L Q10313 2 8YD - SALIILN
%EE "85 00'628'2 00'005'E} 000 00'629' -00'629'S 000 00'szL' 0052V} §334 33LSNYL
%Sy 18 65°€%6'C 0029v'€ 65106 000V’ Ly'8es 00882 00'882 000 T3AVHL
%2269 08°042' 00'728'S 08418 00'GtP'2 0z'€€9 00687 00687 000 SYVYNINAS ANY ONINIVHL
%2469 100" 00°2€9't rieL 00089 98'109 Uy 009l £TIEL INOHJINAL
9%06'G6 YL60LT 000022 ¥L60L') 00°00Z°} 9Z'06 000 000 000 SIDHYHO NOILYOIENd
%9909 0€'1897 00024y 0e'0Ly 006022 018¢L'L 00'L6L 00°282 000 JOV1S0d
%Ly = 86l 00'S0v 81’6} 00°50% 28'S8¢ 000 000 000 $334 ANV SLiNg3d
%26'18 12189 00'5€6°¢ 12669') 00688 A 18Ery 00828 gL el $3NadNS 301440
%EE'EY 00004 000006 00057 00°052° 00°00€'€ 00'0 00052 00062 TYIHOLINYF 301440
%..'88 A4 A 008519 118" 007952 £2069 18°9vr 00°ElS 6199 SFUNLIANTXI SNOINYTIADSIN

'SIBA0D) SJOYUBH JOMES %07 LS (00952} 00005 {poresz) 00°005 00952 (00952} 000 00'952 SLYYd AHOLNIANI
%G6'} Ov'¥YS 00'888'22 Az 00'898'/2 09°eve'L2 000 000 000 SANOS GNY JONVINSNI
%ES'SY 1g7260' 007089 (61'958) 00038 61'90L° ol 00'06S 95'eLS 3SNIdXT ALRINOIS
%1559 50'S05'2 00728 50761 00115t S68LE"L (6728) 0008 6 L8} TYLNTY LNINCINDI
9%8€'99 €660k 000VO'SIZ | €662°ZL  00'009'68 10720822 ALY 00°026'24 9L'8YE'DL SHIVdIY/ LNIVA/SINANS "dIND3
%689 PLE'S 0016y #'619'e 00691y 95°€55') 000 000 00'0 SNOLLRIOSANS 8 $3na
9%60'SZ £Z68v'S 009812 (1292 'D) 000922t L1989} (s64¥e) 00°009 S67v8 3SNIdX3 HALNWOD
%15'86 LL156'0€ 0064¥'1€ 1229k 00°060°El 69°29% 9,'096T 008192 A “INIVIN ONY Sdivd3d ONIQTING
%Ly LG LT 00°09€'SE (e 20€) 00'LEL'YL 82'90'GH (z90v)) 00'1¥68'2 19°260'C SIOYYHO HNVE
9%00°00} 007826 00826 00°000'6 00'000'6 000 00'000'6 00°000°6 000 $183a ave
%1208 00€Z9C/Z  00'9vZ'S8y | 00000} 00€2927C  00°€Z9'L¥2 000 000 000 SINIWSSISSY ¥SL10a
%00°05 056192y Q0'6SEBYR | 050 0008L'vey  0G'6LM'¥eY 000 000 00’0 0% N YLve-Odd ¥51100
%S0'SL 2669’2 00'052°0k et 00022y 98'965°Z (5z'18¢) 00758 GZ'GET') ONIATAYNS B ONIYIINIONT
900004 0080L'T 00'80L'Z 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNILYILOD3N H0av1 v

uc_,_m_msam aoueuep 1eBpng doueliep 6 |emoy soueuep Jabpng  jeBpng lenyoy (
S3LON _30uM u"_hw._wm «om—-sm |ejol  SZAd [elol uom—u:m aLA 1e0png ALA Jed) juaung poliod juaun) pousd udINg poudd juaun) OM- QZDH_ Im\smm

14viad

SZ0Z/0E/LL Ysnoayl sZoec/L/L1L wold
ANN4 A9 SFUNLIANIX3 Pue SINNIATY J0 INFWALVLS
19141514 INTFWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AUNESONDA




g feg

Wd #0*ES-T 9T0T/6/Z 31ed

%29'692- evere's) 00005 @1ape’t) 00'005 zLers't (05'111) 000 054y ONIAIAGNS B ONIYIINIONT
900'004 00'052' 00'0KZ' 000 00°0 000 000 000 000 SNOILYILOD3AN MO8V D3]
%07 S5t (09zos'vt)  o00se'e (096699 00'€SE") 0975081 10 ke £2°002 oA
%96} 81'8EL 00'02L'E @811l 00026 79’180t (90°8v6) 00'167 90'6EY' ONILNNOOIY
$3SNIdX3 ONLLYHIdO
%0E'69 oripsaeL  00€S6'9.2 | eries'sT  00'EO0'SH  ¥ZHI0'GS 052692 00'859°22 05°096'%} $3ASNIdX3 A3LV13Y TIO¥AV [EI0L
OAICH 08750¢ 00 09502 000 {08'02) 000 000 000 ISNIdXT FJONVMOTIV YD
%90'96 16096 0000’} 15'6L€ 00'6LY £y'6e 8628 0068 200 S3SNIAAX3 TIOUAVd YIHLO
%2916 vE'Ze8’) 00000 vE'E99 00°1£8 99294 00291 62207 ISNIdX3 FAVIT AINEIDY
%EE’ 16 557004 00ZBE' L 55628 00'5¥L'y G286 16162 00'6%6 6261 39NIdX3 930
%649 £C'6L 006041 £€'26) 00°155 19658 000 000 000 SWHO4INN
%0000} 00866 00'866'Z oo'sye't 00'8vZ'4 000 00052 00052 000 S1143N38 INJWAOIIWINN
%2 8L 8L v66 00222 816 00°69¢ w2 6'Sy 00'68 90°Er SIS - SLIHANIE FTAQTINI
9%68'v2 89'985'62 00'442'6€ 88'G6¢'9 00°0S€'9) 71586 9L 188"} 00°0£2'e vZZEs' S¥3d - S1143N3E IIA0TIWI
%40°99 PEEBL' LY 002929 688y 00°£99's2 90'8L412 ErE9L) 00'088'% 1591L'E SNI Q3N - SLI43N3F FIA0TINI
%69 9/'SEL") 00'68¢'2 9L'182 00°G€0'} v2'esL 80’18 00'£02 76524 DI0AN/YII4 - SLI4ANIE JIA0TINI
%0709 61892} 00'08Z'62 61709 000022} 18°665°1) SGBIE 0007r'e SY0ZLT 301440 - TIOHAYd
%L1'8S 62'509'62 00'8€Z°)S (1v8) 00'8vE"'12 \ZTer'LE 85015 00042y TVesLe JFONYNILNIYA - TI0HAYd
%0 vL £8'666'€S 00'8/6°2L £8'199'L  00°0¥Z'0€ 11B5'8) 9V'0BEE 00'8r0'9 5459°C HIDOVNYIL - TIOUAVd
SISNIAXT Q3LVI3Y T108AVd
STUNLIGNIdXT
%0995 6020004  O0LOK'0ES | L9'66E'VL  00'6E6'SYE  19'86E°09E 95'889' 00°102'69 95'688'4L SANNIAIY EI0L
%8S 97c100sF  O00cslve8  ((9771F9 00807 FL9OLIVE (€952 0073788 IC907'89 $334 ¥3sN (e30L
%01 0L §9GELL 000291 189061) 000 TEV8Y 00GE} S8l INNIATY 334 HIISNVAL
%909 92180 00018y (6t v22) 00'600Z vL82L) 864y 00'107 6E'8tY $334 ¥3SN NO S31LTWN3d
%E895 00'890°0F 00'689'89 000 00'029'82 00029'82 000 00'72L's 00722’ TVIDHANNOD - $33443sN
%9¢°85 zeoessey  00pe9'ors  |(eeall) 000MLIE  BYEEE0LE 0022229 £2'551'79 TVILNIQISTY - $334 ¥3sN
$334 ¥3sn
%L1'9LL- (z8710'04) 006198 180051 00'465°¢ 19'1£9'8) 64997 00682 61'e8p'e SNOINVTTIOSIN 3oL
%08C9 0952k 00700¢ 0018 [Z7A 0202 00Zv A3 INNIAIY HIHLO
P :Mmou_wwwwm%m%mm %2y 0Zh- (veel0l)  00BLY'S WSE 000 LEUSSB 66EHLT 00202 86'SHY'E SLNINLSIANI NO LSIMILNI
SNOINVTIIOSIN
SINNIATY
caton u_“_h_w._”_%_ ooueen  @bpng | oovewep o o [emoy  [souewepjebpng  jeBpna femay (09) 3NN3AIY
[E101 Jua2I8d jefpng [eJ0L SZAJ jeroL [196png QLA Jeajpjusun)d | polied jualing poliad JUILNY poliad Jusiny vI123dS TYAOWIH MONS

14vad

S20Z/0€/1L1 Usnolyl §Zoz/1/L 1L wold

ANNd A9 STUNLIANIdXT Pue SINNIAIY 30 LNJWIALVIS
10141S1A INFWINOHdIWI TVHINID AHNGSONDI




6 @8ed

Wd Y0:€5°T 9202/6/T Qe

%50°42) (zrsiz'av)  (00b09'zes) | zrose'or  00'WL'SS wrLe'sel 19'€90°6Z {00€8z'2e) (eca12'e) STUNLIANIAXI YIA0 ANNIATY $S30X3
%50 28 TTOITEITT  GOUZ00eSeT |TIIeess  00GIo0ec  eUeelEee TSR 00FEFTOF 88B0FSL STUNLIANZAX3 [e10L
%0986 t99cers  00I99%ek | 9680 0070289 IE0ECT GELTA 000 6989V SISNIAXA ¥IHLO [EI0L
9609°96 t9%E6 et ODZ99Edh | €96805 0070¢85 EELT 68807 1 000 698971 AVILNO VLIV
$3SNIdX3 ¥IHLO
%998 ZU66C'V08  00'Z8E'2S6 | 226980z 008889l 8ZIBELYL 0516102 00'1€8'82 0§'629'85 SISNIAXT ONILVYIO 110l
%G1 L6 19628 00852 €} T97PrS 00€e5S 6E8E £0616 0050rT 11581 W dX3 H3A
%8568 66°029°€) 00°092'S1 65'09.'y 00'95€'9 L6885} 90690} 00z} #6802 ddNSMoand dxa I10IH3AA
%98'G. 1Z8eY 00625 12601 00'8YZ 6.'8€1 810l 00'9% 4115 214103133 SVO - SN
%EE 89 0STIE'} 00052'C (0g0) 00°££6 06286 (050) 00°28) 04°28) $334 331SNYL
%2088 worL' 00786} Ly 8BS 00928 €962 00'%8} 099} 000 TAAVEL
%56'LL S7'665' 002502 ShZ0r 00'658 6475k 00'LLL 00'bLb 000 SHVNIWAS ONY ONINIVYL
%v6'69 128 0029} Ll 00'99 6879 'l 00'vk 66Tt ANOHdT13L
%1y 0y SZTL9 00518} {52'89¢) 00'ES §L°706 00'0 000 000 $39WVHD NOILYOMENd
%8Z LS FrTro's 00°028°) el 00006 9524 00°00€ 00°00¢ 000 39v1S0d
%.£°06 69'609 00'899 69'€09 00'899 LEP9 000 000 000 $334 ANV SLINE3d
%0E' VL 96'826 00°€L€"} 96'GLL 00'04S YO'VBe 168 00'7LL 69T $3Nddns 301440
%EE'EY 00056 00°005' 00'62 00529 00°05§ 00'0 00621 0052} TYINOLINVF 301440
%0€'96 Z0°€68'S 00'009'S 2082LT 00'SEET 86'902 96'657 00°29% s SIUNLIANIAXT SNOINVTIFOSIN
%00°00) 00°001 00004 0008 00°05 000 000 000 000 INTFNINDT ALFAVS
%06} £5'88 00'8¥9'% £6'88 00'8v9'y L¥'65S'y 000 000 000 SANOE ANY FONVHNSNI
%68'G. 2681 00052 rANA 00°€0} 82°09 2001 00'ke 8601 ISNIdXT ALI¥NO3S
%0000} 00'000'0} 00°000'CH 000000  00'000°04 000 000 000 000 SNOIS 2 STOOL ‘$ANddNS T3l
%8129 G989 00'HOL'L 59'65 00'9LF SEoLY 8592 00'05 Trse TYLNTY INGWNINDI
%E2'6° (z'e) 00004 (ez'68) 0005 €260} (ez604) 000 £2604 SHIY4IY/ LNIYW/S1ddNS dIND3
%YE YO 80°29% 00922 80°98€ 00°565 26'852 000 000 000 SNOILLAINOSENS 8 $3NA
%9Z 1L B1'5€S 0062y (15'p18'L) 007047 198127 o6y 00628 95°26¢ JISNIAXT HILNINOD
%96'26 wezeL'y 00068y 226 00010 016 09'166 00'20% 0v04 “INIVW ONY SdIvdTd ONIATING
%L LS 8596 00009 (zave) 00°008'9 TGEY9 (68y) 00°00€'} 16808} $A9UVHD MNve
%00°00% 00°960'f 00'960'7 00000t 00000 000 00°000'Y 00°000'% 000 sig3aave
O/NIQ# 000 000 000 00°0 000 000 000 000 ONIOI IA/LNY TYAQWTH MONS
%9L /8 00°028'59 0000062 00°0zZe'e 0000524 00°081°6 00092 000082 00°098'% ONIANYS - TVAQWIY MONS
%20'88 00081789  00000°GZ. | 00°08L'L 0000000} 0002826 0009804 0000009 00°0%)'6% ONIMOTd - TYAONTY MONS
S3.10N u”w:n_wzsmuu 2oUBLEA 19Bpng SOUELEA o 1A {emoy aoueuep 19Bpng  3eBpng [enjoy (09) 3INN3A3Y
101 Jue%s0g jebpng (2301  SZA4 IEoL (396png QLA Ie8AJUBLNY | POHA JUBLIND poLiad Juaung polddiueund|  yD3dS TYAOWIH MONS

14vid

ST0T/0€/ 11 Y8NoIYL STOT/L/L L Wwold
ANN4 A9 STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY J0 LINIJWILVILS
10141S1a LNFWIAOHdWI TVHIANTO AdNGSONDI




01 :98eg

Wd v0°€6°T 920Z/6/2 A1eQ

%eeet 0'v86'LE 00°026'sS (z0°282) 00°eLL'PT 86'S86'€Z (0ztvh) 00'16L'S 08'SKE'S SIUNLANIAX3 YIAO INN3AZY §530XF

TI0TS TR WIelw (Cigrad] (4241} L (eezee] 759092 ZTACT SFUNLIANIAAX3 [EJ0L

%018 WISEZ 06T (8v2z2) Wz SveerZE (zezee) 00909 ZEEE6T SISNIdX3 ONILYHILO 1ejoL

ATV I065¢Th el |E5TerT) 000RE E6IEs v G0EE 00889 W07 ORM103713 8 SY9 - SALMLLN

%00°004 0000 00°00% 00°002 00°002 000 000 00°0 000 $31ddNS 301440

%9Z'65 00°00'9 000080} 00004 00005 ¥ 00°00%'Y (0000t 00°006 00000' TYIMOLINVF 301440

%SH'£9 viVY 000002 12°95€ 005162 92'855' 0e's8 00'€8S 0L L6 SFUNLIANIAX3 SNOANYTIIISIA

%86’} 8L 00982 1891 00'982'¢ EVLLLE 000 000 000 SANOE ANY JONVHENSNI

%1829 ST8El 00022 &Y 00'06 518 Al 00’8l SL9l YN LNAWLINDI

%0576 00'82€ 00°00¥ 00'821 00002 00z 000 002 SHIVAZY/ INIVW/SINAANS “dind3

%1E'59 69'69C'E 00000 65°9ve 00'180'2 WEL) 6498 002Ly 18°08E "INIVIN ONY SdIVd3d ONIaTing

$3SNIdX3 ONILYN3dO

SFUNLIANIEXT

%68°85 Y5 LYE'6S 00292000 |(b5658) 00°S86°LY srsILy (88°141) 00°26¢'8 A5+ 14] S3MNIATY 1301

6095 FEIvE6e oorzeroor  |(v565E) 00586 17 (AT 3°H} 00°Z6E8 HXA SNOIANVTIZOSIN [e30L

%6885 PEIPEES 00Z0700F  |(reess) 00'686'L¥ aadts 88'h1L) 00°26¢8 21e8'8 JNOONI TVINTY

SNOANYT13OSIN
SANNIAIY
S3LON Gujujewoy jebpng  soueuep jobpng B0UBHEA 1oBpng QLA (MY 1894 JuaLng aouenep 19bpng 19bpng lenjoy Aomv TVIN3IY
|EjoL Jusdiad  1eBpng IOl GZAA [ej0L | 1e6pnaalLA pouad JUALND  POLIdd JuaLnd  pousd Juaun) 3AaVY9O AHNISONDI 862

14vdd

§20Z/0€/LL Y8noyl S2oz/L/LL wold
ANN4d A9 SFHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY JO INIWILVILS
10141514 INIFWIAOUdIWI TVHINIO AUNESONDI




ANNd A9 ANV A3aNIgGINOO
SIHNLIANIdX3 ANV
JNNIATYH 40 LNJWILVIS

‘NOILISOd HSVO
GC0C 43930130






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

l GENERAL 47%
CASH POSITION WATER 27%
DECEMBER 2025 SEWER 20%
|SNOW 6%
|
_ - BEGINNING ENDING
FUND BALANCE TRANSFERS ADJUST. RECEIPTS CHECKS BALANCE
GENERAL FUND $ 8,689,553.60 | $ 82,658.31 | % (63.33)| $ 135,160.74 | § (25,090.88)| $ 8,882,218.44
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) |$  468,823.39 | $  12,905.06 | $ - 1% - 3 - | $ 48172845
GENERAL INVESTMENT S 373,404.67 | $ (95,563.37)__ $ - $ 3,07448 | $ - $ 280,915.78
GF TOTAL $ 9,644,862.67
WATER FUND $ 3,783981.59 (% 153,354.76 | § 111.81 | $ 404,516.35 | § (564,156.75)| $ 3,777,807.76
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | §  747,353.14 [$  16,629.40 | § - |$ - |$ - | $ 763,982.54
WATER INVESTMENT $ 41212760 [ $ (104,394.43)| $ - $ 1,901.28 [ § - $  309,634.45
KGID/TRPA RESTRICTED (s7aTiON48MPS) | $ 45,430.00 | $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 45,430.00
DIST DEBT RESERVE $  369,031.09 | $ (140,339.44)[ § - 18 - |8 - |$ 22869165
TREAT DEBT RESERVE $ 559,808.32 | § 32,280.79 | $ - $ - 3 - $ 592,179.11
CAP IMPROV. RESERVE $ - $ 42,468.92 | § - |s - 3 - $ 42,468.92
WF TOTAL - $ 5,760,194.43
SEWER FUND $ 4,157,71340 | $ 53,074.11 [ $ (24.54)( $ 162,318.34 [ § (46,478.58)| § 4,326,602.73
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | § 19,835.15 | § 672.81 | $ - |3 - |8 - |$  20,507.96
SEWER INVESTMENT $ 211,430.06 | $  (53,746.92) $ 1,25141 | $ - $ 158,934.55
- SF TOTAL | $ 4,506,045.24
SNOW REV. FUND B $ 655143.73|$  (3,919.32)| $ (23.94)|$ 70,176.13|$ (19,311.01)| §  702,065.59 |
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  239,204.98 | § 6,73241 | % - $ - $ - $  246,027.39 |
SNOW INVESTMENT | $ 10,281.67 | $ (2,813.09)| $ - |8 31427 | $ - $ 7,782.85
o SNOW TOTAL | - $  955875.83
298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL $ 304,55259 | § - $ - $ - $ (1,980.90)| $  302,571.69
80 RENTAL TOTAL - $  302,571.69 |
GRAND TOTALS $ 21,047,854.98 | $ 0.00 | $ 0.00|$ 778,713.00|$ (657,018.12)| $ 21,169,549.86
CHECKING __
US BANK $ 504,932.01 | $  (43,482.19) $ 708,608.30 | § (657,018.12)| $  513,040.00
US BANK MMA $ - |8 - $ - |8 - I$ -
MORTON CAPITAL MMA $ 7,244.00 | $ (6,517.81) $ 6,541.44 | $ - $ 726763
4.26% FIRST FNDTN BANK s 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
4.70% FLAGSTAR BANK $ 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00 |
5.20% BANK HAPOALIM NEW YORK $ 250,000.00 [ $ (250,000.00) B $ :
4.00% NORTHEAST BANK CD s 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
= |* - |8 - S :
i $ - |8 | | L5 :
LOCAL GOVT POOLED 4.0826674% $ 19,535,678.97 | $  300,000.00 $ 63563.26 % - $ 19,899,242.23
GRAND TOTALS $ 21,047,854.98 | $ = $ = $ 778,713.00|$ (657,018.12)| $ 21,169,549.86

Page 1






1 =8egq

WY $¥:9K01 920U/ 11/2 Q.

%8}'8h 08'608'212' 00'218'818°0} {08've2'52) 00'ZPL189'S 02°L05909'S (te21l'6) 00'62¢°1¥8 LoLLL 158 SINNAATY (8301
%IL6Y 988 eraS 00Z86 Vel L 98°CL0°ES 0011L9E6 T 71°269°€88°€ 9€'8Y 12 00°0EFZF9 79196029 $334 ¥ISN [eI0L
%0685 ¥89EaT 00861'C (razee) 0066 T art 2geee) G0°Eee [530] JONVENSNI 3NIT INIAN3S
%19 LG 8%'286'8 00'0£5'GH {treze’L) 00'992'2 76THE9 {oce8z'1) 00'%62°} 0L's JONVANSNI $SOT INNAY3S
%6625 86'LEL') 00'256'} {665t} 00'726 10028 {8zzal) 00'89) L0 3NNIATY NINGY INNAY3S
%EE LG 5£'€%T'L 00°009°2} (seeze) 00°00€9 59'9/€'G 8Ly 00'050'+ ¥8'L60°} INNIATY 334 ¥IISNVHL
%59'72e- {o0'gel'Ly) 00ZLE'S} 00'860'pY 00°Z1¥'St 00'067'65 00'0 000 000 5334 NOILOINNOD
%0 L8 0008} 00087 00'09 00'0v2 00'00¢ (0002} 00°0F 0002 §334 ¥03HO NUNLIY
%05'9E £ P05 00'009'6 15662'} 00'008'% 166609 {gves) 00'008 89'929 SIDUVHD 3DIAYIS
%E1'ES £ YERZE 00°066'19 (e8'8e6't) 00'¥86'0¢ 1155062 8r'8LE’) 00'99}'s $rive'9 $334 ¥3SN NO SALTYNId
%8} 65 09'769'78 00021 v} (09 ve8'9e) 00'22£'56 Ov'LTy'8s (2260821 00212'4¢ £2'80€9 NOILJWNSNOD TVIDYINNOD
%0005 26'890'2% 0026446 89') 00°290'L% 89'890°LF (zz 0} 00°6v8'L BLYY8'L NOILO3LO¥d Jaid WIOYINNOD
%0006 79'666'L62 00'Z8L 9Ly g1 00°06€°2€6Z BE'88E'LET {zo) 00'695'6€ £L¥95'6E WIOHIWNOD - $334 1SN
%186y 88EP0TS 00'¥6¥ 701 AN 14 00'9¥2'28 ZV0SY'TS £02L 008028 £008L'8 NOILDTLOYd Jelid TVILNIISTY
9%88'06 0L°0£9'%€ 00'000'22 ovoieyh) 00'089'6% 06'69£°5E (i) 000" 95°'82¢") NOILAWNSNOO € ¥3IL WILNIAISTY
%1987 16'860'66 00°000'89 (16819'8) 00°025'EY 60'L06'7E {s0°ge8) 00070 S6'402°) NOILJWNSNOD Z ¥aIL TVILNAGISTY
%96°0S £5'504'181 00°00%'55€ (€5'116'02) 00'902'564 17v6T'vL) 96'587 00'Z¥'5C 86'£24'52 NOILAWNSNOD | ¥3IL TYILNIaISAY
%12°08 86°06L'19L'E 00'284'962'9 (86°86£°E L) 00'S6E'8¥1'E Z0'966'¥EL'E (292257 00'26L%28 86602225 YILNIQISTY - $334¥3SN
$334 ¥3sN
%08'Lp 6G'VH LY 00°£10°966 Wsike 00°082'045 1'268'616 srove'l 00°518°08 719128 SNOINVTIIOSIN lEloL
%61 E [CrAZE)] 00050°Z¢ STEBETF 006ISEr R 99 C 0055 9057 JNNIATY HIHLO
%E9 05 S1'220'18 00'£82'00} {5y2€9) 00'Z8E'05 S8'vrL6h (5Y7Y 004688 6EBLER JNOONI TYANTY
9:00°0% {00008} AL 00058 00°006 00'062'} 000 000 000 334 MAINTE NV
%892 69'SY L0 0096'118 LE'ZIG'6Y 00'6£6'02F 1€ L6V ObY (e9'zze) 00'E94'0L 1E0YE'69 SLNINLSIANI NO LSIHILNI
%00°004 00'000'62 00°000'52 (0000062} 00°000'6¢ 000 000 000 000 1NVHD ¥d3 FOUN0S LNIOd NON 61€
SNOANVTIZOSIN
%y 5£'016'288 00'228'060°Z (se'6eE't) 00'bSTHET'} SO'LLE'202') 96°20t°01 00'F81'8LY 96'285'82} SaxXvLIeloL
%0005 IOV 0067 £08 860 00°9%Z 707 BEOvZ 107 710 0085699 £875699 NOILNEMLSIA XYL J1VLS
%y L8 £6'628'02C 00'£82'685 {ee'1ov'ph) 00°656'28€ 19'156'89€ G'16LY 00'165'€2 79768'8C ANV WO TVAQY
%6966 986599 00°299'9 (9829} 00'52 vhL 000 00°0 000 XYL ALYId0dd TYNOSHId
%y L6 1'BL9'85T 00'8£8'069 (pv128'9L} 00'120'BYY 98'661 €Y 19219' 00'669'22 19'LvE'E SIXVL WIHOTVAQY
$3XVL
S3NNIATY
Bujupeway
10Bpng aouBleA 1efipng ouBLEA 1o8png QLA |lenjoy eouepep 196png 38Bpng femoy
6101 Wasad j96png (e30] STAd (B0 jofipng QLA JBajjualn)d | pousdiusund  polladjuaun)  poliadjuauny

14vid

§20T/LE/2L Udnolyl sgoT/L/TL woid

SIUNLIAGNIdXT Pue SINNIATY 40 INTWILVILS
10141S1a INTFWIAOHdWI TVHINTO AUNESONID




7 =%eg

WV SP:97°01 920T/11/T =

%1¥'66 66'7SH'62 00°0£9'6Z 6E'7Z1'62 00'00€'6Z L9'SLL 850 0005 ey SNDIS 8 1001 ‘SAddNS Q1314
%22 1S SE'18SL 002087} 56228 00'8%0'8 59022, £6'952 00'LLT 20758} TVINTY LNFWIND3
%2569 0590%'05} 00'062'962 05'416'2€ 00'SBZ'6}k 06'€8¢'98 8LEEZ0) 00°018'81 78'9/5'8 SUIVETH/ LNIYWS3ddNS “dIND3
%Ly b9 1S'67E04 00'€50'0L 15'26€'8 00'L0M'Y) 6v'€0L' 00°08€ 00°09¢ 000 SNOLLAI¥ISENS # $3Na
%E9'0E 86'202'1€ 00°228'10k {eovorzy 00'695'9S 20'699°02 SLBLL'E 00'692's STSvLT 3SNIdX3 ¥ALNIWOD
%80'€6 0€'181'99 00'%0}'1L 0£'729'08 00°G¥5'SE 02°226'f 085267 00'526' 04616 "LNIVW ONV SHIVAZY ONIQTING
%€} 67 69°GL2'1S 00°0SZ'¥0} (1rz16) 0072128 VP YE0'ES (0zoLL) 00'889'8 02'708'8 S39YUVYHO YNvE
%00°00} 00°90€'2Z 00'90€"22 00°908'22 00'90£'22 000 00'00¢'Y 00°90€'Y 000 sig3aave
%12'05 QUEZIERT 00'9¥'58Y 00°000'k 00'€29'242 00'629'192 000 000 00°0 SINIWSSIASSY ¥S1100
9%00°05 06621 'vey 00'65€'6¥8 050 00°081'¥2¥ 05'6L1 12y 000 00°0 00°0 0% W YLvd-0ud ¥S110a
I0/AI# 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIDI AA/ILNY TYAOWIH MONS
%10'6L GLEGT'6S 00000'62 SLE5L'S 00°005°12 STovL'S) SLEEYT 000008 62'995'9 ONIANYS - TYAOWIH MONS
%L1'GL G/'€85'Z8S 00°000'62L 5268545 00°000°05Z 52'9L7'26) SLE0Y'0S 00°000'051 S2'965'66 ONIMOTTd - TVAOWTH MONS
%26'.8 G0'G95'6E 00°000'Y 60'690'22 00°005°2€ S6'YEY'S 000 000 000 $3ddNS 8 IONVNILNIVI¥ QYOH
%19'96 00'k2e'8) 00°000'02 00'1ze'o) 00°000'2) 00'629 000 00°0 000 JOVNIVIQ ONY NOISOY3
%E9'LL 0S¥ ‘99 00°002°G8 05'76L'€2 00'8¢8'ey 05'650'6} 62°085'¢ 00'£80°2 §2'905'C ONIATAUNS % ONRITINIONT
%00'00} 00°00r'Z) 00°00v'24 000 000 00'0 000 000 000 SNOILYILO93N J08Y1 Tv93
%V v SB°LLB'8T 00'000'69 {51°689'8) 00'66¥'2€ 128198 00'9t2 00'9ky'S 00048 o1
%9EY 168927 00°00%'€9 158927 00°00%'€9 £7'9£9'09 00'800° 00'800' 000 ONLINNOIDY
SISNIdX3 DNILYHAdO
%50°L9 16°€80002°) 00°929'6€5'Z 15°619'020 007222792} V26568 19°792's8 00°1Z1'60Z 6£'86€'€21 SASNIJX3 GILV13Y TIOUAV [BloL
%VC 75 05 78T {00°00ES) (057222 00592 056272 00 F#) (o2 000 3SNIdXT IONYMOTIV WO
%0z 9L 82'501's 000029 BTESEE 00'8v6'% ZLYES') 20768} 00'Z68') £6'6% S3ISNIdX3 TIOUAVd ¥IHLO
%1509 £L'6L9'¢) 0000522 EL19E'T 00'ore' L1 21888 (zzv6) 00'528' 22'696'} ISNIdX3 IAVIT QINYOIY
%61GL 86'L18'09 0026508 86'665'07 0006Z'0F 200626} £eeer'e 006129 L9162 3SNIdX3 83d0
%05 €L 51619' 000941k SL€9.T 00°088' STOLL'E {zz601) 000 260} SWHOSINN
%08'26 6624561 00°286'64 66856 00'886'6 19'6EY 6E'922') 00'999'} Ly'6ey SLI43NT8 INFWAOTHWANA
%6158 69°28€'LL 00°02€'el 68'G6E'C 00'82€'S LLZE') 1989Z') 00'99%' €861 SIS - S114aN3F JFA0TINI
%ZC EL 8EL28'6LT 00'60€'926 96'99€'/8 00'8YL'88) 29'182°00} £0'821 Pk 00'09€"1€ L61ETLL S¥3d - $1143N3E IIA0dW3
%SE'89 £Y'68L'69€ 00°02€'028 £¥'518'06 00'96€'25Z 15'085'991 Z4'800"2L 000260 88°196'€Z SNI 03N - SLIFANIE JIA0TINI
%129 67'880'Y} 00'59¥'z2 V'S8T 002284 15'926'8 or'sv8 00'128') 5520’ JIAFAIYOIA - S1I4IN3E 33A0TINT
%9Z'€S 96'656'€0k 00'L12'56) 966569 00'609'26 0’15216 98'12€'2 00'292'4 PLGB'EL 301440 - TIOHAYd
%1€°09 L0BLL MY 00'952°189 10'262°0L 00'78'0¢E £6'928042 90'9LE"'LE 0061895 ¥6'96¢'GE JONYNILNIYA - TIOHAV
%64 1L AMYIA T4 00'900'%8% 71897 eh 00'000'26Z 82 VEL YL 90°'20'€Z 00°299'8y ¥6'669'52 YIDYNYI - TIO¥AVd
$ISNIAX3 Q3LVI3Y TI0NAVd
$SIHNLIANIdXI
Buuieway
Jobpng asueyep 1ebpng asuelep 198png QLA {emjay aoueliep jobpng jbpng lemay
E101 Jusasag yofipng ejoL SZAd lejoL 396png QLA Jesj juoun) | polddIuaun)  poladjusun)  polad juaund

14vdd

ST0T/LE/2L UBnoIYyL §Z0Z/L/2L Wwold

STUNLIANIAX3 pue SINNIATYH 0 INJWILVIS
12141S1A ANJWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI




¢ 28eg

WV SHi9p:019202/11/7 e

%41'E8 (65°280°196°6) (00'b52'2L1°0) 65°0V6'8L1'} (00°409'06£2) (iwese'Lez'y) 0LT5L'V9Z 00°0¥9'¢8 01°26E°9vE STUNLIANTAXS YN0 ANNIAZY §530X3F
70828 SCIGCTtITTT 0EETee L0 [RT1%7 74 0%t el08 TO0Ir3Igs LY yigvia 0682951 feelc gar STUNLIANIAX3 [e10L
%68E0 BLPELTELD 000301096 BL8IL0EOY 0079€0L8C TSYELov'e 67'686'08 00ZZIEl 15 SISNIdXI ¥IHLO F30L
%0T V9 0Z919€I09 00S9ETES 07 [G9°86E 00907182 08B CGE T SII5¢08 00OrEee AT AVLLNO Y1IdvO
%ER LG 89'81€'ET) 00'516'262 85°19€'y 00'856'84) Tr985'L) voLeL 00'928'6} 92'760'6} 3SNIdX3 LSTHALNI
%0000} (o0-o0e'e) (00"00z'e) 000 000 000 000 000 000 TSOdSIA NO SSOVNIVO
$3SNIdX3 ¥IHLO
%b0°LS $0'6.5'6€€°C 00°Z18'$59' vO'LLY'beY 00°04L'686'Z 96°262'515°C 16°L12'Y0L 00°96YvEY £0'8L4'62¢ S3SNIdXI ONILYEIO [EIoL
%8y XA 00S0L9vSH CTvI8TZE) 00ZS0°€ZL 7596508 (0E'1566) 00Z¥88eH 0E€L BEL ISNIdXT NOILYIOT4IA
%00°05 ¥9°20' 005648 9T 00080t 910 o 00089 95629 SANOE 40 NOLLYZILHOWY
%S 8y 1¥'056'6E 009528 {656:2') 00'922' 7 655052y 68'L28'Y 00’1489 LVEVE'e dX3 WALSAS INFWLYIUL HALYM
%L6'26 L6'€ETTL 00°002°LL I6'C8E'EE 00'059'8€ £0°99%'S 2LH86'E 00'647'9 820642 ISNIdXT WALSAS LSIQ HILVM
%8101 00°€88'L 0000581 00'¢88'} 00°005'8} 00°219'81 000 000 000 INTFWOYNYIN 0FHS HIMISAHILYM
9%98'8¢ 00°2£8'9 00°€85'2} {00ess') 00'€62'8 00'SrL 01 00'885 00'S9t'L 00248 ONITANYS/ONIMOLINOW HILVYM
%16'L8 6L€05'92 00°06€'¢6 BL'268'62 00'799'9% 12'928's} (86'8.t'L) 00'8LL'L 86'9526 Wd dX3 HIA
%10°€8 09'852°92} 00'865°25} 09'857°05 00'862°9L 0¥'668'6C 60°089'8 009LLTL 16'680'y ddNSII0MN3Nd X3 I10IH3A
%8185 76'€29'221 00°662'50¢ 26'£26'6C 00°€00°261 80°629'L2} 65'128'S 00°256'%2 S'SEl'sl Q4103138 SV - SALMLN
%00'05 00'005'62 Q0°000'5¥ 000 00'005'22 0000522 000 00°052°¢ 00'0SL'E $334 331SNYL
%0526 Sr'9l5'6) 00004 12 S'796'8 00°9¥S'0L 65685} 00'852' 00'852'} 000 TAAVEL
%S L8 SE'LSLIE 00'029'6€ SE'BEE'EL 00'£08'2} S9'89Y'Y 00'896' 00'8962 00°0 SHYNIWAS ANY ONINIVEL
%S’ 1S 866188 00'9EL'ZL 96°€VT 00'795°8 20°02¢'8 {10'6€) 00'8Z'} 101971 INOHIF13L
%2 08 0€'519' 00'000'2 0e'5HLT 00°00° 04'78€'} (z8've) 00'8S 78'809 $700L TIVWS/SATddNS dOHS
%6299 79°e6E'S 00'620'8 76°2eL 0TLY'e 8v'1897 00°0 000 000 SIDYVHO NOILYOIT8Nd
%02 S 89°G/8'S 00'000°E (ze'sie) 006089 F4 7AWA {00'0002) 000 00°000Z 39V1S0d
%18'TS 82'G9L'S 006801 82'95€" 000699 TLeel's €196 00004 12109 $334 ANV SLIWY3d
%558, S6'S1G'8) 00'}45'52 S6'72L'9 00°082'L1 §0'550'S 01698 00'1€6') 06'290' $311ddnS 301440
%6€'SS 00°009'22 00°008'0% 000027 00'00%'02 0000281 00'009 00°00¥€ 00008 TYIHOLINYF 301440
%LL78 2L65E'EE 00'ES€'6E ZLSB9'EL 00'629'6) 82°666'S yLTE0T 00'6£2'€ o't STANLIANIX3 SNOINVTIFOSIN
%08'06 005y 00°005 00'¥5Y 00°00¢ 00'9y 00'88 000 (00'8e) $334 N3N
%00°00k 00000°0¢ 00°000'0¢ 00°000'G1 00°000'G} 000 000 000 000 INIVA B HIVETH ¥ALIN
%¥8'SE TY'586's 00°005'S1 {85ty 00005'8 85 7¥6'6 (5v'6€8) 000 5668 S1MVd AHOLNIANI
%0000} 00004’} 0000} 00052 00°052 000 000 00'0 000 INJNINDT ALIHYS
%86'8 w2eleL 00'EET'9P} 22'996' 00'890°264 8.°101'EE} 76025t 00'225't 809 SQNOS GNY JONVHNSNI
%vE bS LLIV8') 00'708'12 LL0GL) 00'G0L'L} £Z'756'6 2426 00'16€' 88'86¢'| JISNIAXI ALINNDIS
Bujurewsy
1oBpng asuelep yefipng aoueLIep 108png QLA lenjoy aJueuep Jabpng 1e6png lenjoy
(e10. 8213 jefpng (€101 SZAd leoL 3o6png QLA JE9A JUOLIND | POUAd JudLND  poued jusund  poliag judLng

14vad

SZ0Z/1E/2L UBnolyl sToT/L/CL wold

SIHNLIANIdXT Pue SINNIAIY JO INIWILVLS
10141S1a INIFWIAOHdWI TVHINITO AHNGSONDI







1 @8eq

WV 01:61:01 920¢/T1/T93ed

%0806 61 L¥6'9r 00°002'15 BL°160'K  00058'ST LB9SL'Y 76°018° 00'80€'y 80°L6Y ONIAZAYNS 2 ONIHIINIONT
%0000} 00219’} 00Z49') 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILYILODIN HOAY1 1vD31
%208 662287 00052 662021 00'529°) 0Zey 12902 00022 669 WwoI1
%9E Y 81'8E} 000LL'E 81 8EL 00°0Lb'E 78160 00052 00082 000 ONILNNOOOY

S3ASNIdXT ONILVHILO
%Eapo veosc'epz  O0'9LM'O8E | VE'EOE'SS  00'6S6I6Y  90'S6S'SEL 8¢°0E8°0L 00'61L'1E z9'z88°02 SISNIAX3 Q3LVI3Y TIOUAVd IEI0L
%G v5 {Zisew 1000087 (%3] 100°00%] (€8°€9¢) 0099 0099 000 3SNIdXT FONYMOTIV ¥v0
%40'86 ¥8°096'} 000007 8856 00’866 91'6E £0°291 007284 (€00} S3SNIdX3 TIOHAV ¥IHLO
%EY 7Y 16'SS' 00008 (60261) 00'8¥L') 60°5v6'} (es60v'L) 00262 £5°104') 3SN3dX3 IAYIT AINEOY
%8598 78956 0000t ZU8e0'y 00°025°S 82'187' 71e9 00026 88'0v2 3SNIdX3 830
%1EG9 0F'IGL') 00892} 0oL 00288 09'L19 {t9'62) 000 1987 SWHO4INN
%0E'26 02'292C 00'866'Z 02'292'} 00'86v'l 080T 0264 00'052 08'0€2 SLI43N38 LNFWAOTIWINN
%22 8L 06'657'C 00'SyL'e 06248 00'852'L 01689 £0'ele 00'9¥e 1628 SIS - SLIHINTE I3A0TINT
%81 1L S9PvS'SE 00'6€6'6Y S9Z/S0L  00296'%T SEPEE YL 00224} 00294y 00°0v7'Z SY3d - SLI43N3E FAA0TdINT
%YT S 76125k 00'6v8'9L 796C9 00229'L€ 8y L2e'\E L7082} 00'€00'9 65222y SNJ "GN - SLI4ANIE 3TA0TINI
%EE 6F S1'6e8't o0'azL'e (ce92) 00'798' 58'888' €L'9EL 00'LIE 2ZL J1GINVOIA - SLIZAN3E 33A0TNI
%52 €S ¥E'265'G) 0008262 ¥£'756 00°059'p1 99'289'€1 AL 00'0v'T LULB0T 301440 - TI0UAYd
%8009 FR7ING 00°ZEL'SLY 17909, 00'%9G'4S 62'L56'S £9'922'y 009656 LVL98'S JONYNILNIVI - TIOHAVd
%6L'LL 1016829 0020928 LL°680'6) 00008y €TOLLYE 00'¥SY'E 00°00€°2 00'9¥8'c HIDYNYW - TIOHAVd
SISNIIX3 @ALYI3E TI0¥AVd
STUNLIANTDE
%2y W 96'966'066  O0TVECOMT | vO'CLF'LL  00TAS'06E'L  PO'SS6'LOVL 19°062'9) 00'822'¥¥h 19'815°09% SANNIAZY le10L
T8 VE VWOorrI0r 0005 2ic | 6CZiesy  00B9C9SE  BEEL0'S0C 11938'S 00vP09e VLOSEHE SNOANVTIZISIN 1e30L
%0000} 060000 60000 + 007105} [ 000 0078 w0 000 INNIATY YIAHLO
%6l 1 SLOES LOS . JooUre0L  Q0OZSHE | GEEIEEY  0009LSSL  GEEL0S0Z VOB 00'096'52 LIOES'IE SINWLSIANI NO LSRHALNI
yses Jad abueyo uoyedoye %.€ © j1ebpng
SNOINVTI3OSIN
%Yy SCOL6'Z88 002280807 [(SE'6EE’lE)  00'LSZYEZL  SOMIE'Z0TL 96°50'01 008 8L} 96°286°821 $aXVL [BI0L
%0005 0PI 00voveo8 | 860 0907 B6 ORI IOV Ir0 0095699 £07756°99 NOILNBIYLSIA XVL 3LVIS
%l LS £0S79'022  00'cesess  [(€Elor'vl)  O0'BSE'€BE  £9'/66'G9E 7616 00'165€C 75T8E'R dN-IHYIN WIHOTVAGY
%6866 98'659'9 00°/99'9 (9829) 0052 e 00'0 00°0 000 XV1 ALH3dOdd TYNOSHId
%irb'LE PIB20'9ST  00'B/8'089  |(vL12@91)  QDLL0'BRY  98'66LTEY 19249’ 00'6£9'22 L9'24T'eE SAXVL NFHOWAQY
Saxvl
SANNIATY
m___.w_anm_ 3JUBLIEA jebpng asuelep 8 enjoy aoueuep 19Bpng  396png fenjoy « »
Saion _HM h”ma " 10Bpng =j0L  GZA4 1EloL |3e6png QLA wipra Jea) juaung | pouad JuaLN) Polidd Juauny polied JudLing 0L) NN4 TY¥3INT9

14vid

§20Z/LE/TL USNoIYL 520T/L/TL Wolid
ANN4 A9 STHUNLIANIIXT pue SINNIAIY 40 LNIWILVLS
101H1S1a INTFWIAOHAWI TVHINIO AYNESONDI




7 98eqd

WV 0T:65:01 920T/11/T #%red

%T9Z (oez6'292)  {ooovzze0’h) |Lozevasz  (oovec'oss)  (66°19z'vs) 166GV LS 00°000°9L b6'65t'El STUNLIANTAXT ¥IA0 INNIATY $839)F
7k TETeTorT  W0desuert | 1605086l D0oueuste CTOZvCCore TeOry 08¢ 88 STBS0 12 SIYNLIANIIXT B0l
T I7yrgalg  00000808¢ |ZILBI8VE  OOUVCEC0C ECIOLIGO} 0506C1C 0000052 05509 S3SNIdXT ¥IHLO [EI0L
%60'6¢ II%g9l8  0090C808C |Z7887€  000WCEL0C CECFIET66T 05 06E12 0000052 05609°E AVILNO TLIdVD
S3SNIJXT ¥HLO0
%Lb'S8 97606960  00°002'MEZ | 9TOMY'ILL  OULOL'SHE  LOGLYE 95°TV6's 00°605°) 9995 $3SNIdXT ONILVYIHO 2101
%S0 67 9198’1l 00°800°GH 9I0%ET 007057 WEIE 0ESZe 0015¢ T 07526 WaY dX3 HIA
%2139 09°966'6 00'092'G} 09°'90E' 000892 OrEze's 61658 LT 1ZSky ddNSMIOMANA dX3 F10H3A
%95 62 66'69) 00626 (01 00'¥62 10'S0¥ (69'1€) o'oY 6944 0103138 S¥O - SALILN
%0008 005z} 00'0522 000 00z’ 002"} (05°0) 00281 0628} $334 33USNYL
%0000k 000522 00°052 00'sZL' L 00'sZLY 000 00'884 00'881 000 TaAvdL
%S9V6 STELYY 00'9ZL'Y ST0LLT 00'€%ET 81782 00'¥6E 00'¥6€ 000 SHYNIWAS ONY ONINIVYL
%8615 AR 0029} zZvo 00'82 8'LL 100 00'el 667 INOHdIT13L
%8196 28¥EL') 00084 19v5Y 00°005 £Lsp 000 000 000 $39UVHO NOILYOIand
%6019 69201 00°L9} 6970} 00'291 1£19 000 000 000 5334 ANV SLINYAd
%EET6 gl 00't85') 67029 00262 151z PLGLL 00'Z€l 979l S3ddNS 301440
%995 00'058 00°008"t 00°00} 00052 00059 00°s2 00'24 0000} TYIMOLINYF 301440
%6126 ¥S'S9E0L  00°009°0 ¥9'L90' 0°206' WYL 25558 00°€88 82 S3UNLIANTAX3 SNOANYTIZOSIN
%00°001 00°005 00005 00005 00005 000 000 000 000 ANIWAINDT AL3dYS
%06'L £5'98 00'8v9'y £5°88 00'8Ya'Y 668"y 000 000 000 SANOS aNY JONVHNSNI
%SL19 672} 00002 67’12 0086 1592 L0 002l £29} ISNIdX3 ALIENO3S
%1166 BEVSP6L 000896l 6EVZL6L  0000E'6H 19'521 850 0008 ey SNDIS % $1001 '$3I1ddNS a3l
%gr' 1S 00Z42 024y 009 00'902 00°00¢ {ero) 00'%E e WVINTY INTFNINDA
%Zh 28 92884y 00'001' 97’889’ 0005 VLG 0052y 0'szy 000 SHIVAI/ INIVWSTNddNS 'dIND3
%E5 79 8012y 00062 80'16¢ 000 76'852 00'0 000 000 SNOILJIIOSENS B 53Na
%15°L8 12'298°C 00'986'F 12hE 0006%'C 628112 16°42¢ 00'Gip 6028 ASNIdX3 ¥3LNdWOD
€586 BLOBLYL  00°000'GH 810824 00°008'2 w6 ALY 00'052'} 855 “INIVW GNY SlIvd3d ONIaTING
%0628 0'G95'6€  00°000'GK 069027 0000SZE  SOYEK'S 000 000 000 $3MddNS % JONYNILNIV QYO
%19'96 0Ulze'sl  00°000'02 00'k2E'9L  0DO0DZL 0069 000 000 000 JOVNIVHA ONY NOISOY3
Butuewiay 2JUBMEBA jobpng aJueLeA |enyoy aoueuep Jabpng  jeBpng enjoy
SSEON _swﬂnuwu B0 oL ZAd eioL |398png aLA ROPYAOLA oo waung | pouiogewnd Pousd WaLnY potisg uaun) (01) aNnd TvuaN3©

14vad

SZ0Z/LE/TL YSNOIYL SZOZ/L/TL Wold
aNNd A9 STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY 30 INIJWILVLS
10141510 INFWIANOHdWI TVHIANIO AHNISONI




¢ 2% WV OT:65°01 920T/11/Z 3ed
%59vL 7e680'0LL  00'€S8'LE ZE'19L'9S 00'GZ6'CHL  BYEQL'S 06'520'6 008868l 017966 S43d - S1143N3E F2A0TNA
%L ML ZULLBlT OD'E9V90E | 2LTLSEY 00'9STOS)  82°689'98 89682C} 00'Z50'%2 el SNI"C3N - S1i43N38 IFA0TdING
%E'S9 76’8 00'+S6'2h 76'686') 00219 80°067'y 81908 00'620' 28245 D1a3W/VDI4 - S1143N38 33A07dINT
%492 €5 95'985' LY 0028082 95'7¥5Z Q0'S0'6E tb'005'9€ 16'626 00'£05° 90'845°G 301440 - TIOYAVd
%2819 9zZe0'9lE  00'98E'SIS | 9Z'8EE'ss  00°T69LST  pL'ESCes) 26'759'91 00'6¥6'27 80'962'92 JONYNILNIVIN - TIOUAYd
%9r'ZL 66'959'v6)  00959'892 6€/2€09 0087 vE} 190004 86856 00'88€'22 20'620°ck YIADVNVYI - TIOHAYd
$3SNIdX3 a31v13Y TI0¥AVd
S3¥NLIANIX3
%00°0S cre0LsylT  oULLLogy's |(EVLLECLY)  QDOSEYBLT  1G'800°189T (z8'6v6'22) 00°510'8PY 21°590°0Z SANNIAIY [e0L
CATR] TFT2Ce052  O0GIp0c0s |bi79698  00CI9tee BB LVeeese (P e080z) WLy 9CZEC 068 $334 ¥asn oL
%05'85 ¥8'9e9’L 00'86.°C V822 00G6ET TR ¢ozeD) 00tee 860 JONVHASNI INIT INNAYIS
"JOUB JO S8LUO)SND 0] 810U
M Kienuer u) Jno payig sem Jf ‘axeisiu Aq|%48'LS 8y'286'8 00'0£5°G) (Breee't) 00992'2 75TKS'9 (0e'882't) 00¥62't 02§ JONVYNSNI $SOT ININAA3S
JBULIOJSND 0} N0 PSJIQ JOu SBA ONUSASI SIYL |%66' LS 86'LEL') 00256 (66'€51) 00726 10028 (gzzal) 0094 Lo INNIATY NINGY NITAYIS
%E8'TS 167008 00'80€'2 (16902} 00759 60°LIY'E or Lyl 00'609 0v'082 INN3ATY J34 HI4SNYEL
%2.'08) (00885'97)  00TLLYL 00'882'82  00ZL0E} 00°00¢'}r 000 000 00'0 $334 NOILOANNOD
9%0G'2€ 00°08} 00087 0009 0002 00'00E {00°02) 00°0% 0002 $334 )03HO NeNLTY
9%05°9€ ErH0s'e 00009’ 16°662'L 00:008'Y 155609 e 00008 86'929 SI0YVHD IDIAYIS
%LyBY 9279602 000K’y visve 0001212 2K AN 15°66'} 00'6€5'€ 1G1E0'S $334 435N NO SAILTYNId
%92'8G 15°060'%9 0000000, |(2506L'28)  00'00L'8L £7'606'SY (sevrr'ol) 00°006'02 SO'SSr'y NOILJWNSNOD TYIDYINNOD
%0006 26'890'L% 00'ZEL'%6 89'1 00'£90'F 89°890' LY (zea) 00'5¥8'L 87v8'L NOILO3L0ud Tl TVIOUINNOD
%0005 79000780 oUesoveE  |(eed) 00'820'78) 8152028} o) 00'8E€°0E £G'1£808 TYIOUINNQD - $334 H3ASN
%1967 88'€¥0°2S 00vBYP0L | 2LHOT 00'9v2'2S AN €L 00'802'8 £0°08L'8 NOILOZ10%d il TVILNAAISTY
%398'05 01°0£9'9€ 00°000'2L (oyoie'sl) 0008967 06'695'G€ ryiLh) 00°0v¥') 95°9z¢'t NOILJWNSNOD € ¥3IL TVILNAISTY
%L9BY 16'860'€E 00°000'89 (16'819') 00'028'ey 60'L06'¥E (0'ge8) 00002 $6°102') NOILAWNSNOD ¢ ¥3IL TWILNIAIST
%8€°08 29799691 00000'6Z€ (29219210 00'0S6'08L  BETECESL (02°268) 00'0£0'€2 YT LEVTe NOILLJINNSNGO | HALL VILNIAISTY
%EE 08 8670V'606'L  00TE6'EBLE  |(86°06v2L)  00'096'968'L  Z0'69Y'¥BS'l {e825¢'2) 00'LOL'9LE LVBOB'ELE TYILNIQISTY - $334 53N
$334 ¥3sn
%5019 el 00862968 |(zeCiv'es)  00WLLONT  89°0SEVSE lecroma) 00'628°0¢ TeLee SNOINVTTIISIN B304
%62 8- GZ00te) 0005€'Se VLRLLTH 00229 105V e mnne w07zie PRSI 3NNFATY ¥IHLO
%0008 (00'526) 00°052 00'529 00005 00'524'} 000 000 000 334 MAIATE NYTd
yse9 19 aBueyo :oﬁwoﬂ%m\ww\wdwmwmm %9569 goEIrslz  oosel'sve  |(E0zle'or) 007092l L6¥BLST) (6g°21€'6) 0029282 Sy6v 6l SINIFWLSIANINO LSTHILNI
67 Ad PajIdui0d dHI BS0IBPUO %0000} 0000052 00°000°62 (00000'52)  00°000'SZ 000 000 00'0 00°0 LNVYD Yd3 308N0S LNIO NON 61€
SNOANYTIFOSIW
SaNN3AY
m___.Mmﬂom ouelep 1eBpng asueueA 6 |enjoy soueuep 19Bpng  196png lenjay (02)
SO oo POBIBOL STAd [0l [1sBpng aLn T QLA jpapaung | posdiuoung PO ALY PoHaG uan) OZHQNMIHELVA

14vid

SZ0Z/LE/TL YSnoluy SZ0Z/L/TL Wwoid
GNN4 A€ STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY 40 LNIWILVLS
10141S14 INIFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AUNGSONDI




b :98ed

WV 0L:6-01 920T/11/T 2 9ed

%50°LS e8'evL'L 000815l 8’851 000652 AT (98't%) 00592 98'60¢"} INOHJ31AL
%22 08 0£'6L9'S 000002 0e'5H'Z 00°008°€ 0,18¢'t (ze'v) 0018 Z8'809 $100L TIYNS/S3INddNS dOHS
%TE 8y 99°9€5°} 0008'E (veeon) 00081’} vEErY'l 000 000 000 $IOUYHD NOILYOIENd
%EE Y - vo'LEL'S 000929 612 00002 90'829'¢ {o00z0') 000 00°020' 39V150d
%8028 2L6L0'S 00'6£9'6 2L089 00052's BZ6L0Y £'86 00002 12109 $334 ANV SLINY3d
%58'8L 96001 00'6£2'€l 96'928'¢ 002699 0’808 BO'EES 00° 204"} VBELS $31ddNS 391440
%995 000020k 00'000'81 00002 00'000'6 00°008'2 00°00€ 00005} 00002 TYIIOLINYP 301440
%98'€8 12'98€'8 00'000°04 1z'88e'e 00°200'6 62€19'L 8¢'€0S 00°€€8 U628 SIUNLIANIAX3 SNOINYTIFOSIN
9%08'06 00¥5¥ 00005 00°¥St 00005 00'9% - 00'8E 000 $334 NI
%0000} 00°000'0¢ 00'000'0E 00°000°G1 0000051 000 000 000 000 INIVIN % HIvd3d 43130
yea) U posn ped padejdex | %y, 9e IrLig's 00°000'S} (858811 000008 959816 000 5668 S1¥Vd AYOLNIANI
%00°00% 00°005 00005 00002 00002 000 000 000 000 INIWDINDT ALIAYS
%L bl 68'¥EE'TL 00°€92'50} 68'691' 00°860'96 11'826'26 6025} 00225} B0'9 SANOA QNY JONVANSNI
%58'19 70'866' 00'8¥5'Yl H0'ES6'} 00°€05'2 96'615' ¥9'10L 00'€e8 9€e'1zL 3SN3dXT ALIMND3S
%Y9LS L'y 00'she'e sy 00'€%6'y eL0LY'Y 74178 00'SET't 8'980°L VAN INTNIND3
%2 L 62'199'} 0005194 Ak 44 00'056'8 LL88rY £6CLy 00°0FF 0 SUIVdIY INIVWSINAANS “dIND3I
%219 16'EEQ'9 00'999'6 16'6.8'y 00215'8 60269 00624 0L} 000 SNOILIMOSENS B S3NA
VTN €L 200€T 00'192°02 (122669} 00°192'0% LT85Ty 756697 00000y 8r'99E'l 3SN3dX3 ¥ALNINOD
%19'28 z6'er0'el 00568y} 76'619'S 00°L2y'L 80'H18't 78'6£6 00°8€2'} 81706 “INIYW ONY Sdlvd3d ONIdIINg
%VZ 6 ) A 7AYA 00'062'€S (550 00'¥9'9C 8524022 00' L'y L 06ty $3I9UYHO YNVE
%0000} 00°926'€l 00'9Z6'¢} 00°926'c 00'926'eL 000 00926 00926 000 $183a ave
Spuiad poddng Bl J81eM 9ZA|% 1L '8G 0v'SSE'el 0005222 0v'6L6'L 007281 09'¥6E'6 00°G68'L 852157 ONIAIAYNS 3 SNIYIINIONT
%00°004 000pY'L 00°0tb'2 000 000 000 000 00°0 000 SNOILYILODIN ¥OEaY1 TvD31
%5€'99 88'659'9¢ 00°000'6¢ 98'G51°L 0000561 AN 244! er'LL0T 0005z’ 152UV o3l
%9E ¥ 11859} 00°070'8E 11859t 00'0¥0'88 68°18€'9¢ 00700°€ 00400 000 ONILNNOJDY
SISNIXI ONILV¥RdO

%99'29 0S5°086'S00°L  00°226'98Y') | 0S'LVE0SZ  0O'VGE'LvL  0S'9VB08Y €6°€10'SS 00'6£2'¢Z} L's72'89 $3SNIdX3 AILV13Y TI0¥AVd [e10L
%€5°99 707997) 1000007 (10299 001002 ®68eE T 00€ee) ooeee) 000 JSNAdX JONYMOTIV ¥YO
%1065 0€'29L'} 00°002'€ 0€'29L') 00002 0L L8t €0°055') 00009 166y SASNIXA TIOUAYd ¥IHLO
%809 66'62€'8 00'000°¢} 66°1€8'1 002059 100297 7629LT 00'€80°k 3SNIdXT 3AYI1G3INYI0V
%LE9 7LE5L'9e 00'049'0F [ANAR L 00'¥EE'0Z 82°9LSpL 7969 00'68E°€ 8E6LY'T 3SN3dX3 8340
%LE9L 00'629'9 00°2vL'8 002062 0028 007202 000 2009 SIWHOAINN
%S5t'66 w1962 00°$66°Z Y0'756'¢ 00966'€ 9%BEr 0229 00999 96'Ey S$1143N38 LINIWAQTIWNINN
%0506 SEPOLL 009162 SEGIY'E 00°9)'¢ 59'152 B68'YEL 00148 Lhogk SIIS - SLI43NTE 3TA0TINI

Buiureway oueLIeA j9bpng BJUBLeA |enjoy asueuep jabpng jabpng |enjoy
SEUON _s“w.w“”ma d jeBpng ol  SZA4 (eloL (196png QLA 1ebpna aLA JB3A JUaund | pouad Juaun) poliad jusunyd poudd jusund (02) aNNd ¥ILYM

14vidd

GTOZT/LE/TL UBNOIYY SZTOZ/L/ZL Woid
aNN4d A9 STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY 30 LNJWALVIS
L10141S1a INFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AUNGSONDI




¢ 8eg

WV 0T:6501 920Z/11/T PR

%8168 (eeveszor'y) (00'h0zzve's) |ecvsv'sys (00121081l (19°999'peS) 76°006'504 00" sy TE'Ive'srl SIUNLIANAdXT Y3A0 INNIAZY 8S30X3
766 89 LTI G0BIoooCor | TEISEReL O0ZGSFIeT  HIELOTIZE FI05a6eF k7051 14348714 STUNLIONTDA k101
%eh 9L T501980L7 00 V109 | EGIZVIEE  O0BSEESLE  ZPOESZSYE erees Ly 00929769 15792612 SISNAdX3 ¥IHLO 1=l
%00°00F 00002 € 00002t 000 000 000 000 Q00 000 135SV 40 TvSOdSIA NO NivO/SSOT
% LL S6'L6Y'99G'y  00'07L'926'S | 56'G9.'92€  00°000'699'L  SOVET'SEE'l SLL9V LY 00°000'08 §7'2€87 AVILNO TYLIdYO
%€8'LS 85'9IE'eTL  00GLE'UET | BT I9EY 00'856'81L  TYOESTIL vLLEL 00°9Z8'6) 9Z 76064 JSNIdXT LSTHALNI
SISNAdXI ¥3HLO

%88'28 6L1S9'8EY'L  00'0SS'02LZ | 6L'9SEL9L  O0'SSZT'SRYL  12'868'18T1 TeL86'9T 00°606°012 89°126'68) SASNIXT ONLLYHICO IE0L
%l Ly V195160 00899 Lvy |G7ce)  00veStel 1S 90F9SL (18°99.6) 006E50CH 18507 OEL ISNIdXT NOILYIOFEd3a
90005 VL0 00'954'8 9 00°080'% 96120y 0 00089 95'6.9 SANQE 30 NOILVZILYOWY
%S 8Y 105668 00°957'Z8 (6g622'}) 00'922' Ly 65°505'2y 68'225'7 00°128'9 AN dX3 WILSAS INFWLYIHL HIALYM
%0.6'26 IBEETTL 00°002°2L2 16°688'6E 00'0S8'8E £0'99'S 71186 00°SLY'9 82°06+'C ISNIdXT WALSAS LSIA ¥ILYM
%81 0} 00°¢88'} 000058} 00°€88') 00°00'8} 00°219'9) 000 000 00°0 INIWOYNYIN GIHS HIMISIIILYM
%89°8€ 00°/£8°9 00°€85'LL (00°€56'4) 00'e62'8 00'9%20) 00'88S 00°59¥'} 00°LL8 ONIdWYS/ONIRIOLINOW HILYM

e Jojeipe. 9Seqy, 609 2058976 0049059 ZUesl'oz 00TES'TE 8TBLET (85ta6') 00zey's 855012 WBY dX3 HAA

- ‘uoisspusues) ‘aubus eaaIag £Z€ L4 HonIL
%E8'78 p0'9S6'€0L 00820221 | ¥OBIGTY  00'0¥0L9 9612581 £6'956'9 00°€LL'01 10912 ddnSMIoN3and dx3 3101H3A
%66'83 SE'SZ6l0L  0020S%/Z | SE0Tviz 006666l §9'9LGTH 00'98L'S 00°096'12 0072104 ORILOTTT B SV - SALNLN
%00°05 00°005€1 00°000'22 000 00°00€ 1 00°005°€1 00'0 00052 000822 §334331SNYL
%.6'€6 6€'965'7) Q0 ¥0¥'EL 6E 768G 002049 19'208 QU ZLY'} 00°Lbb'Y 000 TanvaL
%L£'98 98'268'6) 00'896'2Z $8'ESE8 00787 SLOELE 00'ri6t 0076 000 SHUVNINIS ANV ONINIVYL
a:_:m_u:Ewm IJUBLIEA uom_usm SJueiieA 6 {fenpoy aduelRA ammvzm uwuv_._m lenpdy A v
S3LON _s.m ,____wms d 106png [e30L  SZAd Ie30L |19Bpng QLA 1OPRE QLA 1o Jusung | pouedjuaung pousd usLNg Podd AN 0Z) NN H3LVM

14vid

§Z0Z/LE/TL Ysnolyl s20T/1L/TL Wold
ANN4 A9 STHNLIANTIXT Pue SINNIAIYH 0 INIWILVILS
12141S1d INIWIAOUdWI TYHINTO AUNESONDI




9 2deg

NV 01:6+-01 9202/11/Z 9%

%9628 98'SEQ°LE 000056} 98'682°2 00°052'6 PLEOr'e ¥9°060' 00'sz9't 9E'PES RTREL
%9y 01628 00°020'6} 01628 00°020'64 0606181 00705} 0008} 000 ONILNNODOY
S3SNIdX3 ONILVEIO
%9969 7V'eSE'207  00'029'GBE | Zhive'eL  00ZIEIEL  88V8LLLL S0°€sv'zs 00'65V'1€ 56'G.6'81 $3ASNIAXS QLYY TI0HAVd le10l
%6E € 60T 1007008) ¥679C 00°25¢ wEors) (0077 [([f7] 000 ISNIdX3 FIONYMOTIV ¥¥D
%ZE VB 8512y 007008 85694 00'8¥C Ty8L oy 00Zv $3SNIdX3 TIOUAYd ¥IHLO
%L€09 8BrIYT 000007 86Ty 00866} 70'985'L Zi'eol') 00'Eee ZV9Er'} JISNIdX3 IAVIT1 A3INEIOV
%ZE'S8 8r'ezs'vh 00°06¥'24 8Ll 002428 762967 80'620' 0028t} 6'22y ISNIdX3 830
%02°09 05'88 00'Lvl 05l 00°€L 0585 000 000 000 SWHOAINN
%00°001 00'966'S 00'966' 00'9662 00'966'2 000 00°005 00'005 000 S114IN8 LINFNAOTWANN
%2 08 08264 00286 08'664 00'h6E 0Z'¥6k 69'701 00'60} Iy SIS - S1143IN3E F3A0 1AW
%09'}L LUSEY'TY 00'922'68 108670 00'9e9'6e £7'268'g} 1827602 00°0¥6'y £9'268C SY3d - SLI43NIE 3TA0dNT
%99°0L 78'220'LS 00°969'08 78'G62'GL  00'696'aE 8L'EL9€T 00%iE'T 00'S€0%9 06°092' SNIG3N - SLI43N3E 3FA0TINA
%99'59 YE'69L'Z 00762 VEBLS 00H'L 99'%21'1 €251 00'h22 L85} DIQIWYOIS - SLIHANTE I3A0TAINT
%92'68 ¥9'88L'LE 0079685 ¥9'906° 00°082'62 9ESLE'LT 9’969 000887 VIEBL'Y 301440 - TI0YAYd
%bb b 12280l 00'0Lb'SS) 12'962°2¢ 00'¥85'LL €L 181y 29€28'9 00'1E6'2H BE'L0L'9 YIDYNVI - TIOHAVd
SISNIdX3 AILVTIIY TIO¥AVd
SIUNLIANIDXA
%89°6% 29°761'720°L  00°08S°2S0T | SE'SEL'Y 00'292'1£0°F  BE'ZBE'SE0') (96252 00'885°521 $0°5£8°021 SINNIATY IE10L
%ET 6 §CIt6ee6  O00LBI6I8 | I9VEIV 00°60CTY6  Z9°EVB'OV6 (921Z9) 007Zi8'95) (AN $334 ¥3sn 3oL
%6¢ €9 ¥6ECET WTHE (76'287) 0098 T 08T [i7453] 00908 92058 ANNIATY T34 YI4SNVHL
%L 70F- (000ss'vl) 00009 00062'L  00°00¥'2 00°051'8} 000 000 000 $334 NOILOANNOD
%Z69 L9EE'S 00°092'7h (191561) 00°088'2 £E'STr'S {ssal) 00'06Z') 55%90'} §334 ¥3SN NO S3ILTYNId
%0229 £0'209'02 00°0Z'eE (€0'70L'y) 00°zze L 161157} {zyesy't) 0024€'e 85258 NOILJANSNOD TVIOHIWNOD
%00°0S 0g'810'le 00'8E0°2y 0eh 00'8L0'12 0Z'610'42 0z0 00'€05'¢ 02'¢05°¢ TVIDU3INNGD - §334 ¥3sN
%8'8S 16°4EFS) 00°00%'9Z (16°662'€) 00°952°v1 6029601 PL8LLL 0022 2°062'¢ NOILAWNSNOD | ¥31L TYILNIAISTY
%%0°05 8669828  00'l6L'eGL'L |(86°G20) 00°260'828  Z0'kZv'LLB (0 ozt) 00'6YE'9YL 16'82Z'97} WILNIQISTY - $334 ¥3SN
$331 ¥3sn
%02'05 62'65Z'68 o0's08'2LL  |(6z6EY) 00°€50°68 1265588 (0z'1€1) 00927} 08'FPa'Fl SNO3NVTIIISIN (El0L
%56 GE& SI6Lb 007005 (A 008vC S20eE 19601 (147 19161 INNIATY Y3HLO
00°00S 00622 00°00% 00529 000 000 000 334 MIIATY NV
%S08 #5°002'68 00608921 00'507°88 9'809'28 00'vELYL 61°E6v'7L SLNIWLSIANINO LSFHILNI
SNOANYTIIISIN
S3NNIATY
ac_:m_a:_ax daueLeA . Jebpng dueLIBA 6 [emjoy asueuep 196png jafipng |enjoy (0g)
SAEON o oo PEPEIROL SZAd 1oL [1Bpng oLk P T L4 seepjueund | popedjueuny popia uaLn polieq WaLny 052 GNAH EIM3S

14vad

§202/1LE/Z1 Yysnolyl SZ0T/1/TL woid
QaNN4 A9 STHNLIANIdX3 PuUe SINNIAIY J0 INTJWILVIS
10141S1a INIWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




{, ofeg

AV 013601 9207/ 11/ A

%51'26 Gomzic)  (oosyo'zs) | eapprzer  (©0vLIv0D)  (vEEZ'IR) YSHE'LE 00'$49'08 #1°956'24) STYNLIANTAX3 YIA0 INNIAIY $$30)X3
Bt €0 FITIFECIT  O0Bcomime |O7C009lF  OOGEhocel ZI9B Ut RN WZI606 [EX2ER4] SIYNLIANIAXT €101
%8156 SEIrc9ey  O09eLl0g | S@uevee  DOORSES GIETrie 056616 00S¥E'SE 05999 $3SN3dXE ¥3HLO eIl
%8I GETE98y  0090LZ05 | SBcevee Q0 9FRES SIET e 56616 OETEED 059799 AV1LNO VLIV
SIASNIdX3 ¥IHLO
%EL'TS ICEIT'666 00'7SE'OL6'L | 1C6EOTL  00°'8.2'066  69'3€9'LL6 S3'GL91 00'ZL9'ey s1'952'12 SISNIAXT ONILVAILO [E10L
%6€ 67 5691987 00°ZEVS6 (10209 00'8IZ'6Y 1002867 (67 7BH 00E0C8 &7Z8E8 3SNAdXT NOILYIOT¥A3A
%bY 79 £ P60'S) 0052162 €199 00'L¥6'}} 18068 L0282 00 %28} £6°16'} OIMLOTT13 B SYO - SALULN
%0005 000629 00'005'€} 000 000529 000529 000 00'5ZH'} 00'6Z4') $334 331SNL
%S5 v8 65E26C 00297 65681} 00822t b'8ES 00'882 00'882 000 TaAVAL
%27 68 08042’ 0028 08'00£' 00'7662 02'€89 00'68% 0088 000 SHVNINIS GNY SNINIYYEL
%8055 16°968 00Ze9'} 1628 00918 6UEEL Uy 00'9€} ALY} INOHdI 3L
%06'G6 vLE0L'T 000022 1801 00002} 92'06 000 000 000 $39HVHO NOILYONENd
A 0€'100' 00°0et'y (0£:602) 00'602C 08T {00089 000 00089 39VLS0d
Y%Lt 816} 00'507 21’64 00'S0F 78'58¢e 000 000 000 $334 GNY SLINY3d
%.8'9L 0Z'1EE'S 00'566'9 02'e98') 00'29'E 08'609'} £6'222 00'828 20058 $31ddNS 301440
%L9°98 00'004'S 00'000'6 00'009 00005y 00'006'€ 00'054 00'052 00009 IVIHOLINYT 301440
%60°98 V' L62' 0054’9 Welze 00'640'€ 65958 i 8re 00EIS 9879} $3UNLIANIdX3 SNOINYTIZOSIA
%0215 {00°952) 00°00S {o0'9sz) 00005 00952 000 000 000 SLUVd AHOLNIANS
%396} OF'¥bs 00'888'22 0v'vvS 00'988'2Z 09'E¥E'22 000 000 000 SANOS ONY FONVHNSNI
%25 L€ 57982 00'708'9 (5z'1.48) 00086 TALTA (9051} 00°08S 90'G¥S ISNIdX3 ALRIND3S
%88'4S 04°686') 00'%28' 0LBIE 000942 0E'0v8'} 59221 00'6v9 5128 TYINTH INTNINO3
%029 gI'8BL'vEl  O0OKO'SKe | 8L'899'9z  00'0Z5'Z0L  Z8'1S8'08 520.£'6 00'026'2) SLBYS'B SHIYATY LNIVW/SNAANS dinD3
%6789 L' 00'4€6'7 #7008 00'7S€'y 95655} 00'584 00'8} 000 SNOILAIMISANS 8 $3NA
%E8'ZZ 62'566'% 00'948'12 (L0z0't) 00'0982} 120880} 90°904 00'009 Y66V 3SNIdX3 ¥3LNWOD
%2286 25'098°0€ 00BLY'1E ZGBPl'GL  00'80L'G) 8’845 WL2sT 00819 6508 "LNIVW ONY SHIVd3d ONIQTING
%1067 62°826'L} 00°09€'SE (Lege) 00829'L4 1L1E0'BL {ev o) 00'L¥6C £7'666' S3IDUVHD INYA
%00 00} 00'782'6 00'+82'6 00'¥82'6 00826 000 00'8¢ 00'v92 000 sig3aave
%1205 00€EZ9'KZ  00'9O¥C'S8y | 00'000°) 00€Z9'Tke  00'€EY' LT 000 000 000 SININSSISSY ¥SL100
%0005 0S62L'¥2y  O0BSE'BYE | 050 0008L'YZF  0SBLLYZY 000 000 00'0 08 W VLVd-04d ¥§1100
%12°0L £0'964°L 00'052°0% £0'0£0T 00'veL's 16°€50°€ 16'95€ 00'v58 60'26% ONIAIAENS B ONIHIINION
%0000} 00'804'C 00'804'2 000 000 000 00°0 0’0 o0e SNILYILODIN ¥0av1 WO
Bujurewioy aoueueA jefipng 3JUBLIEA lenjoy aoueuep jefpng  jebpng jemay
2208 o) oy PPE IEIOL SZA4 L yopng aun POP"8 O eo, uaung | poed jueun pouad juaung popiad juating (0£) AN HIM3S

14vdd

§Z02Z/LE/TL Ysnolyl 520¢/1L/TL Wold
ANN4 A9 STHNLIANIAX3 pue SINNIAIY J0 INTJWALVILS
19141S1a INTFWIAOHUdWI TVHINIO AHNESONIA




g 82q

WV OL:6F°01 920T/11/T 91k

979692 {zvere't) 00°00S (z1Bve') 00'008 FAR: 123 000 000 000 ONIAIAANS B ONIFIINIONT
%00°004 000¥Z' 00°0t2'1 000 00'0 000 000 000 000 SNOILLYILODAN HO8Y1 1vDT1
12800 feRowLdY MOUS |% /9 TS (ggr102'2t)  00'0SE'E (98772661 00¥29') 98'156'0 (828297 00'h22 87'6682 937
%9EY 8186} 00'02L'€ 81'8¢} 000LL'E 81608 00°052 00052 000 INLINNODDY
SISNIdXS ONILYYIAO
%BLEY 0ze9'es,  O0€S6'9LZ | MOIZYIE  O0LOLMEL  B6'SBZ'00) szezy'L 00'h0L22 SIbITS) SISNIAX3 A3LV13Y T10HAVd [e10)
{0/AIG# 08'50¢ 000 08502 000 08502 000 000 000 ISNIAX3 FONYMOTIV UV
%90'96 95096 00000k 9529 00'205 vr6e 6628 00€8 100 $ASNIAXT TI0UAYd ¥3HLO
%6.°59 S8'6LE"L 00°0007 SEEIE 00866 5189 {676vE) 00'29) 6V'0LS 3SNAdXT IAVTT A3NUODY
%0968 90'202°01 00Z6¢'4} 90'605"y 00'¥69'G 6181 15152 00'6¥6 6v'261 JSNIdX3 8340
%8099 58'8%2 00604} 58'921 00188 SI'pIE (80 000 4 SWHO4INN
%05 v6 SLEEBT 008662 SLEEE'} 0086t 5819l 518 00052 S8'vok S1143N3E INTWAOTIWINN
%CE 9L ¥8'046 00zt 8202 00'608 oL'L0¢ 90'9LL 000} ¥6'€T SIS - S1I43NTF F3A0 TN
%9669 YOrSYLe 00'1+2'6E YoEes’L 00°029'61 96981} 9L 288} 00'0£2°€ ¥2eee't SY3d - S1I43N38 F3A0 TN
%80°09 1E°197'1€ 0029629 18759 0024508 £9'468'vC £re9l’t 000887 15918 SNI "3 - SLI43INIE F3A0TINT
%69 80°919' 00'68¢'2 80'69¢ 00Tre') 6248 8 00202 89’641 DI03NIYOI4 - SLIFANTE FIA0TAW3
%ST €S Zr'I65'6h 00°082°62 Tr'zse 000487} 89/89'€} A 00'0FY'Z L1607 301340 - TI0HAYd
%6905 0L'2L6'S2 00'8ET'S 01288 00'819'52 06'592'sZ LE9eY A B69'€ESE JONVNILNIVA - TI0HAYd
%L 0L Ao 00184522 622505k 00'882'9E LLSEZ'LE 9v'0BE'E 00'8¥0'9 75°259'C HIOYNYIN - TI0HAY
$3SNIdXA A31V13Y TI0HAVd
STYNLIANIdXI
%EG LY p9'620'86C  00TLOV'OES | 9E'LLLZL  00'DOZSHY  OE'MAETEY SUWLT 00'10Z°69 SLTL6'LL SINNIATY eloL
%8008 sy Ooeslies |@vved 000680F  85SOZOIY C]N37 [ ¥4 4L ¥BBEYES $334 ¥3sn lelol
%01 79 058EQT 00029 (058z¢e! 00018 05185 8LE 005e1 g6 INNIATY 334 YI4SNVEL
2%08'%S 06'5£9'Z 00°0)8'% (06'622) 00'70¥'2 0Ll 9%ty 00'L0Y 9L'SHy $334 ¥3$N NO SAILTIYNIA
%0005 00'7¥E'vE 00°889'89 000 00'7¥E'vE 00'rvE'PE 000 00'72L's 00724 TYIDUINNOD - $334 ¥3sN
%005 zo'ess'ee  00vo9'rs  |(eooze) 00ZEE'ELE  B6'GOLELE (026 0072229 0674129 WIINIAISTY - $333 43SN
$334 ¥3sn
%Ll LS)- (aravs'sl)  00'619°8 8L°658'2L  O0OIE'Y IR 167187 00'61L 16EES'E SNO3NVTIZOSIA [E10L
T3t 6C 1788 00002 6CEY 0086 BCIE 8867 00zl 6899 INNIAY ¥IHLO
a0 o b smwoﬁu\m%w\mﬂwmwﬂ %0g'lo- (609l 00BLYS Srzigs 002 6VER0e 205942 00202 20 19%'E SLNTWLSIANI NO LSRN
SNOANVTIIOSIN
SANNIATY
caion Eﬁuﬁé owejen  jbpng | oouewen o o ey (susueAjBpng jobpng emoy (09) INN3A3Y
|B101 U821 g 30Bpng |ejoL  SZA4 1eyoL [396png QLA deajjuaun) | poladjuauny Ppoudd jusuny pouad jusund IVIDIdS TYAOIWIH MONS

14vda

§20Z/LE/TL UBNoIYL §202/L/2) woid
aNN4d A9 STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY 40 LNIWILVIS
1O141S1A LNTJWIAANOHdWI TVHINID AHNTSONDI




6 ofeg

WV 0T:67:01 920¢/11/7 -2

%6ZELL (sroco'zes)  (00109'z2s) | ores'ser  (00°9El‘9g) 962169 $0°642'59 (00°00t'124) (96'pv2'9s) STUNLIANIAXI HIA0 ANNIATY $S30X3
T EL UF090065  OUZODESCT |OPwecart  GOOECESy  OOTRE OOt [ 43704 {0 Te0°a6F [2yir414) STUNLANIAXI IeleL
%0086 toot6IeL  00299%¢) | E9°68GL 000266 IE0ELT 00008 2 0070052 000 SASNIAX3 ¥IHLO [EI0L
%0986 E90C6Ter  00/99€zh | E9GESL 000¢€s EELT 007005 00005¢ 00 AVILNO TYLIdYO
S3SN3dXT ¥IHLIO

%09TL oU95H'169  00°Z8E'2S6 | OL€8C'EL  OD'GOEVEE  $2'SE6'09T POPLETS 00"26t'S94 9626 THL SISNIdXT ONILVITO 18101
|%9106 T6ES6 1T 00BSCTL 16€2€S 008259 B0VOET GE6Lh [T 07526 W9Y dX3 HAA
%E6'98 96'692'€} 00'092'S1 96'€£9' 00'829'L YO'786'L 18198 00242’ £9H0F ddNSMIOMand dx3 310IHIA
%£6'89 7E'96€ 00'626 veSLL 00762 99'82) ] 00'9F 186€ OLOT1A 2 SV - SALMLN
%0008 00524} 000522 000 00621} 00'SZLL 050 0088} 0528} §334 331SNAL
9%£0'88 1opL') 00'¥86't L¥'ESL 00'L66 €5'26C 00591 00'594 00°0 AL
%56°LL P65} 007807 Sr'eLS 00°920°) 55°7SY 0012} 00’12} 000 SHYNIWIS aNY ONINIVYL
%E6'LS AN 00294 [4XA 0008 88°LL 10’} 00t 6671 INOHJT1AL
%Ly Ov 52TH9 00'GHS'} (52'99€) 00'7ES 51206 000 000 000 SIOUVYHO NOILYOMENd
%64 0% L 00°028' {95°221) 00°006 96°240') {0000€) 000 0000¢ 39v150d
%LE'06 69'€09 00'899 69°€09 00'899 P9 00'0 000 000 $334 ANV SLINY3d
%00'29 0E'158 00ELE') 0e'291 00789 0128 {eoeL) 00'pLL 9921 $311ddNS 301440
%L9'95 00058 00°005'} 007001 00°082 00'089 0052 00'szL 00°001 TYIHOLINYF 301440
%19'96 ¥5'G9€'S 00'009' 5295 002087 ov'PEC 76667 00297 8y LT STUNLIANIAXT SNOANYTIZOSIA
%00°004 00°00} 00'001 00'0S 0005 000 000 000 00'0 INTNINDA ALIAVS
%06} £6'88 00'8¥9'y £5'88 00'8v9'y Ly'656'Y 00'0 000 000 SANOA ANY 3ONVHNSNI
%07 69 BreLl 00052 6v Ly 00724 1592 78’ 00ie €291 ISNAdX3 ALIINO3S
%00°00) 000000} 00°000°0L 000000t 00'0000L 00°0 00°0 000 000 SNOIS 8 $7001 ‘'SA1ddNS A13d

%6 vt 98°68 00'40L} 88'6€ 00'159 VL9 (Leey) 00521 1IY61 TYINTY INFNIND3
%626 (ze) 00°001 {ee've) Q0'sL £2°601 00'5C 00'52 000 SHIVAIY/ INIVW/SIINNS “dino3
%vE P9 BO'L9Y 00'922 80°96€ 00'S66 76'85¢ 000 000 000 SNOILAIMOSENS 8 $3NG

%0} L S/ 68 00'¥5LY (sezor')) 00'756'Z STy 92'Zs 00082 L2161 3SNIdX3 ¥3LNIWNOD
%' L6 92'90LY 00'068'% 97'882'C 002H'T 1 7K4) Z0'9.€ 00207 96'ST “LNIVIN ONY SHIvd3d ONIJTING
%L0'6Y SBYY9'L 00°009'1 (54'851) 00°008'. §1'656°L {£902) 00'00€'} £9°0z¢'} SIOUYHO MNVE
%00°004 009607 00'060'% 00'980'% 00'960'% 000 00'96 00°96 00°0 slg3aave
0N 000 000 00°0 000 00'0 000 000 000 ONIOI A/ILNY TYAOWIY MONS
%10°6L GL'EST'6S 00'000'62 SLE5L'S 00°008'12 SZ'orL'GL SLEEY'T 00°000%6 G7'995°9 ONIANYS - WAOWIH MONS
%LLSL SLE85'786 0000062 | SL'€884S 00000052 SZOLYT6L SLE0Y05 00°000'05} §Z'965'66 ONIMOTd - TVAOWIY MONS

S3I0N m.“w:m_””_mmu_ ELITITITY yebpng UBUEA  on LA {enjoy soueuep JeBpng  1abpng fenjoy (09) INNIA3H
101 1018 1oBpng |eo)  GZA4 1e10L |19BpNE ALA 1BOAJUOLIND | POUA JUSUND POLR ALY polisd WaLNn)|  y103dS TYAOWIY MONS

14vdd

S202/LE/TL YBnoIyL STOZ/L/CL wold
ANNd A9 STHUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY J0 INIWILVILS
12141S1a INTFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AUNGSONDI




01 98eq

WV 01:6+:01 9Z0Z/11/T S

%ST'16 £2'602'92 ooose'ss  |(ezose) 001220t Lrveeez (1z'601) 00°8¥b'S 6826 STUNLIANIAXI HIA0 INNIATY SS30X3

RS TR WHelw |06 O0TeFaz LOX A4 [0a°T6) G06P6 ¢ 0TI SIUNLIGNILX3 lei0L

8T ¥S BT [T 2 () 0090z 80°08v'0¢ 0916 00676 C 09070 SISNIdX3 ONILVYIO (€04

%079 TWZ0TE 00161 Z1 0T 68EBI9 00TE0T [T OIML0313 % SYO - SALMILN

%00°004 00°00¥ 00'00% 00002 00002 000 000 000 000 $317ddnS 301340

%G8'LS 00°009' 0000801 00002 00'00t'S 00002 00004 00006 00'008 IVIIOLINYP 301340

%095 20°SHe'e 000002 0wy 00°86t'€ 86'750'€ 8298 00'€8S [2K:1514 SFUNLIANIXT SNOINVTIZISIN

%86'L J1:37) 00'982° 1994 00982°€ EVILLE 000 000 000 SANOE ANV ZONYINSHI

A 05124 00022 056 00804 0586 T 008l 5091 TYINTY INTFWINDT

%056 00°8.€ 00°00% 0082l 00°002 00zz 000 000 000 SHIVTH/ LNIVW/SINddNS “diND3

%}8°5 Zr06Le 00'000' 88T 00'86Y'2 85602 (21°89) 00°LLy LVSLY "INIV GNY SdIV43d ONITTING

$3SNIdX3 ONILYHIMO

SUNLIANTXT

%E9°08 5122018 00'202'00  [(S1259) 00'Z8E'0S S8'vrL'ey (1922} 00'26¢' 6E'6lE'8 S3NNIAIY lej0L

AR ST7Z018 goZszoor (SIS 002805 SETvLer (ym] 0026578 BECIES SNO3NVTIFISIN [E10l

%ET0G G170 00Z9700F  [IS1UES 008805 SOWRLEY [pm] 00Z6E8 BEBIES JWOONI TYLNIY

SNOANVTIAOSIA
SANNIATY
S3ION m.“w_u”__“.m..w ¥ souepep yebpng GIEBMEA oo QA jemoy seo uaung| 22UCHEARBRNG 1bpng [enjoy (08) TvINIY
€301 109038 16png |eIoL  GZAd |elo) | 9Bpng LA POuRg JUBLNY  POLAdIUBLND  Polidg Jueund JAYHO AHNESONDI 862

14vidd

SZ0Z/LE/TL YSNoIYL SZTOZ/L/ZL Wwold
ANN4 A9 STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATYH JO INTJWILVLS
1014.1S1A ANFWIAOUdIWI TYHINIO AHNESONDI




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #14
TITLE: PROPOSED UPDATES TO THE BY-LAWS
MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees conduct the first reading of the proposed updated By-Laws
of the Kingsbury General Improvement District. No action to adopt the by-laws is requested at this time.
Following Board discussion and direction, the proposed by-laws may be scheduled for second reading
and final adoption at a subsequent duly noticed public meeting in accordance with Article X of the by-
laws.

BACKGROUND:

The By-Laws of the Kingsbury General Improvement District govern the organization, authority.
and operating procedures of the Board of Trustees. Over time, the existing by-laws were
amended periodically, resulting in a document that contained outdated references, inconsistent
terminology, and provisions that were difficult to navigate.

The by-laws have been reviewed and consolidated into a single updated document intended to
improve clarity, organization, and consistency while preserving the District’s governance
structure and statutory authority under Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapter 318. At the
Board’s January 20, 2026 meeting, the Board requested additional clarification regarding
certain officer roles and responsibilities. The proposed updates are presented to the Board for
first reading and initial review. The first reading is intended to provide the Board with an
opportunity to review the proposed by-laws, ask questions, and provide direction prior to
consideration of second reading and final adoption.

INCLUDED
A. Final Draft 2026 By-Laws of the Kingsbury General Improvement District
B. Existing By-Laws
C. Staff Report - Summary of Changes
D. Resolution 2026-2

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






BY-LAWS OF THE KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

KINGSBURY

GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

ARTICLE L. NAME, AUTHORITY, AND PURPOSE

1.01 Name
The name of this governmental entity is the Kingsbury General Improvement District (the

“District” or “KGID”).

1.02 Authority
The District is organized and governed pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 318, as
amended from time to time, and all other applicable provisions of Nevada law.

1.03 Purpose

The purpose of the District is to provide municipal and improvement services authorized by law
for the benefit of property owners and residents within the District boundaries, and to exercise all
powers granted to general improvement districts under Nevada law.

The purpose of these By-Laws is to help Trustees work effectively with one another and with
others to achieve the District’s goals during their respective terms in office. Trustees and local
officials shall listen to the community, represent the public interest, and assist the community in
visualizing and planning for its future.

ARTICLE II. OFFICES AND RECORDS

2.01 Principal Office
The principal place of business of the District shall be the Kingsbury General Improvement
District office located at 160 Pine Ridge Drive, Kingsbury Grade, Stateline, Nevada.

2.02 Records

All current official records of the District shall be kept at the principal place of business of
Kingsbury General Improvement District. Older records, which may be stored at another location
shall be made available for public inspection in accordance with NRS 239.010.



ARTICLE II1. BOARD OF TRUSTEES

3.01 Composition
The governing body of the District shall be the Board of Trustees (“Board”), consisting of five
(5) members elected at large in a Douglas County General Election.

3.02 Terms and Vacancies
Trustees shall serve four-year terms except as described in the following,.

If a Board Member resigns or passes away before the end of their term, the remaining Board
Members shall appoint a replacement to serve until the next general election. The appointee may
run for election at that time if they wish to continue Board service.

If, at the time of the next general election, the vacated seat would have had two (2) years
remaining in the original term, the candidate receiving the lowest number of votes among those
elected to the Board shall be elected to a two-year term.

3.03 Quorum
Three (3) Trustees present at an open public meeting shall constitute a quorum.

3.04 Compensation
Trustees shall be compensated $750 per month beginning with their first month in office and
ending with their last month in office.

ARTICLE IV. MEETINGS

4.01 Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held at the principal office of the District or
such other location as designated by the Board. Meetings are customarily held on the third
Tuesday of each month at 5:00 p.m., unless otherwise scheduled or noticed in accordance with
Nevada Open Meeting Law.

4.02 Special Meetings

Special meetings, to address business that cannot be postponed until a regular meeting or to
address a special purpose, can be called at any time by the Chair or by any two Trustees, in
accordance with the Nevada Open Meeting Law.

4.03 Public Hearing on Tentative Budget

A public hearing for the purpose of public comment on the District’s tentative budget shall be
held annually on the third Tuesday in May in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS).
This meeting may also serve as the regular May meeting.



ARTICLE V. OFFICERS

5.01 Officers

The officers of the Board of Trustees shall consist of a Chair, Vice Chair, and
Secretary/Treasurer. At the first meeting in January of each year, after the meeting is called to
order by the Chair from the preceding year, the Board of Trustees shall elect a Chair, Vice Chair,
and Secretary/Treasurer. Officers shall serve one-year terms and may be re-elected.

5.02 Duties - Chair

The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings and shall be responsible for maintaining
order and the orderly conduct of all attendees at public meetings. With input from Trustees and
the public, the General Manager shall be responsible for preparing proposed meeting agendas,
subject to approval by the Chair. The Chair or the General Manager may appoint Board
committees, subject to Board direction.

5.03 Duties - Vice Chair
The Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in the absence of the Chair.

5.04 Duties - Secretary/Treasurer in Accordance with NRS 318.085
The Secretary/Treasurer is responsible for ensuring compliance with statutory recordkeeping and
financial requirements of the District, including those set forth in NRS 318.085.

The Secretary shall ensure that:
o Audio recordings or transcripts of all meetings are maintained;

o A well-bound record of Board proceedings, minutes of meetings, certificates, contracts,
bonds, and official acts is maintained;

« Such records are open to inspection by property owners and other interested persons, and
that copies of minutes or recordings are provided upon request in accordance with the
Open Meeting Law (NRS 241.035).

The Treasurer shall ensure that accurate financial records are maintained for all money received
and disbursed by the District.

The Treasurer shall file, or cause to be filed, a corporate surety bond in an amount not to exceed
$50,000, or such other amount as may be set by the county board of commissioners, covering the
faithful performance of the Treasurer’s duties. Any officer or trustee who handles District funds
shall also be bonded under similar conditions, as required by law.

The Secretary/Treasurer may delegate the performance of administrative, recordkeeping, and
financial tasks to the General Manager or District staff, consistent with applicable law, while
retaining oversight and statutory responsibility.



5.05 The General Manager shall oversee the preparation and transcription of meeting minutes
and the maintenance of District records and financial systems, as delegated by the Board and in
support of the Secretary/Treasurer’s statutory responsibilities.

ARTICLE VI. RULES OF PROCEDURE

6.01 Parliamentary Procedure

Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall govern the conduct of meetings, including debate,
motions, and other procedural matters, to the extent such rules are consistent with applicable law.
The Board of Trustees shall comply with the Nevada Open Meeting Law when conducting any
official District business.

6.02 Motions

Except for items on the consent calendar, all motions shall be stated aloud for the record. A
written copy of each motion shall be provided to the Chair of the Board, who shall restate the
motion for the record prior to the vote.

ARTICLE VII. RESPONSIBILITIES

7.01 General Policies, Programs, and Resources

The primary purpose of the Board of Trustees is to provide general policies to guide the
Kingsbury General Improvement District, approve programs and services, and appropriate the
necessary financial resources, all as recommended by the General Manager. The Board shall
periodically review the programs to ensure compliance with established policies. It is the
responsibility of the General Manager to execute the policies.

7.02 Hiring the General Manager

The Board of Trustees is responsible for hiring the General Manager. The Board may use any
method of selection it deems appropriate but should follow the criteria published in the
Kingsbury General Improvement District Personnel Policies Manual as closely as possible with
respect to qualifications and credentials.

7.03 Evaluation of the General Manager

The Board of Trustees shall evaluate the General Manager’s performance at least annually at a
properly noticed public meeting. If the Board deems it necessary, it may evaluate the General
Manager more often. Areas of concern or those needing improvement shall be clearly outlined,
with expectations defined, corrective actions agreed upon, and a timeline established for
implementation.

7.04 Budget Adoption
The Board of Trustees shall adopt and approve an annual budget. The tentative budget, due by



April 15, will normally be approved at the March meeting. The Tentative Budget Hearing shall
be conducted the third Tuesday in May. The Final Budget must be adopted on or before June 1. If
ready and subject to public comment, the Board may adopt the final budget at the May Public
Hearing. If not, the Board will need to meet on or before the June 1 deadline to adopt the Final
Budget.

7.05 Budget Oversight

As an elected official, it is each Trustee’s responsibility to understand the budget document and
the budgeting process. Trustees shall continually evaluate budget implementation through
expenditure reports and monthly financial statements. It is the General Manager’s responsibility
to administer the budget.

7.06 Official Actions and Voting
The Board shall act only by ordinance, resolution, or motion. A majority vote of the Trustees
present at an open meeting is required for each action taken, and the vote shall be recorded.

7.07 Media Spokesperson

The Chair, or the Vice Chair in the Chair’s absence, shall act as the official spokesperson to the
media regarding issues affecting the governing body unless specifically delegated to another
Trustee by the Chair.

7.08 Labor Negotiations

Although a Trustee may wish to attend a contract negotiating session between labor and
management, Trustees are not part of the management negotiating team and shall not take an
active part in the negotiating process. The Board’s role is to recommend policy on labor-
management issues and to approve the final bargaining agreement.

7.09 Board—-General Manager Communication

The primary forum for communication between the Board of Trustees and the General Manager
shall be scheduled public meetings. This provision does not preclude any Trustee from
communicating with the General Manager on a one-on-one basis for clarification or information
on any subject.

7.10 Individual Trustee Communications

Individual Trustees may receive communications from employees and may communicate on
matters concerning the District; however, direction to staff, requests for work, or official
communications on behalf of the District shall be made through the General Manager. All official
communications to or from the Board shall be made through the General Manager or the General
Manager’s designee.

ARTICLE VIII. LEGAL COUNSEL



8.01 Legal Counsel

The Kingsbury General Improvement District shall retain an attorney, approved by a majority
vote of the Board of Trustees, to provide legal advice on matters affecting the District. The Board
of Trustees or any employee may communicate with legal counsel only at the direction of, or
with the authorization of, the Chair of the Board (or the Vice Chair in the Chair’s absence) or the
General Manager (or the General Manager’s designee in the General Manager’s absence), unless
specific authorization is granted by the Chair.

Nothing in this section shall prohibit an individual Trustee from consulting with legal counsel
regarding personal legal obligations, ethics compliance, or potential individual liability, provided
such consultation does not involve direction of legal services on behalf of the District.

ARTICLE IX. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

9.01

No Trustee shall have a financial or personal interest that would conflict, or reasonably appear to
conflict, with the public interest or the Trustee’s duties to the District. A Trustee shall not be
disqualified from serving solely because a relative is employed by the District. In such
circumstances, the Trustee shall comply with the disclosure and abstention requirements set forth
in Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 281 A when applicable. These By-Laws shall be interpreted
consistently with state law, and any conflict between these By-Laws and Nevada law shall be
resolved in favor of Nevada law.

All Trustees shall comply with applicable state and local ethics laws, including Nevada Revised
Statutes Chapter 281A, and shall sign and abide by the Board Members Code of Ethics, as
adopted by resolution of the Board of Trustees and as amended from time to time.

ARTICLE X. AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may be amended or repealed by a majority vote of the Board of Trustees at two
consecutive meetings. Amendments shall be reflected by noting the month and year of adoption.



BY-LAWS OF
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

ARTICLE 1. PURPOSE

1,01 The purpose of these by-laws is to help you work effectively with others to achieve your goals
during your term in office. Local officials need to listen to the community as well as help the
community visualize where it wants to be in the future.

ARTICLE 1l OFFICE/RECORDS {Amended, June 2022)

201 The principle place of business of the Kingsbury General Improvement District shall be 255
Kingsbury Grade, Stateline, Nevada.

2.02 Al current official records of the District shall be kept at the principle place of business of
Kingsbury General improvement District. Older records, which may be stored at another
Jocation can be made available at the principle place of pusiness and are available for public

inspection per NRS 239,010.
]

ARTICLE ill. MEMBERSHIP (Amended, June 2022}

3.01 The Kingsbury General improvement District Board of Trustees shall consist of five members
elected at large in a Douglas County General Election and shall serve for four years except as
described in the following.
if a Board Member resigns his/her office or passes away before the end of his/her term, the
remaining Board Members shall appoint a replacement who shall serve until the next general
election at which time the appointee would need to run for office in the general election if
he/she wishes to continue on the Board. If at the time of the next general election the replaced
Board Member would have had two years left in their original term, then the lowest vote getter
of the number of positions to be filled would be elected for a two-year term.

Every other two years at the County General Election three then two then three, etc. positions
will be filled.

w
(=]
N

\.

303 Three members present atan open public meeting shall constitute a quorum.

3.04 Trustees shall be compensated $650.00 per month beginning with their first month in office and

ending with their last month in office.



ARTICLE IV. MEETINGS {(Amended, June 2022)

4.01 Unless otherwise noted, meeting of the Board of Trustees will take place at the principle place
of the District.

4.02 Regular meetings are hormally scheduled for the third Tuesday of each month at 5:00 p.m.

4.03 Special meetings, to address business that cannot be postponed until a regular meeting or to
address a special purpose, can be called at any time by the Chairman if it is properly noticed.

4.04 A public hearing for the purpose of public comment on the District’s tentative budget shall be
held the third Thursday in May per NRS. This meeting may also serve as the regular May
meeting.

ARTICLE V. OFFICERS/DUTIES (Amended, June 2022)

5.01 Asthe first order of business at the first meeting of each January after the meeting is called to
order by the previous year’s Chairman, the Board shall elect a Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and
Secretary/Treasurer. Their terms of office shall be one year unless re-elected.

5.02 The Chairman shall preside at all meetings. Through input from Trustees, and the public, the
General Manager is responsible for the content of meeting agendas. The Chairman or General
Manger shall be responsible for the appointment of Board sub-committees. The Chairman shall
be responsible for the orderly conduct of all attendees at public meetings.

u
Q
trf

The Vice-Chairman shall assume all responsibilities of the Chairman in his/her absence.

B

The Secretary/Treasurer shall be responsible for all items outlined in NRS 318.085.

5.05 The General Manager shall be the person who oversees the transcription of the minutes.

ARTICLE VI. RULES OF PROCEDURE

6.01 Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern all issues of debate, motions, and other discussion
procedures. The Board of Trustees shall adhere to the Nevada Open Meeting Law when
conducting any official Kingsbury General Improvement District business.

6.02 All motions, except for consent calendar items, shall be read into the record aloud and a written
copy of the motion provided to the Chairman of the Board who shall read the motion back.then
to the Clerk of the Board.



ARTICLE Vii. RESPONSIBILITIES

2.01

AL

~
=
\ T+

‘.

|
L]
S

\.

o
(=]
i

The primary purpose of the Board of Trustees is to provide general policies to guide the
Kingsbury General improvement District, approve programs and services, and appropriate the
necessary financial resources, all as recommended by the General Manager. The Board shall
periodically review the programs to ensure compliance with established policies. It isup the the

General Manager to execute the policies.

The Board of Trustees are responsible for hiring the General Manager. They may choose any
method of selection they wish but should follow the criteria published in the Kingsbury General
Improvement District personnel Policies Manual as close as possible as to qualifications and

credentials.

The Board of Trustees shall evaluate the General Manager’s performance on at least an annual
basis at a public meeting that is properly noticed. if the Board deems it necessary, they may
evaluate the General Manager moré often. Areas of concern or that need improvement shall be
clearly outlined with expectations defined and agree on corrective actions to be taken along

with a timeline for implementation.

The Board of Trustees shall adopt and approve an annual budget. The Tentative Budget, due by
April 15t will normally be approved at the March meeting. The Tentative Budget Hearing shall
be conducted the third Thursday in May. The Final Budget must be adopted on or before June
1%, If ready, and subject to public comment, the Board may adopt the Final Budget at the May
public Hearing. if not, the Board will need to meet on or before the June 1% deadline to adopt

the Final Budget.

As an elected official it is your responsibility to understand the budget document and the
budgeting process. Board Members shall continually evaluate the budget implementation
through expenditure reports and monthly financial statements. It is the General Manager’s

responsibility to administer the budget.

The Boar shall act only by Ordinance, Resolution, or motion. A majority vote of the Board
Members present at an open meeting is required on each action taken and the vote shall be

recorded.

The Chairman, or the Vice Chairman in his/her absence, shall act as the official spokesperson to
the media regarding issues affecting the governing body unless specifically delegated to another
Board member by the Chairman. Examples of issues that the media may desire information on
could be the selection process for a new General Manager, contract negotiations, etc.

Although a Board member may wish to attend a contract negotiating session between labor and
management, they are not part of the management negotiating team and shall not take an-
active part in the negotiating process. The Board’s role is to recommend policy on labor-
management issues and to approve the final bargaining agreement.



The primary forum for communication between Board members and the General Manager will
be scheduled public meetings although this does not preclude any Board member from
communicating with the General Manager on a one-on-one basis for clarification on any subject.

Individual Board members can remain open to communication from employees of the District,
however, all official communications shall be made through proper channels extending through
an order of command. All official communications to or from the Board shall be made through
the General Manager or his/her designee.

ARTICLE Xill. LEGAL COUNSEL

8.01

The Kingsbury General Improvement District shall have an attorney, approved by a majority vote
of the Board, to give advice on legal issues that may affect the District, the Board of Trustees, or
any employee. Only the Chairman of the Board (or Vice-Chairman in his/her absence) or
General Manger (or designee in his/her absence) may contact legal counsel unless specific
permission is granted by the Chairman.

ARTICLE IX. ETHICS

9.01

No Board member shall have a financial or personal interest that in a particular situation conflict
or may conflict with the public interest. No relative of a Board member may be an employee of
the District. All Board members shall sign and abide by the Board Members Code of Ethics.

ARTICLE X. CHANGES TO BY-LAWS

10.01 By-laws may be added, deleted, or amended only by a majority vote of the Board at two

consecutive meetings. The changes shall be accurately reflected in the minutes and the changes
shall be shown by the words (Amended, Month, Year) in parenthesis after the section changed.



STAFF REPORT

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

DATE: February 18, 2026

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Updates to the District By-Laws
(First Reading)

PART | - BASIC SUMMARY OF CHANGES
1. Structural & Organizational Changes

« Reorganized and expanded Article | to include Name, Authority, and Purpose
(previous version only contained “Purpose”).

« Renumbered and reformatted articles for clarity and consistency.

« Updated address of principal office (now 160 Pine Ridge Drive instead of 255
Kingsbury Grade).

2. Trustee Compensation
« Increased monthly Trustee compensation from $650/month to $750/month.
3. Budget Hearing Date Correction

« Tentative Budget Public Hearing corrected from third Thursday in May (current) to
third Tuesday in May, aligning with regular meeting schedule.

4. Officer Roles Clarified
e Expanded and clarified duties of:
o Chair
o Vice Chair

o Secretary/Treasurer (now includes detailed statutory references to NRS
318.085)

« Added explicit bonding requirements and delegation language.
« Clarified General Manager’s role in supporting statutory duties.
5. Open Meeting Law & Governance Updates

o Added clearer references to:



o Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS 241)
o Public records law (NRS 239)
o Ethics statutes (NRS 281A)
o Clarified media spokesperson authority.
o Clarified communication protocol between Trustees and staff.
6. Ethics Section Expanded
e Added explicit compliance requirement with NRS 281A.
o Strengthened conflict-of-interest language.
o Removed disqualification language.
7. Legal Counsel Section Updated
« Clarified who may contact District legal counsel.

« Added provision allowing Trustees to consult counsel on personal legal matters
(without directing District representation).

8. Amendments Section Simplified

« Streamlined amendment language and removed requirement that changes be
reflected by parenthetical notation in minutes.

PART Il - VERBATIM LINE-BY-LINE CHANGES
ARTICLE |
CURRENT (Article | - Purpose only)

The purpose of these by-laws is to help you work effectively with others to achieve your
goals during your term in office. Local officials need to listen to the community as well as
help future community visualize where it wants to be in the future.

PROPOSED (Article | - Name, Authority, Purpose)

ADDED:



1.01 Name
The name of this governmental entity is the Kingsbury General Improvement District (the

“District” or “KGID”).

1.02 Authority
The District is organized and governed pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 318...

REVISED PURPOSE LANGUAGE:
Oold:

help you work effectively...
New:
The purpose of these By-Laws is to help Trustees work effectively...

(Modernized language; removed informal tone “you”)

ARTICLE Il - OFFICE

CURRENT

255 Kingsbury Grade, Stateline, Nevada.

PROPOSED

160 Pine Ridge Drive, Kingsbury Grade, Stateline, Nevada.

CHANGE: Address updated.

ARTICLE 1l1 - COMPENSATION

CURRENT 3.04

Trustees shall be compensated $650.00 per month...
PROPOSED 3.04

Trustees shall be compensated $750 per month...

CHANGE: $650 > $750.

ARTICLE IV - BUDGET HEARING DATE



CURRENT 4.04

held the third Thursday in May per NRS.
PROPOSED 4.03

held annually on the third Tuesday in May...

CHANGE: Thursday - Tuesday.

ARTICLE V- SECRETARY/TREASURER DUTIES

CURRENT 5.04

The Secretary/Treasurer shall be responsible for all items outlined in NRS 318.085.
PROPOSED (Expanded)

Now includes detailed statutory responsibilities:

ADDED VERBATIM:

Audio recordings or transcripts of all meetings are maintained;
A well-bound record of Board proceedings...

Records open to inspection per NRS 241.035...

Treasurer shall ensure accurate financial records...

Treasurer shall file... corporate surety bond...

May delegate administrative tasks to the General Manager...

CHANGE: Previously one sentence; how detailed compliance framework.

ARTICLE VI - RULES OF PROCEDURE
CURRENT 6.01

Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern all issues...
PROPOSED 6.01

Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall govern... to the extent such rules are
consistent with applicable law...

CHANGE: Added “Newly Revised” and legal consistency qualifier.



ARTICLE VII - MEDIA SPOKESPERSON
CURRENT 7.07

Chairman... shall act as official spokesperson... Examples of issues that the Chairman may
desire information...

PROPOSED 7.07
The Chair... shall act as the official spokesperson... unless specifically delegated...

CHANGE: Removed example language; streamlined and clarified delegation authority.

ARTICLE VIII - LEGAL COUNSEL
CURRENT

Only the Chairman (or Vice-Chairman...) or General Manager... may contact legal counsel
unless specific permission is granted...

PROPOSED
ADDED:

Nothing in this section shall prohibit an individual Trustee from consulting with legal
counsel regarding personal legal obligations...

CHANGE: Clarifies personal vs. District legal representation.

ARTICLE IX-ETHICS

CURRENT

No Board member shall have a financial or personal interest...
PROPOSED

ADDED:

All Trustees shall comply with applicable state and local ethics laws, including Nevada
Revised Statutes Chapter 281A...

CHANGE: The prior language:

¢ Imposed an automatic employment prohibition.



e Potentially conflicted with Nevada ethics law.

e Could be interpreted as adding eligibility restrictions beyond statute.
The revised language:

e Aligns with NRS 281A (disclosure + abstention framework).

e Avoids creating a disqualification not found in statute.

e Reduces legalrisk.

e Modernizes governance practice.

ARTICLE X - AMENDMENTS
CURRENT

The changes shall be accurately reflected in the minutes and the changes shall be shown
by the words (Amended, Month, Year)...

PROPOSED
Amendments shall be reflected by noting the month and year of adoption.

CHANGE: Removed detailed formatting requirement.

OVERALL CHARACTER OF CHANGES
Proposed version:

e Modernizes language

e Strengthens statutory alignment

e Clarifies governance roles

o Improves legal defensibility

e Formalizes compliance requirements

e Updates compensation

o Cleans up procedural ambiguities



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2026-02

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BY-LAWS OF THE KINGSBURY GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WHEREAS,

The Board of Trustees of the Kingsbury General Improvement District (“District”) is
authorized pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 318 to adopt by-laws governing
the organization and operation of the District; and

WHEREAS,

The District’s existing by-laws have been amended periodically over time and were
determined by the Board to require consolidation, clarification, and updating; and

WHEREAS,

The Board of Trustees reviewed proposed updated by-laws intended to preserve the
District’s governance structure while improving clarity, organization, and consistency with
applicable law; and

WHEREAS,

The proposed updated by-laws were approved on first reading by the Board of Trustees ata
duly noticed public meeting held on February 17, 2026, in accordance with Article X of the
by-laws; and

WHEREAS,

The proposed updated by-laws are now presented to the Board of Trustees for second
reading and final adoption at a duly noticed public meeting;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED

That the Board of Trustees of the Kingsbury General Improvement District hereby adopts
the updated By-Laws of the Kingsbury General Improvement District, effective immediately
upon adoption.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED



That upon adoption, the updated by-laws shall supersede and replace all prior versions of
the District’s by-laws.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED

That the Chair of the Board and the Secretary/Treasurer are authorized and directed to
execute the certification of adoption and take any administrative actions necessary to
implement this resolution.

Effective Date:
This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

Trustee Vote Aye/Nay/Absent

Ed Johns, Chair

Sara Nelson, Vice Chair

Cindy Trigg, Secretary/Treasurer

Jessica Grime, Trustee

John Shearer, Trustee

APPROVED: ATTEST:

Ed Johns, Chairman Derek Dornbrook, General Manager
KGID Board of Trustees Kingsbury General Improvement District



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #15
TITLE: RESCHEDULING OF THE APRIL 21, 2026 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees select an alternative date for the April 21, 2026 5:00 P.M.
Board meeting due to identified scheduling conflicts and direct staff to update the District’s official
meeting calendar and provide proper public notice in accordance with applicable requirements.

OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION
1. Hold the April 2026 Board of Trustees meeting on Thursday, April 16, 2026 5:00 P.M.
2. Hold the April 2026 Board of Trustees meeting on Monday, April 13, 2026 5:00 P.M.

BACKGROUND:

At the December 16, 2025 Board of Trustees meeting, the Board reviewed and approved the District’s
regular meeting dates for the 2026 calendar year. As part of that discussion, the April 2026 Board
meeting was scheduled in accordance with the District’s customary practice of meeting on the third
Tuesday of the month. The currently adopted calendar reflects the April Board meeting scheduled for
Tuesday, April 21, 2026.

Subsequent to adoption of the 2026 meeting calendar, the General Manager and a Board member
identified previously scheduled personal commitments during the third week of April that would prevent
their attendance if the meeting were held on April 21, 2026. In light of these conflicts, staff has
requested that the Board consider rescheduling the April meeting to an earlier date.

Thursday, April 16, 2026, and Wednesday, April 15, 2026, have been identified as potential alternative
meeting dates that would avoid the noted conflicts. The Board is asked to consider the available options
and select a revised meeting date for the April 2026 Board of Trustees meeting.

INCLUDED
A. April Calendar

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






Wd 92:2T 920zZ/C1/2 T yooquioq deeq
0z9
S Vdul S dIoauipul 86aj|0D Ayunwiwiod 11
4 L ey 0¢ 6¢ 8¢ yX4 9¢
0£:2-1 2219WWo)
JO Jaquiey)d aoye]
0S¥ IIH punoy
g
0£:27Ad4AL |  INPayds JuaLNd-QioN
Gl v €¢ c? LZ 0¢ 6l
2 vddl
Z andis 029
[ Pasodoid dursT Aoy 0£6 vSL1Dd 8b2|j0) Ajunwwod 17
01 2208 D se|bnog 9 BuipteiSHHInGD | BUIpUeIS -PAWnZ HIniD ¢ pasodoid dal QioN
gl Ll 9l Sl 14 €l 43
0£'6 VddlL
Ll ol 6 8 L 9 S
Z VdHl
Z adnis
0L D204 D se[bnog
14 € Z | idy LE o€ 62 JeIN
AVAUNLYS Avard4 AVASJdNHL AVASINGIM AVasantL AVANOW AVANNS
LE
;3 14 8¢ L2 9¢ 14 124 (3 62 82 K 9K
€2 44 L2 0¢ 6l 8L Ll 14 e €2 C L2 4 6l
9l Sl ¥l ¢l ZL L oL gL AN 9l SL il €l <l
6 B L 9 s ¥ € Li oL 6 8 L 9 S
[ g Tl
es 4 yr, M nL oW ng eg RE] UL, @M nL oA ns mNcN __hg<
9702 Kepy 9202 (udy °







KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #16

TITLE: PROPOSED CHANGE TO STANDING BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
SCHEDULE

MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Consideration of a proposal to change the monthly standing Board of Trustees meeting date from the
third Tuesday of each month to the second Thursday of each month, effective May 14, 2026

BACKGROUND:

The proposed change to the standing Board of Trustees meeting schedule is intended to reduce recurring
scheduling conflicts with other local agencies and improve trustee availability and inter-agency
coordination. The Kingsbury General Improvement District’s current standing meeting time—the third
Tuesday of each month in the evening—conflicts directly with the regularly scheduled Board of Trustees
meeting of the Round Hill General Improvement District (RHGID), which also meets on the third
Tuesday of each month. This overlap limits opportunities for shared attendance, coordination, and
collaboration between neighboring districts with overlapping service areas and regional interests.
Moving KGID’s standing meeting date to the second Thursday of each month would eliminate this
conflict and better align meeting schedules among local partner agencies, supporting improved
communication, coordination, and governance effectiveness.

In addition to reducing scheduling conflicts, organizational research and productivity studies suggest
that meetings held later in the work week, particularly mid-week—tend to benefit from stronger
engagement, focus, and collaborative decision-making. Placing standing Board meetings on a Thursday
avoids early-week transitional demands and competing priorities that can affect participation and
preparedness.

Organizational research and productivity guidance indicate that employee engagement and collaborative
decision-making tend to be stronger mid-week, while focus and participation are often lower on
Mondays and Fridays. Studies on meeting effectiveness and scheduling suggest that important
discussions and strategic decisions are best placed during periods of stable work rhythm later in the
workweek. Avoiding early-week scheduling reduces conflicting priorities with other deliverables and
minimizes transitional inefficiencies associated with the start of the workweek. Source: Fellow.app,
“Best Time to Hold Meetings for Better Productivity.”

INCLUDED
A. May Calendar Illustrating Typical Monthly Local Agency Meeting Schedules
B. Best Practices for Scheduling Governing Board Meetings Summary of Article



Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



Wd ££:2T 9202/21/C T yooiquioq Y243
9 S 14 € 4 | unf 1€
0¢:9 269|100 L
0€'6 Vddl Sampaulpul "WWOD) d0Ye] ey 181 "Su0) doye} YUON
0¢ 6¢ 8¢ LZ 9¢ T4 1£4
Zdandis XI0YD QI SHiiH uelpy| O£ II'H punoy
0L D04 Awuno) se[bnod 0€'6 VS11D>d INIFEEND S AN
€¢ [44 LZ 0¢c 6l 8l Ll
[920¢ a3SOd0dd = arsm
HINOW HOV3 0£'6 Vdul wijaid pleog
40 AVAS¥NHL ANz aloAl Buipueis ydwinz spnyy - 01 epuaby WeQp:.
91 Sl 14 gl Zl Ll oL
2 adnis
0l D0g AQuno) sejbnoq
6 8 L 9 S 14 €
4 | Aew o€ 6C 8¢ L2 9z idy
AVA@UNLvs AVAidd AVASYNHL AVASINGIM AVAds3ant AVANOW AVANNS
LE
0e 62 82 0 62 B L2 9 S T
iZ 92 s V¥ € &2 Le € <7 lc 0z 6F 8l Ll
0c 6L 8L Lb 9L SL ¥l 8L SL vl €L 21 LL 0oL
wF M— W_. m_. m w L m m L 9 S 14 €
es N YL &M nl oW |:m mm 4 UL sm nL o NS m Nc N >m E

9202 sunf

9z0¢ Aey







FELLGW

Meeting Schedule Best Practices — One-page Summary
Best Practices for Scheduling Governing Board Meetings
Purpose

This summary provides research-supported best practices for scheduling governing board
meetings, with an emphasis on meeting effectiveness, participation, and coordination with
partner agencies. Itis intended to support consideration of adjusting standing meeting
schedules.

Key Findings
1. Mid-week meetings are generally more effective

Organizational productivity research consistently shows that meetings held mid-week—
particularly on Wednesdays and Thursdays—tend to have higher levels of engagement,
preparedness, and decision-making effectiveness.

« Participants are more settled into their work rhythm than at the start of the week
« Fewer transitional tasks compete for attention
« Improved focus and collaboration during discussions

In contrast, Mondays are often dominated by catch-up work and operational resets, while
Tuesdays frequently carry heavy standing-meeting loads across organizations, increasing
conflicts and fatigue.

2. Early-week meetings face higher conflict and cognitive load

Studies and management guidance note that Mondays and Tuesdays are more likely to
experience:

« Scheduling conflicts with other agencies and recurring meetings
» Reduced preparedness due to competing priorities

« Lower cognitive availability for strategic or policy-level discussions



Shifting meetings later in the week reduces overlap with other organizations and allows
participants more time to prepare.

3. Governance best practices favor coordination and availability

Public administration best practices emphasize aligning governing body schedules to:
+ Minimize conflicts with partner agencies
o Support trustee availability and attendance
+ Improve inter-agency coordination and communication

Selecting meeting days with fewer overlapping commitments improves participation and
governance effectiveness.

Conclusion

Scheduling governing board meetings on Wednesdays or Thursdays is widely supported
by organizational research and governance best practices. These days tend to provide
better engagement, reduced conflicts, and stronger decision-making compared to
Mondays, Tuesdays and Fridays.

Reference

Fellow.app — Best Time to Hold Meetings for Better Productivity
https://fellow.ai/blog/best-time-to-hold-meetings-for-better-productivity/



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #17
TITLE: REMOTE PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPTIONS FOR BOARD MEETINGS
MEETING DATE: February 18, 2026
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Discuss remote public participation options for Board meetings, including consideration of
discontinuing routine internet-based and teleconference platforms for public participation, and provide
direction to staff regarding future meeting formats.

BACKGROUND:

Staff has evaluated current practices related to remote public participation at Board meetings and
reviewed approaches taken by peer agencies. Several regional agencies, including South Tahoe PUD,
Round Hill GID, Incline Village GID, and North Tahoe PUD, no longer provide remote participation
options such as Zoom or Microsoft Teams for public comment.

Considerations related to remote participation include legal requirements, public accessibility,
administrative effort, meeting management, and consistency with Board policies and practices. As
pandemic-related requirements have sunset, agencies have reassessed the role of remote participation in
regular Board meetings.

This item is intended to provide an opportunity for the Board to discuss remote public participation
options and, if desired, provide direction to staff regarding future meeting formats.

INCLUDED:
A. Peer Agency Practice Summary (Staff Report)

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



]



Staff Report

Prepared by: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

Peer Agency Practice Summary

Remote Public Participation at Board Meetings

Purpose

This summary provides an overview of how peer regional agencies currently approach
remote public participation at Board meetings, based on staff outreach and recent
communications. The intent is informational only and is provided to assist the Board in

evaluating options for KGID.

South Tahoe Public Utility District (STPUD)

Governing Law: California Brown Act

Does not provide live remote public participation (Zoom/Teams) for regular Board
meetings

Board meetings are held in person at a physical location

Vendors and consultants may participate by telephone, typically connected
through the meeting room speaker system

When slide presentations are required, a staff member present at the meeting
controls the presentation

Meetings are recorded and posted to the agency’s website the following day and
retained for one year

No live public viewing option is currently provided

Future technology upgrades are anticipated as California requirements evolve,
though current mandates apply only to large districts

Round Hill General Improvement District (RHGID)

Governing Law: Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS 241)

Does not allow remote public participation for Board meetings



¢ Remote participation is limited to Board members when attendance in person is
not possible

¢ Vendors and consultants may participate remotely when appropriate, though in-
person attendance is preferred

 Reasonable accommodations for members of the public may be provided on a
case-by-case basis when requested in advance

o Meetings are typically brief with limited public attendance outside of major policy
items

Incline Village General Improvement District (IVGID)
Governing Law: Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS 241)
e Conducts Board meetings in person
e Does not provide live remote public participation via Zoom or similar platforms

¢ Remote participation is generally limited to Board members or staff as needed

North Tahoe Public Utility District (NTPUD)
Governing Law: California Brown Act
« Holds Board meetings in person
¢ Does not provide live two-way remote public participation

» Remote participation by consultants or staff may occur by phone when necessary

Common Themes Observed
Across these agencies, the following practices are consistent:
+ [n-person Board meetings remain the primary format

« Live remote public participation (Zoom/Teams) is generally not provided for regular
meetings

e Remote participation is typically limited to Board members, staff, or vendors when
needed



o Public access is maintained through physical attendance and post-meeting
recordings

+ Agencies emphasize transparency while balancing administrative burden, meeting
management, and technology costs

Conclusion

Based on staff’s review of peer agency practices and recent experience, staff proposes that
the District discontinue routine internet-based and teleconference platforms (such as
Zoom or Microsoft Teams) for public participation at Board meetings and instead adopt an
approach similar to that used by Round Hill General Improvement District.

Under this model, Board meetings would continue to be conducted at a physical location
open to the public, with in-person attendance as the primary means of participation.
Remote participation would be limited to Board members, staff, or consultants when
appropriate, and reasonable accommodations would be provided on a case-by-case basis
for individuals who are unable to attend in person.

Staff has observed that fully remote public participation, particularly when anonymity can
be maintained, may at times detract from meeting decorum and effective dialogue. In-
person participation promotes accountability, civility, and clearer communication, and
helps ensure that meetings function as a meaningful forum for public engagement rather
than a detached or disruptive one.

This approach is consistent with the practices of several peer agencies, aligns with staff’s
interpretation of applicable open meeting requirements, and balances transparency with
practical meeting management. Staff seeks Board direction on whether to proceed with
this approach or provide alternative guidance.






y N
DOWL MEMORANDUM

TO: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager, Kingsbury GID
FROM: Travis Marshall, PE, Project Manager, DOWL
DATE: February 12, 2026

SUBJECT: Engineering Report for the Meeting of February 17, 2026

GENERAL
Assisted with General Service tasks requested and general correspondence.
» Assisted General Manager with the NAC and modeling for the Ridge Club for another
engineering firm.
¢ Correspondence with Tahoe Beach Club and review of permit plans for Phase Ill.

PROJECTS
Task Order #61: FY23 Water Main and Road Improvement Project
e Final retention release payment to contractor withheld until Contractor provides DOWL
lien releases from paving sub-contractor.
e DOWL to continue coordination with Contractor and General Manager and District staff to
receive final documentation and close out project.

Task Order #64. FY24 Water Main and Road Repair/Replacement Project:
» Project Closeout expected to be completed February 2026 with final pay application and
administrative items for retention release.
e The contractor is going to complete all remaining Substantial Completion checklist items
with the Utility Superintendent.
 Final Pay Applications and quantities have been coordinated with the contractor.
e« DOWL to complete Labor Commissioner and necessary permitting closeout.

Task Order #66: 25-26 Water Replacement Project. Maryanne, Barrett, and Panorama
e Project on hold until further analysis and information known from Rate Study to determine
if outside funding is required based on proposed Capital Improvement plan.
e Replacement of approximately 9,200 LF of water main with ductile iron for Maryanne,
Barrett, and Panorama. Minor streets include Carol Cir, Drew Ct, and Vista Dr.

Task Order #67: 2025 Road Rehabilitation & Replacement Project
e DOWL has reviewed final documentation from the contractor and provided the contractor
the retention payment paperwork for signatures.
« Project Closeout expected to be completed February 2026.

Task Order #70: Water & Sewer Utility Rate Analysis
o DOWL has met with the General Manager to make any revisions or modifications to the
CIP and will perform a revenue requirement analysis on projected expenses.
o DOWL to present the Rate Study alternatives for water and sewer at the March Board
Meeting.

775-851-4788 = 5510 Longley Lane = Reno, Nevada 89511 = www.dowl.com



MEMORANDUM

Task Order #71. Market Street Preliminary Engineering Report (PER)

PER will consolidate the multiple studies into a single comprehensive planning document
that will follow the requirements for SRF and USDA-RD funding to provide the District
options.

DOWL to present alternatives to the Board at the February meeting.

DOWL has put together the framework for the PER using the previous reports, identified
data gaps, and revised the approach for discussion and review with the General Manager.
DOWL to set up meeting with Stakeholders (Sewer Authority and TRPA) with the General
Manager and KGID Staff to discuss project and provide input. Meetings with agencies are
planned for February 18%.

Task Order #72: Water Rights Support FY 2026

DOWL to support KGID in water rights permitting efforts with the Nevada Division of Water
Resources (NDWR).

Efforts include extension of time applications for three permits, a potential change
application for two permits for surface water rights to move point of diversion, and expand
the use to the Districts current service area.

DOWL has submitted for the permits, and worked with the General Manager on the 66195
permit to submit before the deadline.

Task Order #73: KGID — TDFPD Operations Yard Storage Building

DOWL to support KGID in construction of a proposed steel structure for the shared vehicle
storage with Tahoe Douglas Fire protection District.

Per the Board Approval, the Scope for the project will be limited to Task 1 for the
preliminary Cost Estimate and Figure. Subsequent tasks will be brought to the board for
approval after review of costs and scope of project between DOWL and the General
Manager.

DOWL has submitted the revised Task Order with the sub-consultant fees.

Preliminary cost estimate to be presented to the General Manager before the March Board
meeting.

Page 2 of 2



MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Trustees, Kingsbury General Improvement District
FROM: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

DATE: February 18, 2026

SUBJECT: General Manager’s Report

Snow Removal Contract

The new Snow Removal Contract with C. Manchester Ent., Inc. has been approved by both parties and
executed at the District office February 12, 2026. The agreement establishes a term of January 20, 2026
through September 30, 2028, with options for extension upon mutual consent and Board approval. The
contractincludes defined performance standards, equipment requirements, indemnification provisions,
and updated compensation terms, including an annual minimum payment guarantee and seasonal
compensation cap. This agreement restores stability to the District’s snow removal operations and
provides clear expectations regarding service levels, hydrant access, and sanding protocols.

Lead Service Line Notification — Customer Inquiries

Following distribution of the EPA-required “unknown service line material” notice, the District has
received an increase in customer calls seeking clarification. This response was anticipated. Staff have
been provided with an approved call-handling script and FAQ to ensure consistent, accurate, and
compliant messaging. At this time, the District has no confirmed lead service lines, and drinking water
continues to meet all state and federal standards. Management intends to pursue a service line inventory
and verification approach similar to that completed by South Tahoe Public Utility District, which will allow
the District to document service line materials, reduce “unknown” classifications, and ultimately
eliminate the need for future annual notices. Management will continue tracking inquiries and verification
efforts and will update the Board as appropriate.

FY 2026-27 Budget Development Update Rate Study
Staff has initiated the FY 2026-27 budget development process and established a preliminary schedule
consistent with prior years. Development of budget assumptions related to revenues, capital planning,
and reserves will be informed by the District’s ongoing rate study, which is scheduled for Board
presentation in March 2026. Following the rate study, staff willincorporate the Board’s direction into
preparation of the proposed budget and return to the Board with a budget workshop in April.

e Rate Study Workshop February 2, 2026

e March 17, 2026: Rate Study Presentation

e March—-April 2026: Budget development and internal review

e April 2026: Board budget workshop

e May 2026: Public hearing and budget adoption

e April 15, 2026: Tentative budget submitted to the State

e June 1, 2026: Final adopted budget submitted to the State



HSA RESEARCH UPDATE

At the Board’s request, staff is continuing its review of the District’s use of Health Savings Accounts
(HSAs), including prior Board actions, peer agency practices, and alternative approaches. This work
confirms that employer-funded HSAs have been in place since 2016, when the Board approved their use
to help offset higher deductibles and out-of-pocket costs associated with participation in the Nevada
Public Employees’ Benefits Program (PEBP), while maintaining balance between union and non-union
benefits. Research to date indicates there is no single public-sector model for HSAs, with agencies
managing employee healthcare costs through a mix of premium support and varying HSA contribution
levels. While KGID’s approach has generally been more generous than average, it has also helped the
District manage insurance costs, support recruitment and retention, and achieve payroll tax efficiencies.
Staff appreciates the Board’s guidance on this issue and will continue the review, returning in June with
several options for consideration, consistent with the Board’s long-standing practice of annual HSA
review.

Sprung Equipment Storage Facility - Contract Closeout Update

The Sprung Equipment Storage Facility project was initiated in 2024 under prior management. At
the end of 2024 the former General Manager retired, and the District experienced a period of
interim leadership until my appointment on May 1, 2025.

During this transition period, communication between the District and RPM (the design consultant)
was not formally documented or transitioned to incoming management. At the time | assumed the
role of General Manager, | was under the understanding that the project had effectively paused at
approximately the 75% design stage.

RPM has since advised that they continued responding to building and fire review comments and
progressed the drawings to the 100% stage. They have submitted their final invoice in the amount
of $11,900, representing the remaining 20% balance of the $59,500 design contract. To date,
$47,600 (75%) has been paid. Payment will be contingent upon receipt of completed and stamped
plans.

Communications & Public Outreach:. Staff responded to a Lake Tahoe Daily Tribune news story
regarding the mutual contract termination agreement with Lopez Snow Removal. A January 21, 2026 hews
brief initially contained incorrect details retated to the mutual termination, indicating that the termination
was due to property damages caused by Lopez Snow Removal. Staff promptly contacted the reporter, and
the online version was corrected prior to the print edition going to press.

Efforts to restore and optimize the District’s Google Business account remain ongoing, though access
issues have not yet been resolved. Staff is also working to enhance the District’s proactive communication
efforts, including development of a dedicated newsletter section on the District website. A quarterly
newsletter is being considered as an initial approach to provide consistent updates to customers and
stakeholders. In addition, staff continues to benchmark communications practices of neighboring



agencies. The District’s social media platforms are being updated approximately twice per week, with
ongoing evaluation of opportunities to expand reach and strengthen public engagement.

Investments

Staff continues to monitor investment performance and market conditions. As certificates of deposit
(CDs) mature, funds are being transitioned to the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) in response to
comparatively low CD interest rates. This approach maintains liquidity while positioning District funds to
achieve more favorable returns under current market conditions.

Salary Survey:

A salary survey has been initiated to address ongoing staffing and recruitment needs. Judy and | have
received initial compensation data through the Salary Survey process and began outreach to comparable
agencies, inctuding STPUD, IVGID, El Dorado Irrigation District, Mammoth, Auburn, Rocklin, Reno, and
Carson City. Additional outreach to regional agencies will continue in order to evaluate current
compensation levels and ensure the District remains competitive with other water and wastewater
agencies in the area. This review is intended to support recruitment, retention, and overall workforce
stability.

On-Mountain Housing Options

Staff has discussed with Operations the need for on-mountain housing to support on-call personnel and
after-hours emergency response, as a significant portion of District staff reside outside of the service area.
Ensuring timely response capability remains an operational priority. As an initial step, staff has begun
exploring potential use of space at the District-owned property located at 298 Kingsbury, which is
currently listed for sale. Additional housing options will also be evaluated to determine the most practical
and cost-effective approach to improving emergency response readiness.

Board Development & Training

Participation in POOL/PACT governance training continues. Required training units for Board members
and the General Manager—including Ethics, Open Meeting Law, Robert’s Rules of Order and Difficult
Board Member—are ongoing. The General Manager completed the same training units as the Board.
Trustee Jessica Grime has completed all four required training units.

Water System Tours

The second round of water system tours for Board members has concluded. In compliance with Nevada
Open Meeting Law requirements, tours are conducted with no more than two Trustees at a time.

The tours are intended to provide Trustees, staff, and interested stakeholders with a general overview of
the District’s water treatment, distribution, and storage systems. They also provide an opportunity to
review the overall condition of infrastructure and discuss system operations, maintenance needs, and
long-term planning considerations.



Public reporting on these tours on social media platforms and our website has generated interest from
additional community members. Staff is considering opportunities to expand outreach efforts, including
the potential for educational tours for local school children in the near future.

Grants

Grant funding has been an ongoing topic of discussion since my interviews last spring and throughout the
beginning of my tenure in May 2025. Since that time, staff has explored several grant opportunities,
including a Tahoe Water for Fire Suppression grant, related to a potential water main intertie project with
Round Hill GID and participation in a meeting with the EPA regarding disaster mitigation funding,
particularly as it relates to wildfire resilience.

As we move forward with the rate study, | think it is appropriate to reopen this discussion and consider
how grant opportunities may fit into the District’s broader financial and capital planning strategy. | wanted
to raise this today for awareness and initial discussion.

If the Board would like a more detailed discussion on grant strategy or priorities, staff can agendize that for
a future meeting with more formalized direction including the possible use of a grant writer.

Goals for 2026: Underway Planning Phase B0

e Salary Survey
Hazard Mitigation Plan in conjunction with TDFPD
Develop analytics for measuring system water loss and perform monthly Performance
Reports — establish target benchmarks to systematically reduce water losses beyond water
main replacements currently underway - this also justifies rate adjustments
Leak detection program
Water Master Plan for 2026 and beyond
Organizational Review/Workforce Capacity Assessment — Assess current staffing levels
relative to workload and service demands, determine optimal staffing, and develop
recommendations for organizational, structural, or workforce changes to address identified
gaps.
Staff career development

Bl

Customer Satisfaction Survey

Desk Manual

Monthly newsletter

Al Development and Implementation

Filtration/Membrane plant for PFAS within 10 years? Long-range plan?



KINGSBURY

SERERAL IMPABYEMERT DISIRET

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

SNOW REMOVAL CONTRACT
Term: January 20, 2026, to September 30, 2028

THIS CONTRACT is entered into this /&/’A day of Fefruary/ 2026, by and between the
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as "District” and C.
Manchester Ent., Inc. hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”.

This agreement is made with reference to the following facts which are deemed a material part of this

contract:

RECITALS

Whereas, District is organized pursuant to N.R.S. Chapter 318 and has powers to maintain certain
public roads within its boundaries, including the removal of snow; and

Whereas, District, after public notice by advertisement for Request For Proposals (RFPs) for
snow removal and review of said Proposals at a duly noticed public meeting, accepted the

proposal of a third party vendor; and

Whereas, the contract with the third party vendor was cancelled during its term, and Contractor’s
proposal was the next most responsive and responsible; and

Whereas, pursuant to NRS 332.065, District has the option to accept Contractor’s proposal
without the need for further competitive processes; and

Whereas, Contractor's Proposal is attached as Exhibit "B".

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between the Contractor and the District as follows:

I.  Scope of Work and Contract
The Contractor shall perform all the work and furnish all labor and equipment required to
perform snow removal on District maintained streets and those private streets within the
KGID boundaries which the District directs Contractor to plow, as set forth in the General



Conditions and Specifications, Exhibit A; Contractor's Proposal, Exhibit B, dated August
29, 2025; Contractor's Qualification Statement, Exhibit C; District Map, Exhibit D; and
Priority Hydrant List, Exhibit E, each attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference. All exhibits are an integral part of this Contract. In the event of any
inconsistency between the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, the provision of
Exhibit A shall control.

II. Time of Performance
This Contract shall become effective on January 20, 2026, and shall continue through
September 30, 2028, a term of three (3) years. Upon Contractor’s satisfactory performance
this contract may be extended for up to two (2) additional three (3)-year terms, upon
mutual written consent of the parties and approval by the Board of Trustees, subject to
applicable law.

III. Payments

Payments shall be made to the Contractor for said work performed at the time and in the
manner provided in the General Conditions and Specifications.

IV. Independent Contractor
It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the Contractor shall
perform this Contract as an independent contractor, and nothing herein shall be construed
to be inconsistent with this relationship or status, nor shall anything in this Contract be in
any way construed to constitute the Contractor, or any of the Contractor's employees or
agents, as the agent, employee or representative of the District.

V. Contractor's Representations
In order to induce District to enter into the Agreement, Contractor makes the following
representations:

1. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, all
incorporated Exhibits and the other related data identified in the Bidding Documents.

2. Contractor has visited the Site and is familiar with and is satisfied as to the General, Local,
and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
Contractor has provided District with snow removal services for many decades.

3. Contractor is familiar with and 1is satisfied as to all federal, state and Local Laws and
Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

4. Contractor does not consider that any further examinations, investigations, explorations,
tests, studies or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price,
within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the
Contract Documents.

o/



VI

VIL

5. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by District and
others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.

6. Contractor has correlated the information known to Contractor, information and
observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the
Contract Documents, and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests,
studies, and data with the Contract Documents.

7 The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding
of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.

8. Due to a natural snowfall event that occurred prior to mobilization and the execution of
this Contract, the Contractor was unable to fully inspect or observe existing Site
conditions. As a result, certain pre-existing Site conditions or concealed conditions may
not have been visible or reasonably discoverable at the time of inspection. Although
Contractor is familiar with work Site, Contractor further acknowledges that a previous
Contractor performed work at the Site before the Contractor’s engagement. The
Contractor expressly disclaims responsibility for any defects, damage, delays or
performance impacts arising from concealed conditions or the acts or omissions of prior
Contractors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor shall be responsible for any
new accidents or damage directly caused by Contractor’s operations from the date of the
execution of this Contract forward. At the time of this agreement, neither party is aware
of any damage caused by the prior contractor.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless

The Contractor assumes all Liability and agrees to indemnify, protect and hold the District harmless
from all liability and expense on account of claims, suits and costs growing out of or connected with
operations by the Contractor and the Contractor's employees and agents under this Contract;
provided, however, that the District shall not be relieved hereby from non-immunized liability for the
District's own negligence or that of its employees. Any and all provisions of this Contract by which
the Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold the District harmless shall be construed to apply under
all working conditions and to all stationary or mobile locations where work is to be performed
regardless of the hazards and dangers to persons or property, whether disclosed or undisclosed.

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the District harmless against any suit, action, claim, demand,
lien, loss, damage, fine, judgment or decree and any expenses connected therewith, including
reasonable attorney's fees for or on account of the violation of any statute, ordinance, building code
or regulations, or for any property damages, or for personal injury or death to any person, including
contractors, employees or agents, which may arise from the work or operations of Contractor under
this Contract. As related to non-contractual claims and damages, Contractor is limited to the extent of
Contractor’s negligence not withstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement.

Compliance with Laws
The Contractor agrees to observe and promptly comply with, at the Contractor's own



VIII.

XII.

expense, all present, amended, and future applicable federal, state and local laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations, including safety and hazardous materials laws and
regulations of any governing authority, and including any applicable licensing requirements
and regulations for the payment of sales and use taxes on equipment, materials and
supplies necessary to perform under this Contract.

Right of Inspection

District reserves the right, with prior arrangement, to inspect the equipment and materials
the Contractor uses for snow removal, sanding and de-icing under this Contract. District’s
approval, failure to inspect or acquiescence following inspection does not imply
compliance with environmental, DOT or other regulations pertinent to this activity.

Assignment

Neither this Contract nor any interest therein, or claim hereunder, shall be assigned or
transferred by the Contractor to any party or parties without the express written approval
of the District. Contractor may not subcontract any portion of this Contract or its obligation
without the District's prior written consent.

Dispute Resolution

In the event of a dispute regarding interpretation, enforcement of, or a parties' performance
under this Contract, the parties shall first engage in mediation, initiated by the written
request of any party. The parties agree to share equally the cost of any such mediation
process; however, they agree to assume the expense of their own counsel. Venue for any
mediation shall be within Douglas County, Nevada. Commencement of mediation shall not
affect any of the rights or obligations of either party hereunder, all of which shall continue
to be performed on a timely basis. If the dispute(s) is (are) not resolved through mediation,
and is (are) litigated, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees,
litigation expenses and costs.

Attorney’s Fees

In the event that any action is filed in relation to this Contract, the unsuccessful party in the
action shall pay to the successful party, in additional to all the sums that either party may be
called on to pay, a reasonable sum for the successful party's reasonable attorney’s fees.

Notices

All notices, demands and other communications to be given or delivered under or by reason
of the provisions of this Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given
when personally delivered or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt
requested. Notices, demands and communications shall, unless another address is specified
in writing, be sent to the addresses indicated below:

U



If to the District:
Derek Dornbrook, General Manager or Judy Brewer, Admin. & H.R. Supervisor Kingsbury General

Improvement District 160 Pine Ridge Drive
Post Office Box 2220 Stateline, Nevada 89449

If to the Contractor:
Charlena Manchester,
C. Manchester Ent., Inc.
Post Office Box 2275
Stateline, Nevada §9449

XIII. Severability
The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this Contract shall not
render the other remaining provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal. and the remaining
provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

XIV. Integration
This Contract with exhibits incorporated and part thereof, Exhibit "A" - General Conditions
& Specification; Exhibit "B" - Contractor's Proposal; Exhibit "C" - Contractor's
Qualification Statement; Exhibit "D" - District Map; and Priority Hydrant List, Exhibit E,
contains and constitutes the entire contract by and between the parties hereto and supersedes
any and all prior written or oral agreements, €xpress or implied, involving that which is the
subject matter of this Contract.

XV. Boycott of Israel Certification

Pursuant to NRS 332.065(4), the Contractor certifies that it is not currently engaged in and
agrees for the duration of this Contract not to engage in, a boycott of Israel, as that term is
defined in NRS 357.250.

The Contractor further certifies that it will not enter into any subcontract related to this Contract with a
subcontractor that is engaged in a boycott of Israel.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF

District has caused this Contract to be executed by its officers, duly authorized, and
Contractor has subscribed same this /ol 74 day of February, 2026.

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT



C. MANCHESTER ENT., INC

BY (_/Q\ujl L @ 27122 26

CHARLENA MANCHESTER, Secretary and Treasurer of
C. Manchester Ent.

Slake o€ NV
QOUV\"\/ o€ BDU%\O«S

“This inshument was acknowled q<d before me
on &bmar\_l 12,202k 10\/ -Der‘eK Dornlorook

C Sapatre of Notarial 6Ffcer )



EXHIBIT A

GENERAL CONDITIONS AND
SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
CONTRACT FOR SNOW REMOVAL

1. SCOPE OF WORK

The work to be done under this Contract consists of performing snow plowing of
streets, the application of de-icing and/or anti-icing materials to streets, the removal
of snow berms and cutter discharge from in front of and around fire hydrants and
related tasks. Scope does not include clearing naturally accumulating snow from
hydrants. Plow operations are considered deficient and unacceptable if they result in
priority fire hydrants being inaccessible by first responders. Contractor will refrain
from plowing berms in front of or on top of hydrants to the best of their ability. The
need for snow removal varies depending on hydrant riser height. Rather than clear
snow removal after a set number of inches of snowfall, removal shall be required only
when snowfall, berms, or cutter discharge begins to hinder access or operation of the
hydrant. District understands that during Storm Events, it is inconceivable to ensure
that all hydrants will be fully accessible, but Contractor assures District that to the best of
the Contractor’s ability it will minimize snow accumulation in front of hydrants.
Contractor assures District that priority first responder ready hydrant access will
commence and be completed with 48 hours of a storm event. Secondary hydrants will
be completed after the priority hydrants have been cleared. Contractor is not
responsible for removing snow from around hydrants that accumulates naturally
during a snowstorm, provided the Contractor's operations did not contribute to the
obstruction. All additional required natural snowfall removal from hydrants shall
commence within 24 hours of notification from the District, as approved by District
staff and to be billed on a time and material basis. Contractor’s operators shall not
cover or obstruct hydrants with plowing debris; and the Contractor shall cause the
removal of any such debris from around such at contractor’s expense. Unless otherwise
specified herein, the Contractor shall furnish all labor, material and equipment to

perform the work.

II. LOCATION OF WORK

The work shall be accomplished on streets maintained by the District within its
boundaries. Kingsbury Grade, State Route 207, is maintained by the Nevada
Department of Transportation and is not a part of this Contract. At the direction of
District, some private roads within the District may be plowed under provisions of
this Contract to allow District to access its service infrastructure.



Contractor and Contractor's operators are responsible for familiarizing themselves
with District's roads and adjacent properties, including all hazards. District will
provide, install and maintain road markers and snow stakes at its expense.
Contractor will assist District as requested in determining where markers should be
placed to protect property and operators. Contactor, to the best of its ability and
knowledge, will advise District of missing or damaged markers throughout the
term of this Contract. The District will have the final determination of placement of
markers, however, Contractor shall not be responsible for all damages caused by
impact if the District failed to properly place markers or had been previously
advised by Contractor at annual inventory of marker placement. As provided in
Section XIII, Contractor shall be solely responsible to repair or replace
delineations devices (markers) that it have become damaged or demolished, and
for all damage to property adjacent to said locations and caused by Contractor.

ITI1. PREVAILING WAGES
Prevailing wages are not required under this Contract.

IV.PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

Contractor shall furnish annually a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond, each in
the amount of $450,000, for the term of this Contract. Such bonds shall be in a form
approved

by the District and executed by one or more surety companies authorized to do
business in Nevada in compliance with N.R.S. Chapter 339.

After Contractor has satisfactorily performed snow removal for the District for
two (2) or more consecutive years, the District may, at its option and upon the
request of Contractor, withhold from each payment to Contractor ten percent
(10%) retention in lieu of requiring Performance or Payment Bonds. If Contractor
thereafter satisfactorily performs for-one year, then the retention shall be returned
on June 1. Retention will be held during each contract year for which bonds are
not provided.

V. LICENSES

The Contractor and any approved subcontractor shall maintain all business
registrations, permits, and licenses required by applicable law to contract with
and perform work for the District. Contractor shall comply with all applicable
local, state, and federal laws and regulations governing the Work. Contractor
shall ensure that all persons operating equipment under this Contract are properly

("



trained and licensed, where required by law, for the equipment operated and
tasks performed. If circumstances arise requiring services outside the
Contractor’s lawful authority, Contractor shall promptly notify the District.

VI. SUBCONTRACTORS

Except with prior written authorization of the District, no subcontractor will be
recognized as such, and all persons engaged in the work will be considered
Contractor's employees, and Contractor will be responsible for their work. Nothing
contained in the Contract documents shall create any contractual relationship
between any subcontractor and the District.

VII. SUPERINTENDENCE AND PERSONNEL

The Contractor shall designate in writing, before starting work, the names and
phone numbers of authorized representatives who shall have complete authority to
represent and act for the Contractor. An authorized representative shall be readily
available at all times. The Contractor is solely responsible for the superintendence
of the work and for its safety and progress. The District shall notify the Contractor's
authorized representatives when, in the opinion of the District, conditions warrant
additional or reduced snow removal efforts. The Contractor shall provide sufficient
experienced, properly licensed and trained personnel to do the work outlined in
this Contract and shall not employ any unfit or unskilled person.

Prior to (and during multi-day) storm events, the Contractor shall provide direct contact
information for authorized representative in charge of the plowing operations. This allows the
District to more effectively handle customer complaints, calls from law enforcement, and other
issues as they arise. The Contractor's authorized representative shall also advise District of
cessation of operations concurrently therewith. Contractor’s authorized representative shall
meaningfully respond to District inquiries, communications or directions.

VIII. SAFETY

The Contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the
jobsite, including safety of all persons and property during performance of the work.
Safety provisions shall conform to all present, amended and future applicable federal,
state, county and local laws, ordinances, and codes, to the rules and regulations
established by the Nevada Department of Industrial Safety, and to all other laws
applicable to the work.

IX. INSTRUCTIONS

The District will furnish the Contractor maps of the District for use by Contractor's
drivers. Maps will designate roads to be plowed and primary and secondary sanding

(\A/"/



routes. Secondary sanding routes shall be sanded only after primary sanding routes. It
is the District's goal to balance safety of the traveling public, expense and environmental
concerns of the snow plowing activity on its roadways by minimizing unnecessary
sanding efforts. However, public safety is the dominant factor.

X. PERMITS AND REGULATIONS

Permits and licenses necessary to perform the work shall be obtained by the
Contractor at its expense. The Contractor shall acquaint itself with, and abide by, all
requirements of this Contract and related documents. The Contractor shall comply
with all laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations bearing on the conduct of the work. If
the Contractor observes that this Contract's specifications are at variance therewith, it
shall promptly notify the District in writing and specifically detail any such
discrepancies. If the Contractor performs any work contrary to such laws, ordinances,
rules, and regulations, Contractor shall bear all costs, penalties, fines and attorney's
fees incidental thereto.

XI. DISTRICT’S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT OR TO DO WORK

In the case of unsatisfactory performance by Contractor, District may provide snow
removal to supplement Contractor's work without terminating the Contract, and
Contractor shall be responsible for any increased costs above the rates specified by this
Contract incurred by District, whether resulting from District's efforts or those of a
third party.

If the Contractor should be adjudged voluntary or involuntary bankrupt, or if it should
make a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or if a receiver should be
appointed on account of it, or if it is insolvent, or if it should persistently or repeatedly
refuse or fail to supply enough properly skilled or trained personnel or provide
properly maintained equipment, or should fail to perform effective snow removal,
provide adequate quality sand and salt or perform de-icing to a reasonable level of
effort and care, or if it should fail to make prompt payment to its employees or
subcontractors for material or labor, or persistently disregard governing law,
ordinances, codes or the instructions of the District, or otherwise be guilty of a
substantial or material breach or violation of any provisions of this Contract, then the
District may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy, and after giving the
Contractor seven (7) days written notice, terminate this Contract with Contractor. In such
case, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment under this
Contract.

If the District terminates the Contract for unsatisfactory performance, Contractor shall be
responsible for any increased cost in snow removal above the rates specified by this
Contract for the balance of the Contract term.

In the event of disagreements, all parties agree to meet and confer prior to any action.

10



Contractor will be provided reasonable opportunity to cure deficiencies prior to default
or termination for unsatisfactory performance.

NRS 332.065, Subsection 3. states "If after the lowest responsive and responsible bidder
has been awarded the contract, during the term of the Contract he or she does not
supply goods or services in accordance with the bid specifications, or if he or she
repudiates the contract, the governing body or its authorized representative may re-
award the Contract to the next lowest responsive and responsible bidder without
requiring that new bids be submitted.

Re-awarding the Contract to the next lowest responsive and responsible bidder is not a
waiver of any liability of the initial bidder awarded the contract." District may elect to
exercise this right in the event of Contractor's uncured default.

XII. INSURANCE

The Contractor shall obtain at its own expense all required insurance. Such insurance
must have the approval of the District as to limit, form, and amount and be in accord
with this Contract. The Contractor will not permit any District approved subcontractor
to commence any work until the insurance requirements have been complied with by
such subcontractor. Contractor shall obtain and maintain Workers Compensation
Insurance and Comprehensive General Liability and Property Insurance. Nothing
contained in these insurance requirements is to be construed as limiting the extent of
the Contractor's responsibility for payment of damages resulting from its operations
under this Contract. The Contractor will provide District certificates issued by the
insurance carrier showing that such policies are in force for the specified period. Each
policy or certificate will bear an endorsement or statement waiving right of
cancellation or reduction in coverage without thirty (30) days written notice to be
delivered by certified or registered mail to the District. In case of the breach of any
provision of this Article, the District, at its option, may take out and maintain at the
expense of the Contractor such insurance as the District may deem necessary and may
deduct the cost of such insurance from any monies which may be due or become due
the Contractor under this Contract.

A. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall submit
written evidence that it and/or its subcontractors have obtained full Comprehensive
General Liability Insurance coverage. This coverage will provide for both bodily
injury and property damage and be in the minimum amounts of $2,000,000.00 per
occurrence and $3,000,000.00 aggregate. The Bodily Injury portion will include
coverage for injury, sickness, disease, or death, arising directly or indirectly out of, or
in connection with, the performance of work under this Contract. The Property
Damage portion will provide for all damages arising out of injury to or destruction of
property of others arising directly or indirectly out of, or in connection with, the
performance of work under this Contract. Included in such insurance will be
contractual coverage sufficiently broad to ensure compliance with that provision
titled "Indemnity” hereinafter. The Comprehensive General Liability Insurance will

11



include as Additional Named Insureds the District and each of its officers, agents,
and employees.

B. Workers' Compensation Insurance: The Contractor shall submit written
evidence that it has obtained for the period of the Contract full Workers'
Compensation Insurance coverage for all persons whom it employs or may employ
in carrying out the work under this Contract This insurance will be in strict
accordance with the requirements of the most current and applicable State of Nevada
laws, including any amended laws taking effect during the term of this Contract. The
Contractor shall, before the commencement of the work herein, and on an annual
basis thereafter, furnish to the District a certificate of coverage in compliance with
Nevada Workers' Compensation laws.

C. Automobile Liability: The Contractor shall submit written evidence that it has
obtained full Business Auto insurance coverage. This insurance shall include
protection against claims arising from death, bodily or personal injury, or damage
to property resulting from actions, failures to act, operations, maintenance or use of
equipment of the insured, or by its employees, agents or consultants, or by anyone
directly or indirectly employed by the insured. The amount of insurance shall be
not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident, including non-owned
and hired, applying to bodily and personal injury and property damage.

XII1. INDEMNITY

The Contractor shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the District and each of its
officers and employees and agents from any and all liability claims, losses, or damages
arising or alleged to arise from or during the performance of the work described herein,
and specifically including any personal injury, property damage, or any other loss
caused by or occurring as a result of Contractor's performance of the Contract;
provided, however, that the District shall not be relieved hereby from non-immunized
liability for damages resulting from District’s own negligence or that of its employees.
As related to non-contractual claims and damages, Contractor is limited to the extent of
Contractor’s negligence not withstanding anything to the contrary in the contract.
Nothing contained in this section or in any provision of this agreement shall be deemed
to be a waiver, relinquishment or reduction of District’s sovereign and other
immunities, all of which are expressly and fully preserved and retained by District for
all purposes. Furthermore, nothing provided in this agreement is intended to provide or
create rights or benefits in favor of any third party. There are no intended third party
beneficiaries to this agreement.

XIV. PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY

The Contractor shall take all precautions necessary to prevent damage to all property
and improvements, including above-ground and underground utilities, fire hydrants,

12



trees, shrubbery, fences, signs, mailboxes, driveways, survey marks and monuments,
buildings and structures, the District's property, adjacent property and any other
improvements or facilities within or adjacent to the work. If such improvements or
property are injured or damaged by reason of the Contractor's negligent operations, they
shall be replaced and/or restored at the Contractor's expense, to a condition at least as
good as the condition they were prior to the injury or damage. Roadway
delineation/snow stakes shall be included in "District's property". When delineation is
damaged beyond repair by contractor and new delineation has to be installed, the cost
and responsibility to repair or replace the delineation will be the Contractor's sole

responsibility.

On or before September 1 of each contract year, and as adverse conditions arise
throughout the season, the Contractor may notify the District, in writing, of observable
hazards within the roadway that could reasonably cause damage to equipment. Upon
receipt of such notice, the District will make reasonable efforts, as conditions and
resources allow, to repair, eliminate, mitigate, or mark such hazards. Nothing in this
section shall relieve the Contractor of its obligation to operate in a safe and prudent
manner or to avoid hazards that are known to or reasonably observable by the
Contractor. The District shall not be responsible for damage to the Contractor’s
equipment resulting from such hazards, except to the extent such damage is caused by
the District’s direct negligence.

XV. ACCIDENTS

The Contractor shall promptly report in writing to the District all known accidents
arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of the work, giving full details
and the names, addresses and statements of witnesses. In addition, if death or serious
injury or serious damage occurs, the accident must be reported immediately to the
District by telephone or messenger. If any claim is made by anyone against the
Contractor or any subcontractor on account of any accident, the Contractor shall
promptly report the facts in writing to the District, giving full details of the claim.
"Promptly report” is defined as within one business day.

XVI. MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

If the Contractor proposes to substitute materials or equipment from those specified,
it shall first request approval from the District of the proposed substitutions. No
substitutions may be made without prior written approval of the District.

13



XVII. RECORDS

The Contractor shall at all times maintain adequate books and records pertaining to
work under the Contract and documenting work performed, hours worked, and
quantities and costs of materials for sanding, de-icing and fuel. All records shall be
available to District during regular business hours upon reasonable prior notice.

XVIII. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT

Contractor shall be fully responsible for the prompt and full payment of all bills, wages
and salaries including all taxes and insurance of its employees.

For its services, Contractor shall be paid an Annual Minimum Payment Guarantee of
Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and no cents ($450,000.00) per plow season
contracted with District beginning with the 2025-2026 Season, which shall be prorated
to Three Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and no cents ($350,000.00). The Annual
Minimum Payment Guarantee shall continue for the 2026-2027 and 2027-2028 plow
seasons.

The Annual Minimum Payment Guarantee for each plow season shall be advanced to
the Contractor in six (6) equal installments. Advance payments shall be made on
October 1, November 1, December 1, January 1, February 1, and March 1 of each plow
season.

Each installment shall equal one-sixth (1/6) of the applicable Annual Minimum
Payment Guarantee for that season.

If, at any time during the season, the total value of approved invoices submitted by
Contractor exceeds the total amount of seasonal guarantee advances paid to date, the
District shall pay the excess amount due in accordance with the standard invoice
payment terms set forth in this Contract.

At the conclusion of the plow season, total compensation paid to Contractor shall be
reconciled against the Annual Minimum Payment Guarantee and the seasonal
compensation cap, as applicable.

The total compensation paid to Contractor for any single plow season shall be capped
at Six Hundred Thousand Dollars and no cents ($600,000.00). Upon reaching the
seasonal compensation cap, any additional work authorized by the District shall be
billed at actual cost plus fifteen percent (15%), with such costs and the determination
of overage documented and agreed upon at the time the cap is reached or exceeded.
Contractor to provide evidence of cost with invoices.

Contractor’s equipment hourly rates shall be subject to an annual rate adjustment

14 { | .k__.f"'/r.



based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the West Region published by the U.S.
Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS), applied at the beginning of each plow season.

Following the initial contract term, the District may, upon mutual written consent and
continued satisfactory performance, extend this Contract for up to 2 additional 3-year
plow seasons. Any such extension shall be subject to annual appropriation and formal
written approval by the District’s Board of Trustees.

Contractor may submit invoices as soon as possible after a snow event, and at least once
monthly by the 10" of the month for work performed the previous month. Payment
under this Contract shall be made for each documented hour or partial hour of
equipment used for snow removal, sanding and checking roads to determine if plowing
/sanding is needed and shall be made for each load or partial load of sand/salt mix
applied to roads. Partial hours shall be documented and paid for (1/4) hour increments.
In support of billing Contractor shall supply time records showing date, operator name,
general location of plowing and sanding, equipment used, hours of work, a measurement
of sand/salt used and fuel invoices if a surcharge is included in the invoice.

Payment shall be made to contractor within fifteen days of receipt of an invoice, subject to
verification by District of work performed.

De-icing or anti-icing materials, including salt/sand mix shall be paid for as used by the
Contractor for the benefits of District and shall be billed at Contractor’s documented cost for
materials, hauling, mixing, loading, and storage. Records of total quantities and areas of
application must be provided to the District with each pay request.

It is reasonably foreseeable that Contractor may be called upon by District to perform
additional work for District's benefit which falls outside the scope of work identified in
this Contract. Such services shall only be performed pursuant to a written direction by
District and acceptance by Contractor. In such cases the following payment protocols will
be observed and followed by the parties.

For out-of-scope work, Contractor may submit invoices immediately after the work is
performed. Payment under this Contract shall be made for each documented hour or partial
hour of equipment used for the out-of-scope tasks. Partial hours shall be documented and
paid for in (1/ 4) quarter hour increments. In support of each billing, Contractor shall
supply time records showing date, driver's name, general location of work performed,
nature of the work performed, equipment used, hours of work, a measurement of materials
used, if any, and fuel invoices if a fuel surcharge is permitted.

The Contractor shall accept the compensation as herein provided as the full payment for
furnishing all superintendence, labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals necessary
to the completed work and for performing all work contemplated and embraced under
the Contract; also for loss or damage arising from the nature of the work and for all risks
of every description connected with the prosecution of the work; also for all expenses
incurred in consequence of the suspension or discontinuance of the work as herein

15



specified; and for executing the work according to the Contract documents. No
compensation will be made in any case for loss of anticipated profits.

Payments Withheld: The District may withhold or, on account of subsequently discovered
evidence, nullify the whole or part of any payment to such extent as may be necessary
to protect itself from loss on account of:

1. Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of claims.
2. Failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to subcontractors,
suppliers or employees or for material or labor.
Failure of the Contractor to repair damage to private property or in right-of-way.
4. Failure to maintain or repair required equipment to meet

performance requirements.

W

XIX. ISSUES WITH PRIVATE PROPERTY OWNERS AND THE GENERAL PUBLIC

All complaints of third parties on snow removal or sanding shall be directed to District first, which
will immediately notify all potential claims to the Contractor in order for the Contractor to do its
due diligence of inspection. District shall initially provide its determination as to whether the claim
is or is not valid.

Contractor’s employees shall not enter into discussions with the public, and shall instead refer
such persons to the District's designated representative.

District and Contractor shall cooperate in the removal of vehicles from the right-of-way when
they are impeding snow removal. Contractor shall first notify the Douglas County Sheriff and
then notify the District representative of such impeding vehicles.

XX. SNOW REMOVAL AND DE-ICING PROCEDURES
A: PROCEDURES

Contractor shall perform snow removal and sanding on designated streets maintained by
the District and on private roads within District boundaries that are designated by the
District.

1. Unless District notifies Contractor otherwise, plowing operations shall
commence when snow reaches a depth of three (3) inches on the road at
the intersection of North Benjamin and Kingsbury Grade. Sanding shall
begin as soon as surfaces on regularly-sanded streets have the potential to
become slippery, as determined by the District.

2. Contractor shall ensure school bus routes are free of snow and apply
de-icing materials prior to the normal travel time of school buses and,
when conditions permit, by 7 a.m. if the snow is at or over three (3)

16



17

inches deep.

De-icing ("sanding") shall be done on streets designated by the District
before 7 a.m. and again early afternoon when streets are icy and at such other
times as conditions warrant.

a)

b)

District shall designate Primary and Secondary Sanding Routes.
Secondary sanding routes shall only be after Primary sanding
routes. Areas not identified as Primary or Secondary shall only be
sanded at the direction of the District Representative or designate.
District reserves the right to reduce or expand the routes based on
operational requirements.

Type "D" Sand meeting the Nevada Department of Transportation
specification shall be exclusively used in the sand/salt mix applied to

streets.

The District shall designate the application rate, width and

symmetry of sand application.
The District shall communicate to the Contractor any changes in
application rate from the calibrated rate of application as defined

herein.

The District shall designate the width of spread pattern to use on each
route unless this has been pre-arranged. In no case shall the spread
pattern formed by the material extend beyond the traveled portion of
the road.

Operators shall make best efforts to avoid covering or obstructing hydrants with
plowing debris; and the Contractor shall cause the removal of any such
debris as set forth above. Contractor shall assume responsibility for any
snowplow damage to said fire hydrants and shall indemnify and hold District
harmless for damages to said hydrants or any claim resulting from Contractor
removing snow from said fire hydrants. District is initially responsible for
hydrant marking compliant with local code. District, with input from
Contractor will reliably mark hydrant locations.

Contractor is not responsible for removing snow from around hydrants

that accumulates naturally during a snowstorm, provided the

Contractor's operations did not contribute to the obstruction. Inthe

event District engages Contractor to clear hydrants of naturally
accumulated snow as determined by District staff, Contractor will do so

as available, which snow removal will be billed on a time and material



18

basis.

A rotary snow blower shall be used in such areas as are designated by
District, with District authorization prior to each use.

District reserves the right to perform limited plowing (up 25% of the plowing
work). If District plows, District shall coordinate its efforts with Contractor
so that the work is not overlapped. Such coordination shall include but not
be limited to a meeting with the Contractor to communicate specific streets
that the District will plow, specific days and times that the District will take
responsibility for plowing, and when the Contractor shall resume plowing
and/or sanding responsibilities for those specific streets. Contractor shall
not be liable for damage caused by District plowing efforts. District's
supplemental plowing shall not affect the Contractor's payment. District to
immediately notify contractor as to any damages District or it’s employees
may cause due to District plowing

District will perform anti-icing operations within specific areas of the
District. District shall coordinate such efforts with Contractor. Such
coordination shall include but not be limited to a meeting with the
Contractor to communicate specific streets that the District will perform
anti-icing operations, specific days and times that the District Work will be
performed, and when the Contractor shall resume anti-icing responsibilities
for those specific streets. Contractor shall not be liable for damages resulting
from District's anti-icing operations. Contractor shall be responsible for the
overall safety of the roads at all times and has complete authority to do what
is necessary to protect that safety and provide for the liability this statement
requires.

When practical, loader and plow truck blades shall be turned away from
driveways, intersections, and fire hydrants to reduce or eliminate berms.
Intersection berms shall be cleared regularly during and immediately
after a storm.

B: EXCESSIVE WINTER DE-ICING MATERIALS/ ABRASIVES USAGE

1.

The District has determined the amount of winter de-icing
materials/abrasives required to complete each route based on
normal rate of application and even coverage.

Contractor shall utilize best efforts to comply with District's
determinations as to amounts of products mentioned in the previous



19

paragraph, and will avoid excessive application of de-icing materials
and abrasives. This is necessary for Lake Tahoe clarity concerns.

Should the winter de-icing material/abrasives usage as a function of
distribution rate as measured by the spreader controls (+/-5%) not
equal the actual volume of winter de-icing materials/abrasives used,
the spreader will be deemed to be operating improperly or the load to
have been spread incorrectly. If so, the Contractor shall immediately
advise the District and shall do the following:

a. Should the Contractor have a spare spreader; the Contractor
shall remove from service the out of calibration spreader. The
Contractor shall make the spreader switch recognizing that
time is of the essence. The District and Contractor shall agree
on the time required to make the switch safely.

If the Contractor does not have a spare spreader, District may permit the
Contractor to use the out of calibration spreader on the current winter

event.

_ The out-of-calibration spreader shall be re-calibrated and available

within twenty- four (24) hours or other agreed upon time frame.

The Contractor shall ensure that the actual volume of winter de-icing
materials used is included in daily reports. This shall be reported in cubic

yards.

Upon completion of an assigned route the Contractor shall return any
unused winter de-icing materials to its place of origin and again shall
ensure that the actual cubic yard volume of winter de-icing materials used
is included on the daily reports.

_ The Contractor is aware that large or foreign objects may exist in the de-

icing materials. The Contractor shall take such precautions to prevent
damage to its equipment and public from such objects. District will not
be responsible for any damages from such objects loaded into the
Contractor's spreaders.



XXI. EQUIPMENT

20

A. MINIMUM EQUIPMENT REQUIRED

Contractor shall have in good working order for the performance of this
Contract the following equipment. Substitutions may be made only with the
approval of District and will be documented with an amendment to this
Contract. Other equipment and hourly rates (if applicable) may be listed
(will not be included in determining the rate for bidding) but could be
made available by the Contractor for use under this Contract as approved
by the District. Minimum equipment required, when not available during
a snow event may be cause for a deduction of payment (at the rate
specified in the bid) unless suitable substitution has been approved by the

District.

1. Five (5) fully chained wheel loaders with 10 to 14-foot snow
blades and/or plow with wings and a minimum of three (5) five -
cubic yard buckets.

2. Two (2) large rotary snow blowers with minimal capacity each of
2500 tons per hour. And three (3) small rotary snow blowers with
capacity of approximately 600 to 1000 tons per hour. Blowers may
be loader-mounted.

Plowing/Sanding and Salting units as specified,

1. Three (3) Spreader trucks with 4x4 drive wheels chained with 3
cubic yard spreader box/ hopper.

2. One (1) Brining truck must have both pre-wetting and anti-icing
capability and be equipped with a minimum liquid tank capacity
of 300 gallons.

3. One (1) Foreman Support truck for fuel, chains, hoses and backup
spreader. May include plow.

All snowplow units shall be equipped with variable speed spread control
system capable of controlling the application rate of sand or the sand/salt
mixture.

Variable speed spread control devices shall be able to be calibrated to ensure
consistent and uniform delivery of material to the road. It is preferred for
the spread rate application settings to be controlled from inside the cab of
the vehicle. All must be suitable to be fitted with GPS sensors for spreader



on/off protocol.

Any plow trucks will be fitted with prescribed vehicle tracking system
modules. Contractor is responsible for use, maintenance, and security of
these tracking units. The GPS unitis connected to the electronic wiring
harness system of the vehicle. Detailed information on the current system
being used can be found at hitp://www.networkfleet.com The District will
pay the monthly monitoring charges. The District will allow the Contractor
limited access to various functions within the software and to generate
reports. Alternative tracking systems may be substituted upon agreement
between District and Contractor.

Equipment not meeting the above requirements will be rejected. Within the
provisions of this Contract and upon mutual agreement the Contractor may
make equipment available to complete other District assignments which
the Contractor is licensed and qualified to perform.

XXII. DE-ICING AND ANTI-ICING MATERIALS

A. Contractor shall prepare and provide mixed sand and salt for de-icing at a
ratio not to exceed 1 part salt to 3 parts Type "D" at Contractor's cost.
Contractor shall provide covered storage for the sand/salt mixture and
maintain moisture content at less than 2%. Alternatively, District, at its
discretion, may provide and store mixed sand/salt for Contractor's use with

appropriate notice.

B. District may seek to explore de-icing and anti-icing alternatives during the
term of the Contract and reserves the right to negotiate with Contractor the
implementation of a different sanding/de-icing/anti-icing program which
may include, among other things, pre-wetting of the sand/salt mix, use of
different chemicals and a change in application rates or procedures. District
reserves the right to bring the sanding component of the Contract in-house
upon reasonable notification to Contractor with appropriate reduction in
minimum rate payable to Contractor.

C. QA/QC: Contractor shall allow the District to obtain samples of the

sand/salt mix from spreaders to verify correct sand type and mix ratios.

XXIIL STAGING YARD AND MATERIALS STORAGE

A. Contractor must provide his own equipment staging and material storage
area at Stateline, Nevada or at another nearby (within two miles of District

21



boundaries) District-approved site. Contractor is required to operate and
maintain the yard in compliance with applicable laws.

B. Contractor may use the District's Operations Yard to stage equipment and
material. Contractor shall operate and maintain the yard consistent with all
applicable laws and ordinances. Contractor's use of the District Operations
Yard shall not interfere with District's use thereof.

XXIV. DEFINITIONS
A. SANDING means the application of de-icing abrasives by pre-wetting a sand

and salt mixture as it is applied during and after storm events.

B. ANTI-ICING means pre-wetting the road surface with 23% salt brine
and/or salt before a storm event.

C. DE-ICING means Application of 23% salt brine and salt after a storm event.

XXV. SAND SPECIFICATIONS (SPEC. “D”)

A. Moisture content shall not be in excess of 5% of the weight of the material delivered.

B. Durability Index or hardness must be greater than 75 per ASTM D4644 test.
The loss by abrasion must be less than 33%.

C. The content of material smaller than 100 mesh sieve must not exceed 4.0
percent fines by weight. The content of material smaller than 200 mesh
sieve must not exceed 2.5 percent fines by weight. Phosphorus: The
maximum phosphorus content shall be 10 parts per million or less.

SIEVE SIZE ~ PERCENTAGE PASSING
#4 93%-100%

#8 40%-80%

#16 15%-60%

#SO 0%-20%

#100 0%-4%

#200 0%-2.5%

22



"Percent Fines" means the percent material passing a specified sieve size as
determined by the American Society for Testing Materials (AASHTO) "Standard
Method for Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates," designation 136-84a
or AASHTO Designation T27.

"Durability Index" means the hardness of the material or its resistance to
breaking down as defined by American Association of State Highway and
Transportation Officials (AASHTO) T-210 or Caltrans Test 229.

"Loss by Abrasion" means the percent loss of weight as determined by using
AASHTO "Standard Test Method for Resistance to Degradation of Small-Size
Coarse Aggregate by Abrasion and impact in the Los Angeles Machine",
Designation AASHTO T-96.

23






Memo to: Board of Trustees

From: Byran Moss, Utilities Operations Superintendent
Subject: Operations report for the meeting of February 18, 2026
Working on daily operations.

State reports.

Made arrangements to have the Case 521 loader, Caterpillar 262 Skid Steer and the Vactor 2100

serviced.

Meetings with the attorney to prepare for my deposition on the Kimberly Brooke fire hydrant

damage.
Connection permits.

Worked with a technician to diagnose an intermittent problem with the VFD on Raw Water
Pump #3.

Water crew: 1. Working on annual small equipment maintenance.
2. Replaced broken sewer manhole rings and covers on South Benjamin Drive
and on Tramway Drive.
3. Assisted a technician to diagnose the Raw Water Pump #3 VFD problem.
4. Repaired the Chlorine injection system at Station #3.
5. Working on quarterly water system pressure checks.
6. Repaired the gate operator at the plant.

7. Programmed replacement water meter registers.

Road Crew: 1.Replaced broken sewer manhole rings and covers on South Benjamin Drive and
on Tramway Drive.
2. Swept Roadways.
3. Cleared Storm drains in the district.
4. Working on small equipment maintenance.
5. Cleaned rodent nests from the interiors of trucks and equipment at the OPS
Yard and installed traps in the vehicles.

6. Working on small equipment maintenance.






Administrative and H.R. Supervisor Manager’s Report
Date: February 18, 2026

1. Springbrook Transition

Training and implementing a new Springbrook platform. This transition includes staff training

and constituent support to assist not only with the move to the new Express Pay option but also
with setting up and understanding the entire new accounting side of Springbrook.

3. General Operations

Since the holidays, a significant portion of time has been dedicated to addressing daily
operational issues as they arise, requiring ongoing prioritization and responsiveness.

4. Staffing Updates

o Interviews were held for the water position and the street maintenance positions;
however, no external candidates have progressed at this time.

e A current street maintenance crew member who previously applied for the water
operations position will be transitioning into that role while working toward obtaining the
required certifications.

o The district is actively recruiting for a certified water operator and will also need to fill
the street maintenance position created by this transition.

5. Compensation Review

Work was initiated on developing a five-step level salary table for KGID. This project has been
temporarily paused to address higher-priority operational and legal matters.

6. Legal Matters
Considerable time has been spent compiling and recovering discovery materials for legal counsel
representing KGID in the Manchester/F&B lawsuit related to the fire hydrant incident that

occurred in March 2024. A deposition is scheduled, and detailed testimony will be required
regarding this matter.

7. Labor Relations

A union negotiation meeting with the district’s negotiation attorney, the union representative and
the General Manager is scheduled for February 24, 2026.

8. Safety Recognition

January was recognized with a pizza party in celebration of having no on-the-job injuries.



9. Team Building

We will be having a team building activity at Trapped in Tahoe this coming Thursday.

10. Monthly Metrics
Service Requests Completed (January): 2025~ 37 ea. ($1,125.00 income)
2026 -03ea.($ 150.00 income)
Hours Worked (January-Hourly Employees): 2025 - 1487 hours (9 employees)
2026 — 1148 hours (7 employees)

- 759 Boulder Court, Q — $94,617 (Tax Lien)
- 495 Tramway #12 — $96,083 (Tax Lien)
- 165 Irwin A&B — $67,796 (Lien) maybe it’s time for a tax lien?



STATE OF NEVADA

N evada Division of Department of Conservation & Natural Resources
Joe Lombardo, Governor

K.ﬁ“\‘ STAT E LA N D s James A, Settelmeyer, Director

Charles Donohue, Administrator

January 23, 2026

Kingsbury General Improvement District
P.0 Box 2220
Stateline, NV 89449

Re: Notice of Expiring Permit
APN: 1318-22-002-001
Project #: 8356

To Whom it May Concern,

Our records show that your license for a commercial water intake line for commercial use (Contract
#4309) will expire on February 1, 2027. Pursuant to NRS Chapter 322, the occupancy and use of state-
owned land must be authorized by Nevada Division of State Lands (NDSL) and appropriate fees paid.

If you desire to retain these structures, a letter requesting extension must be submitted to the address
below 90 days prior to the expiration of your license, so that NDSL can renew your license.

Nevada Division of State Lands
Attn: Danielle Whybrew
901 S. Stewart St., Ste 5003
Carson City, NV 89701

If you wish to terminate your use of state-owned lands, please notify NDSL so that authorization for the
removal of your structures can be arranged.

If you have any questions, please contact our office at 775-684-2739 or by email at
dwhybrew@lands.nv.gov.

Sincerely,
e 72
Kevin Fromherz JAN 29 2026

7D

e

State Land Office » State Land Use Planning Agency ¢ Nevada Tahoe Resource Program
901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 5003 e Carson City, Nevada 89701  p: 775.684.2720 o f: 775.684.2721 # lands.nv.gov






¢ MINDEN LAWYERS, LLC

‘ SUCCESS IS MEASURED BY RESULTS

Charles Scott Zumpft, Esq.

Zumpft@mindenlawyers.com

Admitted in Nevada Neal Falk, Esq.

California Admitted in Nevada

Colorado Florida
January 21, 2026

Judy Brewer, District Clerk

Kingsbury General Improvement District
PO Box 2220

Stateline, NV 89449

Re:  Kingsbury General Improvement District — Summary of Claims 2025

Dear Ms. Brewer:

Pursuant to NRS 41.0385, I am submitting to you the Summary of Claims made against
Kingsbury General Improvement District in 2025. This summary is a public record open to

inspection upon request.
Please do not hesitate to call if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

Minden Lawyers, LLC

Charles S. “,umpft, Esq.
CSZ:tma
Enclosures

Phone: (775) 782-7171 www.mindenlawyers.com JAN 2 6 2026
Fax: (775) 782-3081 | 1664 US Highway 395 N., Suite 105

‘ PO Box 2860 —3:,9

Minden, NV 89423






SUMMARY OF CLAIMS
FOR 2025

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

No admission is made for any liability for such claim or any amount requested for
any claim. This report is prepared pursuant to statutory requirements.

TOTAL OF ALL CATEGORIES (I - 1ll)

TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0
O# 0 (O} 0
J# 0 J$ 0
C# 1

See attached for detailed breakdown per category of wrong alleged.

STATUS CODES:

=Paid

=0pen or Pending

=Judgment entered but not Paid
=Closed with no payment

O<0 T

Amounts shown include fees and costs (if any).






I. Law Enforcement Liability

A. Assault/ Battery / Excessive Use of Force

Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 (0} 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
B. False Arrest / False Imprisonment
Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

Oo# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
C. Automobile Liability
Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
D. Other
Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
E. Total of Categories I. A-D:
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0$ 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0







Il. Negligent Injury (Other than auto or law enforcement)

A. Bodily Injury

Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
B. Property Damage
Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
MOORE, DENEVA & CHESTER C 0.00 0.00
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 1
C. Libel, Slander, Defamation
Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
D. Wrongful Death
Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 Oh 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
E. Totals of Categories ll. A-D:
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J§ 0

C# 1







>

lll. Negligent Injury - Auto (Excluding Law Enforcement)

A. Bodily Injury

Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
B. Property Damage
Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0$ 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
C. Wrongful Death
Claimant Amount Judgment Amount
Name Status Claimed Amount Paid
TOTALS: P# 0 P3 0

O# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0
D. Total of Categories lll. A-C:
TOTALS: P# 0 P$ 0

O# 0 0% 0

J# 0 J$ 0

C# 0







